AGENDA

JEFFERSON COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MARCH 13, 2024
COMMISSION MEETING ROOM
8:15 AM

This meeting has the option of attending via teleconference. The meeting is open for onsite
attendees. The teleconference allows for listening to the meeting, but will be muted for incoming
participation, except during “citizen comments” that will occur at approximately 9:00am.

Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be
considered at the above referenced meeting; however, the agenda does not limit the ability of the
County Commission to consider additional subjects. Meetings are subject to cancellation without
notice. Other than hearings, which are publicly noticed, the time schedule is approximate and may vary
for individual agenda items. The Board reserves the right to place a time limit on public testimony on
any agenda item. The meeting place is handicapped accessible. Those needing assistance should contact
the Commission office two (2) days in advance of the meeting by calling (541) 475-2449.

All agenda items shall be taken up between scheduled (time specific) appointments,
action items, or public hearings when time permits.

CONFERENCE CALL LINE: (301) 715-8592 MEETING ID: 898 1666 4155 PASSCODE: 2449
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89816664155?pwd=RkNKeTMOT1YvWDA3Q2U3QmIwMytGdz09

1. Administrative Session (8:15) (The items discussed during Administrative Session are intended to

have staff present updates/reports or routine items to the Board. The Second Wednesday of the
month is an Elected Official/Department Director Meeting)

1.1 Elected Official/Department Director Meeting.

2. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation

3. Presentations/Awards

4. Changes to the Agenda (Consideration of Submission of Late Items)

5. 9:00 A.M. - Citizen Comments

6. Consent Agenda (The items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will all be adopted
in one motion unless a Board member or person in the audience requests, before the vote on the
motion, to have the item considered separately. If any item is removed from the Consent Agenda,
the item will be taken up immediately following the vote on the remaining items)

6.1 March 2024 Accounts Payable Paid March 2024 in the amount of $288,840.03 - signed by



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89816664155?pwd=RkNKeTM0T1YvWDA3Q2U3QmIwMytGdz09

9.

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Commission.
6.1.pdf

March 2024 Accounts Payable Paid March 2024 in the amount of $207,762.29 - signed by
Commission.
6.2.pdf

February 2024 Credit Card Payable Paid February 2024 in the amount of $137,111.26 -
signed by Commission.
6.3.pdf

Certificate of Right to Burial, Certificate No. 2094 - signed by Commission.
6.4.pdf

Action Minutes for March 6, 2024 - signed by Commission.
6.5.pdf

Scheduled Appointments, Action Items, and Public Hearings

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

9:30 a.m. - Public Hearing - Title III Proposed Projects.
7.1.pdf

9:45 a.m. - BestCare Annual Report.
10:15 a.m. - IT Budget/Project Discussion, AccTech Solutions.

6:00 p.m. - Board of Commissioners Meeting at Crooked River Ranch.

Action Items

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

2024-2025 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Community Mental Health,
Addiction Treatment, Recovery & Prevention and Problem Gambling Services Agreement,
Agreement # PO-44300-00026012 - signed by Commission Chair.

8.1.pdf

Salary Change Order for Lee Jones, Corrections Sergeant - signed by Commission.
8.2.pdf

Employment Agreement for Lee Jones, Corrections Sergeant - signed by Commission Chair.
8.3.pdf

State of Oregon Lease for Department of Transportation, Driver and Motor Vehicle Services
Division, 249 SW 3rd Street - signed by Commission Chair.
8.4.pdf

2024 Amendment to the Participating Provider Agreement between PacificSource and
Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs - signed by Commission.
8.5.pdf

Elected Official Report(s)/Request(s)


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490786/6.1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490787/6.2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490789/6.3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490790/6.4.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490791/6.5.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490784/7.1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490793/8.1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490794/8.2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490795/8.3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490796/8.4.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2490797/8.5.pdf

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Department Heads Report(s)/Request(s)
County Counsel Report(s)/Request(s)
County Administrative Officer Report(s)/Request(s)

Commission Discussion Items

Announcements/Notification of additional Commission Meetings

Executive Session

Adjourn



March 2024 Accounts Payable
Paid March 2024
Umpqua Bank Issued Checks

It is hereby ordered that check number 49712 to 49738 be paid totaling $288,840.03

FUND FUND NAME AMOUNT ISSUED VOIDED TOTAL EXPENSE
101 GENERAL FUND $9,053.48 $9,053.48
202 PUBLIC WORKS $3,114.89 $3,114.89
209 ANIMAL CONTROL $692.89 $692.89
218 FAIR $853.26 $853.26
2 NT $4,987.20 $4,987.20
225 COHB-MENTAL HEALTH $212,059.03 $212,059.03
239 HEALTH DEPT GRANT FUND $3,725.20 $3,725.20
254 Cl - ADULT $2,905.28 $2,905.28
265 JAIL $29,223.40 $29,223.40
403 JSTREET BOND $4,786.25 $4,786.25
503 CDD - PLANNING DEPT $139.66 $139.66
504 CDD - ONSITE AND ENGINEERING $343.33 $343.33
505 CDD - BUILDING $49.60 $49.60
507 CAR POOL $16,906.56 $16,906.56

TOTAL $288,840.03 $0.00 $288,840.03

Claims approved and checks dated:

3/1/2024

I, Jeff Rasmussen, hereby attest the above amounts and check numbers are correct.

Jeff Rasmussen, County Administrative Officer

Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner

Wayne Fording, Commissioner

Mark Wunsch, Commissioner

Order Number

Dated



Jefferson County Payment Approvail Report - BOCC-Payment Approval GL Page. 1
Report dates: 3/1/2024-31/2024 Mar 01, 2024 10.24AM
Report Criteria:
Detail report

Invoices with totals above $0 included
QOnly paid invoices included.

Vendor Number Vendor Name Invoice Date  Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount  GL Activity Number GL Period
2689 ASD HEALTHCARE 01/30/2024 3162811972 Pfizer C19 Vaccine 1,204.45 363 324
2689 ASD HEALTHCARE 02/09/2024 3164237178 Mirena - RH 678.89 kpal 324
2267 BC MECHANICAL LLC 02/16/2024 10354 HVAC Repair - 4H Cafe 510.50 324
2267 BC MECHANICAL LLC 02/16i2024 10354 HVAC Repair - ANA 1,676.60 324
6447 BESTCARE TREATMENT 02/12/2024 SUBCAPFEBZ  PS Subcap 2024 212,059.03 324
3627 BULLET GUARD CORPO 02/13/2024 9000798 Ballistic Interior Transaction Wind 14,470.00 324
3240 CANON FINANCIAL SERV  02/10/2024 32086774 Admin Copy Machine - Monthly L 246.52 324
3240 CANON FINANCIAL SERV  02110/2024 32086774 Jail Copy Machine - Monthly Leas 353.74 324
3240 CANON FINANCIAL SERV  0210/2024 32087830 January Usage 88.16 324
3240 CANCN FINANCIAL SERV  02/10/2024 32087830 January Usage 88.16 324
7062 CARSON OIL COMPANY |  02/23/2024 IN-0971256 2000 Gallons Unleaded 6,675.22 324
7062 CARSON OIL COMPANY 1  02/23/2024 IN-0971256 3496 Gallons Diesel 10,177.26 324
3408 CNICPLUS LLC 11/02/2023 280885 Wed Open Platform Migration Ann 4,987.20 324
3201 COLLIER, NICHOLAS RYA  02/06/2024 02-23261 Aroma Diffuser with Deodarizer 140 00 303 324
2287 COVE ELECTRIC, INC 02/15f2024 5217 Heater Hook-up;6/2mc;Straight C 692.89 324
6238 DAY WIRELESS SYSTEM  02/23/2024 INVB814332 Programming APX Radios 150 00 324
1731 DEPARTMENT OF CORR 02/21/2024 AR029553 LS Network Payment 73.74 324
1731 DEPARTMENT OF CORR 0212212024 AR029564 Jail Meals {GA#5392 Jan 2024 14,274.21 324

677 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIR  02/09/2024 010824DEQ November Surcharge 200.00 324
3629 DIVINE HEATING & COOL  02/29/2024 2/29/2024 Partial Refund Permit - 451-23-00 49.60 324
2545 EBERHARD'S DAIRY PRO  02/23/2024 1597739 12 PT 1% Milk - 5 Cases 112.20 324
3448 ECONOMIC CONSULTAN 01/31/2024 28805 Project 25427.00 Madras lLarge L 4,786.25 324
1215 JEFFERSON COUNTY RU  02/20/2024 0401 MCI Trailer Decal Reimbursement 617.28 322 324
1215 JEFFERSON COUNTY RU  02/20/2024 0402 MCI Trailer Reimbursement to Fir 617.28 324
2313 KEPAA TAMI 01/25/2024 1/25/2024 Travel Reimbursement - R/T 160/ 68.12 320 324
2313 KEPAA TAMI 01i25/2024 112512024 Travel Reimbursement - R/T 160/ 49.59 320 324

194 MID OREGON PERSONN 022312024 21527 Chirukuri, Jesse - Week Worked 2 3,462.60 324

194 MID OREGON PERSONN 02/23/2024 21530 Beeler, Micheal - Week Worked 2/ 2,681.54 324

194 MID OREGON PERSONN 02/23/2024 21531 General Labor - Retherford/Snow 2.854 89 324

184 MID OREGON PERSONN 02/23/2024 21554 Hollenbeak, Duane- Week WOrke 1.863 20 324

194 MID OREGON PERSONN 02/23/2024 21556 Locke, Jessica - Week worked 211 371.88 324
2027 QCHIN INC 02/16/2024 61649 Jan 2024 SVC 559.84 324
2027 OCHIN INC 02/16/2024 61649 Jan 2024 SVC 559 .84 303 324

803 OREGON DEPARTMENT 0242712024 02272024 Trainee Spray License Berry 50.00 324
3168 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/15/2024 BP298236 Lease & Copies 15A2984 Jan 202 16.42 25 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/15/2024 BP998236 Lease & Copies 15A2984 Jan 202 60.00 313 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTCM 02/15/2024 BP998236 Lease & Copies 15A2994 Jan 202 60.00 363 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/15/2024 BP998236 Lease & Copies 15A2084 Jan 202 40.00 322 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/15/2024 BP998236 Lease & Copies 15A2994 Jan 202 40,00 323 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/15/2024 BP998242 Lease & Copies 15A2995 Jan 202 100.00 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/115/2024 BP998242 Lease & Copies 15A2995 Jan 202 182.03 303 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/15/2024 BP998242 Lease & Copies 15A2995 Jan 202 25.00 320 324
2054 PAMPLIN MEDIA GROUP 01/22/2024 314418 Publi: Hearing Notice - Casefile 2 139.66 324
2054 PAMPLIN MEDIA GROUP 01/23/2024 314539 Public Hearing Notice - Casefile 2 143.33 324
3628 PLATT, BART 02/05/2024 2/512024 OFA Legislative Dinner 25460 324
3596 SAFEWAY 02/05/2024 RESTITUTION  Restitulion from Juvenile 20 99 38 324
3596 SAFEWAY 02/05/2024 RESTITUTION  Restitution from Juvenile 20 99 38 324
3596 SAFEWAY 02/05/2024 RESTITUTION  Restitution from Juvenile g.00 38 324

241 WARD, JENNIE 02/23/2024 551 Janitonal Services for February 20 21000 324
2741 WYATT, JAMES 02/16/2024 24-0216 Reimburse for Fue! Vehicle #155 54 08 324
2741 WYATT, JAMES 0216/2024 24-0216 Lunch during inmate transport 1325 324

Grand Totals: 288,840 03




Jefferson County Payment Approval Report - BOCC-Payment Approval GL
Report dates: 3/1/2024-3/1/2024

Vendor Number Vendor Name Invoice Date  Invoice Number Description

Net Invoice Amount

Page’

2

Mar 01, 2024 10:24AM

GL Activity Number

GL Pericd

Dated:

Finance Director:

Kelly Simmelink

Wayne Fording: __

Mark Wunsch:

County Administrator;

Report Criteria:
Detail report
Invoices with totals above $0 included.
Only paid invoices included.
[Report).Date Paid = 03/01/2024




March 2024 Accounts Payable

Paid March 2023

Umpqua Bank Issued Checks

It is hereby ordered that check number 49739 to 49767 be paid totaling $207,762.29

FUND FUND NAME AMOUNT ISSUED VOIDED TOTAL EXPENSE
101 GENERAL FUND $15,716.93 $15,716.93
202 PUBLIC WORKS $79,804.60 $79,804.60
210 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS $2,277.35 $2,277.35
215 MT. JEFFERSON MEMORIAL PARK $164.39 $164.39
219 VICTIM'S ASSISTANCE 5143.80 $143.80
221 NT $874.38 $874.38
222 TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY $15,375.00 $15,375.00
226 PUBLIC LAND CORNER PRES $4,680.00 $4,680.00
230 RURAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE $107.86 $107.86
231 JEFF CO BUSINESS LOAN FUND $2,229.36 $2,229.36
239 HEALTH DEPT GRANT FUND $26,664.78 $26,664.78
240 AMERICAN RESCUE FUND $20,000.00 $20,000.00
249 PARK FUND $1,473.75% $1,473.75
254 CJ- ADULT $359.51 $359.51
257 MEDIATION - CONCILLIATION $4,000.00 $4,000.00
265 JAIL $8,817.79 $8,817.79
503 CDD - PLANNING DEPT $1,119.51 $1,119.51
504 CDD - ONSITE AND ENGINEERING $1,119.51 $1,119.51
505 CDD - BUILDING $1,119.53 $1,119.53
507 CAR POOL $21,714.24 $21,714.24

TOTAL $207,762.29 $0.00 $207,762.29
Claims approved and checks dated: 3/8/2024

|, Jeff Rasmussen, hereby attest the above amounts and check numbers are correct.

Jeff Rasmussen, County Administrative Officer

Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner

Wayne Fording, Commissioner

Mark Wunsch, Commissioner

Order Number

Dated



Jefferson County

Report Criteria:
Detail report
Invoices with totals above $0 included
Only paid invoices included
[Report] Date Paid = 03/08/2024

Payment Approval Report - BOCC-Payment Approval GL
Report dates 3/8/2024-3/8/2024

Page

1

Mar 08, 2024 10:50AM

Vendor Number Vendor Name Invoice Date  Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount  GL Activity Number  GL Period
3177 BAXTER AUTO PARTS.IN  02/01/2024 7659-52759 Shop Supplies 31467 324
3177 BAXTER AUTO PARTS. IN  02/02/2024 7659-52919 Shop Supplies 164.24 324
3177 BAXTER AUTO PARTS, IN  02/05/2024 7659-53096 Shop Part #58 48.75 324
3177 BAXTER AUTO PARTS. IN  02/14/2024 7659-53723 Shop Part #23 17.94 324
3177 BAXTER AUTO PARTS. IN  02/26/2024 7659-54426 Shop Part #115 52.22 324
3177 BAXTER AUTO PARTS, IN  02/28/2024 7859-54573 Shop Part #57 21599 324
3177 BAXTER AUTO PARTS, IN  02/29/2024 7859-54644 Shop Part #57 21599 324
7062 CARSON QIL COMPANY |  03/01/2024 IN-0974197 2702 Galions Unieaded 8.906.64 324
7062 CARSON QIL COMPANY |  03/01/2024 IN-0974197 4504 Gallons Diesel 12,807 .60 324

9 CASCADE NATURAL GAS  03/06/2024 02058200003F Feb Gas Usage Tire Shop 12117 324

9 CASCADE NATURAL GAS  03/06/2024 12058200002F Feb Gas Usage Paint Shop 61.49 324

8 CASCADE NATURAL GAS  03/06/2024 22058200001F Feb Gas tUsage Weld Shop 12.89 324

9 CASCADE NATURAL GAS  03/06/2024 32058200000F Feb Gas Usage PW 111.21 324
2207 CENTRAL OREGON INTE  02/29/2024 0007942-IN 25-JEFF CO Loan Services Fee - 983.86 324
2207 CENTRAL OREGON INTE  02/29/2024 0007942-IN 25-JEFF CO Loan Services Fee - 1,245.50 324
2147 CENTURYLINK 02/25/2024 503-T31-4674  Current Monthly Charges - Sheriff 135.95 324
2147 CENTURYLINK 02/17/2024 503-T32-6504  Monthly Chares - Sheriff Departm 79.50 324
1498 DAVID C ALLEN LLC 03/05/2024 3/5/2024 Inveices for Mediation Services pe 4,000.00 324
6238 DAY WIRELESS SYSTEM  03/01/2024 INVB15328 Recurring Billing-Service: Mainten 218785 324
214 DEJARNATT LAND SURV 02/29/2024 2/29/2024 Land Surveys 2,537.00 324
214 DEJARNATT LAND SURV  02/29/2024 2/29/2024 Land Surveys 4,680 00 324
214 DEJARNATT LAND SURV 02/29/2024 2/29/2024 Land Surveys 300.00 324
2545 EBERHARD'S DAIRY PRO  02/27/2024 1598009 112 PT 5% Milk - 5 Cases 112.20 324
2545 EBERHARD'S DAIRY PRO  03/01/2024 1598358 1/2 PT 1% Milk - 5 Cases 114.40 324
3618 ERIC KYTOLA CPA 02/20/2024 0292024 Budget - Mid Year Adjustment and 3725908 324
3630 IRONCLAD COMPANY 02/29/2024 27775 Brooms for Sweepers 3,500 00 324
6090 KNIFE RIVER 02/13/2024 3086221 8.0 Ton Hot Mix 520.00 324
2923 KONE 03/01/2024 871304608 Jeff Co Courthouse Maintenance 1,455 00 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - Public Health 226.44 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - Public Health 1,283.15 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transpert - Public Works 1,007.09 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - JCSO o JC 685 97 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - JCSO to JC 68597 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - JC Courthous 395 46 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - JC Courthous 359.51 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 0310172024 INVC5520 Netwaork Transport - JC Courthous 143 80 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - JC Courthous 143 80 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVCS5520 Network Transport - JC Courthous 53.03 20 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Network Transport - JC Courthous 53.93 19 324
2445 LS NETWORKS 03/01/2024 INVC5520 Internet Transport Service - JC An 874 38 324
48 MADRAS-JEFFERSON C 01/01/2024 140148 Quarterly EDJiChamber Funding 15,375.00 324
2364 MANNING, DR THOMAS 02729/2024 FEB2024 Jail Med Support Feb 2024 2,562.50 324
194 MID OREGON PERSONN  02/23/2024 21529 PH Pers - A.Wheeler, WIC Rd 2/0 662.56 320 324
194 MID OREGON PERSONN 02/23/2024 21529 PH Pers - H.Bicart, IMMWCOVID19 2,000.31 349 324
194 MID OREGON PERSONN D2/23/2024 21529 PH Pers - O.Titus, PH Intern 2/01- 1.323.41 349 324
194 MID OREGON PERSONN  02/23/2024 21529 PH Pers - B.Munkh-Ochir, PH Dat 3.188.24 349 324
184 MID OREGON PERSONN  02/23/2024 21529 PH Pers - M.Quinn, FNP RH 2/1-2 4,171.98 349 324
184 MID OREGON PERSONN  02/23/2024 21548 Jail Medicals Pers - K.Simmelink 502240 324
194 MID OREGON PERSONN  02/23/2024 21548 Jail Medicals Pers - K.Skeels 2/01 320.32 324
1916 MOSAIC MEDICAL 03/04/2024  INVOG90 SBHC Base + MH Mar 24 11,922 61 338 324
318 OREGON DEPARTMENT 03/01/2024 31/2024 J Street Flood Mitigation Project L 70,059 67 324
3169 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOM 02/19/2024 035857 15A3929 Meter 1/24-2/11/24 12.22 303 324
142 PACIFIC POWER 02/23/2024 25442761-003  electric 894.59 324
142 PACIFIC POWER 02/23/2024 25442761-004  electric 197.29 324




Jefferson County

Payment Approval Report - BOCC-Payment Approval GL
Report dates: 3/8/2024-3/8/2024

Page 2

Mar 08. 2024 10:50AM

Vendor Number Vendor Name Invoice Date  Invoice Number Description Net Invoice Amount  GL Aclivity Number  GL Period
142 PACIFIC POWER 02/23/2024 25468941-001  Jan/Feb Power Usage 1.647.49 324

142 PACIFIC POWER 02/26/2024 25526761-001  electric 164.29 324

142 PACIFIC POWER 02/26/2024 25530401-001  electric 1.356.75 324

142 PACIFIC POWER 02/26/2024 42301373-002  electnic 1.142.23 324

142 PACIFIC POWER 02/22/2024 61796355-001 electric 431.82 324

2361 PALIN. CONNIE 03/01/2024 31172024 Reimbursement for Witness Fees 80.80 324
6873 PLATT ELECTRIC 02/23/2024 4W37012 Lighting 49.62 324
3458 ROCKN EZ RESCUE RAN  03/05/2024 3/5/2024 Kennel Budget - March 2024 - Pa 20,000.00 324
3626 RPMC LLC 02/09/2024 0019 Replace Gutter Office Building 1.196.00 324
3608 SCARAMUZZO, MELISSA 03/01/2024 #2024-03 Power DMS Consult Feb 24 2.100.00 348 324
3440 SUNBELT RENTALS INC 02/27/2024 150937369-00 Duct Jack/Matenal : 10571017 Ma 117.00 324

376 TEC EQUIPMENT INC 02/13/2024 113291P3 Shop Supplies 42.50 324

376 TEC EQUIPMENT INC 02/16/2024 113332P3 Shop parts #23 145 67 324

2373 THE GREG PROTHMAN 02/28/2024 2024-8609 Reimbursable Expenses for the C 1.119.51 324
2373 THE GREG PROTHMAN 02/28/2024 2024-8609 Reimbursable Expenses for the C 1.119.51 324
2373 THE GREG PROTHMAN 02/28/2024 2024-8609 Reimbursable Expenses for the C 1.119.53 324
2373 THE GREG PROTHMAN 02/26/2024 2024-8610 Reimbursable Expenses for the Fi 3.664.60 324

Grand Totals: 207,762.29
Dated:

Finance DBirector: e
Kelly Simmelink
Wayne Fording

Mark Wunsch;

County Administrator:

Report Criteria:
Detail report.
Inveices with totals above $0 included
Only paid invoices included.
[Report] Date Paid = 03/08/2024




February 2024 Credit Card Payable
Paid February 2024
Bank of America Purchase Cards

it is hereby ordered that $137,111.26 be paid and the amounts transferred from the funds listed below:

FUND FUND NAME AMOUNT
101 GENERAL FUND $32,507.11
202 PUBLIC WORKS $8,796.50
205 NOXIOUS WEED PROGRAM RD DIST 18 $44.89
213 LAW LIBRARY $503.00
215 MT. JEFFERSON MEMORIAL PARK $264.76
217 SELF-INSURANCE $3,655.00
218 FAIR $11,957.72
219 VICTIM'S ASSISTANCE $1,137.51
221 NT $5,400.27
230 RURAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE $627.78
236 SMOKE MANAGEMENT $67.62
238 CORRECTIONS AND DRUG PROGRAM $1,861.56
239 HEALTH DEPT GRANT FUND $7,549.69
243 VETERANS EXPANSION $2,330.53
245 VETERANS $1,652.65
247 FEDERAL CHILD CARE BLK GRANT $31.96
249 PARK FUND $4,608.26
254 CJ- ADULT $14,173.30
256 Gl $566.08
265 JAIL $13,529.65
266 SHERIFF'S GRANT $208.88
267 CODE ENFORCEMENT $52.28
325 LANDFILL CLOSURE FUND $186.35
503 CDD - PLANNING DEPT $104.55
504 CDD - ONSITE AND ENGINEERING $52.26
505 CDD - BUILDING $6,081.61
507 CAR POOL $7,547.56
508 RV PARK $1,226.12
509 SANITARY LANDFILL $8,682.20
755 CAMP SHERMAN DUMP $1,703.61

TOTAL $137,111.26

10

I, Jeff Rasmussen, hereby attest the above amounts are correct.

Jeff Rasmussen, County Administrative Officer

Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner

Wayne Fording, Commissioner

Mark Wunsch, Commissioner

Order Number

Dated
Page 1 of 1



1T

¥20z/0z/1
¥e0z/zesL
¥20c/Siie
¥20e/s/eg
veoz/ife
LLAVALALA
veoerle
v20Z/viie
LAV ATATLA
LAV AL 7 [A
¥20e/6e/1
¥20c/5Lie
ELAVALALA
Pz0c/Lefl
veoeiLell
P20Z/LEl
¥20e/LElL
LLAVA
LAVl /A
veoe/8/e
¥Z02/Si/e
| LAVAIIEA
ve0c/Le
L LAVAVAA
LLAVTAFITA
vZ0Z/9Z/L
veoce/ien
v2oc/oLre
[LAVAr< AL
yeozieLie
yeoe/eLe
yeozieLie
yeoe/ee/L
$e0ZiSLie
eoz/ee/l
LAV AT
veociese
yeogivel

-G11¢-0¢5-£01-1L0)
~G112-025-201-101
-L0Le-0es-201-101
-L0EE-025-¢01L-L 0l
=€01.¢-0¢5-¢01-10}
-i0le-025-2ol-L0l
-101¢-025-201-10}
-L0le-0cs-c0oL-L0l
=101¢-0¢5-¢01-1L0}
-0L2-025-20L-101
-L0ge-025-L0k-LO1
-LOEE-02S-101-L01
-L0ge-0e5-101-101
-L0EE-0e5-10L-1 04
=L0EE-025-1L01-10L
-EOEE-025-101-10L
~E0£€-025-101-101
-L0Ee-02S-1L0L- 104
-L0EE-0eS-10L-104
“10Le-0e5-104-10)
-L0L2-025-10L-101
-L0le-0es-10L-10t
-1L012-025-10L-10L
-L0L2-0es-10L-10L
-10L2-0es-10L-10L
-loLe-0es-10L-10L
-L0L2-025-10L-10L
-L0Le-02s-10L-10L
-101L2-0¢s-10L-10L
-l0Leg-0es-10L-101
-10LZ-02S-101-L0L
~LoLeg-02s-10L-10L
-L0L¢-025-101L-L0L
-t0le-0es-LoL-1ol
-L0LZ-025-101-L0}
-L0L2-025-10L-101
-L0LE-02s-101-101
-L012-025-10L-10L

ajeq aseyosind UOHBUIGUIOY 9 W8y

895°91%
68'G$
00'201$
00'0.2%
ZeorLS
ZE9rLS
00'81L$
66'662$
6¥'2Z%
66'8$
00'8€.$
00'6.%
(29°1L8€$)
29'L8es
z9°'18c%
Z9186$
291863
10'LTS
91'6£%
GZETLS
00 0vL$
89't+$
86'69%
0v'92%
G8'8LLS
S8'8LLS
¥6°GELS
GLe8Ls
60'891%
AR
04 8€$
09°¢L$
00'81%
69°251$
96'¢cl$
LE61$
898'6£2%

) R AARN
[ejo01 way)

SLiol

wswdinbg 20140

wawdinby sy

sanddng 2010

UINOA 104 Spied Yo spusane
auyoew Adoo apuaanp

aulyoep Adon ajusanp

sle|d awenN

Iajuud apusanp

puElg Jajulg

ped asnop

SaNn(] [eNUUY - JBUSSELD)
diysiaquiapy [enuuy

uassnwsey - Buibpo Bunaap soy
NupWwIS - Buibpo Bunas ooy
yasunpa- BuibpoT Bunssiy ooy
uassnwsey - 6uibpo Bunaap soy
uassnwsey - Buibpo Bunaap ooy
[eapy uassnwsey

S|E3 YISUNAA 9 UBSSNLISEY
J81doD) 2210 UoISSIWWO
[eouep - [eisAyd JH

salddng Suneapy

sa||ddng Bunsap

uer - Buippaiyg

Buibpo ejo1hoy

Buibpon yuesiddy - 14

Buibpo ues)ddy - 4

salddng sayon

salddng aayon

$H29Y7) punoibyoeg JH

sy0ayD punolbyoeg JH

SHY9YD) puncubyoeq JH
uonduoasqng une|ing

S80NOoN olignd

sa|ddng 22140

salddng a310

uoiduasqng sqopy

sayddng Bunaspy

uonduossag wa)}

YNIHLYA ‘FANYIS
VNIMLVYX ‘3ANY T4
VNIYLYH ‘3ANVS
A30V1 'ZNYov13a
(HY3L "HITANVHO
I4Y3L “931ANVHO
I4Y31 “YITANYHO
I4Y3L "UITANVHO
14Y3L “HIANYHO
14931 “HITANVHO
VX3V "HINSSVYO

AVSANAT 138S3H
AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANAT “13SS3H
AVSAONAT 13SS3H
AVSANA1 13SS3H
AYSANAT 13$S3H
443r ‘NISSNWSVY
443r ‘NISSNNSYY
AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANA1 13SS3H
AVSANAT 13$S3H
AVSANA1 13SSaH
AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANA1 13SS3H
AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVYSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANAT 138S3H
AVSANAT M3SS3IH
AVSANAT T13SS3H
AVSANAT T13SS3H
AVSANAT 13SSAH
AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANAT 13$SIH
AVSANAT T13SS3H
VX3V "H3INSSYD

AVSANAT "13SS3H
aweN [Ind HD

DINSAWESYE SN d MW NZWY
OtLZD0E0Y SN AN NZWY
INIYdVLSIA

0961# AYM3IAVS

Z NOILYHOdHOD X0H3X

Z NOILLYHOJdH0D X0OY3X
LS NIVIANL/ SAIYLS
00ALALSIY SN XN NZWY
ZrASLO88Y SN dIMW NZWV
ZZi6LP-vLL 139 NOZVAY
IS8y leg alels Comm._o
WOO'31LLVDH0

vS 13LOH ANVHO IHL 484
VS 13LOH ANVYO IHL 454
vS T3LOH ANVHO IHL 454
VS T3LOH ANVHS 3HL 454
vS 13LOH ANVHO IHL 484
HSD 2801 MO SAND 3AI4
HSO 2801 HO SANS 3AI4

Z NOILYHOdH0D X0H3X
34vD ILVIQIWANI ATTIVA
0961# WOD AVYMIIVS
0961# AVYM3IAVS

SYYL SIADIAYIS DINgnd3y
1Y1S SATIY SSOYUD LV NNI
1¥1S SATN SSOHD LV NNI
L1V1S SAIM SSOHD LV NNI
00 A3TIVA 3HNSYIHL NI
02 AITIVA 2dNSVYIYL NI
277 LHOIY3IYIH

D71 LHOIHANIH

271 LHOIYAYIH

21D YIA3IN 03

- SH3dYdSMIN ALINNWWOD
ZHE86Mr00H SN d1IHIN NZINY
L£1991S2H WOD NOZYINY
"ONI 390av

VvZZld AdVANTO3T SAGTY
JluRN JOpUBA

sjfejaq paeg eseydind yZg3d



¢t

Y20C/LE
yc0e/8ie
¥20¢/S/iC
y20er8ic
20e/9fe
e0e/siz
2028
y20e/9/e
veaeiolLie
LZAVAL] 3T
LLAVTAL 4B TA
vzoeiviic
veoe/eLse
LAV AL A BT
¥c0c/6/
¥coc/ere
¥c0c/8/e
[FAVALErA
¥e0e/9/e
¥20c/9/2
¥20Z/1ElL
Pe0e/Lell
veog/Le/l
veoe/sell
vaalive/L
reoeive/l
LgAVALrALR
[LAVALT4
yeoe/Lie
LLAUA1 TS
veoe/vLie
¥20c/ere
yeoetie
veoc/ees1
yeoeriore
#2029/
¥20¢e/s/e
20z

-10€E-025-601-101
-1 0EE-02S-601L-L01
-L0€L-025-60L-101
-L0EE-025-601-101
-L0EE-025-60L-101
-10€e-025-601-101
-L0EE-025-601-101
-L0L2-025-601-101
*L01Z-025-60L-101
-L0L2-025-601-101
-L01LZ-025-60L-101
-L0L2-025-601-101
-L0LE-025-601-101
-L0LZ-025-60L-101
-0l 2-02s-601-101
-L0LZ-025-60L-101
-L0L2-025-601-101
-L012-025-601-101
-L0L2-025-601-L01
-LoL2g-025-601-101
-L0LZ-025-60L-101
-L0L2-025-601-101
-L0L2-025-60L-101
-L01eg-025-601-101
-101¢-025-601-101
-LGl2-02s-601-101
-L01L2-025-601-101
-1012-025-601-101
~1012-0¢5-601-1L01
-L012-02s-601-101
~101L2-025-60L-1.01
-101L2-025-604-10L
-L0EE-025-20L-10L
-L0ge-025-20L-10L
-LZLE-025-201-10L
~200g-0e5-20L-101
-012¢-0¢5-£01-10L
-G 12-025-201-101

ajeq aseyoungd UONRUIqUWO?) T W)

0s'8ls
00'1LLS
65'cS
£V'TL68
19ZL$
88'CL%
9ves
05'€G%
G8'6%
66°2$
66°L%
66'L$
66'L%
6649
G869
66'L%
66°2%
66'L%
66'L$
66°L%
66'2L%
66°2$
66°L%
66'L%
66°4%
66°4%
66°2%
0091$
922v$
00'566%
66'29%
61923
00'00£°L$
00'09%
81’683
00°099%
LE'esis
66°9%
2101 way

Sliog

Jauuiq - pJeoq % |1seg
youn - syanguels
934407 - S,PIBUCPON
2OUIUO)-[RI0H pUBIS) 3y
Jauuig-1ehs-paly
Jauug - Bury Jabing
SEC) 3f|IASWINY

DSBT XOJIX

abelsod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsn
abesod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsny
abeisod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsn
abeisod - sdsn
abelsod - sdsn
abe)sod - sdsn
abe)sod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsn
abeisod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsn
abeisod - sdsn
abeysod - sdsny
abejsod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsn
abejsod - sdsn
sanddng a2y - aads
so|ddng aoyQ - sMNg
SI0) - |asuno) Gan

10)09)01d U2210G - d|N LUZWwy
uonn|os Buleas - dpjy uzury

sse|n Buuiesy Jwbpy 3000
¥2/e0 sang 0os|y Jeo)
aseaT Alylup Jo1don) xo1ay
s884 4sui) 3l SW $a°d
207 uer py Jadedsmap
juswdinb3g aowo
uonduassag way)

A1V ‘INNTZ
A1vA ‘INIZ
1WA ‘IHNWIAZ
1WA ‘IMNIZ
31 ‘IHWIZ
ALYA 'IMNTZ
A1V ‘INWIZ
ALY ‘INNWIZ
31wA ‘IHW3Z
3LV ‘IHWIZ
ALWA ‘IHWIZ
31V 'IMNIZ
A1V ‘IANNWIZ
ALY 'INTZ
A1V ‘IANWIZ
ALYH 'IMNTZ
31V ‘IAWIZ
A1V 'IHWIZ
LW ‘IMNIZ
A1V ‘INWIZ
ALYH 'IMNTZ
A1V ‘IANWIZ
ALYH ‘INNIZ
31V ‘IHW3IZ
31V ‘IMWAZ
31 ‘INIZ
31vr ‘IMN3IZ
31w ‘IMNTZ
31V ‘HINIZ
3LV ‘IUWTZ
1A ‘DINIZ
J1vH ‘DINTIZ
ANOWAYY ‘ZI10S
ANOWAYY ‘ZIT0S
VNIYLYH ‘FANYIS
VNIYLYM 'SANVYId
VNIYLWY ‘IANYS
VYNIYLYX 'SANYId
sweN [ind HD

advog ¢ 1Isvd 1S1

09119 3HOLS SHONGHVYLS
02L1€d S.ATYNOADW

¥S 131L0H ONVHO 3HL dS4
SGE0# ¥3AIW-a3H4H

200 8.LLER DN HIOUNG
SVYO ATIASHWNY

Z NOILVHOdH0D XOd3aX
dIHSNXD110 WOD'Sdsn
dIHSNM3ITD WOD'SdSN
dIHSNMOITD WOO'SdSN
dIHSNXMJITD WOO'SdSh
dIHSNYOITD WO 'sdsh
dIHSNMDITD WO 'SdSN
dIHSNMO3ITD WOD'SdsN
dIHSNXDITD NOO'SdSN
dIHSNXYJITD WOD'SdsSN
dIHSNXMDITD WOO'SdSN
dIHSNAMDITD WOO'SdSN
dIHSNMOITD WOD'sdsn
dIHSNMDITD WOD'SdSN
dIHSNYDITD WOD'sdsSn
dIHSNXMJITD WO 'SdSn
dIHSNYDIMD WOD'SdSN
dIHSNXJITD WOD'SdSN
dIHSNXO3ITO NOO'SdSN
dIHSNMJITO WOO 'SdsSn

1S NIVIN / SARILS

1S NIVIN / JAIKLS
TASNNOD 931

CLlLL96IY SN dLHIN NZWY
209.v0rad SN d1HW NZWY
NINYY3T ALINNWNOD D000
YID0SSY NOOIHO TvHLN3ID
€ NOILLYdOddOD X0d3aX
$800 NOD3IYO 40 1S

- SHIdVISMIN ALINNIWWOD

LSZ4268Y SN dBIN NZWY
JweN Jopuap

s|lejaq pied aseyaind pza3d



€T

e0z/6/Z
yeoereLie
pLAvAC A
¥eoe/ees/L
¥202/L2/1
yeoevell
$202/9L12
yeoe/sLie
Y LAVATALS
#202/0¢c/1L
veogiLie
[FAVAE A
v2c0c/sie
| LAVATALA
LAV A
AV AA N
$202/0L/C
¥20e2/0L/2
$202/ELIT
¥202/9/2
LLAVA (U]
$202/92/1
yeoe/6liL
veoe/Le/L
¥Z02/0€E/)L
yeoe/oelL
¥202/02/1
¥20e/9re
LAV AL 1T A
¥202/9/2
veogiviie
A AR ]
veQc/elie
¥eoe/EL/e
pcoz/si/e
¥e0zioe/L
veoe/Le
veoe/s/e

-€Cle-02s-62i-101
“SL1e-02s-G2i-LolL
-G012-025-5¢1-101
-G0L2-025-621-101
-6012-025-521-101L
ce-L012-02¢5-52¢L-10L
-L0L2-02s-521-10L
-toL2g-02s-5¢1-101
-L0L2-025-G21-101
-L0L2-025-621-L0L
-L0L2-025-5¢1-L01
-loLeg-026-521-101
-L0LZ-025-G21-101
-loleg-02s-621-10l
-LoLe-02s-621-10L
-L0LZ-0gs-5¢L-101
SZ-10L2-02s-€LL-101
SZ-L0LZ-025-ELL-LOL
-L0LZ-025-€L1-10L
-L0L2-02S-€LL-LOL
-LOLZ-0ZS-€LL-LOL
-LoLZ-02s-€LL-1L0L
-LOLE-025€ELL-LOL
-L0LZ-02S-€LL-LOL
-LOLE-025-€LL-LOL
-LOLE-0¢S€LL-LOL
-Lole-0es£LL-L0oL
-0L2¢-025-01 L-101
-6012-025-0LL-10l
-L01LZ-025-0LL-10L
-1012-025-0LL-1L0L
-L0L2-025-0LL-101
-10L2-02S-0LL-1OL
<10L2-025-0L 110l
-LOLE-025-0L1L-1L0L
-10L¢-0es-0L L-1O0L
-L0Le-0es-0L L-10L
-10Le-0es-0L 1-L0l

ajeQ aseudind UoneuIqWOo?) TS WAY

00'800°'L$
L6ETS
16°87v%
9e'Z60°Cs
9.'€Ls$
00°052%
£€8°00L%
62¢0l$
£6'09%
L6°1L¥S
AR S
05'LLS
89'Z1L%

Sljog

s|eaisAyg Aindaq (oded

[osied 104 Jeg Aid

SIPW [oned

SIPW Puy (180 0D [odled

SIPW [oled

19WIaJU| 8SNOH je0g

J9PJO JO T Med "dng 4O uiwpy
J9pI0 JO | Med "dng O ulwpy
“dng 3O Liwpy

"dng wooy Juod yuays

[osed uied Aeidg

‘Byd ucisuadsng

"dng 4O uwpy

0¥ S6¢ [BLEAA YIRS J04 siemyos weibeiq

08'€0Z%
5'1LS
68'tvL$
¥0'92%
00'8$
89'6%
tv'6%
89'6%
G2'601$
00'09%
G6'G6S
TANITAS
1¥'6TS
G/'86%$
£L°Zv$
120ELS
95'GZ¢
167264
66°LL$
Zy'9%
ZOLLLS
1£'25%
6.°8c$

00'0v$
[ejol way

9900/ JU0D) JUBYS 104 salddng

ano Jadng
sayddng 2010 Y3
sanddng 20140 U3
IA 104 'BN USD
IA Jod ley WeD
I 10 1B WRD
N 104 |ley USD
OAG 98J00)

2SANG 133UOIH
salddng 2140
salddng a0
salddng a0
teoe-1 sxan

uer - sabieyn auouyd J|BD
#202Z-1 uouod eq
salddng as0
salddng 990
sa|ddng 200
salddng

sa||ddng 92140
salddng a0
sa|ddng

daid Upa salddng aoo
uonijduoasag wajy)

3196830 ‘SN
HIAL ‘NOSHIANY
319434 ‘SN
3189834 'S3UN
319934 ‘SN
319834 ‘S3N
319934 ‘SN
319834 ‘'S3N
319934 ‘S3N
31949340 'S3UN
319934 'S3UN
319834 ‘S3N
319930 ‘SN
VNHSOr 'H10Y
318834 ‘S3UN
YITAL ‘NOSHIANY
VT19YX ‘GO0H
Y1dvX 'QO0OH
YWHON ‘Z3VZNOO
VOISS3r 'YZOaNIW
vOISSAr 'vZOaN3IW
YOISSAr ‘YZOaN3INW
YIuvYY ‘A00H
V1dvX ‘QOOH
V1dvAY ‘QO0OH
Y1dvM ‘O0H
Y14W ‘QO0H
3INNOD ‘NINvd
AVSANAT 13SS3H
3INNOD ‘NITvd
VWYl ‘OHHVYAVYN
YWYl ‘'OHUVAVN
3INNOD ‘NITvd
3INNOD ‘NINvd
3INNOD ‘NITvd
JINNOD ‘NINvd
3INNOD ‘NINvd
3INNOD ‘Nivd
aweN [ind HD

ONITNE ¥3ILNID IHL
<GHLAN8ad SN dLAW NZWY
d g9A ZA AW SSTAMZA

HAI 228N

Y3ILNID 1IVD 238N
LINYILNI MNITHVYLS

| sa|deyg

o) sa|deyg

ou| sa|delg

0961 # AVMIIVS

W - IHVYMOHYH 30V STIHd
NZANG 104do

JHOW % S3IdOD YN

"OU| 3IBMUOS PIon

0L4# 23d SL120V LdvIN-Ig
0096Sreld SN dMIN NZWY
ZOSEAIBEY SN dLHW NZWY
CMSLS1SEY SN dIMN NZWY
L¥L09€L50F Od SdSN
L¥L09ELSOF Od SdSN
L¥FL09ELS0F Od SdSN
LPL09€1LS0F Od SdSN

Q00 A3TIVYA JHNSYIHL NI
‘SH3dVASMIN ALINNIWWOD
CrPODNPZY SN dLAW NZIWY
Z8XEJAB8H WOD NOZYWY
0dTZNN00H WOD'NOZVINY
H1D LNJWAYL SIXINSDIT
gA AVd T1i9 SSTAMZA

2 NOILYHOdH0D X0d3X
759 LHYIN-Ig

759 LYVYIN-IF

LWYdLIAI6IE SN dIAIN NZIWY
L699AHE9Y SN 1IN NZWY
LIIZXesad SN dIXAN NZWY
Z219991¥8Y SN d1LMN NZINY
0AQLIASOZYH SN dIAW NZWY

YZZId AHYANIOFT SAE8Y
auleN JOpusp

spejeq pJie) eseyoind pZa3d



14’

¥e0z/ces
yzoci6i/L
vz0Z/LEN
veocivi/e
yeoeive/L
¥eoe/e/e
¥20e/8re
veoe/Le
¥2oz/e/e
Y {AVAF IS
$zoe/8/e
veoc/iell
LLAVATAR
vyzoc/iee/L
LLAVAL A
Y {AVALALA
yeoerele
ve0c/ee/
vc02/0t/)L
veozive/)L
yeovie
veoZ/le/l
$20Z/0e/1
vcoziee/
¥202/1IC
L{ANANAA
L{ANAYATA
yeoc/e/e
LLAVTALAr
¥eoe/s/z
$202/S/T
¥20z/9/e
| ZAVALTTA
v20T/sLre
L{AVAATTA
v2oe/LElL
yz0T/ILe/L
veocivLie

-L0EC-02S-vEL-LOL
-Loge-02s-vel-10l
-1 102-02S-¥EL-LOL
-L102-025-FEL-LOL
-L102-025-¥EL-LOL
-LOEE-02S-E€L-L0L
-L0gE-02S-EEL-1 0L
-0} 1E-025-€CL-10L
-L0LE-02S-€EL-10t
-L0LEZ-02s-gEL-LoL
-L0LE-02S-EEL-LOE
-L0L2-02S-EEL-LOL
-8188-025-GZL-10L
-818€-025-5Z1-10L
-818€-089-GZ1-10I
-218€-025-521-101
2E-118€-025-5Z1-L01
-1L0EE-029-GZL-LOI
-1S2E-0¢S-GZ1-LOL
-26¥2-025-521-L0L
-¢6¥e-025-SZ1L-L0L
~¢6ve-02¢5-SZL-101
-26re-02s-52L-10l
-18ve-0es-5Z1-101
-84¥2-025-SZ1-10L
-Biv2-025-521-10l
-8L¥¢-0¢5-S21-10L
~geec-02s-52Z1L-10l
-¢¢2e-025-SZ1-10l
-2222-025-521-10l
-2¢2e-025-SZL-LOL
AL AA A TAR Ni]E
AAAAN A= TARI 1]
-geZe-0Cs-s2I-10L
WAAAAN A= TARI 1]
-§02¢-0¢5-521-101
-502¢-0¢s-521L-10l
-§02¢2-02s-5Z1-10L

a)eg @seydingd UOBBUIGWO) O W8y

91'v88%
LIELLS
00°26%
LZ€6Ls
06'81%

SLiop

1o 39|

ungc) Jojaalaq leeH
9H - selddng
so|ddng

siapulg

00°6ZH$ uai9juo) Buudg (enuuy pZoz e0j60

00°02L$
00's.%
L0°21%
ov'9Z$
SevLe
£E6ES
21'86%
Z2°65%
02'89%
£2'66%
L7'86.%
00°005%
GL'26€%
66'12%
P6°€2$
00'005$
2T LE
G1'€6$
SL'6vLS
80°GL$
80°GL$
00'0£9%
00'9.%
ZZ6L1%
8Z'601%
19'919%
00°061%
866113
r'0oLS
PLyLES
16'98%

¥6'8v%
jejol way

uonensibay diysiaquspy eolbo
Buiug oL

J31aW SauULd

uer - Buippaiyg

sanddng a0

sa)ddng 83140

ajoIyan apo7) Jo- [an4

BPIYBA BP07) Jo- [an4

apIyan apo) Jo- [and

BPIOA BPO7) JO- 8N4

leog P|IM JaAlY sieday
Buiuies] ossepn

soipey weiboid

uoneoyiloN wea] Jeg

Jowsiu) uewusyg dwe)
Bujuies) juswabeuepy yolesg Jeg
S0WO Jes/saaug quiny L
SBUIDOEA g Wex] AUBuLBlaA 6M
joaed sapjong Jied

‘dx3 wiojun joned

‘dx3 wuojun joied

siaang Andag ownr

youeag ajdoad

sbeg aousping

qe awWwnD o4 pefle aduspial
00 aanebusaau) Alyuop
0SO 0L MO) ZiLO-PC # 9SED
MDD 10 SIBPI0IDY SJIOA
aosuapIag 104 piooeied

s)y617 uodeapn 41 L ublweans
SpUnOy Byl 5597 unbioys
ase) unbjoysg

uondiossq wa)

AHLOWIL ‘3XTHYQ
AHLOWIL ‘I¥THVA
YNMYHS ‘AT180W
VYNMVYHS ‘A3190W
YNMVHS ‘ATT90W
ATIOH ‘SOANV1HO
ATIOH ‘SOANVTHO
131EYD Z110S
131489 ‘21708
AVSAONAT 138S3H
12149vYD ‘Z1N0Ss
131¥AYO Z1N0S
AddvE ‘NOSTIM
AdHvS ‘NOSIIM
AHYVE ‘NOSIM
Addvg ‘NOSTIM
319934 'S3TN
MYV ‘N3ANI
3188340 'S3INW
3189340 ‘S3IN
319634 ‘S3TN
NVAYSE 139aMS
NYAHE 139AIMS
NOGNVHS ‘L10STvL
NOSYI "HO0110d
319834 ‘SITN
319934 'STN
NOSVI M00T10d
318930 'S3TINW
NIWVYIN38 ‘SdO0L
319934 'SATIN
319934 ‘S3ITIN
319934 ‘'S3TN
HATAL ‘NOSHIANY
H3TAL ‘NOSH3ANY
HOLIW "Y3NdNL
HOLIN "H3INdNL
d31AL ‘NOSHIANY
aweN IInd HO

HIONIVHO

HIONIVHO

SNOILNTOS dOM

1S NIV / IAILLS

1S NIV / IAIYLS

YNId LNFWNHIACO NODIHO
YNId LNFWNHIAOS NODIHO
NOINNSNVYHL O1L

Z NOILvHOdHOD X0d3xX
SYHL S3DINY3ES O1M8Nnd3y
08659108d SN AN NZWY
Z2016VI82H SN dUMIN NZIWY
FH0LS-2 NYIALVid
JHOLS-D NV3Lvid

0125020 NOHAIHD

SYHUvYN 4O 92 - 9.

INIFIYIN SYHAVYIN

O NOLLVIDOSSY T¥NOILYN
NG SNOILNIO0S VIOYOL0NW
"ONI d¥NSWY3IL
aNvaavoda INIT3ENS
s)juays s uobaug
LNELBIS8Y SN d1HMN NZWY
IVLIASOH TVININY SYHavIN
WOO'rr-so

ONIANddNS L6
ONILATddNS k16

“ONI WOO'dOHSHINOILS
NOINNSNVYHL OTL

00 NOLLISINDIV JIHJHIS
FHOW 2 S31dOD VI

Old3a SIXANSIXTI

JOIAY3S ANV STTVS Sl
0118ds1d SN 1N NZWV
0dXe0d0old SN d1AN NZWY
SWHV AdVINIEd

ONI S3ID0TONHI3L YNHAL

OvASreLId SN N NZWY
alweN JOPUap

siiejeq pied eseyaing yzg3s



qT

LLAVAL oA
¥20e/9/2
| LAVA A
¥2oei6L/L
¥20e/s/2
$202/LIT
¥e0e/2/e
reoc/ee/
v20c/sire
$202/\L/IT
¥202/s/2
¥202/E/C
¥eoe/L/e
yeoerere
veoe/Lell
LLAVAJRY
¥20¢e/6/2
y202/S/e
reoz/sie
LLAVALA A
veogie/
yeoz/Lie
veoe/Lie
L LAVALAL
$T0ZN/T
yeoe/Lie
¥20Z/V T
yeoe/Lie
¥202/1/1e
¥202/9/2
| LAVALTAY
¥202/6/2
#202/6/
¥202/9/2
¥c0Z/0t/L
¥e0z/ee/L
vz0g/ee/L
v20c/ee/L

-10L2Z-025-1L01-202
-1012-025-101-20¢2
-10L2-02s-10L-202
-1012-025-101-202
-101LE-025-101-202
-10Le-02s-101-202
-0£2E-025-66-101
-022e-02s-661-101
-L112-025-661-101
-L112-025-661-101
-109E-025-8¥1-10L
-109e-025-9%1-101
-L0EEZ-025-9¥1-101
-L09e-02s-pEL-10L
-L09E-025-pEL-10L
-109e-02s-vEL-10L
-L09e-02s-+EL-10L
-L09e-02S-vEl-101
-L09e-02s-pEL-10L
-L09e-02s-vEL-101
-L09e-025-vEl-10L
-L09E-025-¥EL-101
~L09€-025-vEL-101
-L0ET-02s-vEL-10L
-Loee-02s-pEL-L0L
-L0EZ-025-vEL-L0L
-L0EZ-0gs-vEL-LOL
-Loeg-02s-veL-1L0L
-L0ec-02s-vEi-1L0L
-L0EC-025-vEL-LOL
-L0€Z-025-vEL-10L
-L0Eeg-02s-vEL-LOL
-L0gc-0zs-vel-L0L
~L0EC-02S-¥EL-10L
-L0eg-025-+EL-L0L
-10€e-0¢5-¥EL-LOL
-10€C-025-vEL-LOL
-L0EZ-02S-FEL-LOL

2)eq aseysind UONBUIGUIO, O Wa)}

9.'Ge$
66'GL%
0£'soL$
65'c$
66°1%
(S1'1%)
c0orLS
£2'8%
LO'SOL'LS
9.'22Zv'L$
09°06$
PE'8ELS
18°/p€%
90'98L$
80'8%
08'€09%
8v'99%
00'22%
00'22%
Seers
12183
0L'€26%
09'£22%
9c°Z8vs
86'2L$
21198
16'6E$
86'61%
16'6l%
2 164$
68°961%
6 LvS
£6'5t9%
¥¥'G8Z8
80'6$
92'22¢$
04°265%

82°¢S1L%
jejol way

SLj085

sa|ddng a0

sa|ddng 20140

s9||ddng 22140

sa|ddng ao10

J0113 924 dystaquisiy
Blld JO uohe||@aued Jpaid
Isauold selpep

sbeysod

J91do) AemjjeH ulwpy
Jaded Adon

aad Ay

894 Al

pieH ‘dng ‘JejeaH

294 Al

BoQ - #ad Ay

IH - 89d Ay

aad Ay

Woe|D - 894 Ay

Boq - @94 AN

YoQ - @34 AW

894 Ay

BoQ - @23 Ay

YoelD - ea4 AN
UMOIUMO(] Jod SIybin pan
BUY- dNg

pieH ‘dng ‘sjoo

Boq - dng ‘sj00)

¥oeiJ - dng

AWQ - dJempied
aIEMPIEH A3y puy %207 -Uag)
asempleH Asy puy 3007 -usg)

8SNOYLINGY) 104 SUBIS WOooASay
UMOIUMOQ SWUBY a4 JO§ Saudlieg
UMOJUMO(] JO SSIOg USEM 24T

a1e|d Bupdeg jeisowsay |
‘AU JOH BAJBA SED)

UMOJUMO(] 104 SIeISoULIBL ] 14 1A

3INPOW [0)U07) voub|
uonduasag way|

YIdvYD ‘'S394149

TAVHIIW 13AIMW3LS

Ivd IGNINZIYY
V1dv0 ‘'S390148

TIVHOIW 13AIMNILS
AIVHOIW 13AIMNILS

ATICH ‘SOONVTHO

13148vo ‘ZIN0s
AVSANAT 138S3H
AYSANAT 13SS3H
VYNMVHS ‘A3190W
YNMVHS ‘A3790W
VYNMVHS ‘A3190W
YNMVHS ‘A3T190W
VNMVYHS ‘A3190W
YNMVHS ‘A37190N
YNMVYHS ‘A TS0W
YNMVYHS ‘A3T90W
YNMVYHS ‘A3190W
VYNMVHS ‘AF190W
YNMVHS ‘A3180W
VYNMVYHS ‘AF190N
VYNMYHS ‘A3190W
AHLOWIL 'INTHVA
VYNMVHS ‘AT 190N
VYNMVYHS ‘A3190W
VYNMYHS ‘A3190W
VYNMVHS ‘A3T180W
YNMVYHS ‘A3T180W

ANOHLNY ‘NOSHIANY
ANOHLNY ‘NOSY3IANV

AHLOWIL ‘3¥THVYQ
AHLOWIL ‘IYIHVA
AHLOWIL ‘IYTHVA
AHLOWIL ‘HVA
AHLOWIL 'IMIHVA
AHLOWIL '3XHvA
AHLOWIL 'SMIHvA

SWweN |Ind HO

NINIT NOISSIN

01L200A99Y SN dLMW NZWY
004815984 SN 9MIW NZWVY
201L+€9.8d WO NOZVINY
LWGSSHBE6CY 2Willd UoZeEwy
awiud uozewny

- SUFAYISMIN ALINNNINOD
I¥209€1507 Od SdSN

Z NOILYHOdHOO XOd3axX
JHONW 8 S3IdOD THVIN
HALYM ATTTVA S31LNHDS3AA
SYHAvIA H0 ALID

W - FIVMAYVYH 3OV SIHd
Jag Aellues selpey g1

Jog Alejlueg selpel g1

lag Auejueg seipe g1
aNVEAYOHd INITIALNS
HIALYM AITIVA S31LNHOS3A
HALYM ATTIVA 831NHOS3d
SVYHAVYW 40 ALID

SVHaviN 40 ALID

1 003 JI-1LOF13 IVHLINID

1 000 ORJLO3T13 TWHLNID
SL1 21910313 L1vid

W - 3dvMAdvYH 30V STiHd

W - FUVYMAYVYH 30V SIHd

W - IHYMAdYH 30V STIHd

W - ZHVYMAUYH 30V STIHd

W - IHYMAdVYH 30V STIHd
HYL1N SSTNI

HY1N SSTNI

HIONIVHO

HIAONIVHO

YIONIVHO

YIFONIVHED

HIONIVHO

HIONIVHO

HIAONIVHO

BN JOPUSA

sjlejaQ pJed aseydind ygda3ad



9T

¥202/912
yeoz/aLe
¥202/6L/1
PZ0e/6L/L
¥20Z/oLie
$202/0€/1
veoerere
| {AVATAT4
vzoe/eie
vz0zie/e
pZAVAGTIg
L LAVALALA
rzoc/ere
L{ANALA1A
¥20Z/6L/L
#20/6L1
¥202/5/C
LAV
$202/5LiC
¥20e/s/2
LLAVIAIATA
¥20c/8/e
¥eoef/ere
¥202/02/L
vzociale
¥eoe/sie
LLAVZ AN
¥202/9/2
¥202/0¢€/1
¥202/62/1
¥20¢/Sie
L LAVALANTA
$202/91/2
reoe/9tie
1 ZAVA A
veoe/SLie
vrzoe/se/L
veoe/oci

-01¢¢-025-10L-€1.C
-10LE-025-101-502
-L0EE-025-601-202
~10€€e-025-501-20¢
-1 102-025-501-202
-1 102-025-501-20¢
~15€¢-025-£01-202
-20€¢-025-€01-20C
-20€2-025-£0L-2c0e
-20€2-025-£01-202
-20€e-02s-£01-202
-10€2-025-€01-20C
=L0E2-025-£01-20C
-L0€C-025-£01-202
-L0EC-025-£01-202
-10€2-025-£01-20C
-1 102-025-£01-20¢C
-}102-025-€01-202
-L102-025-£01-202
-L102-025-€01-202
-L10¢-025-£01-202
-L102-025-£01-202
-1 102-025-£01-20C
~b102-025-£01-202
-L0€e-025-201-202
-109€-025-101-202
-L0ce-0es-101-202
-LO0EE-025-1L01-202
-L0€e-02s-101-202
-10€2-025-101-20¢2
-L0EZ-025-101-20C
-L0EZ-02S-101-202
-G012-025-10L-20¢2
-G012-02s-10L-20¢
-L0L2-02s-101L-202
“1012-0¢5-10L-20g
-10L2-0es-10L-202
-10L2-0¢5-10L-202

ajeq aseyoing UOPEUIGWO) 19 Way

00'8L¥S$
68'v¥$
00°091$
8’8023
68'vP$
66'6£$
gLELo'LS
o6vL$
¥0'02$
00'52%
98'€5%
91°'688%
66'2L1%
#5'690°L%
69'2G%
26'€9%
6r'Z$
£1'869
Yo'vive
Ze151$
£2°08.%
0£'69L$
80'6/%
¥0'ZEVS
66°6%
81'65%
00'68¢$
(00°0£18)
00°020°'1$
00'65%
128
¥9'62£$
68°¥$
68'v¥$
86v1LS
¥0'5Z$
BEBSLS

£9'2e$
[e30L way|

SLi09

¥20Z-| sixan

uep - sabueyy) suoyd (99
Buluiel | psapA

[2}0H @2UsJauoT) BWAQ
uer - sabueyn auoyd |19
lafeidg

sang

SBAQIS)

salddng Asjesg

sauany) pasnbay |po
sonddng Aojes

sued doys

OZ# 2ouBLAUB

syed doyg

Hed pug|s| jon4

Med doyg

sa||ddng doyg

sa|ddng douysg

sa|ddng doyg

sa||ddng doys

sa||ddng douyg

sa|ddng doys

sa||ddng doug

sa||ddng doug

so|jddng ubig

uer Jo4 abesp Jayepn
Buiues ] peoy

SSBID | PRl

Buiuies] siMg

J9one woolyleg
dn-ues|) pieA/Bpig
aoueusjuiepy 5pig

uep - sabreyn auoyd (180
uep - sabueysn auoyy (190
salddng 2140

salddng a210

aseaT LPuld

salddng a0
uondiosaqg we))

JINNOD ‘NITvd
AVYSANAT 138S3H
L1V ‘NOSITMOd
T3IVHOIW “1303IMINILS
AVSANAT “13$S3IH
TAVHOIN “1303MNILS
V1Y 'S39Q1yg
Y1dvD 'S39aidg
Y1dYD 'S390i4g
YYD ‘'S39a148
Vv 'S39a14g
V1dvD 's39a1dd
VYD ‘839alyg
V1dvD 's39a1dd

IVd ‘ION3WZIYY

¥4 IANIWZIYY

VIdvYD 'S390A149
Y1dvD 's394149
Y1V 'S39ag
V19vD 'S39Q149
V1dvD 's39a1xdg

I¥d ‘IONIWZIYY

V4 ‘IGNIWZIFY

Ivd ‘IGNIWZIFY

Y1dvD 'S39A149
Y1dvD 'S390a149
I3VHOIW “13G3IMWALS
TIVHIIN 13AIAMNILS
TIVHOIW 1303IMNILS
JLNIONIA ‘ZLLHO
V1dv0 'S39A149

IV IONIWZIYY
AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANAT 13SS3H
VIdVYD 'S39a0149
Ydv2 's39qaI148
YYD ‘839qaiyg
YIdvD ‘'s39qai44g
eweN |Ind HO

Y10 LINIWAV SIXINSIXIT
A AVd 118 SSTUMZA
SOAYAS AONIHIINOD NSO
£204202£50v22. WiQ3adX3
A AVd 1118 SSTIMZA

W - SYVMANVH 30V STIHd
(SN) ONITUE TYHLINTD
MQYVH 3TYSI10HM NOODIHO
ONI OOYON
SNOHONIYYITD v'8A YSOWS
Z0L¥£9/8H WOD NOZVYIAY
INI SOINMNVEAAH S ANV O
(SN) ONITG IVHLNID
dNOY93dVYd3IHL S19
0BAS61Z8H SN dIMW NZWY
LPN6H998Y SN dLMW NZWY
W - 3YVMAYVH 30V STIHd
DNI OOHON

HOYYISAY NYDIYIWY-TIN
3713 31NddY vIHLSNANI
{SN) ONITIIE TVHLNID
00818984 SN dPIN NZWY
Z99.SY124 WOD NOZYINY
09~} VL1IY NOZYWY

W - 3YVYMAYVH 30V STIHd
HIALVYM ATTTIVA STLNHDSIA
YW 13391S #202 LN3A3
NINYYITALINNWNOD 0202
NINYYITALINNWWOD 2202
ZEOV# 10430 INOH 3IHL

195 Aejues seipe g1
OVXPOEEIY SN dLMW NZWY
A AVd 1118 SSTHMZA

A AVd 17118 SSTHIMZA

W - 34YMAYVH 3OV S1IHd
1¥YWOLNV 321440 DI4IDvd
LYWOLNY 32440 D1410vd

LYWOLNY 321440 DIdIovd
BWEN JOPUIA

sjie}aQ pJeg eseyaund yzg3d



LT

¥20¢erere
veoe/Le/l
¥2oz/e/e
¥202/S/C
¥20¢/S/
LAV A4
¥e0e/Lie
LZAA{
¥202/6/C
v¥20c/9/c
¥20¢/9/¢
LLAVATAN A
¥eoz/Lie
vz0z/1ig
¥2oe/Lie
v20Z/1ic
veoe/Lie
vZ0oe/Lefl
vzoe/msLit
veoe/Lic
¥202/9/2
¥20e/8re
¥202/6/2
LCAVALTEA
¥20z/8/e
vzoe/ere
¥202/92/L
LAvArs4ds
¥202/9c/L
¥202/92/L
¥20¢/92/L
¥Zoe/Lefl
veoeive/l
¥20Z/9/¢
¥20z/S/e
veoZ/Lic
¥20e/0¢/1
P20Z/9/e

-109€-0¢5-10L-81C
-109€-025-101-81¢
-L09e-025-101-8LE
-L09€-025-101-81C
-09€E-0¢5-101-81¢
-L09e-02s-10L-8LC
-L0EE-025-101-8LC
-L0EE-025-10L-8LC
-L0EE-025-10L-81LC
-E0EE-025-101-81C
-L0ge-0¢5-10L-81E
-L0E2-025-101-81LC
-10£2-025-101-81C
-L0€C-025-101-81¢C
-L0Ee-02s-101-8LE
-10€2-025-101L-81LC
-L0€E-025-101-8LC
-L0€e-02S-101-81C
-10€2-025-101-8LC
-L0€2-025-10L-812
-10€2-0¢s-L0L-8Le
-10€2-025-101-8LC
-10€2-0e5-101-812
-Gl 12-025-101-812
“GLlZ-0Zs-10k-gLe
“GL12-025-101-8LC
-10Le-025-101-8Le
-10Le-025-101-812
-Lole-0es-LoiL-gie
-L0Le-02s-101-81C
-L0le-0gs-10L-81e
-L0Le-0es-10L-81C
-L10e-025-101L-£1LE
-L09€-025-10L-G1C
-L09E-025-10L-SLE
-L0ge-025-10L-S1¢
=10L2-0¢5-10L-G1C
-0LZge-0es-10l-€ie

2je( aseYOINg UORBUIqIOY) ) Wa))

9/.'919%
9czes
6v'99%

€4°99v$
00°2Z%

62'88¢c$

SljoL

a94 Al

nsQ - 994 AN
994 Al

294 AN

W1 I - 994 Al
a2 AlnN

00°00Z$ USISqWBIN - J PUY S[EANSS4 U0B3I0
00°05Z$ 1 2MjersibeT - Reoossy sueq uobalo

00°26%
€2'891%
€7'891%
00'005°2$
96'65%
88259
86'81%
12'9€$
59'06%
62'.6%
0LZlS
78'2592%
96'F9ES
867.8°CS
66'282%
66'6E1%
6£'02%
66'929%
00'zies
¥2'95v$
66€$

A ATA
11°8%
00'6¥Z$
00'559°c$
00°0LI$
00'2es
9L'v9%
00'89%
00'68$
(Bj0L Wajj

san( 09poy [BUCISS3JOI] MN
IS30H J42uuIq 8O
[810H Jauuig B0

SpJeog UdIMPURS puUy SBU0YD -lle4

Bualy - pleH ‘dng
pieH ‘dng ‘si00)
so|ddng

BUaLY - S)j0g

sfuleag JAWO0IS) BUBIY -J1B4

Bunuag Jo4 s)jog -ne4
auedoid

|esodsiq sai] -ne4q
Guipioay aa)

S3|qe] USPOOAA PUNOY .09
ey Jeyy

pueys AL

SOUBINSU| A

UoIS|IADID |

Jaded 19101

S|aMoL umoug

salddng Jaddnyy 1apo)
selddng Jaddny sepo)
sa|ddng

wawaledey ped| - |assaH
£20Z 0 uswAhojdwaun
994 AN

894 AW

dng

BuisiueApy

£zg sleaddy JO 10
uondussaqg way|

VYNMVYHS ‘A3T180W
YNMVHS ‘A3190W
VYNMYHS ‘A 190N
VYNMVYHS ‘A3190W
VYNMYHS ‘A3190W
YNMYHS ‘'A3T190W
AJ11HvE ‘LIvid
A311dvE ‘Livd
AJ11dvE ‘Livd
AJN1dva ‘Livid
A311dve ‘Livd
ANOHINY ‘NOSH3ANY
YNMVYHS ‘A31d0N
VNMYHS 'AT190N
VYNMVYHS ‘'A3190N
WIL "HY3A

ANOHLNY ‘NOSH3aNV
ANOHLNY ‘NOSH3IANY
WIL "HY3¥

ANOHLNY ‘NOSHIANY
HIIAVYF ‘YNIGIW
AIlYve ‘11vid
AIL¥ve Livid
AJ1dva ‘11vid
A311dve 'LIvd
AJ1dve ‘11vid
VYNMYHS ‘'AT190W
VYNMYHS 'AI190N
AILYve ‘LLvid
AILdva ‘Livid
AT1dve ‘Livd
AVSANAT 13SS3H
73148V ‘ZIN0S
YNMVYHS 'A3190W
VYNMVYHS 'AIT190W
YNMVYHS 'AT7190W
YNMYHS ‘AST190N
3INNOD ‘NINvd

awen (In4d HO

Jag Aejueg sespey g1

188 am«_cmw SEIPEeiN g1
aNvaavoydd ININ3ENs
H3LYM ATTTVA S3LNHOS3IA
HILYM ATTIVA S31LNHOS3A
SYHAVIN 40 ALID

3 NV STYALLS3d NOD3IHO
neoossy siied uobauQ
03004 TWNOISSI40Hd MN
VS 13L0H ONVYO JHL 454
VS 71310H ANVYYD 3HL 4584
INOZ 4l IHL

W - 3d¥YMAdvH 30V STIHd
W - IIVMGYYH 30V STIHd
W - FVMAHYH 30V STIHd
SYHAvIN JOLOVHL S8 N
SYHAVYIN HOLOVHL S BN
SVHAVIN JHOLOVHL S N
ALID QIW

JHil I1LSVO

3dil I7LSVO
FIGVLSLINIAI/SYILY
21903aNsgd WOI'NOZVINY
LFNENLEEY SN dLMIN NZWV
LPOSE6ZEY SN APIN NZWY
196580-CL1L 13H NOZVINV
SNOILNTOS d0M
SNOILNTOS d0M

0961# AVMIIVS

0961# AVMI3IVS

YW 40 1371N0O AHIDOHO
NINAY TIVL13d NOZVIAV
WLdOd X¥.1 dW3 a30
SVl S3DIAEIS DINdNnd3d
HILVM AITIVA S3ALNHOS3A
W - 3HvMAdYH 30V STiHd
ONI'Q3nW X3d

1434A WI21anr NODIHO
aweN JOpuap

siiejaQ pie)d aseydind yza3d



8T

v202/L7T
veoe/ee/L
yeoe/eeiL
LLAVATATA
LLAVATATTA
y2ocivLIe
yaoeve/l
yeocwell
¥2oevelt
vzocvei
LAV A
vcocivel)
vreoe/LelL
¥20e/6e/L
P20z/0E/)
LAV AL
veoe/olie
¥eoe/eeiL
LLAVA 1B
202912
veociLic
vcociLic
[LAVA) 4T
LAVAL AL
yeoe/Lell
¥202/9L/2
$202/9L/2
¥e0eivLie
LAV AL 4T TA
¥c0e/9/e
¥202/0L/C
¥20e/8LIe
v202/9/2
AVAL
$202/0L/2
LAART AL
¥Z02/9/2
LA ArAA
ajeq aseyoing

96€-€9¢2-025-1.0L-6€¢
L£€-€922-0¢6-101-6€2
12€-€922-025-10L-6£C
L2e-€92¢-025-10L-6EC
1 2€-£92¢-0¢5-101-6€¢€
L CE-£92¢-025-101-6EC
£9€-G01¢-0¢5-1L01L-6EC
12e-501¢-0¢s-1L0L-6E2
€2Ce-901¢-0¢5-1L01L-6EC
02e-501e-025-101-6£2
€1€-901L¢-0¢5-101L-6EC
€0€-G0Le-025-101-6€C
£0e-1012-025-101-6£C
-L0€e-025-101-8€C
-10€€-025-101-8EC
-10ee-02s-101-8¢€Z
-5012-025-101-9¢€¢
-10LE-025-101-9€¢
61-022¢-0es-10L-0€C
6l-1012-025-10L-0EC
61-1012-0¢5-10L-02C
61-1012-025-101-0EC
-LZLE-025-101-Lec
-G0L¢-0es-10L-L2e
86-20cE-025-10L-6LC
65-2012-0¢5-10L-61C
66-501¢-025-101L-612
19-1102-025-10L-61¢
19-1102-025-101L-6L¢C
09-1102-025-10L-6L¢
09-1102-0¢5-10L-6L2
09-1102-025-10L-612
6G-1102-0¢5-101-612
€G-1102¢-0e5-101L-61¢C
6G-110¢-0¢5-10L-61C
65-1102-0¢5-101-61¢
245-1102-0¢5-10L-612
45-110¢-0¢5-101-612
uoieuIquod 19 wey

0£'96%
16°2£G%
06'82%
6t'19%
06'9L%
ze'8Z%
65’653
1£'€8%
¥9 1S
ot 1LL$
9 1v$
z9'eTs
86°2L%
00'568%
LE°0pL8
61'922%
20'ivs
09'02$
€LZrs

P evs
80°'1L5%
£5°06¢$
00'002'l$
1Z°00Z'v$
69'6£8%
ZL'0ss
68 7S
£9'2¢s
G6'22%
8r'vLe
96'91$
PLLS
S ¥LS
00'861%
(00'861%)
01'8c$
8y'vis
£6'9c$
€301 way|

Sljog

sayddng [e2ipay
salddng [edipay
sa|ddng oW Uy
salddng (e2ipaiN
sal|ddng owid

seddng 211D

uog we4 uyd (18D ud
20V B1S149 udd @D ud
dayd uyd I1”D ud

M uYd 119D Ud

OJH uyd 119D Ud

JUND uyd 113o Ud

Jaded Adop

uoneusibay 10 Aoaoday
Bui] 10 Asaooay Jo4 [910H
30 93y sululy

uer - sabieyn auoyd (199
uer - BunsoH gapn

uer - safieys suoud |99
Bupo)/Asupoyx/AonT Y
BULOY - SPJED SSaulsng
sadojaau] - saddng

994 Ay

Buyyg AjLpuoy abeuoa
13804 Buibpo wyn

uer - sabieyn auoyd |20
uer - safueyD suoud |32
saddng

saddng

SUUBIB A OA,

salddng

so|ddng

31JOS SUA

salddng 20180

1D sieas JED JO WNi9y
sa|ddng 22140

usy ejo

sanddng 20140
uondussag way|

Y14 ‘QO0H
V1Y) ‘GO0H

ANIFIHLYAM 1713SSNY

V14w ‘Q00H
VOISSAr ‘YZOANIN
YOISSAr 'YZOAN3IW

YIHYY ‘AO0OH

Y1dvX 'QO0H

Y1YY ‘A00H

V1dvX 'O0H

YIHYY ‘AO0H

VY1d4vX 'QOOH

V1dvX 'QO0H

14380Y ‘Z3N9I¥aoy
14380 ‘Z3N9I4a0y
14380¥ ‘Z3N9I¥aoy

AVSANAT 13SS3H
AVSANAT T13SS3H
AVSANAT “13SS3H
AINNOQ ‘NITvd
AINNOD ‘NINTvd
AINNOD ‘NITvd
YNMVYHS ‘AIT180W
13148vYD ‘ZNos
AINAOY XiadiHD
AVSANAT 113SS3H
AVSANAT T13SS3aH
AINAOY X1AAIHD
AINQOH XIadIHD
AINNOD ‘NINvd
AINAOH X1AAIHD
AINAOH ‘X1adIHO
AINNOD ‘NITYd
AINQOH XIAAIHO
A3NAOY XIAAIHD
AINAOY X1AdIHD
3INNOD ‘NITvd
AINAOH ‘X1adIHD
aweN |Ind HD

NIFHOS AdN3IH

NIFH2S AYN3H

0961 # AVYMILYS

NIFHOS AYN3IH

OFXS00OLIY SN diXN NZWY
ENBEANZEY SN d1MIN NZWY
gdvInT130 's’n

JviINT130 's'n

dvIn113o 's’n

dYIN1130 §'N

dviNT1a0 's'n

YN0 's'N
NOILVHOdHOD TIND
dOavN

SE00816.E8V/2L Vid3dX3
£686196G£2/20 ¥V YXISVIV
gA AYd 19 SSTUMZA

I 13N IWOH ANYTHSY NI
8A AvVd 7718 SSTIMZA

Z NOILVHOdHOO XOu3aX

- SU3dVdSMIN ALINNWWNOD
- SY3dYdSMIN ALINNWNOD
saL

SS3ANISNG IOVYNOA SBA
319 NV¥S T13LOH AY31ANYH
8A Avd Tl SSTHMZA

g/ AVd T8 SSTIMZIA
L6ASMOSEY SN AN NZWY
9860S€-¢i |l L3Y NOZVAY

Z NOILYHOdH 0O XOd3aX
Z2Z082029H SN dlXN NZWV
6£906¢-¢L 1 134 NOZVINV

£ NOILYHOdHOD XOH3IX
ErZCH# YILNIOHUIINS WM
EvCeH# LHVIN-IVM
LSLE20484 SN dLHMN NZWV
¢ NOILYHOdHOD X0H3IX

0961 # AVMIIVS
awleN JOPUSBA

s|lejag pied aseydind pze3d



6T

¥Zoe/Lic

[ {AVAP A
¥20z/oefL
v20e/se/L
vZoZ/8lre
veoe/ve/lL
¥c0e/9L/e
vyeoeicel)
LAV AL
vy2oc/ce/L

¥20¢/L/¢

LLAVALIA
reoz/ee/L
vcoz/LE/L
reoeiviie
veoeiviic
¥z0e/0e/L
yeoeiZell
¥20c/ee/L

¥202e/8/2

L{AVATALA
yeociviie
LLAVA T4
¥202/02/1

LLAVAPAA
yeoZiZLie
veocivesl
vcoeied/L
yeoc/se/L
yeoeive/lL
peoz/LefL
¥e0e/sel L
veoe/se/L
v20e/seiL
rzoeedsL

v2oce/Lic
v20e/0c/L

¥20c/Lic
ajeq aseyoing

-10ge-0¢5-10L-6¥C
-10EC-025-10L-6¥¢
-§102-025-10L-6vC
-5102-0¢5-10L-6¥2C
8LE-9219-025-101-L¥C
-LOEE-025-L0L-G¥C
-Lele-025-101-5%C
~L¢1E-0¢5-101-59C
-LZ1E-0¢5-101L-G9C
-1012-025-10L-5vC
-10L2-025-101-5p2
-10L2-025-101-S$T
-20EE-025-10L-Eve
-20€e-02s-10L-€eve
-20eE-025-10L-€bC
-20€E-025-10L-Eve
96€-10€e-025-1L0L-6E2
96E-10££-025-101-6£2
9GE-10EE-025-1L01L-6£2
€2e-10€e-02G-1L0L-6EC
8EE-8.22-025-101-6£2
Lee-9222-025-10L-6EC
9Ge-59¢¢-025-101L-6E¢
95€-G922-025-101-6€2
£6E-G922-025-101L-6E2
22€-9922-0¢5-10L-6€2
02e-5922-025-101L-6E2
02E-59¢2-025-10L-68C
02E-59¢¢-025-10L-68C
02e-5922-025-101L-682
02e-592¢-025-10L-6EC
02£-59¢¢-0e5-101-6£C
02€-592¢-0¢5-101-6£2
02£-G922-025-101-6€¢
0¢e-59¢¢2-025-10L-62C
£0£-592¢-0¢5-101-6E2
£0€-69¢¢-0¢5-10L-68C
£0€-59¢¢-0¢5-10L-6E2
uoieuiquod O way

vzzels
EL6¥G 1S
TN 18]
SL'v9%
96°1E%
02'20€$
8gCrs
0S'IvLS
pELELS
25°68%
9v'8€2$
00°002%
69°L51$
vL28Y$
66'18L°L$
L1'805$
66'€01$
LL'6ES
0£'G29%
000SZ'L$
¥e'e6$
z8'090°c$
G9'eos
26'e58
66'EES
20'8L2s
60'v2$
12413
9.'c7%
0e'vZ$
00'ses
CESLS
96'625%
05'12%
1921%
¥1'28%
66'22%
66'ELS
[ejoL weay

SLio6

BNEA
doys dyr 104 Jjs1eaq maN
Wed 1D 1o sy6in pen
9 - 98 AN

sonddng supy UAOIN
Wbyuososaoep

uer - sabreys auoyd 1190
gs4 - 1auIBu|

Je1do)

sa|ddng aoyo

Hjoog meT dsjaN
puejebeg

Bupord

1sepjealg ssunualea
SW8aY| [BUCHOWOL]

SWay| [eucnowosd
diysiaguwapy Nas) JUBN 99y Uan
SU| 3Ie{N JUOD) JH

alefiy JUoy JH

Bus) 0208GO] -SMIL" L
[osJagni

sa||ddng yd

By Bua] AsIdLH
sayddng JH

asen 0id 20e)Ng
yoeannQ Ajsjes oI
By pig emp Jeuuiq

BN pag emN youm

BIN pag emN younm

BIA psg BMN YyounT

UL 3jIaxouy [8j0H 0L Hodiy ixe |
By pJg MmN Jauuig

By pig empn Buibpo)

By plg emp JsuUIq

B pJg BMN Jauuiq
Bunasy yeis |Iv

9VINBS PE/6LIZ - 0Z/L

82IMIeS $Z0Z 994
uonduosag way|

TAOXY ‘NYWHOIH
AHLOWIL 'IMTHVYG
AHLOWIL '‘IMTHVA
YNMVHS ‘A37190NW

V1dvM ‘GO0OH

vdaNVY1 'SHOOW
AVSANAT "138S3H
AVSANAT "13SS3IH
vdNy1 ‘400N
NIATY ‘OHNdSONITI3
vdnv1 ‘400N
YNyl ‘FHO0N
NIATM ‘©94N8SONITI3
vaNv1 ‘JHO0W
NIAIM ‘©OYdNGSONITI
NIAIM ‘OHNESONITII
LIN3I¥L ‘SNllL

IN3HL ‘SNl

IN3HL 'snliL

vI1aYY ‘Q0O0H

VI4vYM ‘QOOH

VI8V ‘QOOH
IN3IYHL 'SNLIL

VIdvH ‘O0H

V1dvy ‘QO0H
INHIIHLYY “113SSNA
VHAVL ‘V.Vd3IN
VHAVYL V. Vd3IM
VHWVYL V.V
VIWYL V. VdI
YVHAVYL V. vd3IN
VHWVYL V. Vd3IN
VHWVL ‘V.¥dIN
VHWVYL ‘V.vVdIN
VHWVYL V. VdIN
YHAVL 'V vYd3IN
VHAVL V.vd3IN
VHAVL ‘V.Yd3IX
swen |nd HO

Alddns A7INH

HIONIVHED

SLL 21H103713 Lvid

YM HONVY d3AIY AaX004H0
DWVEXDISMY SN dIMIN NZWY
9Z105695022900 Vw1134

gA Avd 1118 SSTdMZA

Sal

LINIWAYd NONVD

ou| se|ders

Q0% H3aAN39 M3IHLILVIN 134
- SHIdVASMIN ALINNWNOD
INOZ Al FHL

G616 JHOLSHAAHD

WOD ONOYdANY

WO ONOHJANY

SS3IW30

SNI13AVHEL ZNVITTV
C5191686E2.20 ¥ WASYIY
DaN JINITO OAVI

ONI °dN31Svd IJONVS

YANY

UHAVNEIIVDI HLYYI LV3HO
LOrg6risd SN dIMN NZWY
LBMBDSETY SN diAIN NZWY
3aANOZ Al 3HL

-Qv3IH OLVYINOL IHL 1S1
-avaH OLYWOL 3HL 1S1

S 1IMEVYN -STTLHAN 1SL

¥ 3d4v0 1SL

NVQ3S 7 IXVL TWAQYH 0S
MOVHS INVHS

TAXONM S31LINS ASSvaW3
TAXONM SILINS ASSVANT
SIHM 8 NH3AVL S ADNVY1D
096L# AYMIIVS

WOI XIN413aN

sn|d Asusiqg

SWEN JOpUaA

s|iejaQ pJe) aseydind yZa34



0¢

¥202/9/2
¥e0e/9/e
[{AV A4
| LAVALS 3FA
P202/0E/L
$202/0¢E/1L
yeoevell
rzoeslic
LAV
¥zoe/sLie
pLAVA 34
Ye0zZ/ELe
¥Z02/8/c
LAVAL
1ZAA7 A
v20e/Lie
p LAV AN
Y20Z/SLe
¥20e/8/c
vzoe/ere
¥20e/8/C
y2oei8Le
YZ0e/erT
veoeilell
¥20Z/ST/ |
#20Z/0e/1
yLAVA A4
P AV TA
¥202/ge/1
¥202/0e/1
¥eoz/LefL
vZ0e/e/e
v202/S/C
¥20e/5/2
¥202/S/c
veoe/Lie
L AVArAAgE
¥20c/Ge/1L

-i0ee-025-1L0L-vSe
-10€£-025-101-+S2
-921E-025-101-P52
“G11LE-025-1L0L-¥SC
-5112-025-10L-p5C
G112-025-10L-+S2
-G112-0¢5-101-+52
"G112-0e5-L01-vST
-G112-0es-101-+52
-G112-0¢5-10L-¥ST
-5012-0¢5-101-¥5C
-201¢-025-101-v52
-20L¢e-025-101-vSC
-201¢-025-101-v52
-10L2-0e5-L0L-+ST
-L0le-025-101-vSe
-1012-025-101-+5C
-L012-025-10L-¥52
-10ie-025-101-vST
-10L2-0e5-101-¥5C
-1 2-02S-L0L-¥52
-10V2-02S-L0L-¥ST
-L0LE2-025-10L-¥52
-10ie-025-101-v5e
-1012-0¢5-10L-+5T
-10Le-0es-101-v5C
-L0Le-025-101-+52
-L0Le-0es-101-+52
-10L¢-025-L0L-+52
-10Le-0es-10L-v5e
-10L2-025-1L0L-+52
-109E-0e5-10L-6¥2
-109e-0¢5-101-6%¢
-109t-0es-10L-6¥C
-109€-0¢5-101-6%C
-1L0EZ-02S-1L0L-6¥C
-10E2-0¢5-101-6¥C
-10€¢-0¢5-101-6%C

ajeQ 9seyoind UONEWIQWO? IO wWay|

(00°02L%)
(00'02L8)
00°02.$

Sl 4001

HPBID) = UIWIEST AIUNLIWOD) 3300

sse|D Jo4 puney
synsay BN

Z'9E€$ ddng Jamod [04U0D SS8I0Y -d PUY d
05'€58'2Z$ O Japeay g [04U0D $S890Y -d PuY d

05'9598%
rL'EL6S
66'SELS
16 26€$
00'951%
18'GLES
66'5%
96'G0E$
00°005°L$
6L'881%
6v'68L%
09'Z6%
89'€Z$
67°15$
6SELS
002LES
v9°8E%
16vLs
85°0€%
66'68%
88'65%
A WAK S
9/'12%
£8'91%
z6'221$
GL'gLLS
90'9¢6'L$
19'G8ES
00°22%
ZSELLS
ze'8%
00'9€i$

58'87%
[B301 way)

IBMOS |0JUOD) SSI00Y -d Puy o

owwy 30814
Jawi) Joys

SALI0SSA0IY 1SaA Jus!|leq
sayonod olpey

NPy auold |Ied

sdeug Buudg

Ispel] OM [B8UM PUY 8111
0L J04 SISA0D) JeaS
aulyoe Ado) Jnpy
auiyoew Adod unpy
82IAI9G 8[oAdaY

FEIEETYY

JBIBM

[eluay Jasuadsiq Jo1BAA
sabpupes Jouoyt
$300qajoN [elidg
Janoway ajdeig

S9A0ID LN

slaur ylBys

sadip 10547

sjea|n) 39|

laz)jueg Jiy

0IOPRA

saAl2Ys djqelsnipy
UQayIuNT BN Aaaoday
sbuiddy) ssei)

auedold

o34 Al

894 AN

pieH ¥ dng

€D 3%Rg

spoy Buipleom
uonduosaqg way)

143804 'ZInoIi4aod
143904 ‘Z3an9iaoy
14431 "Y31ANVHD
ANOHLNY ‘NOSHIANY
ANOHLNY 'NOSHIANY
ANOHLNY 'NOSY3IANY
IHY31 HITANVYHD
14431 "Y3TANVHD
4431 “HINANVYHD
144831 “Y3NANYHD
[¥Y3L ‘HINANYHD
[HH3L HITANYHD
[HY3L "HIVANVYHO
[HY3L "HINANYHD
[4Y3L "YIIANVYHO
[HH3L HINANYHD
(4931 "YINANVYHO
i¥Y3L "YITGNVYHD
1943 YITANVYHD
I4Y3L YINANYHD
14931 "HIATANYHD
1I4Y3L "YIIGNVHO
14931 "HITONYHD
IHY3L HITANYHD
14931 "YINANVYHD
I¥Y3L "WITANYHD
IHH3L “HINANYHD
IHY3L HINANYHD
I4Y3L HINONVYHO
IHY3L HIIANYHD
IHH31 “HITANYHD
YNMVYHS ‘AT190W
YNMVYHS ‘AT190W
VYNMVYHS ‘AT790W
VYNMVYHS ‘AT190N
YNMVHS ‘A190N
YNMVYHS ‘ATT90W
NIFOY ‘SINOT

awep |Ingd HO

NINYVYIT ALINNWWOD 2202
NINYVYIT ALINNWNOD 2202
OILNT10S HLTVY3IH LNYQH0D
HYLN SSTAI

HYLN SSTNI

HYLN SSTI

ONI S3SINdHILNT AFT1000
OMVELFIMY SN dLHW NZWY
ONI A1ddNS L6

ONLLL'S

HYINTI3D SN

W - 34YMAYVH 30V STIHd
£100# GYMHOS ST

SNd v.L3a

Z NOILYHOdHOD XOH3IX

Z NOILYHOJHOD X0OY3IX
SYYL SIDIANIS OIN8Nd3y
HILVM OWIYd

HIALYM OWING

HILYM OWIHd

ng Buibewj lewndo 4dao
0uYZLASMY SN dLIMN NZWY
LOrZ1Z72d SN dIMW NZWY
ZZWL28¥0H SN dIMIN NZWY
OHNSWLTOH SN dLMW NZWY
LArPOHI8Y WO NOZVINY
ZILENSESH WOD NOZYNY
03re6M62d WO NOZVINY
1ZOE£91£0H WOD NOZVINY
S6OrPI-PLL 13 NOZVWY
VZZId AMVANIDI1 SAGGY
129 ?_m::mw seJpeN dl

SNOS ¥ aNv1s a3

HILVYM AQTTVA SILNHOS3A
HIALVM ATTTIVA SILNHDSIA
W - IHYMAAVYH 30V STIHd
YH1NID 40 09 HOO0A GHAO

SYHOVIN HOLOVHL S 2N
SWEN JOPUSA

s|iejaQ pJes) aseydng ¥za3l4d



%4

¥202r9/e
AT A A
¥20z/0z/1
LAl
¥20z/8L/e
20218/
veoe/elie
veae/9Lie
A4 1B
reoe/6Lie
¥zoe/oLie
Feoe/oLie
¥2oe/oLie
¥202/0E/L
LgAvAL Al
¥202/0t/1L
[ZAVAL A
reoz/eLie
LAV AL A BT
P2oe/Siie
veoe/sre
v20eivie
[£AVALA
v20e/ere
¥20¢e/a/e
LLAVAL A BT
ELAVA) 4B
yeoeivLie
yzoe/ee/L
20219/
LLAVTAFARTA
veoeviie
vaae/Le/l
veoeiLLie
{AVAI A
¥aoers/e
veoe/LLie
$202/6/2

-L0EC-025-101-59¢
-10€2-02S-101-592
-9¥€¢-0¢s-101-G9¢
-9¥2¢-025-101-59¢
-9r22¢-025-101-592
-9¥¢¢-0¢5-101-99C
-§112-025-101-59¢2
Gl 12-02%-101-99¢
-1L0LZ-025-101-592
-1012-025-101-59¢2
-1012-025-101-59¢2
-1012-025-101-59¢2
-L0LZ-025-101-592
-L0L2-025-101-99¢
-L01L2-025-101-592
-L0LE-026-101-59¢2
-G112-02S-101-952
-L0L2-02s-101-95¢
-L0LZ-02S-101-95¢
-298€-025-10L-+5¢
“8LrE-025-101-¥SC
-BLYE-02S-1L0L-PSE
-81¥e-02G-101L-¥SC
-8LYE-025-101-¥#5C
-8L¥E-02S-10L-PSE
-81¥e-025-10L-PSC
-8LPE-025-10L-+G2
-81¥E-025-10L-¥SC
-8l¥E-025-10L-¥52
“BLYE-025-10L-¥SC
-81¥E-02s-101-vse
-8l¥E-025-10L-vG2
-81Pe-02s-101-¥52
-81¥E-0¢5-101L-+5¢
“8L¥E-025-10L-v52
-81p€-025-101-¥5C
“8L¥E-025-10L-+52
-10€E-025-101L-52

ajeq aseyoINd UONBUIGWOCY 9 WY

aLveLs
8r'sves
0L'6$
2£719%
gLsls
6Z'29%

SLioLl

Aejay

jelsounsay |

aoInp ajddy s1ewu)

SOAD|S) DJBLUL|/SIAO|D) UBYDIINM
(‘ang oneqeiq) epualdg

a2inr 3|ddy sjew|

06'99t$ 3.0lpeY |rer so4 Juswadeidey Aispeg

00912%
92'9.%
0L¥2LS

ssuspeg oipey juswaseday
LUBYS - SIDIAISG UONBISURL |
seyddng yeis

66°9Z$ ewoju| aaiH maN Jo4 Japuig Bury ¢

et AR
gL'0es
66'LL%
66'Gl$
v1°0.%
00061%
90'981%
Z0'061%
09'609'2$
85°29%
16°GLS
26vZ1L%
00'0v$
00'0LE$
00°0c%
00'68$
00'v9%
00°0v$
00'0vZ$
66'66%
00°¥92$
66'68%
05'6.%
1S¥6$
6t'92$
95413
00'9te$
{ejo0l Wway

ab.e puy WNIPapy-SSA0IS A{UYIN

syoed susiBAH Jo4 sbeg yooidiz
sdi|n Jadeyq

sausneg ey

99§100 Ye1S

B0IMIBG J8julld JON0|Id
sanddng 900
sa|ddng 3210
Buuoyuopy 200813
O S¥oeug

O epogy/sjamo] Jaded
O saxog poo
splemy UNoD) AI9A0oay
SPIED WO UNPY

Pl 104 83410

994 JuaLWalelsuIay
Hulad |g

asUa0I sJaAuQ

O diysisquisiy WAy
uonduasqng Aeaa

O 90UBSISSY |BIUSY
0 Jod4 3udyd 119D

0 Buiyioln

O syoeUS

O syorUS

O syoeus

Jaoiyo) Jo04 [eoisiyd
uonduosaq W)

TADXY ‘NVINMOIH
TADXY ‘NYWMOIH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNV ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
SINVE 'LLVAM
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ATIOH ‘SOANVIHO
SAAVE 'LIVAM
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNV ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNYH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
OIVHD 'WYHVHD
DIVHO ‘WYHVYD
DIVHD ‘WYHVYD
IHY3L “HITANVHD
4931 "HITANVHD
IHY3L “HITANVHO
|HY31 "WITANVYHO
A3ST3X 'SNOSHVd
A30V1 ‘ZNYovi3aa
AISVYO ‘NOSdWOHL
A3ST3N 'SNOSHVd
A3ST3% ‘SNOSHvd
AJSVYD 'NOSJWOHL
19431 "YITANVYHO
AISVD ‘NOSAWOHL
g00Vr ‘S13INVa
AISVO ‘NOSJIWOHL
143904 ‘Z3no14aoy
144931 "HITANVHD
14431 HINANVHO
14Y3L “WINANVYHO
IHY3L “HINANVHO
sweN JInd HO

HIONIVHO

LZro10Z8d SN d.YW NZWV
096L# AVAMIIVS
0AQLIS20d SN dIDIN NZWY
ZWHZANGIH WOD' NOZYWY
LOAZNOLZY WOD NOZVYNY
a7 sdaxoug Emﬁmm
0449NMBMY SN AN NZWY
JIVISNYHL 31vHOdH0D
LdX9AQLIY SN Jd LMW NZWY
LIEPNOE8Y SN dMW NZWY
ZS98SNETY SN dIMW NZWY
261002294 SN dLHIN NZINY
LYMONT80Y SN dIMW NZIWY
ZNIWEATSEY WO NOZVINY
8rLLib-viL 139 NOZVWY
LYWOLNV 321440 D1419vd
oISoAgLIY SN AP NZINY
Lzacnazgay SN dhi NZWY
271 L3INUDIA

WOD 021800 MMM

W02 021500 MMM

WOD 001500 MMM
NYNQR L

0961# A¥VMIHVS

000S S¥6 £0S AWA LOJO
000G St6 €08 AWA LOAO
0005 St6 £0S AWQA LOA0
0005 S¥6 £05 AWQ LOQ0
071 $SANLII NMOLAYW
JIgY.LNNODOV H3AT
AVMLAIYHL SNOSMOIM3
ZTEGET0LH STYM LIANDIHD
69 1dVIN-I19

LSWEDSIZH SN dIMN NZWY
ZYMLIADZY SN dDIIN NZWY
003£E9ZIH WOD NOZYINY

ONINTNEG ¥31LN3D IHL
JWeN JOPUSA

s|iejeQ ple) aseyodind yga34d



¢c

yeoiivLic
¥eoiiviic
¥eoCivLic
yeociviie
veocivLie
yeoeisLie
¥zoe/Lic
¥20¢/5/2
rZ02/0L/e
L LAVALTA
vZ0T/LE/L
vzoc/ees/t
[ZAVAGTAL
vzoc/ee/L
veoz/aL/e
¥eoerore
veoenie
L{AATAALY
yeoe/ore
LAl TAN
vzoz/el/e
¥elz/elic
LAV A B A
LA rAAL
¥Z0Z/0E/L
yeoze/9c/L
¥20¢/9/¢
#202/9/2
¥202/9/2
LLAVANN T4
yeoe/ife
LLAVATA A
¥202/8/¢
ycoe/ie
yco2ioac/L
P202/0e/1
¥20e//e
LLAVALIA

-1019-025-101L-992
-1019-025-101-59¢
-1019-025-1.01-G9C
-1019-025-101-99¢2
-101L9-0¢5-101-992
-1019-025-101-592
-1019-025-1L01-59¢2
-1019-025-101-992
-1019-025-101-592
~2€.€-025-101-99¢
-ZELE-025-101-592
-¢elt-025-101-592
~2e.£-025-101-59¢
~Z€LE-025-101-G9¢
-gE1€-025-101-59¢
-2ELE-0€5-101-692
-€eLL-025-101-99¢
~¢ELE-025-101-99¢C
-2E1€-025-101-682
-¢eLE-02G-101-992
~2ELE-025-101-99¢
-CELE-025-101-G9C
-¢€1£-025-101-692
-¢eLE-02%-101-992
-LELE-025-101-59C
-109€-025-101-692
-109€-0¢5-101-692
~£09€-025-101-59¢
-L09€-025-101-G9C
-109€-0¢5-101-692
-0€€€-0¢5-101-G9¢
-0E€e-025-101-69¢2
-8L¥C-02S-101-992
-8Lt2-025-101-99¢
-L0EE-02S-10L-59¢C
-L0Ee-0¢s-101-69¢2
-L0ge-029-101-692
-L0€¢c-025-101-69¢

ajeq aseyoing UONHEBUIqUIOY) 19 W)

£9'92%
06'9$
FARNARY
ge’/e9
LZ'6z%
02'€92%
00'GLeS

Shiozi

dng pa a:1ewu)

dng pa ajewu)

dng pap ajewWU|

dng psiy SeWwU|

dng pap ajewu|

sqen ajewu)

Zawoo) - [BlUa(] alewU|

66723 WY PIV IS4 1o Jexuerg Aousbiouu3
E7'TL$1 PIV 1841 PUY YOIBd 943 MY I 1suid

v0'2c2$
09'+0€$
20691$
06'68€$
00'€lL$
66'88.%
2. 981%
LL'gEZs
258823
$0°092$
¥6'L0.8
05'vES
95'89%
0Z'2£8
LLlvS
Z6'CELS
08'509%
00'Z2%
0£'22¢$
00'22%
1811818
8Z'1S$
96°/61$
00'09%
SL'6VILS
00°225%
G/'8828
61°€$
09°/2¢$
[eyol wiay|

saliddng ajewu)

salddng sjewu)

salddng ayewu)

sadojaaug ajewu| padwelg
fIsus)n UoNUaASLd apIdING
sayddng ayewu|

ooduleys s

uad xa|4/ozeyoodweys ajewu)
deog Jeg/sjepueg alewu)
oodweys ajewu)
sassaljep ajewu]
SOJ0WaY "A’] (BSIaAIIN
juabisteq Apune]

yoea|g Apune

siaddi|n nepysiaddin ieN sjewu|
S90US ¥o2(] aewu|

Ing obeqies

131BMA

I81BAN

131BM

1amag JOIBAA

abueyp 1O UeA |lef 9g0#
SIOSUSS an| UBA [1ef 980#
"dx3 uuojiu) ler

ller sapjong ljeg

e 201n8g

ier 104 by pa

pieH ‘dng

slalnd

uonduasag way)

319834 ‘SN
319834 ‘SN
319933 'SIATNW
319930 'SITUN
31993Q ‘SN
319630 'S3TN
318934a 'S3UN
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNV ‘NISNVYH
319934 'SITW
31993a 'SIN
319934 ‘SIN
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
318930 'S3TW
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVYH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNYH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNYH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘NISNVH
ANOHLNY ‘N3SNVH
319930 'S3TN
319430 'S3TW
319934 ‘S31IN
319934 'S3TW
319434 ‘'S3IN
319930 'S3TIW
319934 ‘SN
319834 'S3TW
NOSVYI "M207110d
TADXY ‘NVYWMOIH
AHLOWIL ‘IMIHVA
VYNMVHS ‘AT180W
TAOXY ‘NVYWXMOIH
sweN lInd HO

d1'S3I41SNANI ANITA3IN
d1 ‘SIIHLSNANI INNA3INW
d1 'S LSNANI ANIITINW
d1 'SIIHLSNANI INITA3IN
d1 'SAIMLSNANI ANINAIN
HLTY3H STTHVYHD 1S Q3w
TYLN3A 1438330 HOIH
001218994 SN d.LY¥N NZWY
ZIDOErsgd SN dIN NZWY
SNOILNT0S dOM
SNOILNIOS dOM
SNOILNTOS dOM
L7209€1L50Y Od SdSN

DONI “NISNALOD3

4N ONI 8v1023

XILWHVHO

XILWHVHD

XILWHVHO

INI ANVAWOD d3¥dva 809
INI ANVANOD HIXMHvd 809
OMVZNVYEME SN dDIW NZWY
0AWOTARIY SN APIN NZWY
ZH49edbid SN MW NZWY
LTHSAAYBY SN d1MW NZIWY
ONI ANVAINOD H3MHvE 8089
90 Wo'Bulj|iqysel

HILYM AT TIVA SALNHOSIA
HALYM ATTIVA SILNHOS3A
HILYM ATTIVA STLNHOS3A
SVYHAVIA 40 ALID

2HNS NON 9711 ANITOATVYA
£100# GYMHDIS S31

NV ANV SHINYITO SMONS
WOO' -S9O

AD0IAY3S "OHAINS

Sil 21¥1D0373 Livd

W - 3HVYMANVH 30V STIHd

HIAONIVED
awepN Jopusp

s|iejaJg pJed aseyaind $Z2d34



€e

¥Z0Z/6L/1
veoz/eL/l
P20e/6L/1

¥20z/s/e
v20Z/51/C
vaoe/slL/L
veae/elLiL

ve0e/6/e
vzoz/oLic
veoz/iiLic
yzoz/elie
LAVAFARA
Yc0z/9L/e
v20z/5i/e
v2ocivLie
veoZ/LL/e

veoe/sfe
¥20Z/0L/2

veociere
¥Z02/0L/2

LAV 4

veoererie

L{AVALALA
vZ0C/LE/L
¥20oz/8e/)L
¥2oe/se/L
¥20e/1L2/
vr2oe/at/L
¥Z0c/6L/)

v20z/9/2
v20e/0E/L
Feoziee/L
LA A
yeozieLie
¥202/51/2
ye0e/51LIe
{AVALdorA
veoe/vlie

-1012-025-1L0L-+05
“L0LC02G-L0L-E0%
-1012-025-1L0L-€0S
-10ee-025-101-62¢
~1012-02¢-10L-G2¢
-L0L2-029-101-292
-L0L2-025-101-29¢
-10€e-025-201-992
~L0Lg-025-201-992
-L0L¢-029-201-992
~L019-02%-101-992
-L019-025-10L-59¢
-L019-025-101-59¢
~LQ18-025-101-59¢
-1L018-025-101-59¢2
-L018-025-101-59¢2
-L01L8-025-101-592
~L0L9-025-101-59¢
-1019-025-10L-59¢
-1018-02S-101-59¢2
-1018-025-101-59¢2
-1018-02S-101-59¢2
-L0L8-02s-1L01-682
-L0L8-025-101-G92
~L0L9-025-101-982
-1019-025-101-59¢
-1019-025-101-982
-L019-028-101-G9¢
-1019-0¢5-101-G92
-L019-025-101-692
-1019-029-101-692
-L019-0€5-101-582
-1019-0¢5-101-G92
-L018-025-101-59¢
-1019-0¢5-101-59¢
=1019-0¢5-101-G92
-L019-025-101-59¢
-1019-0¢5-101-59¢2

ajeg @seyoind UONBUIGWOY) TS WI))

zLLe%
01'62$
St'sLs
002Z%
GE'v9L$
SSvLe
£1°1€%
Z0'6ELS
16°LZ$
6Z'8v$
08'9¢$
Z1'ss
FARL
98'2¢%
6219
98'0¢€$
86°L%
¥6°291%
8.'6.%
£6'62%
o' vSZ$
9.'16%
15°9%
£5'PES
GS9eEs
SPeoL$
ZErLS
66'0CLS
Ze'18$
19'682%
60°60¢€$
68°96%
or'LLS
Z1'82%
95°6%$
zg'Les
¥5°66%
92'87%
(ejo] wayy

SLiogl

sa)jddng s|eualel 92O
s81)ddng s|eusiep 800
sonddng sieualep a2y

uer lo4 abesn Jajepn

bunasy semg

sanddng sieustep 22140
salddng s|euayepy a0
aseyINd - HOSSY JaAUUNG

Hers

sa|ddng a0 w3
w3 Jo spueAue pj
SUONED|PaN a)jewy|
suonesIpay sjewu|
SUONED|PaN SjeLu|
suonesipay ajewy|
SUONEIIPS)Y SjBWY|
SUONEDIPaY SjeLIU|
SUONEJ|PaN S)eLu]
SUONEDIPaN S)eLiu|
sSuonesIpa ajewu|
suoned|pay a)euwlu|
suonEeJNPa SELIU|
SUONEJIPSIN SlBWU|
SUONEJ|PSIN )eLUU|
suonesIpsy sjewu|
suoned|pajy sjewu|
suonedIpay lewu|
SUONED P3N Slewut
SUONEIIPaN Blewu|
SUONEIPSIN Sjewu|
dng pap alewy|
dng pap a1ewu|
dng pajy alewu|
dng pa alewu|
dng pap ajewu|
dng pap S|
dng paypy ajewu|
dng pap djewuy|
dng pap @1ewWwuy
uonduosaq way|

L1028 'NYW13a3
11028 ‘NYW13a3
11008 'NVW13a3
Y1¥v0 ‘s39ai1ud
JINIONIA ZILHO
11098 ‘Nvin13a3
1102S ‘NvW13a3s
NVAXE 139AIMS
NvAHE 139AMS
NYANE “139AM$
319934 ‘SN
319934 ‘SIUN
319934 ‘'S3N
319934 ‘S3UN
319934 'S3UW
319934 ‘ST AW
319930 ‘SIUN
319934 ‘S3UN
319934 ‘s3IW
319934 ‘'S3UN
319934 ‘SN
319934 ‘SITINW
319930 ‘'S3TN
9930 ‘ST
319930 'S3IN
319930 ‘S3UNW
319930 ‘SITNW
319934 'SIIN
319930 'S3TW
319930 ‘SN
319930 ‘SITNW
319930 ‘S3TN
31993q "SI
319930 'S3TNW
319934 ‘ST
31993G 'S3TNW
3199340 ‘SIUNW
319934 ‘S3N
aweN jind HD

02 AITIVA 3dNSYIHL NI
d3LYM ONWIKdd

00 AITIVA FdNSYIEL NI
H3ALVM ASTIVA S3LNHDS3A
VZZld AdVAN3IO3T SAgaV
HIALVM CNIEd

00 AIFTIVA HNSVYIYL NI
JHOSIH d3IAIENNS
OHO8YELMY SN dLHIN NZWV
PHNSYELIY SN d1HMN NZWY
0961 # AVMIIVS

0961 # AYMIIVS

0961 # AVMIIYS

0961 # AVYMIIVS

0961 # AVM3JIVS

0961# AYMIALVYS

0961 # AVMIIVS

0961 # AYMIIVS

0961 # AYMIIVS

0961 # AYMIIVS

0961# AYMIIVS

0961 # AVM3IIVS

096L# AVM3IVS

0961 # AYMIIVS

0961 # AYMIIVS

0961 # AVMIIVS

0961# AVMILYS

0961 # AYMILYS

0961# AYMIIVYS

OTT NOLLNTOS AQD SWIN
OTINOLLNIOS AQOD SWIN
OTT NOLLNTOS AQD SWIN
d1 °'S3IFLSNANI IANING3N
d1'S3I1YLSNANI ININAINW
d7 ‘SIIFMLSNANI INITA3IN
d71 'SIIFMLSNANI INITA3IN
d7 'S3YLSNANI INITA3IN

d7 'SIHLSNANI SNIMA3IN
BWEN JOPUIA

s|iejag pies aseyaind yzg34d



144

yeoessie
yeoz/si/L
vzoc/Len
veoessie
LAV A4
LLAVA) 9T
vzoe/Lie
LAVTAF AT
veoe/Le
¥20g/0t/L
¥20c/9/e
¥202/0e/L
vzoe/s/e
¥eoe/Lie
LLAVALIrA
¥20e/Sst/e
L LAVTATA A
veocieL/e
vzoerelie
¥202/6/
vzoeve/L
teoe/ee/L
reozielre
¥2oz/9efL
¥eozizLie
¥20e/Lic
veoeiee/1
¥20Z/6L/1
¥20e/0e/
¥20zZ/9/e
$20g/ce/L
vyeoc/6L/L
veoz/ee/L
veoe/oLie
vaoe/oLie
v¥eoe/6LiL
vzoemsl/e
¥eoz/elL/1L

~288¢-0¢5-101-609
-1092-025-101-80G
-109€-025-101-805
-L09€-025-101-80G
~£09€-025-101-805
-L0€2-0¢5-101-805
~L0vP-0PS-1L0L-20G
-L0€e-0¢5-101L-2L0S
-10e2-025-101-208
-L0€C-025-10L-20G
-L0€e-0¢S-10L-L0S
-L0EZ-025-10L-20S
-L0€e-025-10L-20G
-L0EZ-02S-10L-£08
-L0€e-0¢s-10L-20S
-L0£2-025-10L-205
-L0Ee-025-101-L0S
-L0€2-025-101L-205
-L0e¢-0¢5-101-40S
~L0eZ-02s-101-208
-L0Ee-0¢s-101-£06
-10€¢-0¢5-101-£0S
-L0Ee-0es-L0L-£0G
~L0e2-025-101-20S
-L0eg-025-101-L0S
-L0£2-025-101-205
-10€2-025-101-20S
-10E2-025-101-L08
-G822-0¢5-104-208
-LOEE-025-101-505
-P00E-025-101-G0S
-L0L¢-025-101-G0G
-L0Le-025-101-508
-LOLZ-02S-101-S0S
-L0L2-025-101-506
-L31¢-025-101-508
-1012-025-101-508
-L0LZ-025-L0L-+0S

ajeq aseyoind UOHBUIQON TS Wa)

02'289'8%
6v'62%
¥9'02€$
2£°901%
69'9Z/%
16'2¥8
00°422%
LL'601$
86'86%
96°9LL%

Sliovi

e Waag asl4 aJl4
334 Ay

894 AN

as4 Aluiw

894 AN

dng

uonensiey
abueyd 10 £EZ#
sbueyd 10 ¥ZzZ#
abueyd |10 LOZ#

9b'965$ €10y 9S0H JareaH abueyd 1o L9L#

192128

S R A
€1°08%
86'ct$
¥8'G22'1$
82'622%
A AR S
62°ZELS
96'66%
80°852%
LSOEL'LS
66CLS
9.'261%
(g6°6E%)
96'65$
66°6£%
99°/6%
98°2r$

sBueyd nO puy saxeig ZglL#
OLPLit UBA JO4 Jounin
182]-2q puy sape|g JadIm LZL#
sjy6i peaH L9L#

LL0# SNt

Aiayeg maN LOL#

S8J|| MON £81 #

sweyD SzZ#

lieday 2 souBUBIIB OINY
¥19L# Maneg

$00c# Jieday puz juoig
Usem Jen

+00E# Jan0)) e

Hpaus) - Jreday § SouBUBUIB OINY

Jieday g aoususLIRpy Oy
60v 1 sope|g Jadip

Hed pue|s| |gnd

Z81 3IdYSA Jod [end

{00702 1%) 104 upaID - 8807 diysiapes] 030D

EP'90Z'v$
0z'8s%
86'6.%

00'€or'L$

govrzes
06'0S1L%
0L'62%
¥SrLS
[ejol way

sbJeyaung sapo? Buippng
sol|ddng seusiep 2210
sal|ddng sjeusiepy 890
$9||ddng sjeusiep 92O
sal|ddng sjeusiep aoyo
sol|ddng sjeusiew soyo
sa|ddng sjeuaiepy aoyo
sa||ddng sjeuaep oo
uofndussaqg way)

Y1dvD 'S390144
YNMVHS ‘AT190NW
YNMVYHS ‘A3T90W
VYNMVHS ‘A3T90W
YNMVYHS ‘A3T90W
VYNMVHS ‘A3T90W

131489 ‘ZIN0S
319933a 'S NW
319934 'STUN
319930 'S3N
219893Q ‘'SINW
319834Q ‘'S3NW

[4Y3L “W3NANVHO
3199340 ‘STUN
319834Q ‘SINW
VYNMVYHS ‘A37190W
3198340 ‘STTN
3198930 ‘SN
312934 ‘S3W
11028 ‘NvYW13a3
WIL "He3N

NISOY ‘S3NOF
AYVYHOVZ ‘SONILSYH
NISOY 'S3NOr
1100S ‘NvW13d3
1100S ‘NYW1303
14380 ‘Z3N9IHaA0y
V4 IONIWZIYY
NIWVINIg ‘SdOOL
11028 ‘NYW13a3
1103S ‘NVIN13a3
11008 ‘Nvin13a3
1103s ‘NviW13a3
AWIH3r ‘H1LOTDHIVA
AWIY3r ‘H1O1DHIVA
1100S ‘NvW13a3
11008 ‘NviW13a3
11028 ‘NvW13a3
aweN (Ind HD

Jag Aejues seipew g1
HYIN1132 'S'N

Jag Aielues sespel g1
H3LVYM ATTIVA S3LNHDS3A
SVYHAVN 4O ALID

W - 3EVYMOYVH 30V S1IHd
000S S8 €05 AWQ LOAO
2WNS NON 211 ANITOATYA
2dNS NON 277 ANINOATYA
2dNS NON 271 INITOATVA
OLNY 2 135310 S NOSAL
OLNY ¥ 135310 S NOSAL
0¥04 S9S1

90€£9200 OLNY YdVN
90€£9Z00 OLNY VdVN

£LOO# GYMHOS 831

£L00# GYMHOS S

£LO0# GYMHDS 83

£L00# aYMHODS 83T

ELOO# aYMHOS 831

£L00# aYMHOS $31

£L00# aYMHOS 831
$220L20 NOYAIHD

Z2G# S1dvd OLNY ¥3L1Xvd
196G ANOZOLNY

1965 INOZOLNY

1965 ANOZOLNY

08AG61484 SN dLIMN NZWV
dOl1s 13nd S.LLvH
NINYY3T ALINDWWOD 22002
$S820 NO93HO 40 1S
H3ALVM OWIdd

W - AHVYMAYYH 30V STIHd
DONI TIONNOD A0 1.LNI
ONIADNNOD Q0D NI
Q2 ATIVA FHNSVYIHL NI
OrPWBLA9MY SN dLAW NZNY

d3LvmM ONIbdd
awiep JOpusp

s|iejaq pied aseyaind yza3d



q¢

v202/6/2
¥20¢/6/2

¥20z/6/2
ajeq aseyosing

~180L-045-101-G52
~480.4-045-101-6G.

-480.-04G-101-5G2
uoljeulquiod 19 way

9T'LLL IELS

16'6L1L$
04've6$

00'685%
[ejol way)

5l joSi1

apioay uewiays dwe)
a)is 'dsig uewuayg dwen
10daq o9y uewsays dwen
uonydussaq wajy|

VIdVO 'S390149
VIdvYD 'S39a14g
VYYD ‘S390Q149

aweN IInd HD

SYdl S3OIAYTS JINaNnd3y
Sydl S30IAYIAS JN8Nd3y

Sl S3DIAY3S JINdnd3d
BWIEN JOPUSA

siiejeq paed eseydind yzg3d



Certificate No. 2094

Certificate of Right to Burial

Jefferson County
430 SW Fairgrounds Road
Madras OR 97741

Jay McCabe
2227 NE Clark Drive
Madras OR g7741

This is to certify that Jay McCabe, has paid the sum of $ 342.00, which payment includes perpetual care and
entitles them and their heirs to the exciusive rights and burial in:

Block Hillside Garden Lot 0 Grave 351

at Mt. Jefferson Memorial Park Jefferson County, State of Oregon, according and subject to the limitations,

restrictions and conditions of the Rules and Regulations of the cemetery, either now in force or hereafter
enacted.

This certificate is a receipt acknowledging payment in full for the right of burial in the aforementioned space
only. It does not constitute ownership, title or deed of real property. This certificate is not assignable and is
void if held by any other than the person herein named or their heirs at law.

DATED on March o7, 2024
JEFFERSON COUNTY COMMISSION:
Commission Chair
Commissioner
Commissioner
Before Me:
Notary Public of Oregon Official Stamp:
County of Jefferson

My Commission Expires:

26



ACTION MINUTES

JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

1

2)
3)

4)

3)
6)

March 6, 2024

Administrative Session (8:15)

1.1 Sheriff's Semi-Annual Update.

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation

Presentations/Awards

Changes to the Agenda (Consideration of Submission of Late Items)

4.1  Partition Plat for Gregory & Candice Wing by Jason Simes - signed by
Commission Chair.

Mark Wunsch made a motion to approve the Partition Plat for Gregory & Candice
Wing by Jason Simes. Seconded by Wayne Fording. The motion CARRIED. (Ayes -
Kelly Simmelink, Wayne Fording, Mark Wunsch; Nays None)

4.2  Fair Vendor Fee Increases - approved by Commission.

Commission concurs.
9:00 A.M. - Citizen Comments

Consent Agenda

6.1  February 2024 Accounts Payable Paid February 2024 in the amount of
$142,395.94 - signed by Commission.

6.2  Certificate of Right to Burial, Certificate No. 2093 and GB192 through GB194 -
signed by Commission.

6.3  Action Minutes for February 28 & 29, 2024 - signed by Commission.

6.4  Oregon Department of Emergency Management, Emergency Management
Performance Grant, CFDA #97.042 - acknowledged by Commission.

Mark Wunsch made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, Items 6.1 through 6.4.
Seconded by Wayne Fording. The motion CARRIED. (Ayes - Kelly Simmelink,
Wayne Fording, Mark Wunsch; Nays None)

27



Scheduled Appointments, Action Items, and Public Hearings

8.1 Purchase Requisition Form for John Deere 1600 Turbo Terrain Cut Commercial

Mark Wunsch made a motion to approve the Purchase Requisition Form for John
Deere 1600 Turbo Terrain Cut Commercial Wide-Area Mower. Seconded by Wayne
Fording. The motion CARRIED. (Ayes - Kelly Simmelink, Wayne Fording, Mark

8.2  Updated Fair Complex Rental Fee Schedule - approved by Commission.

Announcements/Notification of additional Commission Meetings

Wayne Fording, Commission Chair

Kelly Simmelink, Commissioner

Mark Wunsch, Commissioner

7
7.1 9:30 a.m. - Global Grant Services.
8) Action Items
Wide-Area Mower - signed by Commission.
Wunsch; Nays None)
Commission concurs.
9) Elected Official Report(s)/Request(s)
10)  Department Heads Report(s)/Request(s)
11)  County Counsel Report(s)/Request(s)
12)  County Administrative Officer Report(s)/Request(s)
13)  Commission Discussion Items
14)
15)  Executive Session
16)  Adjourn
Meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m.
Attest

Date Signed

28



SAFE & SECURE RURAL SCHOOLS TITLE III
PROJECT SUBMISSION FORM FOR JEFFERSON COUNTY

“Secure Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination Act of 2000”

County Fiscal Year 2022-2023
FFY 2022

Project Is Authorized Under The Following Category:

Search, Rescue and Emergency Services
X___ Community Wildfire Protection Plan

X Firewise Communities Program

Name of Project: Jefferson County Defensible Space Program
Date Project Submitted: February 8, 2024

Project Location: Jefferson County

Project Sponsor: Central Oregon Intergovernmental Council
Sponsors Address: 334 NE Hawthorne Ave
Bend, OR 97701
Contact Person: Sommers Taylor
Phone: 703-595-5616 FAX: N/A E-Mail: staylor(@coic.org

Project Description: COIC has been asked to continue working with the four structural fire departments
and three Rangeland Fire Protection Associations within Jefferson County to reduce hazardous fuels on
private lands in areas identified as high priority in the Jefferson County CWPP. Residents that are
eligible will be offered a flat rate reimbursement for treating the land around their home, or the defensible
space, to Firewise standards. The goal of Firewise is to minimize fire danger in subdivisions and
neighborhoods and make firefighting safer and more effective. Many of these standards can be found on

the National Fire Protection Association website here: https://www nfpa.org/education-and-

research/wildfire/tfirewise-usa. Fire chiefs and trained evaluators will be responsible for assuring that the
standards have been met prior to dispensing funds. The Fire Officials are trained evaluators of Firewise

and defensible space principles and will assess and certify evaluators as needed.

Project Goals and Objectives: The overall goal of this project is to reduce the threat of catastrophic
wildfire to homes in high-risk areas by reducing hazardous fuels on private lands. This project is in

compliance with the Jefferson County CWPP priorities of reducing fuels within the wild land urban

Jefferson County 2024 _Title_III_Application_COIC_JeffCoFuels
Page 1 of 4

29



interface and providing defensible space. COIC will provide administrative support to pass through funds
to residents for the project as well as outreach capacity to engage homeowners. Residents will be able to

treat their primary defensible space zones (the first 100 feet) around the house that protects life and

property and will be required to meet Firewise standards that ensure appropriate fire safety measurements.

The project is expected to treat 35 homes in high fire-risk neighborhoods throughout Jefferson County.

Is there an opportunity to tie to an associated Title I Project? Explain: Not applicable.

Proposed Method of Accomplishment: Contract-Purchase

COIC will act as the fiscal sponsor and administrator for the project. COIC will work with the four
structural fire departments and three Rangeland Fire Protection Associations within Jefferson County to
perform outreach to residents to get them involved in the project. The chiefs will individually ensure that
the residential projects meet Firewise community standards. COIC will work with the fire chiefs to:
¢ Refine the 2024 application materials for landowners
e Conduct outreach to local residents
¢ Partner with Central Oregon Living with Fire to host a community workshop that highlights the
program as well as create content for COLF’s social media pages and monthly newsletter to
broadcast the program
Develop media coverage
Work with a translator to develop media coverage and application materials Spanish

Process payments to applicable residents per an approved process established prior to project
implementation

Provide quarterly reports and financial statements
o Print wildfire booklets to make fuels reduction information readily accessible for landowners

Does the Project meet the purpose of the Legislation? Explain: Title I1I funds can be used to provide
Firewise specific wildfire-related education or wildland fire mitigation assistance to homeowners. (see

https://www.fs.usda.gov/main/pts/countyfunds for a list of eligible uses of Title III funds). These fuels

reduction projects are an implementation activity of the Jefferson County CWPP aimed at providing

mitigation assistance to homeowners and preparing them to become eligible for Firewise certification.

How does the project benefit the Community? Creating defensible space around the home ignition
zone helps to reduce the risk of property loss or human health impacts from severe wildfire in priority
communities. By working with various stakeholders in the community and establishing relationships, we

are improving community relations and trust with the public in general.

This project greatly reduces the risk of losing homes to wildland fire, and indirectly reduces the threat of
wildfire on public lands (by reducing the risk of fire spreading from private to public lands). This project

Jefferson County 2024 Title III Application COIC JeffCoFuels
Page 2 of 4

30



will make it so Jefferson County firefighters can more safely protect homes and make the homes
themselves more resistant to the risk of ignition.

How does the Project improve cooperative relationships among people that use Federal Lands and
Federal Management agency? For the past ten years, COIC has worked with the four structural fire
departments and three Rangeland Fire Protection Associations within Jefferson County, Jefferson County,
the Oregon Department of Forestry, and the BLM and USFS to prioritize areas and develop the Wildfire
Preparedness Plan. Through our regular meetings we have solidified working relationships that may not
have otherwise occurred. This project allows us to maximize opportunities for protection from wildfire
inside the communities identified as high or extreme risk within the Jefferson County CWPP.

Duration of the Project: March 1, 2024 — March 30, 2026
Anticipated Cost of Project (itemize):

Phase III of the Fuels Treatment Project

COIC Administrative $11,400 - 120 hours fiscal administration/oversight @
$95/hour.

$7,125 — 75 hours for kickoff meetings, ongoing meetings
with fire chiefs, planning outreach, etc. @$95/hour.

QOutreach $2,000 Community workshops and presentations,
newsletters, and media advertisements

$375 — Media/advertisement buys, translation services
$1,600 — Printing wildfire booklets and copies of the
CWPP to hand out to communities

Pass through costs $21,000. Reimbursements are capped at $600/home
structure = 35 homes.

TOTAL REQUEST $ 43,500

TOTAL MATCHING FUNDS Landowner in-kind is estimated at $750-$1,000/project,
which equates to a maximum of $35,000.

TOTAL PROJECT COST §78,500

Estimated Start Date of Project: March 1, 2024

Estimated Completion Date of Project: March 30, 2024

Identify Source(s) of Other Funding For Project: The private landowners are being reimbursed at a flat
rate of $600/property, but the actual costs per acre have been estimated at $750-$1000. Therefore, we are
essentially matching this investment a minimum of 1:1.

Monitoring and reporting plan to measure outcome (what measure or evaluation will be made to
determine how well the proposed project meets the desired objectives?): The project outcomes are
directly measured by the number of homes treated, and type of fuels treatment accomplished. COIC will
give an annual report presentation to the Board of Commissioners when requested.

Jefferson County 2024 Title III Application COIC JeffCoFuels
Page 3 of 4

31



Other Comments: We are suggesting an increase to the reimbursement rate from $500 to $600 per
project due to increasing market costs for fuels reduction work and other related services. Additionally,

we’ve found that quality applications and projects occur when there is a strong community engagement

and outreach component to this work and have added a line item to provide this capacity to the program.

Submitted to Jefferson County by: Sommers Taylor, COIC CED Program Coordinator
Address: 334 NE Hawthome Ave, Bend, OR 97701 Telephone: 703-595-5616
Date: February 8, 2024

Jefferson County 2024 Title III Application COIC JeffCoFuels
Page 4 of 4

32



AGENDA ITEM COVERSHEET

33

[0 Admin. Session Consent Agenda O Public Hearing
O Action Item O Report/Request O Other/Announcements

Agenda Item Title (Do not put in all-caps):
2024-2025 IGA for the Financing of Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery & Prevention

and Problem Gambling Services Agreement # PO-44300-00026012

Department: Public Health Date Submitted: 1/22/2024

Contact Person Karla Hood, PH Phone: 341-475-4456

Effective Dates of Contract/Grant/ Proposal: January 01, 2024 - June 30, 2025

Amount of Contract/Grant/Proposal: _$4.400.611.99 Requested Agenda Date: 3/13/2024

Reviewed By: (Signatre and Date Requiredy Director/Elected Official:

Finance Director:

County Counsel:
CAO: o

AGENDA ITEM BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

IGA with OHA and Jefferson County #P0-44300-00026012 effective January 1, 2024 thru June 30, 2025.
Budget fund 244 pass through to BestCare.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Reviewed and recommended for signature by Michae! Baker, HS Director and Rick Treleaven, Community
Mental Health Director.

2nd version. The ist was corrected by the State and resent for review and signature.

RECOMMENDATION: (1€, Discussion, Discussion/Action, Introduction, Presentation, or Information)

Review and approve.

REgZUESTED ACTION: (Exact action requested of Commissioners in the form of a motion)
Approve to sign.

| ATTACHMENTS: Original Document # PO-44300-00026012

POST ACTION INSTRUCTIONS: (Fully executed originals will be retained for the official record)
Please return to Karla at PH for submission to the State.




In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in
alternate formats such as Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based
communications, and other electronic formats. To request an alternate format, please
send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@odhsoha.oregon.gov or call 503-378-
3486 (voice) or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format.

AGREEMENT # P0-44300-00026012

2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

This 2024-2025 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Community Mental Health,
Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services (the “Agreement”) is
between the State of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Jefferson
County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon (“County”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, ORS 430.610(4) and 430.640(1) authorize OHA to assist Oregon counties and
groups of Oregon counties in the establishment and financing of Community Mental Health, Addiction
Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services, and Problem Gambling programs operated or contracted for
by one or more counties;

WHEREAS, County has established and proposes, during the term of this Agreement, to operate
or contract for the operation of Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention
Services, and Problem Gambling programs in accordance with the policies, procedures, and
administrative rules of OHA;

WHEREAS, County has requested financial assistance from OHA to operate or contract for the
operation of its Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services, and
Problem Gambling programs;

WHEREAS, in connection with County's request for financial assistance and in connection with
similar requests from other counties, OHA and representatives of various counties requesting financial
assistance, including the Association of Oregon Counties, have attempted to conduct agreement
negotiations in accordance with the Principles and Assumptions set forth in a Memorandum of
Understanding that was signed by both parties;

WHEREAS, OHA is willing, upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, to provide
financial assistance to County to operate or contract for the operation of its Community Mental Health,
Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services, and Problem Gambling programs;

WHEREAS, various statutes authorize OHA and County to collaborate and cooperate in providing
for basic Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services, and
Problem Gambling programs and incentives for community-based care in a manner that ensures
appropriate and adequate statewide service delivery capacity, subject to availability of funds; and

WHEREAS, within existing resources awarded under this Agreement and pursuant to ORS
430.630(9)(b) through 430.630(9)(h), each Local Mental Health Authority that provides Community
Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, or Problem Gambling Services, or any
combination thereof, shall determine the need for local Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment,
Recovery, & Prevention Services, or Problem Gambling Services, or any combination thereof, and adopt a

PO-44300-0026012/ob Page 1 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

34



comprehensive Local Plan for the delivery of Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery,
& Prevention Services, or Problem Gambling Services, or any combination thereof, for children, families,
adults and older adults that describes the methods by which the Local Mental Health Authority shall
provide those services. The Plan shall be consistent with content and format to that of OHA’s Local Plan
guidelines located at https://www.oregon.gov/oha/hsd/amh/Pages/index.aspx. County shall provide
services per the most recently submitted and approved Local Plan as agreed upon between OHA and
County.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

AGREEMENT
1. Effective Date and Duration. This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2024. Unless
terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, this Agreement shall expire on June 30, 2025.
2. Agreement Documents, Order of Precedence. This Agreement consists of the following
documents:

This Agreement without Exhibits

Exhibit A Definitions

Exhibit B-1  Service Descriptions

Exhibit B-2  Specialized Service Requirements
Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award

Exhibit D Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements
Exhibit E Special Terms and Conditions
Exhibit F General Terms and Conditions

Exhibit G Standard Terms and Conditions

Exhibit H Required Federal Terms and Conditions

Exhibit [ Required Provider Contract Provisions

Exhibit J Provider Insurance Requirements

Exhibit K Startup Procedures

Exhibit L Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number Listing

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, the
language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of each of the
documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence to lowest
precedence: (a) this Agreement without Exhibits, (b) Exhibit H, (c) Exhibit A, (d) Exhibit C, (¢)
Exhibit D, (f) Exhibit E, (g) Exhibit B-1, (h) Exhibit B-2, (i) Exhibit G, (j) Exhibit F (k) Exhibit I,
(1) Exhibit J, (m) Exhibit K, (n) Exhibit L.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 2 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

35



EACH PARTY, BY EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES
THAT IT HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND

BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
3. Signatures.

Jefferson County
By:

Wayne Fording _Commission Chair

Authorized Signature Printed Name Title

State of Oregon, acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority

Date

By:

Authorized Signature Printed Name Title Date
Approved by: Director, OHA Health Systems Division

By:

Authorized Signature Printed Name Title Date

Approved for Legal Sufficiency:

Approved by Joseph M. Callahan. Assistant Attorney General on December 21, 2023 email in Agreement

file.

PO-44300-0026012/lob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT#H 443462-GT2990-23)

Page 3 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

36



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT A
DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the indicated meanings. Certain
additional words and phrases are defined in the Service Descriptions, Specialized Service Requirements
and Special Conditions in the Financial Assistance Award. When a word or phrase is defined in a
particular Service Description, Specialized Service Requirement, or Special Condition in the Financial
Assistance Award, the word or phrase shall not have the ascribed meaning in any part of the Agreement
other than the particular Service Description, Specialized Service Requirement, or Special Condition in
which it is defined.

1. “Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services” means treatment Services for
Individuals diagnosed with disorders related to the taking of a drug of abuse including alcohol, to
the side effects of a medication, and to a toxin exposure. The disorders include substance use
disorders such as substance dependence and substance abuse, and substance-induced disorders,
including substance intoxication, withdrawal, delirium, and dementia, as well as substance induced
psychotic disorder, mood disorder, etc., as defined in DSM criteria.

28 “Aging and People with Disabilities” or “APD” means a division within the Department of
Human Services that is responsible for management, financing, and regulation services for aging
adults and people with disabilities.

3. “Agreement Settlement” means OHA’s reconciliation, after termination or expiration of this
Agreement, of amounts OHA actually disbursed to County with amounts that OHA is obligated to
pay to County under this Agreement from the Financial Assistance Award, as determined in
accordance with the financial assistance calculation methodologies set forth in the Service
Descriptions. OHA reconciles disbursements and payments on an individual Service basis as set
forth in the Service Descriptions and in accordance with Exhibit F, Section 1., “Disbursement and
Recovery of Financial Assistance.”

4, “Allowable Costs” means the costs described in 2 CFR Part 200 or 45 CFR Part 75, as applicable,
except to the extent such costs are limited or excluded by other provisions of this Agreement,
whether in the applicable Service Descriptions, Specialized Service Requirements, Special
Conditions identified in the Financial Assistance Award, or otherwise.

5. “Behavioral Health” refers to mental/emotional wellbeing and/or actions that affect wellness.
Behavioral health problems include substance abuse and misuse, Problem Gambling, and Mental
Health disorders as well as serious psychological distress and suicide.

6. “Community Mental Health Program” or “CMHP” means an entity that is responsible for
planning and delivery of Services for Individuals with mental or emotional disturbances, drug
abuse, alcohol abuse, or gambling addiction problems in a specific geographic area of the state
under an agreement with OHA or a Local Mental Health Authority.

7. “Community Mental Health™ means programs and Services, delivered in the community, for
Individuals diagnosed with Serious and Persistent Mental [lIness (SPMI) or other mental or
emotional disturbances.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 4 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

37



10.
11.

12.

13.

14,

I5.

16.

“Coordinated Care Organizations” or “CCO” means a corporation, governmental agency,
public corporation, or other legal entity that is certified as meeting the criteria adopted by the
Oregon Health Authority under ORS 414.572 to be accountable for care management and to
provide integrated and coordinated health care for each of the organization’s members.

“County Financial Assistance Administrator” means a County appointed officer to administer
this Agreement and amend the Financial Assistance Award on behalf of County, by execution and
delivery of amendments to this Agreement in the name of County, in hard copy or electronically.

“DHS” means the Department of Human Services of the State of Oregon.

“Federal Funds” means all funds paid to County under this Agreement that OHA receives from
an agency, instrumentality, or program of the federal government of the United States.

“Financial Assistance Award” or “FAA” means the description of financial assistance set forth
in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference; as such Financial Assistance Award may be amended from time to time. Disbursement
of funds identified in the FAA is made by OHA using procedures described in Exhibit B-1,
“Service Descriptions,” and Exhibit B-2, “Specialized Service Requirements,” for each respective
Service.

“Gambling Disorder” means persistent and recurrent problematic gambling behavior leading to
clinically significant impairment or distress.

“Health Systems Division” or “HSD” means for the purpose of this Agreement, the division of
OHA that is responsible for the functions described in ORS 430.021(2), including but not limited
to coordinating, assisting, and directing a community mental health program in cooperation with
Jocal government units and integrate such a program with the state Community Mental Health
Program, and direct and coordinate Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services and
Problem Gambling Services.

“Individual” or “Client” means, with respect to a particular Service, any person who is receiving
that Service, in whole or in part, with funds provided under this Agreement. For purposes of this
Agreement and all attachments hereto, the terms “Client” and “Individual” shall have the same
meaning and shall be interchangeable.

“Interim Services” as described in 45 CFR §96.121, means:

a. Services provided, until an Individual is admitted to substance abuse treatment program,
for reducing the adverse health effects of such abuse, promoting the health of the
Individual, and reducing the risk of transmission of disease. At a minimum Services
include counseling and education about HIV and tuberculosis, the risks of needle sharing,
the risks of transmission of disease to sexual partners and infants, and steps that can be
taken to ensure that HIV and tuberculosis transmission does not occur;

b. Referral for HIV or TB treatment Services, where necessary; and

c. Referral for prenatal care, if appropriate, until the Individual is admitted to a Provider’s
Services.

d. If County treats recent intravenous drug users (those who have injected drugs within the
past year) in more than one-third of its capacity, County shall carry out outreach activities

to encourage individual intravenous drug users in need of such treatment to undergo treatment and shall
document such activities.

P(O-44300-0026012/1ab Page 5 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

38



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

“Local Mental Health Authority” or “LMHA” means one of the following entities:

a. The board of county commissioners of one or more counties that establishes or operates a
Community Mental Health Program;

b. The tribal council, in the case of a federally recognized tribe of Native Americans, that
elects to enter into an agreement to provide mental health services; or

c. A regional local mental health authority comprised of two or more boards of county commissioners.

“Local Plan” or “Plan” means a comprehensive plan, adopted by the Local Mental Health
Authority and approved by OHA, that describes the delivery of Services and the methods by which
the Services will be provided to the community. The Local Plan must be directed by and
responsive to the Behavioral Health needs of the community and consistent with the requirements
identified in ORS 430.630.

“Medicaid” means federal funds received by OHA under Title X1X of the Social Security Act and
Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) funds administered jointly with Title XIX funds as
part of state medical assistance programs by OHA.

“Misexpenditure” means funds, other than an Overexpenditure, disbursed to County by OHA
under this Agreement and expended by County that are:

a. Identified by the federal government as expended contrary to applicable statutes, rules,
OMB Circulars, or 45 CFR Part 75, as applicable, or any other authority that governs the
permissible expenditure of such funds, for which the federal government has requested
reimbursement by the State of Oregon, whether in the form of a federal determination of
improper use of federal funds, a federal notice of disallowance, or otherwise; or

b. ldentified by the State of Oregon or OHA as expended in a manner other than that
permitted by this Agreement, including without limitation any funds expended by County
contrary to applicable statutes, rules, OMB Circulars, or 45 CFR Part 75, as applicable, or
any other authority that governs the permissible expenditure of such funds; or

c. Identified by the State of Oregon or OHA as expended on the delivery of a Service that did
not meet the standards and requirements of this Agreement with respect to that Service.

“Measures and Outcomes Tracking System” or “MOTS” means the OHA data system that
stores data submitted by OHA contractors and subcontractors.

“Qverexpenditure” means funds disbursed to County by OHA under this Agreement and
expended by County that is identified by the State of Oregon or OHA, through Agreement
Settlement or any other disbursement reconciliation permitted or required under this Agreement,
as in excess of the funds County is entitled to as determined in accordance with the financial
assistance calculation methodologies set forth in the applicable Service Descriptions or in Exhibit
E, “Special Terms and Conditions.”

“Problem Gambling Services” means prevention, treatment, maintenance, and recovery Services
for Individuals diagnosed with Gambling Disorder or are at risk of developing Gambling Disorder
including or inclusive of any family and or significant other impacted by the problem gambler for
access to treatment.

“Program Area” means any one of the following: Community Mental Health Services, Addiction
Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services, or Problem Gambling Services.

“Provider” has the meaning set forth in section 5 of Exhibit F, “General Terms and Conditions.”
As used in a Service Description and elsewhere in this Agreement where the context requires,
Provider also includes County if County provides the Service directly.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 6 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

39



26. “Provider Contract” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit F, “General Terms and Conditions,”
section 5.

27.  Serious and Persistent Mental Hiness (SPMI) means the current DSM diagnostic criteria for at
least one of the following conditions as a primary diagnosis for an adult age 18 or older:

a.

b.
c.
d

e.
f.

Schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders;
Major depressive disorder;
Bipolar disorder;

Anxiety disorders limited to Obsessive Compulsive Disorder (OCD) and Post Traumatic

Stress Disorder (PTSD);
Schizotypal personality disorder; or
Borderline personality disorder.

28.  “Service(s)” or “Service Element(s)” means any one of the following services or group of related
services as described in Exhibit B-1, “Service Descriptions,” in which costs are covered in whole
or in part with financial assistance pursuant to Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” of this
Agreement. Only Services in which costs are covered in whole or in part with financial assistance

pursuant to Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” as amended from time to time, are subject to

this Agreement.

PO-44300-0026012/lob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Service Name Service

Code
Start-Up (ATRP Services) A&D 60
Adult Substance Use Disorder Residential Treatment Services A&D 61
Supported Capacity for Dependent Children Whose Parents are in
Adult Substance Use Disorder Residential Treatment A&D 62
Peer Delivered Services A&D 63
Housing Assistance A&D 64
Community Behavioral and Substance Use Disorder Services A&D 66
Substance Use Disorder Residential and Day Treatment Capacity A&D 67
Problem Gambling Prevention Services A&D 80
Problem Gambling Treatment Services A&D 81
Problem Gambling Respite Treatment Services A&D 83
Problem Gambling Client Finding/Referral Pathways Outreach A&D 84
Services

Page 7 of 213

DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

40



Service Name Service
Code

System Management and Coordination MHS 01
Aid and Assist Client Services MHS 04
Assertive Community Treatment Services MHS 05
Jail Diversion Services MHS 09
Mental Health Promotion and Prevention Services MHS 10
Rental Assistance Program Services MHS 12
School-Based Mental Health Services MHS 13
Young Adult Hub Programs (YAHP) MHS 15
Peer Delivered Services MHS 16
Non-OHP Community and Residential Assistance MHS 17
Non-Residential Community Mental Health Services For Child, Youth, MHS 20
and Adults
Civil Commitment Services MHS 24
Mobile Crisis Intervention Services MHS 25
Non-Residential Community Mental Health Services For Youth and MHS 26
Young Adults In Transition
Residential Community Mental Health Treatment Services for Youth MHS 27
and Young Adults In Transition
Inpatient or Residential Treatment Services MHS 28
Monitoring, Security, and Supervision Services for Individuals Under MHS 30
the Jurisdiction of the Adult and Juvenile Panels of the Psychiatric
Security Review Board
Enhanced Care And Enhanced Care Outreach Services MHS 31
Adult Foster Care Services MHS 34
Older or Disabled Adult Community Mental Health Services MHS 35
Pre-Admission Screening and Resident Review Services (PASARR) MHS 36
Start-Up — Community Mental Health Services MHS 37
Supported Employment Services MHS 38
Projects For Assistance In Transition From Homelessness (PATH) MHS 39
Services

29.  “Service Description” means the description of a Service or Service Element as set forth in
Exhibit B-1, “Service Descriptions.”

30.  “Specialized Service Requirement” means any one of the following specialized service
requirements as described in Exhibit B-2, “Specialized Service Requirements,” in which costs are
covered in whole or in part with financial assistance pursuant to Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance
Award,” of this Agreement. Only Services in which costs are covered in whole or in part with
financial assistance pursuant to Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” as amended from time to
time, are subject to this Agreement.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 8 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

41



Specialized Service Requirement Name Specialized Service Requirement Code
Veterans Peer Delivered Services MHS 16A
Mobile Response & Stabilization Services MHS 25A
{MRSS) for Children and their Families
Early Assessment and Support Alliance (EASA) MHS 26A
(Gero-Specialist MHS 35A
31. “Trauma Informed Services” means Services that are reflective of the consideration and

evaluation of the role that trauma plays in the lives of people seeking Community Mental Health
and Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services, including recognition of the traumatic
effect of misdiagnosis and coercive treatment. Services are responsive to the vulnerabilities of
trauma survivors and are delivered in a way that avoids inadvertent re-traumatization and
facilitates individual direction of services.

32.  “Underexpenditure” means funds disbursed by OHA under this Agreement that remain
P Y & :
unexpended at Agreement termination or expiration, other than funds County is permitted to retain
and expend in the future under Exhibit F, “General Terms and Conditions,” section 3.b.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 9 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

42



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT B-1
SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

1. Not all Services described in this Exhibit B-1 may be covered in whole or in part with financial
assistance pursuant to Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” of this Agreement. Only Services
in which costs are covered in whole or in part with financial assistance pursuant to Exhibit C,
“Financial Assistance Award,” as amended from time to time, are subject to this Agreement.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 10 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

43



a. Service Name: START-UP
Service [D Code: A&D 60

0

(2)

&)

@

)

P(Q-44300-0026012/lob

Service Description

Funds awarded must be used for Start-Up activities as described in a special
condition in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award.” Description of Start-Up
activities are activities necessary to begin, expand, or improve Substance Use
Disorder and Problem Gambling Services. These expenses are distinct from routine
operating expenses incurred in the course of providing ongoing services.
Notwithstanding the description of the Start-Up activities in a special condition,
funds awarded from A&D 60 may not be used for real property improvements of
$10,000 and above. When OHA funds in the amount of $10,000 and above are to
be used for purchase or renovation of real property, County shall contact the Social
Determinates of Health (SDOH) unit of OHA and follow procedures as prescribed
by that unit.

A&D 60 funds are typically disbursed prior to initiation of Services and are used to
cover approved allowable Start-up expenditures, as described in Exhibit K, “Start-
Up Procedures,” that will be needed to provide the Services planned and to be
delivered at the specified site(s).

Performance Requirements

The funds awarded for A&D 60 may be expended only in accordance with Exhibit
K, *Start-Up Procedures,” which is incorporated herein by this reference.

Reporting Requirements
None

Special Reporting Requirements

Using the OHA prescribed “Start-Up Request & Expenditure Form,” County shall
prepare and submit electronically, to hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, a request
for disbursement of allowable Start-Up funds as identified in a special condition in
a particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award.” The reports must be
prepared in accordance with forms prescribed by OHA and procedures described in
Exhibit K, “Start-Up Procedures.” Forms are located at
hitp://'www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment Start-Up, Section |.e., and Settlement Start-Up language, Section
1.f.(1)b).

Page 11 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

44



b. Service Name: ADULT SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER RESIDENTIAL
TREATMENT SERVICES

Service 1D Code: A&D 61

(1) Service Description

Adult Substance Use Disorder Residential Treatment Services (A&D 61) are
Services delivered to Individuals 18 years of age or older who are unable to live
independently in the community; cannot maintain even a short period of abstinence
from substance abuse; are in need of 24-hour supervision, treatment, and care; and
meet the treatment placement criteria indicated in the American Society of
Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Level 3.1 - 3.7.

The purpose of A&D 61 Services is to support, stabilize, and rehabilitate
Individuals and to permit them to return to independent community living. A&D 61
Services provide a structured environment for an Individual on a 24-hour basis,
consistent with Level 3.1 — 3.7 treatment, including entry, assessment, placement,
service plan, service note, service record, transfer and continuity of care, co-
occurring mental health and substance use disorders (COD), residential substance
use disorders treatment and recovery services, and residential women’s substance
use disorders treatment and recovery programs, as set forth in OAR 309-018-0135
through 309-018-0160 and OAR 309-018-0170 through 309-018-0180, as such
rules may be revised from time to time, as appropriate to the Individual's needs and
include structured counseling, educational services, recreation services, self-help
group participation services, and planning for self-directed recovery management to
support the gains made during treatment. A&D 61 Services address the needs of
diverse population groups within the community with special emphasis on ethnic
minorities.

Providers shall have written admission policies and procedures in place for
Individuals who appropriately use prescribed medications to treat addiction.
Written policies and procedures must include referrals to alternate treatment
resources for those not admitted to the program.

A&D 61 Services provided under this Agreement must be provided only to
Individuals who are not eligible for Medicaid, who demonstrate a need for financial
assistance based on an income below 200% of the current federal poverty level, and
obtain insufficient healthcare coverage, including but not limited to, healthcare
coverage that does not cover all of the services described herein or are limited to a
limited number of days.

2) Performance Requirements

(a) Providers of A&D 61 Services funded through this Agreement must comply
with OAR 309-018-0135 through 309-018-0180, as such rules may be
revised from time to time. Providers of A&D 61 Services funded through
this Agreement must also have a current approval or license issued by OHA
in accordance with OAR 415-012-0000 through 415-012-0090.

(b) Subject to the preference for pregnant women and intravenous drug users
described in Exhibit G, “Required Federal Terms and Conditions,” County
and Providers of A&D 61 Services funded through this Agreement shall
give priority access to such Services first to Individuals referred by the

P(-44300-0026012/1cb Page 12 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23}) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

45



Department of Human Services and then to Individuals referred by Drug
Treatment Courts from within the region, as such region is designated by
OHA after consultation with County. For purposes of this Service
Description, “Drug Treatment Court” means any court given the
responsibility pursuant to ORS 3.450 to handle cases involving substance-
abusing offenders through comprehensive supervision, drug testing,
treatment services, and immediate sanctions and incentives. A&D 61
Services funded through this Agreement may be delivered to Individuals
referred from any county within the State of Oregon and contiguous areas
and no priority or preference shall be given to Individuals referred from any
particular county, provider, or other entity.

(c) Providers of A&D 61 Services funded through this Agreement shall be a
culturally competent program, able to meet the cultural and linguistic needs
of the Individual, and shall also be a co-occurring competent program
capable of delivering adequate and appropriate Services. Delivery of such
Services must include, but is not limited to the following tasks, all of which
must be documented in the Individual’s clinical record:

i. Address co-occurring disorders, including gambling, in program
policies and procedures, client assessment, treatment and planning,
program content, and transition or discharge planning;

ii. Gambling disorders will be assessed using OHA Problem Gambling
Services GBIRT SUD toolkit. Program will refer Individuals with
severe gambling disorder to community services during residential
care, and Individuals with moderate or mild gambling disorder to
community services during treatment or upon transition.

iii. Psychoeducational sessions to discuss gambling disorder and co-
addiction shall be provided. Toolkit for presentation materials can
be found at: https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx. For technical assistance and
training contact pgs.support(@odhsoha.oregon.gov.

iv. Address the interaction of the substance-related, gambling disorder
and mental health disorders in assessing each Individual’s history of
psychological trauma, readiness to change, relapse risk, and
recovery environment;

\' Arrange for, as needed, pharmacological monitoring and
psychological assessment and consultation, either on site or through
coordinated consultation off site;

vi. The provider’s policies and procedures shall prohibit titration of any
prescribed medications, including prescribed medications for the
treatment of opioid dependence as a condition of receiving or
continuing to receive treatment.

vii.  In addition to all applicable statutory and constitutional rights, every
individual receiving services has the right to receive medication
specific to the individual’s diagnosed clinical needs, including
medications used to treat opioid dependence.

PO-44300-0026012/lab Page 13 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

46



viii.  Involve the family or significant others of the Individual in the
treatment process;

ix. Obtain clinically appropriate family or significant other involvement
and participation in all phases of assessment, treatment planning,
and treatment;

X. Use treatment methods, appropriate for Individuals with significant
emotional disorders, that are based on sound clinicat theory and
professional standards of care; and

Xi. Plan the transition from residential to community-based Services
and supports that are most likely to lead to successful clinical
outcomes for each Individual. This includes scheduling a face-to-
face meeting between the Individual and the community-based
outpatient provider within seven (7) days of discharge from the
residential program.

(d) Quality of Services provided under this Agreement will be measured in
accordance with the following criteria:

i Engagement: Engagement will be measured by reviewing the
number of MOTS enrolled Individuals in treatment; and

ii. Improvement in Life Circumstances: Improvement in life
circumstances will be measured by the number of Individuals
participating in court programs (if applicable), enrolled in school or
obtaining a GED, obtaining employment, returned to the
community, and obtaining secured housing accommodations.

3 Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

4) Special Reporting Requirements
None

5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(1).

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 14 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

47



c. Service Name: SUPPORTED CAPACITY FOR DEPENDENT CHILDREN

WHOSE PARENTS ARE IN ADULT SUBSTANCE USE
DISORDER RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT

Service ID Code: A&D 62

(1)

)

3

4)

P0O-44300-0026012/lob

Service Description

Supported Capacity for Dependent Children Whose Parents are in Adult Substance
Use Disorder Residential Treatment (A&D 62) is housing services (room and
board) delivered to Individuals who are dependent children age 18 and younger, of
parent(s) who reside in substance use disorder residential treatment facilities, so the
child(ren) may reside with their parent in the same substance use disorder
residential treatment facility. The parent who is participating in residential
treatment may or may not be a custodial parent during part or all of the treatment
episode. The Department of Human Services, Child Welfare may have legal
custody of the child(ren) but grant formal permission for the child(ren) to be placed
with the parent during treatment and to reside in one of the dependent room and
board placements.

Performance Requirements

Providers of A&D 62 Services funded through this Agreement must comply with
OAR 309-018-0100 through 309-018-0180, as such rules may be revised from time
to time. Providers of A&D 62 Services funded through this Agreement must also
have a current license issued by OHA in accordance with OAR 415-012-0000
through 415-012-0090, as such rules may be revised from time to time, and
participate in outcome studies conducted by OHA.

Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, 10., “Reporting Requirement for MOTS.”

Special Reporting Requirements

(a) Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA.
Forms are located at
http.//www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-

Requirements.aspx.

(b)  County shall prepare and electronically submit to
hsd.contractsi@iodhsoha.oregon.gov written quarterly summary reports on
the delivery of A&D 62 Services, no later than the due dates listed below
following the end of each subject quarter for which financial assistance is
awarded through this Agreement.

Reporting period Reporting due dates
July — September due October 21st
October — December due January 21st
lanuary - March due April 21st

April — June due July 21st

Page 15 0f 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

48



B

P0O-44300-0026012/lob

(c) Each report shall provide the following information:

i. Number of parents and children residing in the substance use
disorder residential treatment facilities, including length of stay; and
ii. If the parent of dependent child(ren) are TANF eligible.

Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.£.(2).

Page 16 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

49



d. Service Name: PEER DELIVERED SERVICES
Service ID Code: A&D 63

(1) Service Description

For the purpose of A&D 63 Peer Delivered Services (A&D 63 Services),
“Recovery Center,” “Facilitating Center,” “Peer Delivered Services,” and “Peer
Support Specialist” shall have the following meanings:

(a) Recovery Centers are comprised of and led by people in recovery from
Substance Use Disorders (as defined in OAR 309-019-0105(153)). The
Recovery Centers maintain a structured daily schedule of activities where
Peer Delivered Services may be delivered. Recovery Centers serve as
recovery resources for the local community.

(b)  Facilitating Centers provide ongoing technical assistance and training for
Recovery Centers and the community. Facilitating Centers provide
resources and support for developing, expanding, and sustaining Recovery
Centers. People in recovery must be involved in every aspect of program
design and implementation.

(c) Peer Delivered Services means an array of agency or community-based
services and supports provided by peers, Peer Support Specialists, and Peer
Wellness Specialists to Individuals or family members with similar lived
experience. These services are intended to support the needs of Individuals
and families, as applicable, as they progress through various stages in their
recovery from Substance Use Disorders. Peer Delivered Services include,
but are not limited to, the following:

i. Emotional support. Emotional support refers to demonstrations of
empathy, caring, and concern that enhance self-esteem and
confidence. Peer mentoring, peer coaching, and peer-led support
groups are examples of peer-to-peer recovery services that provide
emotional support.

ii. Informational support. Informational support refers to sharing
knowledge, information and skills. Peer-led life skills training, job
skills training, educational assistance, and health and wellness
information are examples of informational support.

jii. [nstrumental support. Instrumental support includes modeling and
peer-assisted daily-life tasks that people with Substance Use
Disorders may lack. Examples of instrumental support include
getting to support groups, accessing childcare, completing job
applications, locating alcohol and drug-free housing, and obtaining
vocational, educational, and navigating health and social service
programs.

iv. Affiliational support. Affiliational support facilitates contact with
other people to promote learning of social and recreational skills,
create a community, and acquire a sense of belonging. Examples of
affiliational support include introduction to Recovery Centers,
alcohol and drug-free socialization opportunities, and exploring
activities.

P0-44300-0026012/10b Page 17 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

50



V. Family support. Family support includes educational, informational,
and affiliational services for family members with relatives (as
identified by the family) who are in recovery from Substance Use
Disorders. These services are designed to help families develop and
maintain positive relationships, improve family functioning, increase
understanding of recovery processes, and build connections among
family members for mutual support.

vi. Peer Support Specialists are individuals as defined in OAR 309-
019-0105(86), as such rules may be revised from time to time. Peer

Support Specialists must comply with all requirements in
accordance with OAR 410-180-0300 through 410-180-0380.

(d)  Population to be served, Eligible population, or Participants: Individuals
with Substance Use Disorders and who are seeking recovery are the target
population.

(2) Performance Requirements

County shall use the financial assistance awarded for A&D 63 Services through this
Agreement to provide Peer Delivered Services in a manner that benefits the
Population to be served. The Peer Delivered Services must be delivered at
Recovery Centers, agencies, or in communities, by Peer Support Specialists or Peer
Wellness Specialists.

To the satisfaction of OHA, County shall require that Peer Delivered Services are:

(a) Delivered by Peer Support Specialists and Peer Wellness Specialists who
continuously adhere to the Standards of Professional Conduct in OAR 410-
180-0340;

(b)  Delivered by Peer Support Specialists and Peer Wellness Specialists who
are jointly supervised by clinical staff with documented training and
experience with Peer Delivered Services and a certified Peer Support
Specialist or Peer Wellness Specialist;

(c) Delivered in accordance with a plan developed with or by the Individual
receiving Services;

(d) Documented and regularly reviewed by the Individual receiving Services;
and

(e) Documented either in MOTS or MMIS or comparably reported.

Providers employing Peer Support Specialists and Peer Wellness Specialists must
develop and implement quality assurance processes to improve the quality of Peer
Delivered Services supported by funds provided through this Agreement. OHA
may recommend additional actions to improve quality.

P(O-44300-0026012/10b Page 18 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

51



3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, 10., “Reporting Requirement for MOTS.”

(4) Special Reporting Requirements

Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms
are located at http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

(a) Within 30 calendar days of the County providing A&D 63 Services, County
shall prepare and electronically submit a written entry baseline assessment
report to hsd.contractsi@ odhsoha.oregon.gov.

(b)  County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly summary reports on
the delivery of A&D 63 Services, no later than 45 calendar days following
the end of each subject quarter for which financial assistance is awarded
through this Agreement.

(c) Each report shall provide the following information:

i. The amount of financial assistance spent on A&D 63 Services as of
the end of the reporting period;

ii. Number of Individuals served by Peer Support Specialist(s),
categorized by age, gender, and ethnicity;

iii. Breakdown of Service received;

iv. Number of Individuals who acquired a safe, permanent, alcohol and

drug free place to live in the community during Service
participation,

\'A Number of Individuals who gained employment or engaged in
productive educational or vocational activities during Service
participation;

vi. Number of Individuals who remained crime-free during Service
participation; and

vii.  Number of Individuals served who are being retained from the
previous quarter.

(5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 19 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

52



e. Service Name: HOUSING ASSISTANCE
Service 1D Code: A&D 64

(1)  Service Description

Housing Assistance Services assist Individuats, who are in recovery from
Substance Use Disorders, in locating and paying for housing that supports that
recovery. Individuals who receive assistance may be living with other family
members (e.g., where a parent is re-assuming custody of one or more children).

All Individuals receiving A&D 64 Services funded through this Agreement must
reside in County, be in recovery from Substance Use Disorders, have been
previously homeless or at risk of homelessness, and be participating in a verifiable
program of recovery. OHA will not provide financial assistance for A&D 64
Services under this Agreement and any succeeding Agreement for more than 24
consecutive months for any particular Individual, unless approved in advance by
OHA in writing.

2) Performance Requirements
Housing Assistance Services include:

(a) Rental Assistance in the form of cash payments, made on behalf of
Individuals recovering from Substance Use Disorders, to cover all or a
portion of the monthly rent and utilities for housing.

(b) Housing Coordination Services in the form of staff support to assist
Individuals recovering from Substance Use Disorders in locating and
securing suitable housing, and referrals to other resources.

(c) Residential Costs to pay for move-in and barrier removal costs not to exceed
20% of total funds awarded to support securing and maintaining housing
such as payment of rental deposits and fees; moving and storage costs;
furnishing, supplies and equipment; payment of past due utility bills and
securing a credit report. These must be one-time payments only; no on-
going expenses. Housing expenses not eligible are permanent improvements
to a building except for minor remodeling to improve accessibility. Barrier
removal expenses not eligible are any payments made that do not advance
the effort to secure rental housing.

(d)  Utilization requirements for A&D 64 will be identified in a special
condition, subject to funds awarded in a particular line of the Financial
Assistance Award.

(e) No funds shall be paid directly to individuals benefiting from A&D 64
Services.

(3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, 10., “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

4) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly summary reports on the
delivery of A&D 64 Services no later than 45 calendar days following the end of
each subject quarter for which financial assistance is awarded through this

P0O-44300-00260]2/lob Page 20 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

53



Agreement. Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by
OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

Each report shall provide the following information:

(a) Information and data as required on the OHA-provided reporting template;

(b)  For financial settlement purposes, the total amount expended during the
subject quarter for the following:

i. Amount expended for Housing Coordination and supports
including staff positions.

i, Amount expended for Administration.

iii. Amount expended for Residential Costs including move-in and
barrier removal expenses .

iv. Amount expended for Rental Assistance.

() All required reports submitted must be complete and accurate to the
satisfaction of OHA. If a report is found to be incomplete or not accurate, it
will be returned for correction and resubmission. Failure to submit complete
and accurate reports could result in the withholding of future payment of
Financial Assistance.

5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob Page 21 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

54



f. Service Name:

COMMUNITY BEHAVIORAL AND SUBSTANCE USE
DISORDER SERVICES

Service 1D Code: A&D 66

)

P0-44300-0026012/1cb

Service Description

@)

(b)

(©)

Community Behavioral and Substance Use Disorder Services (A&D 66
Services) are Services delivered to youth and adults with Substance Use
Disorders or to youth and adults with co-occurring substance use and mental
health disorders. These Services shall be provided to Individuals who are
not eligible for the Oregon Health Plan (OHP) or who otherwise do not have
a benefit that covers the A&D 66 Services described in this Service
Description.

The purpose of A&D 66 Services is to build upon resilience, assist
Individuals to make healthier lifestyle choices, and to promote recovery
from Substance Use Disorders. A&D 66 Services consist of outreach (case
finding), early identification and screening, assessment and diagnosis,
initiation and engagement, therapeutic interventions, continuity of care,
recovery management, and Interim Services.

It is required that pregnant women receive Interim Services within 48 hours
afier being placed on a waitlist. At a minimum, 45 CFR §96.121 requires
that Interim Services include the following:

i Counseling and education about HIV and tuberculosis (TB);
iil. Risks of sharing needles;

iiii. Risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants;

iv. Steps to ensure that HIV and TB transmission does not occur;
v, Referral for HIV or TB treatment services, if necessary;

vi. Counseling on the effects of alcohol and drug use on the fetus; and
vii,  Referral for prenatal care.

A&D 66 Services must be evidence-based or promising practices. Services
may be reduced commensurate with reductions in funding by OHA. County
shall provide the following Services, subject to availability of funds:

i. Qutreach (case finding), early identification and screening,
assessment and diagnosis. and education:

A. Qutreach: Partner with healthcare Providers and other social
service partners who provide screening for the presence of
behavioral health conditions to facilitate access to
appropriate Services.

B. Early Identification and Screening: Conduct periodic and
systematic screening that identify Individuals with

behavioral health conditions and potential physical health
consequences of behavioral health conditions which consider
epidemiological and community factors, as identified in the

Page 22 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

55



C.

Local Plan or Regional Health Improvement Plan (RHIP) as
applicable.

Assessment and Diagnosis: Perform multidimensional,
biopsychosocial assessments as appropriate based on OAR
309-018-0140 to guide person-centered services and supports
planning for behavioral health and co-existing physical

health conditions. Identify Individuals who need intensive
care coordination. Use the following standardized protocols
and tools to identify the level of Service need and intensity of
care and coordination, addressing salient characteristics such
as age, culture, and language:

I American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM)
for Individuals receiving Substance Use Disorder
Services.

I1. Level of Care Utilization System (LOCUS) for adults
transitioning between the state hospitals, licensed
mental health residential services, and Intensive
Community Services. “Intensive Community
Services” are defined as assertive community
treatment, intensive case management, and supported
or supportive housing.

ITII.  Level of Service Intensity Determination for children
including use of Child and Adolescent Service
Intensity Instrument (CASII) and Early Childhood
Service Intensity Instrument (ECSII) for children
receiving services with “Intensive Qutpatient
Services and Supports” or “Intensive Treatment
Services,” as defined in OAR 309-022-0105(45) and
309-022-0105(46), respectively.

Education: Partner with other community groups and
organizations, including but not limited to schools,
community corrections, and other related organizations, to
perform education and outreach to potentially at-risk
populations for alcohol and drug abuse in order to educate
those groups around substance abuse treatment and recovery
topics tailored to the individual groups’ needs, in order to
educate the broader community on these issues as well as
begin the process of promoting potential initiation and
engagement in treatment Services within these populations.

ii. Initiation and Engagement: Promote initiation and engagement of
Individuals receiving Services and supports, which may include but
are not limited to:

A.

B.

P0-44300-0026012/lob

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Brief motivational counseling;

Supportive Services to facilitate participation in ongoing
treatment; and

Page 23 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

56



C.

Withdrawal management for Substance Use Disorders and
supportive pharmacotherapy to manage symptoms and
adverse consequences of withdrawal following assessment.

iii. Therapeutic Interventions:
General community-based Services, which may include:

A.

™

E.

Condition management and a whole person approach to
single or multiple chronic conditions based on goals and
needs identified by the Individual;

General outpatient Services;

Medication management for:

I.

I

Mental health disorders (when providing Services for
Individuals with co-occurring mental and Substance
Use Disorders).

Substance Use Disorders:

(A)  Includes pharmacotherapy for adults
diagnosed with opioid dependence, alcohol
dependence, or nicotine dependence and
without medical contraindications. Publicly
funded programs will not discriminate in
providing access to Services for Individuals
using medications to treat and manage
addictions.

(B)  Pharmacotherapy, if prescribed, should be
provided in addition to and directly linked
with psychosocial treatment and support.

Detoxification for Individuals with Substance Use Disorders
under OAR 415-050-0000 through 415-050-0095.
Supportive pharmacotherapy may be provided to manage the
symptoms and adverse consequences of withdrawal, based
on a systematic assessment of symptoms and risk of serious
adverse consequences related to the withdrawal process; and

Meaningful Individual and family involvement.

iv, Continuity of Care and Recovery Management:

A,

P0O-44300-0026012/lob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Continuity of care Services includes:

L

IL.

I11.

Coordinate and facilitate access to appropriate
housing Services and community supports in the
Individual’s community of choice;

Facilitate access to appropriate levels of care and
coordinate management of Services and supports
based on an Individual’s needs in their community of
choice;

Facilitate access to Services and supports provided in
the community and Individual’s home designed to

Page 24 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

57



assist children and adults with Substance Use
Disorders whose ability to function in the community
is limited and for whom there is significant risk of
higher level of care needed; and

IV.  Coordinate with other agencies to provide intensive
care coordination sufficient to help Individuals
prevent placement in a more restrictive level of care
and to be successfully served in their community of

choice.
B. Recovery Management Services includes:
I. Continuous case management;
IL. Monitoring of conditions and ongoing recovery and

stabilization;

III.  Individual and family engagement, including
provision of childcare for parents actively involved in
any of these treatment, education, outreach, or
recovery support Services; and

IV.  Transition planning that addresses the Individual’s
needs and goals.

(2) Performance Requirements

(a) A Provider delivering A&D 66 Services with financial assistance awarded
through this Agreement may not use funds to deliver covered Services to
any Individual enrolled in the Oregon Health Plan.

(b)  The quality of A&D 66 Services supported with financial assistance through
this Agreement will be measured in accordance with the criteria set forth
below. These criteria are applied on a countywide basis each calendar
quarter (or portion thereof) during the period for which financial assistance
is awarded through this Agreement. County shall develop and implement
quality assurance and quality improvement processes to improve
progressively, as measured by the criteria set forth below, the quality of
Services supported with financial assistance awarded through this
Agreement. OHA may assign performance payments to some or all of these
standards and measures and may recommend additional actions to improve
quality.

i. Access: Access is measured by OHA as the percentage of residents
estimated by OHA surveys to need treatment who are enrolled in
A&D 66 Services.

ii. Treatment Service Initiation: Treatment service initiation is
measured as the percentage of Individuals served within 14 calendar
days of their original assessment, also known as the index date. The
index date is a start date with no Services in the prior 60-calendar
days.

iii. Utilization: Utilization requirements for Individuals receiving
continuum of care services (non-detox) will be identified in a

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 25 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

58



iv.

V.

vi.

vii.

sns
ViIl.

ix,

xi.

P0O-44300-002601210b

Special Condition, subject to a particular line in Exhibit C,
“Financial Assistance Award.”

Engagement: Engagement is measured by OHA as the percentage
of Individuals receiving A&D 66 Services under this Agreement
who enter treatment following positive assessment.

Treatment Service Retention: Treatment Service retention is
measured by OHA as the percentage of Individuals receiving A&D
66 Services under this Agreement who are actively engaged in
treatment for 90 consecutive calendar days or more.

Reduced Use: Reduced use is measured by OHA as the percentage
of Individuals engaged in and receiving A&D 66 Services under this
Agreement who reduce their use of alcohol or other drugs during
treatment, as reported in the MOTS data system, upon planned
interruption in Services or 90 calendar day retention, whichever
comes first.

Completion: Completion is measured as the percentage of
Individuals engaged in and receiving A&D 66 Services under this
Agreement who complete two thirds of their treatment plan and are
engaged in recovery support or services at the time treatment
Services are terminated. Providers of A&D 66 Services funded
through this Agreement must participate in client outcome studies
conducted by OHA.

Facility-Based Care Follow-Up: Facility-based care follow-up is
measured by the percentage of Individuals with a follow-up visit
completed within 7 calendar days after: (A) hospitalization for
mental illness; or (B) any facility-based Service defined as
residential.

Hospital and Facility-Based Readmission rates: Hospital and
facility-based readmission rates are measured by the number of
Individuals returning to the same or higher levels of care within 30
and 180 calendar days against the total number of discharges.

Parent-Child Reunification: Parent-child reunification is measured
by the number of parents reunited with their child (or multiple
children) against the number of parents served who have children in
an out-of-home placement or foster care due to the Department of
Human Service, Child Welfare Program’s involvement.

Functional Outcomes - Housing Status; Employment Status;
School Performance; Criminal Justice Involvement: The 4
functional outcome measures that will be monitored by OHA and
reported to the County are as follows:

A. Housing Status: If improved housing status is a goal of
treatment or an Individual is homeless or in a licensed care
facility, this measure will be monitored. This measure is
defined as the number of Individuals who improve housing
status as indicated by a change from homelessness or

Page 26 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DQJ Approval 12/21/2023

59



licensed facility-based care to private housing against the
total number of Individuals with a goal to improve housing.

B. Employment Status: If employment is a goal of treatment,
this measure will be monitored. This measure is defined as
the number of Individuals who become employed, as
indicated by a change in employment status, against the
number of Individuals with a goal of becoming employed.

C. School Performance: If school attendance is a goal of
treatment, this measure will be monitored. The measure is
defined as the number of Individuals who improve
attendance in school while in active treatment against the
total number of Individuals with a goal of improved
attendance in school.

D. Criminal Justice Involvement: This measure will be
monitored by OHA for Individuals referred for Services by
the justice system. The measure is defined as the number of
Individuals who were not arrested after | day or more of
active treatment or 2 consecutive quarters (whichever comes
first) against the total number of Individuals referred for
Services by the justice system.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

4) Special Reporting Requirements

(a) Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA.
Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Reguirements.aspx.

(b)  County shall prepare and electronically submit to
hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov written annual summary reports on the
delivery of A&D 66 Services, no later than 45 calendar days following the
end of each subject year for which financial assistance is awarded through
this Agreement.

(c) Each report shall provide the following information:

Description of the delivery of A&D 66 Services provided to Individuals
who are not enrolled in MOTS at the time of their participation in
Prevention, Education, or Outreach Service delivery, as described in this
Service Description. Cases without evidence of treatment engagement in the
clinical record do not count toward the Service delivery requirement, except
as listed above for Prevention, Education, and Outreach,

(5) Payment Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”
Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.f.(1).

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 27 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

60



g. Service Name: SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER RESIDENTIAL & DAY

TREATMENT CAPACITY

Service |D Code: A&D 67

o

@

3)

4

)

PO-44300-0026012/10b

Service Description

Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential and Day Treatment Capacity (A&D 67)
is for housing/lodging services for indigent, underfunded, or Medicaid-eligible
Individuals who are enrolled in SUD adult or youth residential services or day
treatment services where housing/lodging services are provided. A&D 67 Services
provide a structured environment for an Individual on a 24-hour basis consistent
with Level I1 and Level III of the American Society of Addiction Medicine
(ASAM) patient placement criteria and transfer and continuity of care set forth in
OAR 309-018-0135 through 309-018-0155 and 309-019-0135 through 309-019-
0140, as such rules may be revised from time to time, are appropriate to the
Individual’s needs and include housing and food services.

Housing/lodging services must include;

(a) Bed with a frame and clean mattress;

(b) Pillow(s);

(c) Linens; sheets, pillowcases, and blankets;

(d) Bath towel and wash cloth;

(e) Private dresser or similar storage area for personal belongings;

(f) Meals: at least three meals must be provided daily in adequate amounts for
each resident at each meal, as well as two snacks daily (may be subsidized
with SNAP benefits);

(g Laundry services at least weekly for personal clothing, linens, bath towel,
and wash cloth; and

(h) Rent/Utilities (no additional charges to Individual while in treatment).

Performance Requirements

Providers of A&D 67 Services paid through this Contract must comply with OAR
309-018-0100 through 309-018-0215 and OAR 309-019-0100 through 309-019-
0220, as such rules may be revised from time to time. Providers of A&D 67
Services paid through this Contract must also have a current approval or license
issued by OHA in accordance with OAR 415-012-0000 through 415-012-0090 and
must participate in client outcome studies conducted by OHA.

Reporting Requirements

See Exhibit E, 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

Special Reporting Requirements
None

Payment Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of Performance and
Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

Page 28 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

61



h. Service Name: PROBLEM GAMBLING PREVENTION SERVICES
Service ID Code: A&D 80

(1) Service Description

(a) Problem Gambling Prevention Services (A&D 80 Services) are designed to
meet the following objectives:

i. Education aimed at increasing general public awareness of Problem
Gambling that includes all populations of the general public; and

i, Prevent Problem Gambling.

(b)  The goals and outcomes for County’s A&D 80 Services must be described
in County’s OHA approved Problem Gambling Prevention Implementation
Plan, using the form located at: https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx, and submitted electronically to OHA at:
hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov. County’s A&D 80 Services will be
monitored and evaluated on the basis of the County’s effectiveness in
achieving the goals and outcomes identified in the County’s OHA approved
Problem Gambling Prevention Implementation Plan and through the
Problem Gambling Prevention Data Collection System at:
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-

Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx/.
2) Performance Requirements

(a) County shall designate a problem gambling prevention coordinator, who is
qualified by virtue of knowledge, training, experience and skills, that shall
be responsible for:

i. Implementation plan development, utilizing a comprehensive
planning framework for addressing awareness of problem gambling
and prevention education. Plans must reflect the requirements within
the Problem Gambling Tier Level Funding Performance Standards
located at: https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx/. Planning frameworks shall
demonstrate the following: community assessment of current status
of the problem, desired outcome, strategic plan to meet outcome,
and evaluation plan;

ii. Continuously conducting a community assessment every five years
(FY2025-26) and utilizing County’s community assessment results
to identify trackable outcome measurements within Implementation
Plan;

iii. Implementation of problem gambling prevention activities each
quarter related to identified goals within Implementation Plan,
unless preauthorized by OHA Problem Gambling Prevention
Services Specialist;

iv. Monitoring, implementation, evaluation and oversite of the Problem
Gambling Prevention Implementation Plan in accordance with the
“Special Reporting Requirements” section below and submitting
electronically to OHA through the Problem Gambling Prevention

P(O-44300-0026012/lob Page 29 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval (2/21/2023

62



Quarterly Data Reporting Collection System at
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx/;

V. Preparation of reports, as described in the “Special Reporting
Requirements” section below;

vi. Oversight and coordination of A&D 80 Services, activities, and
programs provided in the County;

vii.  Completion of Problem Gambling Prevention Coordinator Training
Series requirements within six months from the date of hire or
designation as coordinator. The Problem Gambling Prevention
Coordinator Training Series requirements are located at
https://www.oregon.gov/cha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx/;

viii. Attending a minimum of 8 hours of OHA Problem Gambling
Services approved trainings per calendar year, separate from the
Problem Gambling Prevention Coordinator Training Series
referenced above;

ix. Development and adoption of a comprehensive written policy, on
gambling in the workplace; and

X. Participating in a minimum of one Technical Assistance/Program
Development visit in a three year period. Technical Assistance Visit
Toolkit and Schedule located at:
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx/.
(b)  County shall designate a Problem Gambling Prevention Supervisor, who is

qualified by virtue of knowledge, training, experience and skills, that shall
be responsible for:

i. Completion of the Problem Gambling Prevention Supervisor
Training within 3 months from date of designation as problem
gambling prevention supervisor.

il The Problem Gambling Prevention Supervisor Training
requirements are located at:
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx/.

{c) The financial assistance awarded to County for A&D 80 Services in the
subsequent contracting period will, in part, depend upon achievement of the
goals and outcomes set forth in the County’s Problem Gambling Prevention
Implementation Plan. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the
provisions of the County’s Problem Gambling Prevention Implementation
Plan and provisions of this Service Description, the provisions of this
Service Description shall control.

(d) Providers of A&D 80 Services must implement A&D 80 Services funded
through this Agreement in accordance with the County’s current Problem
Gambling Prevention Implementation Plan.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 30 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

63



3) Reporting Requirements
None

“4) Special Reporting Requirements

(a) All A&D 80 Services provided by County under this Agreement must be
reported and submitted electronically to OHA on a quarterly basis through
the Oregon Problem Gambling Prevention Quarterly Data Reporting
Collection System, located at https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Prevention.aspx no later than 45 calendar days following
the end of each quarter with respect to Services provided in the prior
quarter.

(b)  County shall notify OHA Problem Gambling staff, at
pes.support(@odhsoha.oregon.gov, within 10 business days of any changes
related to designated Problem Gambling A&D 80 Services.

%) Fi ial Assi Calculation, Disk { Confi . [
Perf | R ing Requi P |
County shall not expense greater than 6 percent of total allocation for
administrative overhead and indirect cost.

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.f.(2).

PO-44300-002601 2/1ob Page 31 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

64



i Service Name: PROBLEM GAMBLING TREATMENT SERVICES
Service ID Code: A&D 81

(1) Service Description

For purposes of this A&D 81 Service Description, an Individual must have one of
the diagnoses listed below in order to obtain services and the diagnosis must be
primary or secondary.

(a) A diagnosis of Gambling Disorder, defined as an Individual with persistent
and recurrent problematic gambling behavior leading to significant
impairment or distress, as indicated by the Individual exhibiting one or
more diagnostic criteria of the most current version of the Diagnostic and
Statistical Manual for Mental Disorders; or

(b) A diagnosis of Other Specific Disruptive, Impulse Control and Conduct
Disorder, as an Individual with clinically significant distress or impairment
in social, occupational, or other important area of functioning. This
diagnosis in terms of Problem Gambling Treatment Services and
reimbursement for these services should be used for clients who present
with an Internet Gaming Disorder; or

(c) A diagnosis of relationship distress with spouse or intimate partner; a
diagnosis of relational problems or problems related to psychosocial
circumstances; or diagnosis of stressful life events affecting family and
household.

(2) Performance Requirements

(a) County shall maintain Certification, as provided under OAR 309-008-0100
through 309-008-1600 “Certification of Behavioral Health Treatment
Services,” for all levels of outpatient treatment in accordance with OAR
309-019-0100 through 309-019-0220 “Outpatient Behavioral Health
Services,” as such rules may be revised from time to time.

(b)  County shall meet the performance requirements, which are imposed and
assessed on an individual County basis, listed below. If OHA determines
that a Provider of A&D 81 Services fails to meet any of the performance
requirements, the specific performance requirements that are out of
compliance will be reviewed at a specifically scheduled performance
requirement site review or OHA may reduce the monthly allotments based
on under-used allotments identified through the OHA PG Net data
collection system or other required reports in accordance with the “Special
Reporting Requirements” section below.

The performance requirements for A&D 81 Services are as follows:

i. Access: The amount of time between an Individual requesting A&D
81 Services and the first offered service appointment must be 5
business days or less for at least [90%] of all Individuals receiving
A&D 81 Services funded through this Agreement.

ii. Client Satisfaction: The percent of Individuals receiving A&D 81
Services who have consented and completed a satisfaction survey
and would positively recommend the Provider to others must not be

P0-44300-0026012/ob Page 32 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

65



iii.

iv.

vi.

less than [85%.] Satisfaction surveys must be completed by no less
than [50%]of total enrollments for those that have consented to the
survey.

Long-term Outcome: At the 6-month follow up for Individuals
completing treatment, a minimum of [50%] must report abstinence
or reduced gambling.

Retention: The percent of Individuals receiving A&D 81 Services
who actively engage in treatment for at least 10 clinical sessions
must be at least [40%].

Successful Completion: The percent of all Individuals receiving
A&D 81 Services who successfully complete treatment must be at
least [35%)] (unadjusted rate). Successful completion of problem
gambling treatment is defined as Individuals who have: (a) achieved
at least [75%] of short-term treatment goals; (b) completed a
continued wellness plan (i.e., relapse prevention plan); and (c) lack
of engagement in problem gambling behaviors for at least [30]
consecutive days prior to successful completion of A&D 81
Services.

Admission Survey Completion: The percent of Individuals
receiving A&D 81 Services who consent and complete an admission
survey must not be less than [95%.]

{c) Technical Assistance and Program Development

i.

iii.

v.

P0-44300-0026012/10b

County shall participate in a minimum of one Technical
Assistance/Program Development visit in a three year period.
Schedule of visit, located at:
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-

Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx.

County shall collaborate with OHA PGS staff in developing and
implementing a Program Development Plan based on feedback from
the Technical Assistance and Program Development visit. Plan
template can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx. Plan must be on file with OHA
PGS staff. Process/procedure and reporting guidelines for Technical
Assistance and Program Development visit is located at:
htips://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-

Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx.

County shall participate in semi-annual connection review with
OHA. These reviews will be completed via conference call, webinar
or in person with the use of a structured form that can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/cha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx.

County shall provide problem gambling in-reach efforts within their
A&D 81 Service organization. This should include training to
clinical staff on engagement, education, screening, identification and
referrals to A&D 81 Services using the Gambling Screening, Brief

Page 33 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

66



Intervention, and Referral to Treatment (GBIRT) toolkit and type
model, which can be found at:
https:/'www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx.

\2 Persons providing A&D 81 Services, prior to working with an
individual with problematic gambling must complete the “Problem
Gambling for Social Service Professionals” training series, Modules
One through Three within six months of agency assignment to
problem gambling client services. Information on the training series
can be found at: https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-

Gambling/Pages/Workforce.aspx.

vi. County shall complete a Oregon Problem Gambling Counselor
Competency Evaluation and submit to OHA approved portal. This
evaluation shall be completed on each Program’s gambling clinician
at a minimum of once every odd numbered year. Information
provided to OHA will be anonymous and assist with determining
needs within the workforce to be addressed. Evaluation tool can be
found at: https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-

Gambling/Pages/Workforce.aspx.

vii.  A&D 81 Services are limited to [12] months per Individual for an
active treatment episode. This Service limitation will count [12]
consecutive months, starting with the Individual’s enrollment date.
Individuals must have been out of active treatment service for a
minimum of [90] consecutive days prior to any re-enrollment in the
state system.

County may request an extension of the [12] month Service
limitation by submitting a Length of Stay Extension request in the
OHA PG Net data collection system located at:
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-Gambling/Pages/PG-

Net.aspx.

Continuing care or aftercare service is limited to [12] months per
Individual and provided upon successful completion of gambling
treatment Services. This Service limitation will continue [12]

consecutive months starting with the Individual’s discharge date.

(d)  Problem Gambling Treatment Services {A&D 81 Services) are as follows:

i. Outpatient A&D 81 Services provide problem gambling assessment,
treatment, rehabilitation and peer support services, delivered on an
outpatient basis or intensive outpatient basis to Individuals and those
in relationships with Individuals with gambling related problems
who are not in need of 24-hour supervision for effective treatment.
Outpatient A&D 81 Services must include regularly scheduled face-
to-face or non-face-to-face therapeutic sessions or services, in
response to crisis for the Individual, and may include individual,
group, couple, family counseling, and peer support.

ii. “Session” or “treatment session” means A&D 81 Services delivered
in individual, couple, family, group or peer support modalities.

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 34 0of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

67



Treatment sessions must be reported by type (e.g., individual,
couple, family, or group) and length (time).

jii. In reach activities: Treatment-specific efforts that engage, educate
and assist behavioral health programs with screening, identification
and referral to A&D 81 Services.

iv, A&D 81 Services are to be made available to any Oregon resident
with a Gambling Disorder, problematic gambling, or diagnosis of
relational problem as defined above. A&D 81 Services to out-of-
state residents are permissible if the presenting Gambling Disorder
or relational problem diagnoses are reported as primarily related to
an Oregon Lottery product or Oregon Indian Gaming Center.

3) Reporting Requirements
None

(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

County shall notify OHA Problem Gambling staff within 10 business days of any
changes related to designated Problem Gambling A&D 81 Services program staff.
Notification shall be sent to pgs.supportiaiodhsoha.oregon.gov.

County shall submit the following information to OHA regarding Individuals
receiving A&D 81 Services.. All Providers of A&D 81 Services shall comply with
OHA PG Net data collection system and manual located at
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-Gambling/Pages/PG-Net.aspx.

(a) Admission Data: The admission screen within the OHA PG Net data
collection system and admission survey must be collected and submitted
within [14] calendar days of the first treatment contact with an Individual.

(b)  Survey Consent Form: A completed consent form to participate in
admission survey, satisfaction survey and evaluation follow-up efforts must
be administered and collected via the OHA PG Net data collection system
Refusal to participate in surveys must be documented in the client file.

(c) Encounter Data Reporting Requirements: All Providers of A&D 81 Services
funded through this Agreement must submit Individual-level, Service
delivery activity (encounter data) within 30 calendar days following the end
of each month.

Encounter data must be submitted electronically utilizing the HIPAA
approved “837” format.

Prior to submitting data, each encounter claim must be documented in the
clinical record and must include the date of the encounter Service, type of
Service rendered, time of Service, length of Service, setting of Services,
personnel rendering Services (including their name, credentials and
signature), and a clinical note including a description of the session .

(d)  Discharge Data: Discharge data must be collected and submitted within [90]
calendar days after the last date of Service to an Individual.

8] Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, Confirmation of Performance
and Reporting Requirements, & Provider Audit Procedures

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 35 0of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

68



See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”
Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).
In addition:

(a) OHA will provide financial assistance for A&D 81 Services identified in a
particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” as specified in
the PGS Procedure Codes and Rates for Treatment Providers rate sheet,
located at https://www.oregon.gov/cha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx, as it may be revised from time to time.

(b) OHA will not make multiple financial assistance disbursements for a single
clinical activity, except for group therapy. For example, OHA will not
provide financial assistance for an individual treatment session for both an
Individual and his or her spouse when the treatment was delivered in a
single marital session with a single therapist.

() Providers of A&D 81 Services shall not charge Individuals whose Services
are paid through this Agreement any co-pay or other fees for such Services.

(d)  Provider Audits: Providers receiving funds under this Agreement, for A&D
81 Services, are subject to audits of all funds applicable to A&D 81
Services rendered. The purpose of these audits is to:

i. Require proper disbursements were made for covered A&D 81
Services;

ii. Recover over-payments;

iii. Discover any potential or actual instances of fraud and abuse; and

iv. Verify that encounter data submissions are documented in the client

file, as required and described in the “Special Reporting
Requirements” above.

Providers may be subject to OAR 407-120-1505 “Provider and Contractor
Audits, Appeals, and Post Payment Recovery,” and OAR 410-120-1510
“Fraud and Abuse,” as such rules may be revised from time to time.

(e) OHA’s obligation to provide assistance under this Agreement is subject to
the satisfaction of the County delivering the anticipated level of A&D 81
Services, upon which the allotments were calculated. If, for a period of 3
consecutive months during the term of this Agreement, County delivers less
than the anticipated level of Services, upon which allotments were
calculated in a particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,”
OHA may amend the amount of funds awarded for A&D 81 Services in
proportion to the under-utilization during that period, including but not
limited to reducing the amount of future funds awarded for A&D 81
Services in an amount equal to funds reduced under that line of the
Financial Assistance Award for under-utilization. An amendment shall be
prepared and executed between OHA and County to reflect this reduction.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 36 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23}) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

69



J- Service Name: PROBLEM GAMBLING RESPITE TREATMENT
SERVICES

Service ID Code: A&D 83

(1) Service Description

For purposes of this A&D 83 Service Description, an Individual with a Gambling
Disorder is an Individual with persistent and recurrent problematic gambling
behavior leading to clinically significant impairment or distress, as indicated by the
Individual meeting the diagnostic criteria of the most current version of the
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual for Mental Disorders. This diagnosis must be
primary or secondary.

Problem Gambling Respite Treatment Services (A&D 83 Services) are problem
gambling treatment Services designed to supplement Problem Gambling Treatment
Outpatient Services (A&D 81 Services). A&D 83 Services are to be delivered to
Individuals who have special needs in relation to A&D 81 Services, such as highly
suicidal Individuals or Individuals with co-occurring psychiatric conditions.

(a) The specific A&D 83 Services that may be delivered with funds provided
through this Agreement and directed at Individuals with problems related to
a gambling disorder are as follows:

i. Secure Residential Treatment Facility (1-14 day residential care at a
psychiatric health care facility): Providers of this Service must have
OHA approved, written policies and procedures for operating this
Service, hold licensure and comply with OAR 309-035-0100
through 309-035-0225, “Residential Treatment Facilities and
Residential Treatment Homes for Adults with Mental Health
Disorders™.

il Respite Care Service (1-14 day residential care at an alcohol and
drug treatment facility): Providers of this Service must have:

A. OHA approved, written policies and procedures for operating
this Service, hold licensure and comply with OAR 309-018-
0100 through 309-018-0215 “Residential Substance Use
Disorders and Problem Gambling Treatment and Recovery
Services;” and

B. A current license issued by the OHA in accordance with
OAR 415-012-0000 through 415-012-0090 “Licensure of
Substance Use Disorders and Problem Gambling Residential
Treatment and Recovery Services.”

Referral to A&D 83 Services is through an approved A&D 81
Problem Gambling Treatment Outpatient Service provider or
Emergency Department, with specific approval of the A&D 83
Service provider.

(b)  A&D 83 Services are to be made available to any Oregon resident with a
Gambling Disorder as defined above. A&D 83 Services provided to out-of-
state residents are permissible if the presenting Gambling Disorder is

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 37 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

70



reported as primarily related to an Oregon Lottery product or Oregon Indian
Gaming Center.

(c) Persons providing A&D 83 Services, prior to working with an individual
with problematic gambling must complete the “Problem Gambling Social
Service Professionals” training series, Modules One through Three within
six months of agency assignment to problem gambling client services.
Information on the training series can be found at:

https://www.oregon.govioha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Workforce.aspx.

2) Performance Requirements

County shall meet the performance requirements, which are imposed and assessed
on an individual County basis, listed below. If OHA determines that a Provider of
A&D 83 Services fails to meet any of the specified performance requirements, the
specific performance requirements out of compliance will then be reviewed at a
specifically scheduled performance standards site review or OHA may deny
invoiced payments based on insufficient data or performance requirements
identified through the OHA PG Net data collection system or other required reports
in accordance with the “Special Reporting Requirements” section below.

The performance requirements for A&D 83 Services are as follows:

(a) Access: The amount of time between an Individual with a Gambling
Disorder requesting A&D 83 Services and the first offered service
appointment must be 2 business days or less for at least 100% of all
Individuals receiving A&D 83 Services funded through this Agreement.

(b)  Successful Completion: The percent of all Individuals receiving A&D 83
Services who successfully complete treatment must be at least [100]%.
Successful completion of problem gambling treatment is defined as
Individuals who:

i. are stabilized, to safely return to the community, and have
established contact, including a scheduled appointment, with a
treatment professional in their local community for continuing care;
or

i, have been transferred to residential gambling treatment Services.

3) Reporting Requirements
None

4) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall notify OHA Problem Gambling staff within 10 business days of any
changes related to designated Problem Gambling A&D 83 Services program staff.
Notifications shall be sent to pgs.supportiodhsoha.oregon.gov.

County shall submit the following information to OHA regarding Individuals
receiving A&D 83 Services. All Providers of A&D 83 Services shall comply with
PG Net data collection system and manual, located at
htips://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-Gambling/Pages/PG-Net.aspx.

P0-44300-0026012/1ob Page 38 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

71



(a) Intake Data: The admission screen within PG Net must be completed and
submitted within 14 calendar days of the first treatment contact with an
Individual.

(b) Encounter Data Reporting Requirements: All Providers of A&D 83 Services
funded through this Agreement must submit Individual-level, Service
delivery activity (encounter data) within 30 calendar days following the end
of each month.

Encounter data must be submitted electronically utilizing the HIPAA
approved “837” format.

Prior to submitting data, each encounter claim, must be documented in the
clinical record and must include the date of the encounter Service, type of
Service delivered, time of Service, length of Service, setting of Service,
personnel rendering Service (including their name, credentials and
signature), and a clinical note including a description of the session.

(c) Discharge Data: Discharge data must be collected and submitted within 90
calendar days after the last date of Service to an Individual.

5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement and Settlement Requirements

County shall not expense greater than six (6) percent of total allocation for
administrative overhead and indirect cost.

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”
Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.f.(1)(a).
In addition:

(a) OHA will provide financial assistance for A&D 83 Services identified in a
particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” as specified in
the PGS Billing Codes and Rates for Treatment Providers rate sheet, located
at: https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx, as it may be revised from time to time.

(b)  Providers of A&D 83 Services funded through this Agreement shall not
charge Individuals, whose Services are paid through this Agreement, any
co-pay or other fees for such Services;

(c) Providers of A&D 83 Services funded through this Agreement shall not use
third party insurance. A&D 83 Services are to be a single payer source.

(d)  Provider Audits: Providers receiving funds under this Agreement, for
providing A&D 83 Services, are subject to audits of all funds applicable to
A&D 83 Services rendered. The purpose of these audits is to:

i. Require proper disbursements were made for covered A&D 83
Services;
il Recover Overexpenditures;

jii. Discover any potential or actual instances of fraud and abuse; and

iv. Verify that encounter data submissions are documented in the client
file, as required, and described in the “Special Reporting
Requirements” section above.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 39 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

72



(e) Providers of A&D 83 Services funded through this Agreement may be
subject to OAR 407-120-1505 “Provider and Contractor Audits, Appeals,
and Post Payment Recovery,” and OAR 410-120-0380 “Fraud and Abuse,”

as such rules may be revised from time to time.

Page 40 of 213

P0O-44300-0026012/1cb
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

73



k. Service Name: PROBLEM GAMBLING, CLIENT FINDING/REFERAL
PATHWAYS OUTREACH SERVICES

Service ID Code: A&D 84

(1) Service Description

(a) A&D 84 Services is defined as Specific Outreach with the primary purposes
of getting problem gamblers and/or family members enrolled in Problem
Gambling Outpatient Treatment Services (A&D 81 Services).

The specific A&D 84 Services that may be delivered with funds provided
under this Agreement are as follows:

i. Outreach aimed at increasing the number of Individuals receiving
outpatient treatment services;

ii. Targets a specific vulnerable population;

iii. Repeated contact and the development of a relationship with another
professional provider; and

iv. Increasing the number of Individuals that are referred to County or
sub-contractor and admitted to services in problem gambling
treatment programs.

(b)  A&D 84 - Services may be delivered by problem gambling treatment or
prevention professionals or subcontracted to community entities through an
organization specializing in problem gambling treatment and prevention.

(2) Performance Requirements

(a) County shall designate a Problem Gambling, Client Finding/Referral
Pathways Outreach specialist, who shall be responsible for:

i Development and implementation of Annual Problem Gambling,
Client Finding/Referral Pathway Outreach Strategic Plan.

ii. Overseeing and coordinating A&D 84 Services provided in the
County; and

iii. Preparing the quarterly reports as described in the “Special

Reporting Requirements” section below.

(b)  County shall provide problem gambling community outreach efforts to a
population in either phase 2, 3, or 4 defined within the OHA PGS GBIRT
and Referral Pathways Implementation Toolkit. Toolkit can be found at
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/Problem-
Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx. This should include training of
professionals on engagement, education, screening, identification and
referrals to A&D 81 Services using a Gambling Screening, Brief
Intervention, and Referral to Treatment (GBIRT) type model.

A3) Reporting Requirements
None

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob Page 41 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

74



4) Special Reporting Requirements

(a)  County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
pes.supporticiodhsoha.oregon.gov and hsd.contractsilodhsoha.oregon.gov,
written quarterly reports on the delivery of A&D 84 Services no later than
45 calendar days following the end of each subject quarter with respect to
Services provided in the prior quarter. Reports must be prepared using
forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
https://www.oregon.gov/cha/HSD/Problem-

Gambling/Pages/Treatment.aspx .
(b) Each report shall provide the following information:

i. Description of results in achieving the goals and outcomes set forth
in the Annual Problem Gambling, Client Finding/Referral Pathways
Outreach Strategic Plan.

ii. Description of the activities, appraisal of activities, and expenses
during the preceding quarter in providing A&D 84 Services.

(c) County shall notify OHA Problem Gambling staff within 10 business days
of any changes related to designated Problem Gambling A&D 84 Services
program staff, Notification shall be sent to
pes.supporti@odhsoha.oregon.gov.

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”
Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).
In addition:

(a)  County shall not expense greater than six (6) percent of total allocation for
administrative overhead and indirect cost.

(b) Providers of A&D 84 Services shall not charge Individuals whose Services
are paid through this Agreement any co-pay or other fees for such Services.

P(O-44300-002601 2/1ob Page 42 0of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTit 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

75



l. Service Name: SYSTEM MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION
Service ID Code: MHS 01

(1)  Service Description

The purpose of a Community Mental Health Program (CMHP) is to provide a
system of appropriate, accessible, coordinated, effective, efficient safety net
services for Individuals with a mental or emotional disturbance, with drug or
alcohol dependence or abuse issue, or gambling addiction problems and are within
the specific geographic area served by the County through this Agreement.

System Management and Coordination (MHS 01 Services) is the central
management of a Mental Health Services system for which financial assistance is
included in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” of this Agreement.

Eligibility for Services
County shall provide MHS 01 Services to Individuals:

(a) With a mental or emotional disturbance, drug or alcohol dependence or
abuse issue, or gambling addiction problems; and

(b)  Are eligible to receive Services within the specific geographic area served
by the County through this Agreement.
2) Performance Requirements
County shall:

(a) Establish and maintain a structure for meaningful system design and
oversight that includes involvement by Individuals and families across all
ages that have or are receiving Mental Health Services. System design and
oversight must include:

i. Planning for the delivery of Services;

ii. Implementation of the delivery of Services;

jii. Monitoring;

iv. Documentation of Service delivery in compliance with state and
federal requirements, including but not limited to the requirements
in ORS 430.634(2);

V. Contract and subcontract negotiation and monitoring;

vi. Coordination with state hospital Services;

vii.  Evaluation of Services and supports; and
viii, Involvement in activities that focus on:

A. Resource allocation;

B. Outcomes;

C. Quality improvement; and
D. Advisory councils.

(b)  Assist all eligible and interested Individuals with applying for public
assistance, medical assistance, and any other state or federal benefits that

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 43 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

76



3)

O

()

P0-44300-0026012/lob

the individual may be eligible for now or upon discharge from
institutionalization;

(c) Provide payment for Services, described in this Agreement, provided to
Individuals, who are uninsured, underinsured, not eligible for Medicaid, or
have exhausted Medicaid services, including those who meet the criteria for
Citizen Alien Waived Medical Program;

(d)  Coordinate with any third-party payors, including but not limited to
Coordinated Care Organizations, for the payment of Services described in
this Agreement that are covered for the Individual under private insurance
or through public or medical assistance programs;

(e) Develop a plan that identifies the number, type and location of Providers
that are necessary to provide the Services identified in this Agreement; and

(f) Contract with Providers to meet the Service needs of Individuals under this
Agreement.

Reporting Requirements
None.

Special Reporting Requirements

Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms
are located at http://'www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx. County shall submit electronically, to
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, an annual accounting report of financial
assistance within 45 calendar days from the end of the contract year.

Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.£.(2).

Page 44 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

77



m. Service Name: AID AND ASSIST CLIENT SERVICES
Service ID Code: MHS 04

(n Service Description

A criminal defendant may be found incapacitated (unable to aid and assist in their
own defense) if, as a result of a qualifying mental disorder, the Individual is unable
to understand the nature of the proceeding against them, to assist or cooperate with
their counsel, or to participate in their own defense. MHS 04 Services are provided
to assist Individuals in gaining or regaining their capacity in the most integrated,
least restrictive setting possible in the community.

Services include but are not limited to discharge planning, treatment designed to
restore capacity, placement in appropriate community-based care, monitoring and
coordination of Services, and periodic assessment of the Individual’s capacity.

The goal of these Services is to divert individuals from receiving restoration
treatment at Oregon State Hospital (OSH) into community restoration services to
the greatest extent possible.

Providers of MHS 04 Services funded through this Agreement may reasonably use
funds to improve outcomes and services for individuals found unfit to proceed, or
those at risk of being found unfit to proceed, by improving systems and
collaboration affecting this population.

Eligibility for Services
County shall provide MHS 04 Services to Individuals who the court:

(a) Has reason to doubt are fit to proceed by reason of incapacity (as defined in
ORS 161.360) under ORS 161.365;

(b) Has determined lack the fitness to proceed under ORS 161.370 but has not
yet determined what action to take under ORS 161.370(2)(c);

(c) Are found to lack fitness to proceed under ORS 161.370 and are committed
to the custody of the superintendent of OSH; and

(d)  Has determined lack the fitness to proceed under ORS 161.370 and are
ordered to engage in community restoration services.

2) Performance Requirements
When providing Services under this Service Element, County shall:

(a)  Comply with all applicable statutes and rules, including but not limited to
ORS chapters 161 and 430, and OAR chapter 309, divisions 14, 88 and 90,
which may be revised from time to time;

(b)  Ensure the County, to the extent it provides direct Services, or its Providers:

i Comply with all applicable statutes and administrative rules, as may
be revised from time to time; and

ii. Comply with and maintain any certifications or licenses that are
necessary to provide the Services;

(c) Assist all eligible and interested Individuals with applying for public
assistance, medical assistance, and any other state or federal benefits that

P0O-44300-0026012/0b Page 45 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23}) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

78



P0-44300-0026012/lob

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

(d)

(e}

®

the individual may be eligible for now or upon discharge from
institutionalization or incarceration;

Provide any clinical records and contact information to OHA and its
designees for oversight and coordination purposes, upon request; and

In providing recommendations, treatment service planning, and discharge
planning, ensure that Individuals:

.
|

"
1.

Are recommended for Services in the least restrictive, most
integrated setting appropriate to meet the Individual’s behavioral
health needs; and

Are diverted from placement at a state hospital, community hospital,
and secure residential treatment facility, whenever possible.

Pre-Community Placement Service Requirements

For Individuals described in Subsection (1){(a) of MHS 04, the
County shall:

A. Attempt to consult with the Individual and with any local
entity that would be responsible for providing community
restoration services;

B. Determine whether appropriate community restoration
services are present and available in the community; and

C. Write a report of its findings and submit a copy of that report
to the court pursuant to ORS 161.365(1)(a).

For Individuals described in Subsection (1)(b) of MHS 04, the
County shall submit a recommendation to the court regarding
whether appropriate community restoration services are present and
available in the community, in accordance with ORS 161.370(2)(b).

For Individuals described in Subsection (1)(c) of MHS 04, the
County shall:

A. During any period of commitment, and at regular intervals,
review available community restoration services and
maintain communication with the Individual and OSH in
order to facilitate an efficient transition to treatment in the
community when ordered by the court;

B. After OSH issues notice that an Individual is Ready to Place
(RTP) under ORS 161.371(3)(a) or (4)Xa), and the court
orders a community consultation:

L Attempt to consult with the Individual and with any
local entity that would be responsible for providing
community restoration services, if the Individual
were to be released in the community, to determine
whether community restoration services are present
and available in the community;

IL Develop a treatment service plan for the Individual in
the least restrictive, most integrated setting

Page 46 of 213
DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

79



appropriate to meet the Individual’s behavioral health
needs, preferences, choices, and strengths;

III.  Identify an appropriate Provider that is able to meet
the Individual’s behavioral health needs and willing
to provide that care, treatment, and Services to the
Individual;

IV.  Inidentifying a Provider and planning for a
community restoration placement, primarily be
guided by the level of Services, supervision or type of
placement identified by OSH in its RTP notice and
advise whether those resources are present and
available in the community;

V. Ensure MHS 04 Services are provided in the least
restrictive and most integrated setting appropriate to
meet the Individual’s behavioral health needs;

VI.  Divert the Individual from placement at OSH or ata
secure residential treatment facility (SRTF),
whenever possible;

VII. Obtain any necessary approvals from the Provider to
allow admission, if it is a residential placement;

VIII. Continue to send referrals to Providers until the
Individual is accepted and can be immediately placed,
if and when the court orders community restoration
for the Individual;

IX. Provide the court with recommendations from the
community consultation within five judicial days
from the court order;

X. If the court does not discharge the Individual from
OSH due to a lack of an available and appropriate
Provider, continue to send referrals and develop a
placement and treatment service plan for the
Individual until the Individual is discharged from
OSH; and

X1. If OSH does not issue an RTP notice but the County
or designee determines that community restoration
services that would mitigate any risk posed by the
Individual are present and available in the
community, file a notice of that determination with
the court under ORS 161.371(3)(b)-(4)}(b).

(g) Community Restoration Service Requirements
For Individuals described in Subsection (1){d) of MHS 04, the County shall:

i. Coordinate the Individual’s behavioral health and medical treatment in the
community; Attempt to conduct an individualized assessment of the
Individual and develop a treatment service plan in coordination with the

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 47 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

80



e
1.

iv.

vi.

vii.

P0-44300-0026012/1ob

Individual’s Provider and consistent with any court-ordered conditions; If
the Individual does not participate in the initial assessment, continued
efforts should be made to engage with the Individual to complete the
assessment and develop a treatment service plan;

Monitor the care, custody, and treatment of the Individual while on
community restoration;

Monitor the Individual’s progress in their treatment service plan, and
identify when the Individual may receive Services in a lower level of care
and report that to the court;

Ensure treatment service planning continues throughout the Individual’s
receipt of MHS 04 Services with the goal of the Individual receiving
Services in the lowest level of care that will maintain their mental and
physical health long term;

Provide crisis stabilization services, such as accessing psychiatric, medical,
or qualified professional intervention to protect the health and safety of the
Individual and others;

Provide care coordination to facilitate ongoing communication and
collaboration to meet the Individual’s needs, such as:

A. Facilitating communication between natural supports, community
resources, Providers, agencies (if eligible for Aging and People with
Disabilities [APD] or Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
[1/DD] services) and Coordinated Care Organizations (CCOs) (if an
enrolled member);

B. Organizing, facilitating, and participating in client staffing meetings;

C. Providing for continuity of care by creating linkages to and
managing transitions between levels of care;

D. Coordinating or providing transportation to and from the forensic
evaluations and court appearances in this case; and

E. Communication of court ordered requirements, limitations, and court

dates to the defendant as clinically indicated.

Provide coordination and consultation to the jurisdictional court or other
designated agencies within the criminal justice system and OSH while the
Individual is residing in the community and in the process of being returned
to fitness. Services include, but are not limited to:

A. Coordination of the periodic assessments of the Individual’s fitness
to proceed;
B. Collaboration and coordination with community corrections;

C. Consultation to the County Mental Health Court, if Mental Health
Court is available in the service area;

D. Participation in Mental Health and Law Enforcement collaboration
meetings; and

E. Communication of court ordered requirements, limitations, and court
dates.

Page 48 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

81



viii.  Provide monthly status reports to the appropriate court on the Individual’s:

A. Compliance or non-compliance with their conditional release
requirements; and

B. Progress in gaining or regaining fitness to proceed;

C. Notify the court if the Individual gains or regains fitness to proceed,

and develop a transitional treatment service plan for that Individual,

ix. Provide interim quarterly reports for the purpose of communicating current
status of Individuals to Oregon Health Authority/Health Systems Division
(OHA/HSD) and the court of jurisdiction.

X. Provide community restoration services, which are necessary to safely allow
the Individual to gain or regain fitness to proceed in the community,
including but not limited to:

A, Provide behavioral health treatment, which means treatment for
mental health, substance use disorder, and problem gambling, such
as:

I. Crisis services;
IL. Individual or group therapy; and
III.  Alcohol and drug addiction treatment;

B. Case management, which means the services provided to assist the
individual in gaining access to needed medical, social, educational,
entitlement, tribal resources, and other applicable services;

C. Necessary incidental support, which means the provision of items
that are not directly related to behavioral health treatment (e.g.,
purchase of food, clothing, medication, or transportation);

D. Legal skills training, which means training on courtroom
procedures, roles, language, and potential outcomes of the court
process;

E. Linkages to benefits, which means assisting the Individual with

obtaining any public or medical assistance benefits for which they
are eligible including but not limited to Medicaid, Social Security,
Aging and People with Disabilities Services, Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program, and housing;

F. Medical treatment related to capacity, which means the management
and care of the Individual related to any psychiatric or medical
conditions that impair their capacity;

G. Medication management, which includes the prescribing,
administering, and reviewing of medications and their side effects,
including both the pharmacological management as well as supports
and training to the Individual;

H. Peer-delivered services, which are community-based services and
supports provided by peers, peer support specialists, and family
support specialists to individuals with similar lived experience; and

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 49 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

82



I. Vocational services, which are employment support services that are
intended to lead to competitive integrated employment.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS”

“@) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly reports on the delivery of
MHS 04 Services, no later than 45 calendar days following the end of each subject
quarter for which financial assistance is awarded through this Agreement. Reports
must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are
located at hitp://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

Each quarterly report shall provide the following information per month for each
subject quarter:

(a) For Individuals who have a community consultation completed, provide the
following information:

i Individuals’ name;

iii. Gender;

iii. Date of birth

iv. Medicaid identification number (if applicable);
V. Race;

vi. Ethnicity;

vii.  Living Situation;

viii. Consultation referral date;

ix. Consultation face-to-face date;
X. Date the findings report was provided to the court;
Xi. Recommendation from the findings report provided to the court; and

xii.  Court’s determination on Individual’s placement.

(b)  For Individuals who are engaged in community-based restoration services,
provide the following information:

i Individual’s name;

i, Gender;

i, Date of birth

iv, Medicaid identification number (if applicable);
V. Race;

vi. Ethnicity;

vii.  Living situation;

viii. Beginning date of restoration services; and

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 50 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

83



ix. Description of services provided.

&) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirement Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).
In addition:

County can invoice for up to 20% over NTE for non-Medicaid covered residential
expenses subject to approval of OHA and additional funding. Additional financial
reporting may be required. The Part C awards do not apply to PSRB Individuals, as
these Services are covered in the Service Description for MHS 30.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 51 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

84



n. Service Name: ASSERTIVE COMMUNITY TREATMENT SERVICES (ACT)
Service ID Code: MHS 05

(1) Service Description
(a) Definitions:

i. Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) means an evidence-based
practice designed to provide comprehensive treatment and support
Services to Individuals with Serious and Persistent Mental Illness.
ACT is intended to serve Individuals who have severe functional
impairments and who have not responded to traditional psychiatric
outpatient treatment. ACT Services are provided by a single multi-
disciplinary team, which typically includes a psychiatrist, a nurse,
and at least 2 case managers, and are designed to meet the
Individual’s needs and to help keep the Individual in the community
and out of a structured service setting, such as residential or hospital
care. ACT is characterized by:

A. Low client to staff ratios;

B. Providing Services in the community rather than in the
office;

C. Shared caseloads among team members;

D. 24-hour staff availability;

E. Direct provision of all Services by the team (rather than
referring Individuals to other agencies); and

F. Time-unlimited Services.

ii. ACT-Eligible Individual means an Individual who meets ACT
Admission Criteria established in OAR 309-019-0245.

iii. Competitive Integrated Employment means full-time or part time
work, at minimum wage or higher, at a rate that is not less than the
customary rate paid by the employer for the same or similar work
performed by other employees who are not Individuals with
disabilities, and who are similarly situated in similar occupations by
the same employer and who have similar training, experience, and
skill; with eligibility for the level of benefits provided to other
employees; at a location where the employee interacts with other
persons who are not Individuals with disabilities (not including
supervisory personnel or individuals who are providing services to
such employee) to the same extent that individuals who are not
Individuals with disabilities and who are in comparable positions
interact with other persons; and as appropriate, presents
opportunities for advancement that are similar to those for other
employees who are not individuals with disabilities and who have
similar positions.

iv. Division Approved Reviewer means the Oregon Center of
Excellence for Assertive Community Treatment (OCEACT).
OCEACT is OHA’s contracted entity responsible for conducting

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 52 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

85



ACT fidelity reviews, training, and technical assistance to support
new and existing ACT Programs statewide.

V. Serious and Persistent Mental Iliness (SPMI) means the current
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual, Fifth Edition (DSM V) of the
American Psychiatric Association, incorporated by reference herein,
diagnostic criteria for at least one of the following conditions, as a
primary diagnosis for an Individual 18 years of age or older:

A.
B
C.
D
E.

F.

(b) Services:

Schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders;
Major depressive disorder;
Bipolar disorder;

Anxiety disorders limited to Obsessive Compulsive Disorder
(OCD) and Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD);

Schizotypal personality disorder; or

Borderline personality disorder.

i. ACT is an evidence-based practice for Individuals with SPMI1. ACT
is characterized by:

A.
B.
C.

Omm e

A team approach;
Community based;

A small client-to-staff caseload, typically 10:1, to
consistently provide necessary staffing diversity and
coverage;

Time-unlimited Services;

Flexible Service delivery;

A fixed point of responsibility; and
24/7 crisis availability.

ji. MHS 05 Services include, but are not limited to:

mEREFORP

a

.—

P0-44300-0026012/lob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Hospital discharge planning;
Case management;
Symptom management;
Psychiatry services;
Nursing services;

Co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders
treatment services;

Supported Employment (reference OAR 309-019-0275
through 309-019-0295);

Life skills training; and

Peer support services.

Page 53 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

86



iii. The ACT Program is intended to serve Individuals (18 year old or
older) with SPMI and who meet ACT Program admission criteria as
described in OAR 309-019-0245.

iv. A Provider delivering MHS 05 Services with funds provided
through this Agreement may not use MHS 05 Services funding to
deliver covered Services to any Individual known to be enrolled in
the Oregon Health Plan.

V. An ACT Program includes the following staff members:
A. Psychiatrist or Psychiatric Nurse Practitioner;
B. Psychiatric Nurse(s);

C. Qualified Mental Health Professional (QMHP) ACT Team
Supervisor;

D. Qualified Mental Health Professional(s) (QMHP) Mental
Health Clinician;

Substance Abuse Treatment Specialist;
Employment Specialist;

Housing Specialist;

=omm

Mental Health Case Manager; and
L Certified Peer Support Specialist.

2) Performance Requirements

County shall provide MHS 05 Services in a manner that meets minimum fidelity
requirements and adheres to all standards in OAR 309-019-0225 through 309-019-
0255.

If County lacks qualified Providers to detiver MHS 05 Services and supports,
County shall implement a plan, in consultation with their respective CCO and
OHA, to develop a qualified Provider network for Individuals to access MHS 05
Services.

The County shall work with their respective CCO to increase the number of eligible
Individuals, with SPMI, served by ACT Team(s). If 10 or more Individuals in a
County’s region have been referred, are eligible and appropriate for MHS 05
Services, and are on a waiting list for more than 30 calendar days to receive MHS
05 Services, the County shall work with their appropriate CCO to take action to
reduce the waitlist and serve those Individuals by:

(a) Increasing team capacity to a size that is still consistent with fidelity
standards; or

(b) Adding additional ACT Team(s).

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 54 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

87



(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

County shali prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts(@lodhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly summary reports on the
delivery of MHS 05 Services no later than 45 calendar days following the end of
each subject quarter for which financial assistance is awarded through this
Agreement. Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by
OHA. Forms are located at
http://'www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

Each report shall provide the following information:

(a) Individuals served;

(b) Individuals who are homeless at any point during a quarter;
(c) Individuals with safe stable housing for 6 months;

(d)  Individuals using emergency departments during each quarter for a mental
health reason;

(e) Individuals hospitalized in OSH or in an acute psychiatric facility during
each quarter;

()} Individuals hospitalized in an acute care psychiatric facility during each
quarter;

(2) Individuals in jail at any point during each quarter;

(h)  Individuals receiving Supported Employment Setvices during each quarter;

(i) Individuals who are employed in Competitive Integrated Employment; and
G4) Individuals receiving MHS 05 Services who are not enrolled in Medicaid
Referrals and Outcomes, including the following:
i Number of referrals received during each quarter,;
ii. Number of Individuals accepted during each quarter;

iii. Number of Individuals admitted during each quarter; and

iv. Number of Individuals denied during each quarter and the reason for
gach denial.

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

P(-44300-0026012/lob Page 55 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOQJ Approval 12/21/2023

88



0. Service Name: JAIL DIVERSION SERVICES
Service 1D Code: MHS 09

(n Service Description

MHS 09 Jail Diversion Services increase Mental Health’s interaction with
Individuals with mental illness who are involved with the justice system or law
enforcement solely due to a mental health reason and are charged with crimes,
resulting in the reduction or avoidance of arrests, jail admissions, lengths of stay in
jail, and recidivism through the availability of alternative community-based
services, programs, or treatments.

For purposes of this Service Description, the following definitions apply:

(a)  Jail Diversion Services means community-based Services that are designed
to keep Individuals with behavioral health needs out of the criminal justice
system and, instead, supported by other community-based services, such as
mental health services, substance use services, employment services, and
housing. Jail Diversion Services are intended to minimize contact with law
enforcement, avoid jail time, and/or reduce jail time. These Services are
intended to result in the reduction of the number of Individuals with mental
iliness in the criminal justice system or the Oregon State Hospital.

(b)  Mental Illness means the current Diagnostic and Statistical Manual, Fifth
Edition (DSM V) of the American Psychiatric Association, incorporated by
reference herein, diagnostic criteria for a primary diagnosis for an adult 18
years of age or older.

(2) Performance Requirements

All Providers shall adopt the “Sequential Intercept Model” (SIM), and
incorporated by reference herein, through the GAINS Center to more effectively
deal with mentally ill Individuals who come into contact with law enforcement
personnel. All Providers shall use the SIM to identify and intervene upon “points of
interception” or opportunities for interventions to prevent Individuals with mental
illness from entering or penetrating deeper into the criminal justice system.

County shall provide the following, subject to the not-to-exceed amount of this
Agreement, pre-booking and post-booking MHS 09 Services:

(a) Create partnerships or diversion agreements between law enforcement
agencies, jails, both circuit and municipal courts, and local mental health
providers;

(b)  Create opportunities for Individuals to access housing in addition to
vocational and educational services;

(c) Provide support services to prevent or curtail relapses and other crises;

(d)  Assist Individuals to negotiate and minimize continuing criminal sanctions
as they make progress in recovery and meet criminal justice obligations; and

(e) Promote peer support and the social inclusion of Individuals with or in
recovery from mental and substance use disorders in the community.

3) Reporting Requirements

P0-44300-0026012/1ob Page 56 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

89



See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit through secure e-mail as described
in the Security and Privacy Agreement, to hsd.contractsia@lodhsoha.oregon.gov,
written quarterly reports on the delivery of MHS 09 Services no later than 45
calendar days from the end of each subject quarter for which financial assistance is
awarded through this Agreement. Reports must be prepared using forms and
procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at

http://'www.oregon gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

Each quarterly report shall include, but is not limited to, the following:

(a)  For Individuals receiving MHS 09 Services, report the following:

1. Individuals name;

ii. Gender,;

jii. Date of birth;

iv. Medicaid identification number (if applicable);
V. Race;

vi. Ethnicity;
vii. Whether the Individual has a diagnosed mental health disorder;
viii.  I[dentify whether the Individual received pre or post booking

Services;
ix. Number of times Individual was arrested during the reporting
period;
X. Charges Individual was arrested for during the reporting period; and
Xi. Description of Service provided.

(b)  Report the number of incidences where charges were dismissed or dropped
as a result of MHS 09 Services.

(c) Report the number of crisis consultations provided by mental health staff in
pre-booking diversions.

(d)  Provide a detailed description of any MHS 09 Service created prior to the
current reporting period.

(e) Provide information regarding any activities related to MHS 09 Services
that involved law enforcement agencies, jails, circuit and municipal courts,
community corrections, and local mental health providers.

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirement Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 57 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

90



p. Service Name: MENTAL HEALTH PROMOTION AND PREVENTION
SERVICES

Service ID Code: MHS 10

1) Service Description

MHS 10 Mental Health Promotion and Prevention Services are designed to
optimize an Individual’s positive mental health by:

(a) Strengthening the determinants of mental health and wellness; and

(b)  Minimizing mental health problems by addressing these determinants
before a specific mental health problem has been identified.

Strengthening determinants of mental wellness through activities and strategies that
support and enhance the development of healthy communities, individual skill
development, and social-emotional competence can build resilience and increase
one’s ability to cope with adversity.

MHS 10 Services are interventions that increase protective factors, enhance an
Individual’s abilities to achieve developmentally appropriate tasks (competence)
across their lifespan, help build a positive sense of self-esteem, mastery, well-being,
social inclusion, and strengthen their ability to cope with adversity.

Services shall prioritize communities that have been historically marginalized and
impacted by racism, discrimination, and health inequities. Services shall be trauma
informed, culturally and linguistically responsive, and work to reduce the impacts
of adverse childhood and traumatic experiences. Services can include a wide
variety of activities delivered throughout communities, schools, businesses, and
online platforms in order to strengthen the determinants of mental health and
wellness. Activities may be provided through a combination of universal, selective
and indicated interventions and supports.

2) Performance Requirements

(a) Strengthen the existing Mental Health Promotion and Prevention Services
infrastructure and/or build and develop new infrastructure.

(b) Utilize the Institute of Medicine’s Continuum of Care Model as a
framework to create and implement an evidence-based continuum of
activities, strategies, and supports. Strategies and activities under this
funding should span the following sections of the model below: 1} mental
health promotion and 2) the three prevention classifications, including
universal, selective, and indicated. These are further specified below.

P0-44300-0026812/lob Page 58 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

91



i Universal intervention: Strategies and/or activities that engage the
general public or a segment of the entire population to: learn and
enhance positive coping methods to help people feel safe and
hopeful and improve quality of life, reduce mental health stigma,
prevent or delay the onset of mental health symptoms, and increase
awareness of mental health wellness, services, and supports.

ii. Selective intervention: Strategies and/or activities that serve specific
sub populations whose risk of a disorder is significantly higher than
the average, either imminently or over a lifetime;

iii. Indicated intervention: Strategies and/or activities that address
identified individuals who have minimal but detectable signs or
symptom of a disorder or condition;

(c) Develop and implement strategies and/or activities that prioritize the
following determinants of mental wellness.

i Development and maintenance of healthy communities: Strategies
and/or activities may include but are not limited to, community
safety promotion, violence reduction, bullying prevention,
community connectivity, and resource dissemination activities;

i, Skill development: Strategies and/or activities may include but are
not limited to, skill-building programs in schools, community
centers, and other community-based settings that emphasize social
connection, problem solving and development of self-regulation;
and

iii. Social emotional competence: Strategies and/or activities may
include but are not limited to developing or sustaining community
infrastructure, parenting education, stress reduction classes,
communication skills classes, grief and other post distress supports,
divorce and other losses, and community-based activities promoting
inclusion of groups and individuals that have been economically,
socially, and historically marginalized.

(d)  Promote activities that demonstrate a working relationship with a
Coordinated Care Organization (CCO), and community-based
organizations, such as:

PQ-44300-0026012/1ob Page 59 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

92



i Engage groups that have been historically marginalized through
trauma informed and cultural responsiveness, cultural humility, and
linguistic attunement to learn if and how mental health promotion
and prevention services can be the most supportive;

ii. Increase efficiency, broaden coordination of initiatives within and
seek areas of collaboration across community and health care
settings to improve the development of sustainable systems to
address mental health promotion and prevention activities; and

iii. Propose and implement joint strategies to sustain project work
beyond the funding period, including the ability to engage other
community organizations or interested parties who will benefit from
a healthier overall population, such as other public or commercial
insurance carriers.

3) Reporting Requirements
None

4) Special Reporting Requirements

(a) County shall submit to OHA an approved annual plan that describes
services/activities and a detailed budget that supports mental health
promotion and prevention efforts in the community. Plan should include
activities which are being funded through this funding stream, if braided
funding is occurring, please explain in plan. County shall prepare and
submit to OHA for approval within 30 calendar days of the effective date of
this Agreement, a written Workplan outlining how services or activities will
be provided using funds awarded through this Agreement.

(b)  County shall prepare and electronically submit a written, semi-annual (two
times per year) detailed budget expenditure and service report on the
delivery of Mental Health Promotion and Prevention Services to be
submitted no later than 45 calendar days from the end of the reporting
period. Reports and Workplans should be sent to:
hsd.contractsi@'odhsoha.orgon.gov. Reports must be prepared using forms
and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

i Each report shall contain the following information:

A, An explanation of activities conducted during the reporting
period. An update on the status of the initial Workplan will
be accepted;

B. A description of how activities impact the determinants of
mental wellness, including development and maintenance of
healthy communities, skill development, and social
emotional competence; and,

C. A description of the impact of MHS 10 funding as it serves
communities that have been disproportionally impacted by
racism, discrimination, and health inequities.

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 60 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

93



(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirement Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation Requirements language, Section 1.f.(2)

P0O-44300-0026012/10b Page 61 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

94



q. Service Name: RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM SERVICES
Service ID Code: MHS 12

(1) Service Description

MHS 12 Rental Assistance Program Services are intended to assist Individuals 18
years of age and older with Serious and Persistent Mental Iliness (SPMI), as
defined in OAR 309-036-0105 (13), and who meet one of the criteria listed below,
in paying for rental housing to live as independently as possible in the community
and to access the appropriate support services on a voluntary basis.

(a) SPMI means the current Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders, Fifth Edition (DSM-V) of the American Psychiatric Association,
incorporated by reference herein, diagnostic criteria for at least one of the
following conditions, as a primary diagnosis for an adult 18 years of age or

older:

i. Schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders;

ii. Major Depressive Disorder;

iii. Bipolar Disorder;

iv. Anxiety disorders limited to Obsessive-Compulsive Disorder (OCD)
and Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD);

V. Schizotypal Personality Disorder; or

vi. Borderline Personality Disorder

(b)  Criteria in paying for rental housing requires at least one of the following

conditions:

i. Transitioning from the Oregon State Hospital;

i, Transitioning from a licensed residential setting;

iii. Without supported housing, are at risk of reentering a licensed

residential or hospital setting. For purposes of this special project,
supported housing is a combination of financial assistance and
supportive services that allows an Individual to live as independently
as possible in their own home;

iv. Homeless as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 11302; or
v. At risk of being homeless.

2) Performance Requirements

(a) MHS 12 Services includes financial assistance for a residential specialist
position and a peer support specialist position. For purposes of this special
project, the residential and peer support specialist positions shall be
responsible for coordinating the program components such as application
process, finding a rental unit, and payments to the landlord; and the support
service components including, but not limited to: financial budgeting,
applying for mainstream housing resources (like Section 8), community
navigation, and maintaining healthy relationships, which supports
Individuals in their ability to live as independently as possible in the

P0O-44300-0026012/lcb Page 62 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

95



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(2)

(h)

P0-44300-0026012/lob

community. These allotments shall not be used to pay any other staff
position, and these two MHS 12 funded positions will only perform work
for this MHS 12 program.

MHS 12 Services financial assistance per Individual will be set by OHA
and will not exceed the HUD Fair Market Rent (FMR). Financial assistance
for rental assistance made on behalf of Individuals covers payment to
landlords, property management companies, housing providers, property
owners, or specific vendors for a portion of the monthly rent, or payment to
specific vendors for resident utility expenses.

Move-in expense and barrier removal financial assistance will be based on
the Individual’s need and determined by the Program based on their
program design as described in their application. Financial assistance for
move-in and barrier removal costs may include cleaning and security
deposits, pet deposits, outstanding utility bills, and other related costs as
determined in the County’s program design.

Rental housing units subject to this special project shall have an inspection,
and pass the inspection prior to move-in, which shall be conducted by
County or its contractor, based upon the criteria outlined in the OHA
approved Housing Condition Checklist located at
hitp://www.oregon.gov/oha/HS D/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

County shall coordinate with Coordinated Care Organizations (CCO) and
Community Mental Health Programs (CMHP) to develop a plan to bill for
Medicaid eligible services.

Administrative costs shall not exceed 15% of total operating budget.
Eligible administrative costs include:

i Financial assistance for MHS 12 Services data collection and
documentation of Service delivery in compliance with state and
federal requirements; and

ii. Financial assistance for housing inspection services, accounting
services, computer upgrades, supervision of program staff, expenses
associated with program staff, office space, and other appropriate
office expenses.

Utilization requirements for MHS 12 Services Providers will be identified
in a special condition in a particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance
Award.”

County Compliance: No more than 25% of units in a building or complex of
buildings is encouraged for Individuals with SPMI referred by the state, its
contractors, or its subcontractors. County or subcontractor shall make good
faith, reasonable best efforts to facilitate the use of those units by persons
with SPMI. The remaining housing is available to all tenants, in
conformance with Fair Housing and other related laws.

Compliance with criteria in the County’s application, award letter, and this
Agreement is equally binding.

Page 63 0f 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

96



(i) County may only contract with subcontractors, subject to prior review and
approval by OHA.

3) Reporting Requirements
None

(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

(a)  County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly reports on the
delivery of MHS 12 Services no later than 45 calendar days following the
end of each subject quarter for which financial assistance is awarded
through this Agreement. Reports must be prepared using forms and
procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/iOHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

(b)  For financial use, each report shall provide the following information for the
subject quarter totals:

i Amount expended for move-in and barrier removal services;
ii. Amount expended for housing rental;
iii. Amount expended for staff positions and administration; and
iv. The number of housing slots rent was paid for MHS 12 Individuals.
(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”
Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.f.(2).
In addition:

(a) Amounts due for Services based on the cash assistance paid on behalf of the
program providers for rental assistance, barrier removal, move-in expenses,
program staff funds expended, and administration of this special project as
properly reported in accordance with the “Special Reporting Requirements”
section above and subject to the utilization requirements in a special
condition on that line of the Financial Assistance Award, is subject to the
terms and limitations in this MHS 12 Service Description.

(b) For Services to non-Medicaid-eligible Individuals, County shall submit a
combined quarterly invoice, itemized as follows:

i Number of housing slots filled per month.

ii. For quarters | and 2, County shall request the total amount for all
MHS 12 slots as specified in that line of the Financial Assistance
Award;

iii. For quarter 3 through 8, County shall request the total MHS 12
amount paid based on the Fair Market Rate (FMR) specified in that
line of the Financial Assistance Award, times the total number of
units of rent paid on behalf of MHS 12 Individuals during the
subject quarter.

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 64 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

97



PO-44300-0026012/lcb

(c)

The Part C financial assistance will be disbursed as follows:

Unless a different disbursement method is specified in that line of Exhibit
C, “Financial Assistance Award,” OHA will disburse the Part C funds for
MHS 12 Services provided under a particular line of the Financial
Assistance Award containing a “C” in column “Part ABC” to County per
receipt and approval of a quarterly written invoice with required
attachments, as specified in subsection (b), in the allotment during the
period specified in that line of the Financial Assistance Award. Invoice and
required attachments are due no later than 45 calendar days following the
end of the subject quarter and must be submitted to
hsd.contractslodhsoa.oregon.gov with the subject line “Invoice, contract
#(your contract number), contractor name.” Financial assistance provided
by OHA are subject to the limitations described in this MHS 12 Service
Description.

Page 65 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

98



r. Service Name: SCHOOL-BASED MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
Service ID Code: MHS 13

(1) Service Description

MHS 13 School-Based Mental Health (SBMH) Services are designed to increase
students’ and families’ access to mental health treatment, service coordination and
support, part of the essential components of a comprehensive school mental health
system. Access to school-based mental health services is linked to students’
improved physical and psychological safety, improved attendance, resilience, self-
esteem, and reduces disciplinary incidents, juvenile justice involvement, and
substance abuse. The provision of SBMH services at the school helps reduce
barriers to mental health treatment access, provides an opportunity to remain in
school, retain satisfactory academic progress, and have quality of life. SBMH
services will improve equitable access to mental health services and supports.

Services shall prioritize Individuals and families that have been historically
marginalized and impacted by racism, discrimination, and health inequities.
Services shali be trauma informed, culturally and linguistically responsive and
work to reduce the impacts of adverse childhood and traumatic experiences.

County shall provide MHS 13 SBMH Services to Kindergarten (K)-12 schools the
County identifies as needing additional supports based on social determinants of
health or other school needs. County may provide MHS 13 Services to schools that
are affiliated with a School-Based Health Center (SBHC), if that SBHC is not
providing mental health services to youth under the age of 17. County shall confirm
that an appropriately qualified school-based mental health service provider
(QMHP) is available at identified schools.

2) Performance Requirements
(a) Qualified Mental Health Professional (QMHP):

i. A School-Based Mental Health Program QMHP is qualified ed
under state law to provide mental health services and treatment to
children and adolescents, which includes an assessment at the onset
of services. Counties shall provide appropriate levels of clinical
supervision as set forth in OAR 309-019-0130 for SBMH service
Providers. The following outlines the scope of the SBMH service
Provider:

ii. Provide school-based clinical services for rapid and easily accessible
mental health treatment, and facilitate services needed for outpatient
mental health and substance use treatment. Urgent or otherwise
crisis driven services shall be prioritized.

fii. Provider shall meet with the Individual and/or family, as clinically
indicated, to complete an assessment and facilitate access to
appropriate mental health services, medical services, and other
needed resources in the community. Families are invited and
inciuded in mental health treatment to promote treatment integrity
and success at home and in school. It is expected that providers will
engage families in clinical services whenever possible. Therapists

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 66 0of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

99



shall document lack of family participation when it has been
clinically indicated.

iv. MHS 13 Service providers shall be equipped with the technology
and equipment necessary to conduct therapy sessions, including
individual, family and group therapy, through a telehealth platform
that complies with HIPA A, consistent with OAR 410-172-0850.

(b) Qualified Mental Health Associate (QMHA): A School-Based Mental
Health Program QMHA is qualified to render services and supports within

their scope and shall demonstrate the minimum competencies and
qualifications as outlined in OAR 309-019-0125.

i. QMHASs may work under the direction and supervmon of a QMHP,
may not work independently, and may provide services as outlined
in OAR 309-019-01235, such as skills training, skills groups, and risk
screening. Services must be outlined on the Service Plan as outlined
by the QMHP.

il. QMHA positions shall not replace QMHP Providers but rather work
with Providers and school-employed staff in a team approach to
identify ways to provide skill development and positive mental
health supports.

iii. Individuals may be referred or self-referred to SBMH services due to
experiencing trauma, behavioral and emotional challenges,
symptoms of a mental health condition, or chronic absenteeism.

iv. All staff shall provide culturally and linguistically responsive trauma
informed coordinated services and supports.

V. All staff may assist with the development, implementation and
delivery of programs such as wellness, peer support programs,
family support programs, Mental Health First Aid training,
implementation of social-emotional learning and support students
through skill building and informational learning opportunities on
topics such as conflict resolution, bullying prevention, self-
regulation and healthy relationships.

vi. Through collaboration with the school and community agencies,
staff shall assist and create activities to improve climate and safety
for children. Promote school safety for all students and report
incidents of any violence, so timely intervention may occur.

(c) All Service Providers and Program Staff shall be trained in suicide
prevention, intervention, postvention, and lethal means. QMHP Providers
who have had no suicide specific training are recommended to begin with
the Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST). QMHA staff who
have had no suicide specific training are recommended to begin with
Question, Persuade, Refer (QPR), and CALM. Upon request, the contract
administrator will provide a list of recommended suicide prevention,
intervention, postvention, and lethal means trainings available at low or no
cost in Oregon. A tool for tracking staff training completion is also available
upon request. Documentation of a minimum of one booster session annually
is required in at least one of the following topics:

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 67 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

100



i Suicide Prevention;
il Suicide Intervention and Safety Planning;
jii. Suicide Postvention; and

iv. Lethal Means.

(d)  Training documentation for all Service Providers and Program Staff shall be
submitted to OHA annually at the end of the school year.

(e) All MHS 13 Service Providers and Program Staff are obligated to report
any known suicide deaths in the school to their supervisor. Supervisors shall
notify their county postvention lead who will report to the OHA Suicide
Prevention and Intervention Coordinator in accordance with OAR 309-027-
0060.

) All MHS 13 Service Providers and Program Staff are required to read and
understand the School Suicide Prevention plan and the County Youth
Suicide Postvention Plan for all school districts and counties in which they
provide services.

(g) Counties shall notify OHA in writing if the county lacks qualified QMHP
providers to deliver MHS13 clinical services prior to and/or as soon as
services become unavailable and implement a plan for the provision of
Services in consultation with OHA.

(h)  Counties shall notify OHA in writing of the schools in which it is providing
services and shall prioritize schools in under-resourced communities in the
county. This documentation shall be provided to OHA no later than one
month prior to the start of the school year. Counties are required to notify
OHA contract administrator of any delay in this documentation.

(i) When possible, Medicaid billable Services will be billed to Medicaid.

() Funding may also be used to serve Individuals experiencing acute
psychiatric distress and who are not Medicaid eligible but have no other
resources to pay for the Services, or who are 14 years of age or older and
request anonymity.

3 Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov written quarterly reports on the delivery of
MHS 13 Services, no later than 45 calendar days following the end of each subject
quarter for which financial assistance is awarded through this Agreement. Reports
must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are
located at hutp://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Reguirements.aspx.

Each report shall provide the following information:

(a) The names and National Provider [ndex (NP1} numbers of all MHS 13
Providers and Staft;

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 68 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

101



(b)  The number of Individuals served during the quarter. This number should
represent at a minimum the Individuals, who have had any of the following
services or a combination of the following: assessment, individual therapy,
family therapy, group therapy. Individuals who have participated in
services delivered by the QMHA may be listed as long as those services are
documented on the QMHP’s Service Plan;

() The number of new Individuals served during the quarter. This number
should represent Individuals to whom Providers and Program Staff began
providing services to for the first time during the quarter; and

(d)  Service providers must report on a quarterly basis:

i A list of the unique Individual served, including their first and last
name;
il The race and cthnicity of the Individual;

iii. The Individual’s payor source, Oregon Health Plan ID number or
other identified insurer 1D number; and

iv. The unabbreviated name of the school the Individual attends.

Providers will use an evidence-based suicide assessment tool and formulate
a safety plan when clinically indicated.

(e) A summary of program strengths, including specific examples of how
services are impacting student mental health, how student and family needs
that have arisen as a result of the pandemic have been addressed, and how
this work promotes school and student safety.

(f) Service providers must report how services are delivered in a manner that is
culturally and linguistically responsive and how these services are delivered
in a manner that is accessible and equitable for all students.

(@) A summary of program challenges, including barriers to providing services
to students and engaging families in family therapy.

&) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirement Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 69 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

102



s. Service Name: YOUNG ADULT HUB PROGRAMS (YAHP)
Service 1D Code: MHS 15

(1)  Service Description

MHS 15 Services are designed to reach out to, engage, and support extremely
distressed and marginalized young adults (Individuals) 14 through 24 years of age
with Mental Health conditions, particularly those that are disconnected from
services or who have no other resources to pay for services.

(a) The program includes and requires outreach and engagement, brief crisis
services, connection of the Individual with community-based supports and
services, peer support, clinical and other health related services;

(b)  Programs must serve all Individuals referred to the service, including those
with public, private or no insurance; and

(c) Programs must deliver services in a manner supported by the principles of
systems of care, trauma informed care, and positive youth development.

(d)  Programs shall engage communities that have been historically made
vulnerable by racism, discrimination and health inequities.

2) Performance Requirements
(a) Eligible Population:

These Services are considered appropriate when the Individual is not
connecting with desired behavioral health and other supports through other,
more traditional or generally available means, and needs supplemental or
alternative engagement supports. This may include, but are not limited to
Individuals 14 through 24 years of age who have been:

i Served in Psychiatric Residential Treatment Services, Secure
Adolescent Inpatient Programs;

ii. Chronically involved in state systems of Mental Health care and
who are in need of intensive community supports;

iii. Impacted by a Mental Health diagnosis and/or extreme social
distress so that their ability to be successful in age appropriate
activities is impaired or has led to interface with the criminal justice
system; or

iv. Disconnected from resources to such an extent that they are unlikely
to access Medicaid and privately insured services through an
outpatient program.

(b) Provide Clinical, Social, and Residential Services:

These services have no time limit. It is expected that they will be used to
help the Individual connect to ongoing, longer-term supports, meet their
needs and goals, and support them in moving toward a positive life
trajectory. It is preferable that the peer support specialist and the clinical
staff meet with the [ndividual together during the initial contact or soon
thereafter. Contacts should be as frequent as is necessary for the goals of the
project to occur, but no less than twice a week. Provider shall assist all

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 70 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Apptoval 12/21/2023

103



Individuals receiving services in accessing and maintaining resources that
fit their goals. Such resources may include supported employment, housing,
educational support, primary care, psychiatric services, addictions services,
navigation of outside supports and services, family mentoring and
mediation, and family finding through the use of a family finding service,
among others. Setting(s) for service delivery include, but are not limited to
emergency departments, crisis centers, provider sites, homes, and
community settings. Locations shall be as preferred by the individual. Using
technology and texting as a preferred method of communication with young
people is expected and required. Community-based services and supports
include, but are not limited to:

i. Outreach and engagement of groups of youth and young adults
placed at increased risk: lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender
(LGBT) youth, young adults with higher risk of suicide, and other
young people who have been historically marginalized;

ii. Recovery oriented, young adult centered planning;

iii. Creation of social support systems;

iv. Rapid access to psychiatric and counseling services;

\2 Coaching on rights regarding access to employment, school,

housing, and additional resources;

vi. Access to local teams, including licensed medical professionals
(psychiatrists or psychiatric nurse practitioners), clinical case
managers, supported employment specialists, and occupational
therapists;

vii.  Peer support provided by young adult peers, participatory decision-
making;

viii. Meaningful Individual’s engagement in program, community, and
leadership activities; and

ix. Skill development.
() Who Can Provide These Services?
Recommended staff, staff expertise, and training:

i. Providers can be youth or young adult peer support specialists, care
coordinators, licensed medical prescribers, Qualified Mental Health
Programs (QMHP), mental health therapists, and skills trainers.

i, Recommended supplemental trainings includes supplemental peer
and clinical training, training in suicide prevention and intervention
strategies, and trauma informed care, and be provided with ongoing
maintenance of the skills and practice associated with these
approaches.

ii. Familiarity and use of system of care principles, cultural
responsiveness, cultural humility, linguistic attunement, trauma
informed principles and practices, and the TIP Model located at
http://www.tipstars.org/, or any other young adults in transition
evidence-based or promising practices.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 71 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

104



()

4

)

P0O-44300-0026012/lob

Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly reports no later than 45
calendar days following the end of each subject quarter for which financial
assistance is awarded through this Agreement. Reports must be prepared using
forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/iOHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.
County shall:

(a) Meet data reporting requirements and deadlines, unless otherwise arranged
with OHA;

(b)  Administer the Adult Hope Scale located at
https://ppc.sas.upenn.edu/sites/default/files/hopescale.pdf as an outcome
measurement tool, or provide an alternative measure of a consistent nature
to be approved by OHA.

Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirement Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

Page 72 0f 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

105



t. Service Name: PEER DELIVERED SERVICES (PDS)
Service 1D Code: MHS 16

) Service Description

Peer Delivered Services MHS 16 will assist the establishment or expansion of Peer
Delivered Services (PDS) in a specified geographic area for the period of this
Agreement. PDS means an array of County or community-based services and
supports provided by peers, Peer Wellness Specialists (PWS), and Peer Support
Specialists (PSS), including Family Support Specialists and Youth Support
Specialists, to Individuals or family members with similar lived experience and that
are designed to support the needs of Individuals and families as applicable.

Peer Support Specialists are experientially credentialed individuals who have
successfully engaged in their own or their child’s recovery and demonstrate the
core competencies for Peer Support Specialists as defined by OHA’s administrative
rules, Traditional Health Worker Commission, and the Office of Equity and
Inclusion, ORS 414.635 through 414.665, OAR 410-180, and OAR 309-019-0130
PSS and PWS shall deliver PDS, under the supervision of a qualified Clinical
Supervisor, and are listed on the Traditional Worker Registry to provide services
for that identified consumer population, as found at
https://traditionalhealthworkerregistry.oregon.gov.

(2) Performance Requirements

County shall use the funds awarded through this Agreement for MHS 16 to
implement PDS in a manner that:

(a) Benefits Individuals with mental health conditions;
(b) Increases the number of Individuals certified to provide PDS;

(c) Requires that PDS work assignments are relevant to individuals Traditional
Health Worker’s certification;

(d)  Program staff providing direct services shall receive clinical supervision by
a qualified clinical supervisor related to the development, implementation,
and outcome of services;

(e) Supervision shall be provided to assist program staff to increase their skills
within their scope of practice, improve quality of services to Individuals,
and supervise program staff and volunteers’ compliance with program
policies and procedures; and

(f) For persons providing direct PDS, one of the two hours of required
supervision shall be provided by a qualified Peer Delivered Services
Supervisor as resources are made available.

3) Reporting Requirements

None

4) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov. written quarterly reports no later than 45
calendar days following the end of each subject quarter during the period for which

P0O-44300-0026012/1cb Page 73 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

106



financial assistance is awarded through this Agreement. Reports must be prepared
using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

and include the following information:

(a) Amount of funds spent as of the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Description of PDS implementation progress, technical assistance needs,
and any relevant implementation challenges;

(c) Number of Individuals with mental health conditions who were trained as
PSS or PWS during the reporting period;

(d)  Number of Individuals with mental health conditions who received PDS
during the reporting period; and

(e) Outcome measures to include:

iv.

vi,

vii.

viii.

ix.

Shortened psychiatric and addiction related hospital stays or reduced
admissions to the emergency department due to psychiatric crisis;

Improved ability to work towards recovery or establish a recovery
plan;

Reduced crisis events;

Improved quality of life as identified by the Individuals receiving
Services;

Increased ability to advocate for themselves or, in the case of youth,
increased ability for youth and their families to advocate for
themselves and their family;

Increase in a social support system,
Work and education status maintenance or improvement for adults;
School attendance and academic improvement for youth; and

Number of out-of-home placements in the past 90 calendar days.

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob

Page 74 0of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

107



u. Service Name: Non-OHP Community and Residential Assistance
Service ID Code: MHS 17

(0 Service Description

(a) Providers need flexibility when submitting invoices for services provided
under a variety of different service elements.

OHA has consolidated the invoiceable services, paid from Part C funds,
from multiple service elements into MHS 17. This flexibility allows us to
use funding provided by MHS 17 and reduce the number of agreement
amendments issued to transfer funds from one service element to another.
The MHS 17 funding is allocated as a single pool that is used to pay for the
invoiceable services described in the Service Elements listed below.

These Service Elements and the invoiceable service components for each
are referenced by title and exist in detail in ‘Exhibit B-1, Service
Descriptions’:

i. MHS 26 - NON-RESIDENTIAL MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
FOR YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS IN TRANSITION

ii. MHS 27 - RESIDENTIAL MENTAL HEALTH TREATMENT
SERVICES FOR YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS IN TRANSITION

jii. MHS 28 - RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

iv, MHS 30 - MONITORING, SECURITY, AND SUPERVISION
SERVICES FOR INDIVIDUALS UNDER THE JURISDICTION
OF THE ADULT AND JUVENILEPANELS OF THE
PSYCHIATRIC SECURITY REVIEW BOARD

v. MHS 34 - ADULT FOSTER CARE SERVICES

vi. MHS 36 - PRE-ADMISSION SCREENING AND RESIDENT
REVIEW SERVICES (PASRR)

Within the above Service Elements, any Specialized Requests for
management of physical or health problems, including, but not
limited to, seizures, incontinency, diabetes, and pain management
require a Prior Authorization from OHA, using the Intensive
Services Request Form located at
https://www.oregon.gov/iOHA/HSD/OHP/Pages/MH-Rates.aspx.

(b)  Authorization, Monitoring, and Review

i For Services to non-Medicaid-eligible Individuals indicated in
Exhibit B-1, County shall attach a copy of the bill or receipt, for the
item or Service, to a combined monthly invoice, itemized by
Individual. Part C funding for Psychiatric Security Review Board
(PSRB) non-medically approved Services are only for the period
shown and do not carry forward into following years’ allotments.

i, Funding for Specialized Requests, (1)(g) above, will follow a
process to assure necessity of services required by an Individual in
exceptional need, that would not fit within the Intensive Services

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 75 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

108



)

3)

4)

)

P0O-44300-0026012/lob

Requests of the Rate Review Committee (RRC), with the following
structure:

A. A proposal is then reviewed by a minimum of two clinicians
to assure initial necessity of services considering the current
circumstances, history of interventions, limits of current
resources and potential plans for stabilization.

B. If there is sufficient initial necessity, then the proposal will
be reviewed by the RRC to determine a recommendation of
approval or denial.

C. If approved, the Specialized Request will follow the same
process indicated in (2)(a), “Authorization, Monitoring and
Review.”

jii. If denied, the Requestor will be notified in writing with rationale
determined by the RRC.
Performance Requirements

Providers submitting invoices for payment under any of the Service Elements
identified in Section (1) above must meet the conditions shown in the specific
Service Element in Exhibit B-1to receive prompt and complete payment of
invoices.

Reporting Requirements

See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

Special Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit B-1 for the specific service element(s) requirements.

Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Settlement language, for the specific Service Element(s)
requirements, in Section 1.£.(1).

Page 76 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

109



v.  Service Name: NON-RESIDENTIAL MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR
ADULTS

Service 1D Code: MHS 20

(1)  Service Description
(a) Definition(s):

DSM-5 means The Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders,
Fifth Edition (or DSM-V), incorporated by reference herein, and is the 2013
update to the American Psychiatric Association's (APA’s) classification and
diagnostic tool. The DSM-5 serves as a universal authority for psychiatric

diagnosis.

(b) MHS 20 Services are:

i Services delivered to Individuals diagnosed with serious mental
illness or other mental or emotional disturbance posing a danger to
the health and safety of themselves or others.

ii. Community based services that shall include one or more of the
following:
A. Use of standardized protocols and tools to identify the level

of service need and intensity of care and coordination,
addressing salient characteristics such as age, culture, and
language;

Apply OHA approved, standardized level of care tools for
Individuals diagnosed with serious and persistent mental
illness at intervals prescribed by OHA;

Condition management and whole person approach to single
or multiple conditions based on goals and needs identified by
the Individual;

General outpatient services including, but not limited to, care
coordination and case management;

Medication and medication monitoring;
Meaningful Individual and family involvement;

Rehabilitation services including Individual, family and
group counseling;

Coordinate and facilitate access to appropriate housing
services and community supports in the Individual’s
community of choice, including rent subsidy; and

Other services and supports as needed for Individuals at the
sole discretion of OHA.

jii. Services County shall provide, but is not limited to:

A.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Outreach: Partner with healthcare providers and other social
service partners who provide screening for the presence of

Page 77 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

110



behavioral health conditions to facilitate access to
appropriate services;

B. Early I[dentification and Screening: Conduct periodic and
systematic methods that identify Individuals with behavioral
health conditions and potential physical health consequences
of behavioral health conditions which consider
epidemioclogical and community factors, as identified in the
most recently submitted and approved Local Plan; and

C. Initiation and Engagement: Promote initiation and
engagement of Individuals receiving services and supports,
which may include but are not limited to:

L Brief motivational counseling; and

IL Supportive services to facilitate participation in
ongoing treatment.
2) Performance Requirements
County shall:

(a) Provide coordination of care services for Individuals living in residential
treatment programs. The coordination of care shall include participation in
the residential Provider’s treatment planning process and in planning for the
Individual’s transition to outpatient services;

(b)  Comply with Qutpatient Services, as described in OAR 309-019-0100
through 309-019-0220, and Community Treatment and Supports, as
described in QAR 309-032-0301 through 309-032-0890, as such rules may
be revised from time to time; and

(c) Maintain a Certificate of Approval for the delivery of clinical services in
accordance with OAR 309-008-0100 through OAR 309-008-1600, as such
rules may be revised from time to time.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(4) Special Reporting Requirements
None

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2). In addition:

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 78 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTH 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

111



w. Service Name: CIVIL COMMITMENT SERVICES
Service ID Code: MHS 24

)

PO-44300-0026012/1ob

Service Description

The civil commitment process is intended to provide care and treatment to
Individuals who, because of a mental disorder, are alleged to be or have been
determined to be dangerous to themselves or others, or unable to provide for their
basic needs.

The County is responsible for certain pre-civil commitment actions under ORS
chapter 426, such as prehearing commitment investigation, discharge planning and
notice requirements. OHA has also delegated the responsibility for the assignment
and placement of civilly committed Individuals to the County under this Agreement
and OAR 309-033-0290.

The goal of MHS 24 Services is to divert Individuals from civil commitment,
provide Services in community-based settings outside of the state hospital,
community hospitals or other secure settings, and to support Individuals in their
progress towards stabilization and community-based outpatient Services.

(a) Eligibility for Services

County shall provide MHS 24 Services to Individuals, who are 18 years or
older, and who:

i. Require emergency hold services under ORS 426.232 and ORS
426.233, or are being held on a warrant of detention pending a civil
commitment hearing under ORS 426.070;

ii. Are alleged to be a person with a mental illness and may be diverted
from civil commitment;

iti. Are currently committed to OHA under ORS 426.130 or
recommitted to OHA under QRS 426.307;

iv. Are diverted through the civil commitment process to voluntary
treatment, conditional release, outpatient commitment, and assisted
outpatient treatment as described in ORS 426.125 through ORS
426.133;

v. Are not currently civilly committed or have civil commitment
proceedings pending, but have been:

A. Civilly committed under ORS 426.130 more than once,
recommitted under ORS 426.307, held on two or more
emergency holds under ORS 426.232 or 426.233 in the last
year that did not result in a civil commitment, or held on two
or more warrants of detention under ORS 426.070 in the last
year that did not result in a civil commitment; and

B. Require continuing Services to prevent hospitalization and
posing a danger to themselves or others; or

C. Require continuing Services to maintain stability and leam
skills needed to be placed in a more integrated community
setting; and

Page 79 of 213

Y 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

112



)

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob

D. Had their civil commitment end within the past 12 months.

Performance Requirements

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

M

(2

When providing Services under this Service Element, County shall:

i. Comply with all applicable statutes and rules, including but not
limited to ORS chapters 426 and 430 generally, ORS 430.630(3)-
(4), ORS 426.241(5), and OAR chapter 309, divisions 8, 14, 15, 19,
32 and 33, which may be revised from time to time;

il Ensure that the County, to the extent it provides direct Services, and
its Providers (including but not limited to community hospitals,
secure residential treatment facilities, residential treatment facilities,
residential homes, outpatient services or other providers):

iii. Comply with all applicable statutes and administrative rules,
including but not limited to OAR 309-035-0100 through 309-035-
0225, as such rules may be revised from time to time;

iv. Comply with and maintain any certifications or licenses required to
operate or provide Services;

v. Provide any required secure transportation by an approved Provider
in compliance with OAR chapter 309, division 32; and 33, as such
rules may be revised from time to time; and

vi. Submit required information to OHA electronically through the
Oregon Patient and Resident Care System (OP/RCS) or its
replacement, within 12 hours of an Individual’s admission to and
discharge from placement at a hospital, residential facility, or
residential home, in order to receive MHS 24 Services.

Assist all eligible and interested Individuals with applying for public
assistance, medical assistance, and any other state or federal benefits that
the individual may be eligible for now or upon discharge from
institutionalization;

{nvestigate and Report allegations of abuse regarding Individuals and
provide protective services to those Individuals to prevent further abuse.
The investigation, reporting, and protective services must be completed in
compliance with ORS 430.768 and OAR chapter 407, division 45, as such
statutes and rules may be revised from time to time;

Provide payment for MHS 24 Services provided to Individuals, who are
uninsured, underinsured, not eligible for Medicaid, or have exhausted
Medicaid services, including those who meet the criteria for Citizen Alien
Waived Medical Program;

Coordinate with any third-party payors, including but not limited to
coordinated care organizations, for the payment of MHS 24 Services
covered for the Individual under private insurance or through public or
medical assistance programs; and

Contract with Providers to meet the MHS 24 Services needs of eligible
Individuals in the County’s service area.

Pre-Commitment Service Requirements
Page 80 0f 213

Y 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

113



County shall provide pre-commitment Services to Individuals described in
Subsection a.(1)(a)i.-ii. of MHS 24, including but not limited to:

ii.

tes
1.

iv,

Vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

Provide notice as required under ORS 426.070, ORS 426.233, ORS
426.234, and ORS 426.235;

Have a certified mental health investigator conduct a prehearing
investigation, within applicable statutory timeframes, pursuant to
ORS 426.070, ORS 426.074, ORS 426.200 and OAR 309-033-0920
through OAR 309-033-0940;

Submit a recommendation, based on the prehearing investigation
report, to the court under ORS 426.070;

Provide an investigation report as required under ORS 426.070;

Assign and place a person, under a warrant of detention, at a hospital
or nonhospital facility, approved by OHA, in accordance with ORS
426.070 and OAR chapter 309, division 33;

Initiate civil commitment proceedings as required in ORS
426.180(6);

Provide reports as required under ORS 426.228 for emergency
holds;

Assign and direct the placement or transfer of an Individual, who is
on an emergency hold, to a hospital or nonhospital facility, approved
by OHA, in accordance with ORS chapter 426 and OAR chapter
309, division 33;

Provide transportation for an Individual on an emergency hold under
ORS 426.233; and

In providing recommendations, treatment service planning, and
discharge planning, ensure that Individuals:

A. Are recommended for Services in the least restrictive, most
integrated setting appropriate to meet the Individual’s
behavioral health needs;

B. Are diverted from placement at the state hospital, community
hospitals, and secure residential treatment facilities,
whenever possible; and

C. Are considered for diversion through voluntary treatment,
conditional release, outpatient commitment, and assisted
outpatient treatment, as described in ORS 426.125 through
ORS 426.133.

(h) Placement During Commitment Requirements

County shall assign and direct the placement of Individuals described in
Subsection a.(1)(a)iii. of MHS 24, to an appropriate Provider in accordance
with ORS chapter 426 and OAR chapter 309, division 33, and provide the
following:

P(0-44300-0026012/lob

Develop a treatment service plan for Individual in the least
restrictive, most integrated setting appropriate to meet the

Page 81 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

114



m
1L

iv.

V.

vi.

vit,

viii.

ix.

Individual’s behavioral health needs, preferences, choices and
strengths;

Identify an appropriate Provider that is able to meet the Individual’s
behavioral health needs and willing to provide that care, treatment
and Services to the [ndividual;

Ensure MHS 24 Services are provided in the least restrictive and
most integrated setting appropriate to meet the Individual’s
behavioral health needs;

Divert the Individual from placement at a state hospital, community
hospital or secure residential treatment facility, whenever possible;

Obtain any necessary approvals from the Provider to allow
admission, if it is a residential or state hospital placement;

Continue to send referrals to Providers until the Individual is placed
at or is receiving appropriate Services;

Assign and direct the placement of that the Individual to an
appropriate Provider with the Provider’s agreement;

Issue a written assignment order immediately upon the commitment
of the Individual by the court under ORS 426.130 or recommitment
under ORS 426.307, and at any time the committed Individual is
transferred to another Provider during the commitment period; and

Submit a copy of all written assignment orders to OHA as required
by rule;

A, Monitor the Individual’s progress in their treatment service
plan and current placement, and identify when the Individual
may be transferred to a lower level of care;

B. Ensure discharge planning continues throughout the
Individual’s civil commitment placement with the goal of
moving the Individual to the lowest level of care that will
maintain long term their mental and physical health; and

C. File a written certificate discharging the Individual early
from civil commitment pursuant to ORS 426.300 with the
last committing court and the court of residence, if the
County determines that the Individual is no longer a person
with mental illness or that the transfer of the Individual to a
voluntary status is in the Individual’s best interest.

(i) Behavioral Health Service Requirements

For Individuals described in Subsection a.(1)(a)iv.-v. of MHS 24, County
shall provide:

i.

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob

Care Coordination to facilitate the Individual’s access to Services in
the least restrictive, most integrated setting appropriate to meet the
Individual’s behavioral health needs, strengths and to the extent
possible consistent with the Individual preferences and choices,
including:

Page 82 0of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

115



Facilitate communication between the Individual, family,
natural supports, community resources, Providers, DHS (if
eligible for Aging and People with Disabilities (APD) or
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (I/DD) services),
and the courts (if applicable);

Serve as a Single Point of Contact (SPOC) for all referrals
from OSH to Assertive Community Treatment, as described
in OAR 309-019-0225(25) (Definition of SPOC), in ACT
Admission Process, as described in OAR 309-019-0248; and

Collaborate with the DHS, APD and I/DD Divisions to
support the Behavioral Health Treatment Service needs of
Individuals determined service-eligible for APD or I/DD.

i1 Stabilization, Maintenance and Preventative Services, including:

A.

P0-44300-0026012/10b
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Develop a treatment service plan for the Individual in the
least restrictive, most integrated setting appropriate to meet
the Individual’s behavioral health needs, preferences, choices
and strengths;

Identify appropriate Providers that are able to meet the
Individual’s behavioral health needs and willing to provide
that care, treatment and Services to the Individual;

Monitor the Individual’s progress in their treatment service
plan, and identify when the Individual may receive Services
in a lower level of care or lower level of court intervention (if
applicable);

Ensure treatment service planning continues throughout the
Individual’s receipt of MHS 24 Services with the goal of the
Individual receiving Services in the lowest level of care and
at the lowest level of court intervention that will maintain
their mental and physical health long term;

Provide crisis stabilization services, such as accessing
psychiatric, medical, or qualified professional intervention to
protect the health and safety of the Individual and others;

Provide timely, appropriate access to crisis intervention to
prevent or reduce acute emotional distress, which might
necessitate psychiatric hospitalization;

Assist the Individual with money management, when
requested by an Individual, to include accurate
documentation of all funds deposited and withdrawn when
funds are held in trust for the Individual;

Assist with or arrange for the supervision of the Individual’s
daily living activities and life skills (if appropriate), such as
training in nutritional wellness, personal hygiene, clothing
care and grooming, communication with social skills, health
care, household management, and using community

Page 83 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

116



resources to support increasing independence and preparation
for living in the most integrated community environment;

L. Provide for or arrange for the care of the Individual,
including the assumption of responsibility for the safety and
well-being of the Individual;

J. If the Individual is placed in a residential setting, ensure the
Provider is providing a safe environment for the Individual;

K. Provide for or arrange for the administration and supervision
of prescribed and non-prescribed medication(s);

L. Provide or arrange for routine and emergency transportation;

M. Provide for or arrange for the management of aggressive or
self-destructive behavior;

N. Provide for or arrange for the management of any specialized
diet for the Individual, prescribed by a physician, requiting
extra effort or expense in preparation of food;

0. Provide for or arrange for the management of the
Individual’s physical or health problems including, but not
limited to, seizures, incontinency, diabetes, and pain

management;

P. Provide financial assistance for behavioral health services, as
described in OAR 410-172-0630;

Q. Provide financial assistance for individual services and

activities, as described in OAR 309-035-0200, including but
not limited to the:

L. Provision of adequate shelter;

IL Assistance with acquiring skills to live as
independently as possible; and

III.  Assistance with accessing other additional services,

as needed;
R. Provide a transitional treatment plan for Individuals when
they are no longer receiving Services;
S. Provide interpretive services as needed;
T. Provide notice to the Individual of any admission decisions

for residential care in accordance with OAR 309-035-
0163(11); and

U. Provide any clinical records and contact information to OHA
and its designees for oversight and coordination purposes
upon request;

jii. Services to Remove Barriers to Community-Based Care when
consistent with the Individual’s treatment service plan, including,
but are not limited to:

A. Room and board payments;

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 84 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

117



B. Rental assistance, security deposits, and application fees;

C. Utility payments and deposits;

D. Prescription or over-the-counter medications and medical
supplies not covered by Medicaid or other sources;

E. Transportation;

F. Activities to facilitate the securing of guardianship Services,

including but not limited to:
L Paying the costs of:

(A)  Court hearings to determine the necessity,
continuation, or termination of a
guardianship; and

(B)  Guardianship Services to make decisions
related to overseeing the care and supervision
of an Individual; and

IL. If guardianship is expected to continue beyond a
transitional period of time (6 months or less), then
other payment options should be sought in order to
maintain guardianship Services; and

G. Activities to facilitate the securing of representative payee
services.

3) Reporting Requirements

Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms
are located at http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx. County shall submit electronically, to
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, an annual accounting report of financial
assistance within 45 calendar days from the end of the contract year.

See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

If County has authorized or anticipates authorizing delivery of MHS 24 Services to
an Individual and wishes to reserve MHS 24 Service capacity as defined in OAR
309-011-0115(3), up to a maximum of 30 calendar days for that Individual while
the Individual is not actually receiving MHS 24 Services, County shall submit a
written Reserved Service Capacity Payment (RSCP) request and a CAR to OHA
under OAR 309-011-0105 through 309-011-0115. If OHA approves the RSCP
request and the CAR for a non-Medicaid-eligible Individual, OHA and County
shall execute an amendment to the Financial Assistance Award to reduce residential
funding, and add funds necessary to make the approved disbursements to reserve
the service capacity. If the Individual is Medicaid-eligible, OHA and County shall
execute an amendment to the Financial Assistance Award to add funds necessary to
make the approved disbursements to reserve the service capacity. OHA shall have
no obligation to make the disbursements unless and until the Financial Assistance
Award has been so amended.

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 85 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

118



5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement Procedures, and Confirmation
of Performance and Reporting Requirements:
(a) Payment
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”
Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).
(b) Disbursement of Financial Assistance:

Invoices shall be submitted electronically, to
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, with the subject line “Invoice, contract
#(your contract number), contractor’s name” on an OHA approved invoice,
and at the level of detail prescribed by OHA no later than 60 calendar days
after the Individual’s last date of Services. All payments made to County
under this Agreement are subject to recovery by OHA as follows:

i. If an audit of the Services rendered by County under this Agreement,
whether directly or through subcontract(s), results in a refund to or
disallowance by the federal government of payment made to County
under this Agreement, OHA may recover from County the amount
of the refund or disallowance and any applicable OHA matching
funds.

il If County expends funds awarded to County under this Agreement
for unauthorized expenditures, OHA may recover from County the
full amount of unauthorized expenditures.

iii. In the event funds awarded to County under this Agreement are
subject to recovery as described above, OHA may, at its option,
upon written notice to County:

A. Offset the amount subject to recovery against other funds due
County from OHA under this Agreement or otherwise; or

B. Demand that County pay to OHA the amount subject to
recovery, in which case County shall immediately pay said
amount to OHA. Nothing in this section will affect OHA’s
right to terminate this Agreement as set forth in Exhibit G,
“Standard Terms and Conditions,” or any remedies otherwise
available to OHA as a result of the termination of this
Agreement.

iv. Upon 30 calendar days advance written notice to County, OHA may
withhold financial assistance otherwise due County under this
Agreement if County fails to submit required reports when due or
fails to perform or document the performance of Services under this
Agreement. Immediately upon written notice to County, OHA may
withhold financial assistance if County or its Provider(s) no longer
holds all licenses, certificates, letters of approval, or certificate of
approval that are required to perform the Services. Withholding of
financial assistance may continue until County submits the required
reports or performs the required Services. Nothing in this section
will affect OHA’s right to terminate this Agreement as set forth in
Exhibit G, “Standard Terms and Conditions,” or any remedies

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 86 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

119



otherwise available to OHA as a result of the termination of this
Agreement.

V. OHA will not provide financial assistance in excess of the maximum
compensation amount set forth in this Agreement. If this maximum
compensation amount is increased by amendment of this Agreement,
the amendment must be fully effective before County or its
Provider(s) performs Services subject to the amendment. No
financial assistance will be provided for any Services performed
before the beginning date or after the expiration date of this
Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time in accordance
with its terms.

P0O-44300-0026012/tob Page 87 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

120



X. Service Name: MOBILE CRISIS INTERVENTION SERVICES
Service 1D Code: MHS 25

) Service Description

(a) Overview:

Mobile Crisis Intervention Services (MCIS) are services delivered in
person, by the County through its’ Community Mental Health Programs
(CMHP), to Individuals experiencing a behavioral health crisis, regardless
of age or insurance type. Services shall be provided to Individuals in
community-based settings, 24 hours a day, seven days a week, every day of
the year.

The goal of MCIS is to provide a community-based alternative to
individuals experiencing a behavioral health crisis, in accordance with OAR
309-072-0140 (4) and OAR 309-072-0140 (10). MCIS are provided in the
community at times and locations that are convenient to the Individual and
their family. Services and supports are provided by staff trained in crisis
response, in a trauma-informed manner. Individuals can receive the services
and supports that they need in a timely manner. MCIS is focused on early
intervention and crisis de-escalation, with a focus on diverting unnecessary
trips to the emergency department, hospitalizations, child welfare
involvement, juvenile justice or arrests, and providing services and supports
to the individual in the least restrictive environment necessary.

Mobile Crisis Intervention Team (MCIT) will work with the Individual in
crisis and their family, when applicable, to attempt to address and deescalate
the current crisis. MCIT will attempt to screen each Individual for risk of
harm to self and others and work with the Individual to identify additional
services and supports to meet the needs of the Individual in crisis and
actively connect the Individual directly to services and supports whenever
possible.

All MCITs shall provide services and supports in accordance with OAR
309-072-0100 to 309-072-0160.

Crisis line services shall be provided in accordance with OAR 309-019-
0300.

County will contact OHA, as soon as possible, upon identification, when
there are known Service Elements or OARs that are not being met. A Plan
of Action must be submitted, in writing to OHA, which outlines the steps to
be taken to address the areas of concern and includes a timeline for
resolution.

(b) In the event of a Disaster Declaration: provide disaster response, crisis
counseling services to include:

i. Responding to local disaster events by:

A, Providing Crisis counseling and critical incident stress
debriefing to disaster victims; police, firefighters and other
“first-responders”; disaster relief shelters; and the
community-at-large.

PO-44300-0026012/1cb Page 88 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23} DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

121



B. Coordinating crisis counseling services with County
Emergency Operations Manager (CEOM); and providing
crisis counseling and stress management services to
Emergency Operations Center staff according to agreements
established between the County and CEOM.

il Assisting County’s in the provision of these services as part of a
mutual aid agreement; and

iili. For the purpose of responding to a specified local disaster event,
payment may be made through an amendment to the Financial
Assistance Agreement for these services.

2) Performance Requirements

(a) County shall maintain a Certificate of Approval for MCIS OAR 309,
Division 008 (309-008-0100 — 309-008-1600) Health Treatment Services
OAR 309, Division 008 (309-008-0100 — 309-008-1600) Certification of
Behavioral Heaith Treatment Services AR 309, Division 008 (309-008-0100
- 309-008-1600) Certification of Behavioral Health Treatment Services.

(b)  County shall comply with OAR 309-072-0100 to 309-072-0160 as such
rules may be revised from time to time.

3) Reporting Requirements
None.

(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

(a) Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Reguirements.aspx.

(b)  County must collect and submit data in accordance with the OHA approved
data collection process monthly.

(c) County agrees to work directly with OHA approved contractor to submit the
required data in a timely manner. The OHA approved contractor is
responsible for analyzing the provided data and developing quarterly
reports.

(d)  County is responsible for reviewing and approving the quarterly reports
generated by the OHA approved contractor.

(e) OHA approved contractor shall submit the quarterly report to OHA via
HsD.Contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov, on behalf of the County, no later than
45 calendar days following the end of each quarter.

5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements”.

Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.f.(1).

P0O-44300-00260(2/1ob Page 89 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

122



y. Service Name: NON-RESIDENTIAL MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES FOR
YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS IN TRANSITION

Service ID Code: MHS 26

(1) Service Description

Non-Residential Mental Health Services for Youth & Young Adults in Transition
(MHS 26 Services) are Mental Health Services delivered to Individuals through 25
years of age who are under the jurisdiction of the Juvenile Panel of the Psychiatric
Security Review Board (JPSRB) or are considered Young Adults in Transition
(YAT), as specified in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” and have
behavioral health needs posing a danger to the health and safety of themselves or
others. The purpose of MHS 26 Services is to provide mental health services in
community settings that reduce or ameliorate the disabling effects of behavioral
health needs. Services shall be trauma informed, culturally and linguistically
responsive and work to reduce the impacts of adverse childhood and traumatic
experiences. Non-Residential Mental Health Services for Youth & Young Adults in
Transition can include:

(a) Care coordination and residential case management services;
(b) Vocational and social services;

(c) Rehabilitation;

(d)  Support to obtain and maintain housing (non-JPSRB only});
(e) Abuse investigation and reporting;

f) Medication (non-JPSRB only) and medication monitoring;
(g) Skills training;

(h) Mentoring;

(i) Peer support services;

G) Emotional support;

(k)  Occupational therapy;

()] Recreation;

(m)  Supported employment;

(n) Supported education;

(o) Secure transportation (non-JPSRB only);

()  Individual, family and group counseling and therapy;

(q)  Rent Subsidy (non-JPSRB only); and

r Other services as needed for Individuals, at the sole discretion of OHA.

2) Performance Requirements

(a) Services to Individuals through 25 years of age under the jurisdiction of the
JPSRB or are considered Young Adults in Transition (YAT) must be
delivered with the least possible disruption to positive relationships and
must incorporate the following:

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 90 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990¢-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

123



1L

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

The rapport between professional and Individual will be given as
much of an emphasis in Service planning as other case management
approaches;

Services will be coordinated with applicable adjunct programs
serving both children and adults, so as to facilitate smoother
transitions and improved integration of Services and supports across
both adolescent and adult systems;

When youth and young adults identify as a member of an Oregon
Tribe or as an American Indian/Alaska Native (AI/AN} services will
be culturally responsive and coordinated with their Tribe or the
Urban Indian Health Program;

Services will be engaging and relevant to youth and young adults;
Services will accommodate the critical role of peers and friends;

The treatment plan will include a safety component to require that
identity development challenges and boundary issues are not cause
for discontinuing Service;

The “Service Plan” will include a specific section addressing
Services and supports unique to the developmental progress of
Youth and Young Adults in Transition including school completion,
employment, independent living skills, budgeting, finding a home,
making friends, parenting and family planning, and delinquency
prevention;

The OHA Young Adult Service Delivery Team or its designee shall
provide direction to Provider regarding Services to be delivered to
the youth or young adult; and

Secured transportation services under the “Service Description™
section for MHS 26 Services will be approved by OHA on a case by
case basis.

(b)  Required non-JPSRB Services that are not otherwise covered by another
resource will be funded at the Medicaid Fee Schedule rate as a basis for
disbursement purposes. Disbursements will be made by invoice in
accordance with the “Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and
Agreement Settlement Procedures” section below. Approved Services may
include one or more of the following:

i.
ii.
i,
iv.
v,

vi,

P0-44300-0026012/lob

Additional staffing;

Transportation;

Interpreter services;

Medical services and medications;

Rental assistance, room and board, and personal incidental funds; or

Non-medically approved services including, but not limited to,
assessment, evaluation, outpatient treatment, and polygraph.

Page 91 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

124



3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

4) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly reports, no later than 45
calendar days following the end of each subject quarter for which financial
assistance is awarded through this Agreement. Reports must be prepared using
forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

There shall be a report from each Young Adult Residential Treatment Program
providing Services under this Agreement within the County (or one report that
breaks out each separate entity) for data subject to that specific quarter. Each report
shall include the following components:

(a) Number admitted;

{(b)  Number discharged,

(c) Demographic information for discharges;
(d) Program Strengths;

(e) Program Challenges; and

{}] Success Story.

In addition, all programs for which financial assistance is awarded through this
Agreement shall administer the Adult Hope Scale, located at
https.//ppc.sas.upenn.edu/sites/default/files/hopescale.pdf, to each Individual and
include the results on the quarterly report. Counties providing both MHS 26 and
MHS 27 Services need only provide one report for both Services.

S Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 92 0of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

125



Z. Service Name:

RESIDENTIAL MENTAL HEALTH TREATMENT
SERVICES FOR YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS IN
TRANSITION

Service ID Code: MHS 27
(1) Service Description

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

PO-44300-002601 2/lob

Residential Mental Health Treatment Services for Youth & Young Adults in
Transition (MHS 27 Services) are mental health Services delivered to
Individuals 17 through 24 years of age in a group residential setting to
enable the Individual to acquire sufficient stability and connectivity to the
community to enable them to live as independently as they choose. These
are Individuals who are under the jurisdiction of the Juvenile Panel of the
Psychiatric Security Review Board (JPSRB) or are considered Young
Adults in Transition {YAT), and are transitioning from an institutional
setting, or in need of a structured and supportive transitional living
environment. This includes Individuals without insurance or those who are
under-insured. Programs are expected to maximize this funding to enhance
an Individuals’ likelihood of living independently in the community through
the provision of the Services listed in MHS 27. Services shall be trauma
informed, culturally and linguistically responsive and work to reduce the
impacts of adverse childhood and traumatic experiences.

Individuals eligible for these Services are those that the OHA’s Young
Adult Coordinator or designee determines are unable to live independently
at the time of the referral, without supervised intervention, training, or
support.

Services are delivered on a 24-hour basis to Individuals with mental or
emotional disorders who have been hospitalized or are at immediate risk of
hospitalization, who need continuing services to avoid hospitalization, or
who are a danger to themselves or others, or who otherwise require
transitional care to remain in the community.

These Services have no timeline. [t is expected that they will be used to help
the Individual connect to ongoing, longer-term supports, meet their needs
and goals, and support them in moving toward a positive life trajectory.

It is preferable that the peer support specialist and the clinical staff meet
with the Individual together during the initial contact, or soon thereafter.
Contacts should be as frequent as is necessary for the goals of the project to
occur, but no less than twice per week.

MHS 27 Services shall be delivered in appropriately licensed and certified
programs or facilities and include, but are not limited to, the following:

i. Crisis stabilization services, such as accessing psychiatric, medical,
or qualified professional intervention to protect the health and safety
of the Individual and others;

iii, Timely, appropriate access to crisis intervention to prevent or reduce
acute, emotional distress, which might necessitate psychiatric
hospitalization;

jii. Money and household management;

Page 93 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23}) DO)J Approval 12/21/2023

126



iv.

vi.

vii.
viii.

ix.

X.

Xi.
xii,
xiii.
xiv.
XV.
Xvi.

XVii.

Supervision of daily living activities such as skill development
focused on nutrition, personal hygiene, clothing care and grooming,
and communication skills for social, health care, and community
resources interactions;

Provision of care including the assumption of responsibility for the
safety and well-being of the Individual;

Administration, supervision, and monitoring of prescribed and non-
prescribed medication and client education on medication
awareness;,

Provision or arrangement of routine and emergency transportation;
Developing skills to self-manage emotions;

Management of a diet, prescribed by a physician, requiring extra
effort or expense in preparation of food;

Management of physical or health problems including, but not
limited to, diabetes and eating disorders;

Skills training;

Mentoring, peer delivered services, and peer support services;
Positive use of leisure time and recreational activities;
Supported education;

Supported employment;

Occupational therapy; and

Recreation.

(2) Performance Requirements
(a) Services to Individuals through 24 years of age under the jurisdiction of the
JPSPRB or are considered Youth & Young Adults in Transition shall be
delivered with the least possible disruption to positive relationships and
shall incorporate the following principles and practices:

.
L

.

ses
1] 8

iv.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob

The rapport between professional and Individual will be given as
much of an emphasis in Service planning as other case management
approaches;

Services will be coordinated with applicable adjunct programs
serving both children and adults so as to facilitate smoother
transitions and improved integration of Services and supports across
both adolescent and adult systems;

When Individuals identify as members of an Oregon Tribe or as
American Indians/Alaskan Natives (AI/AN), services will be
culturally responsive and coordinated with their Tribe or the Urban
Indian Health Program.

Services will be engaging and relevant to Youth & Young Adults in
Transition;

Services will accommodate the critical role of peers and friends;

Page 94 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

127



vi. The individual service and support plan will include a safety
component to require that identity development challenges and
boundary issues are not cause for discontinuing Service;

vii.  The individual service and support plan will include a specific
section addressing Services and supports unique to the
developmental progress of Youth & Young Adults in Transition,
including school completion, employment, independent living skills,
budgeting, finding a home, making friends, parenting and family
planning, and delinquency prevention; and

viil,  Staff working in the programs must have training in suicide
prevention and intervention strategies and Trauma Informed Care
and be provided with ongoing maintenance of the skills and practice
associated with these approaches.

(b) Services to Individuals under the jurisdiction of the JPSRB shall be

delivered in support of the conditional release plan as set forward by the
JPSRB Board.

(c) Providers of MHS 27 Services funded through this Agreement shall comply
with OAR 309-035-0100 through 309-035-0225, as such rule may be
revised from time to time,

(d)  Providers of MHS 27 Services funded though this Agreement shal! maintain
a Certificate of Approval in accordance with OAR 309-008-0100 through
309-008-1600.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(4) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov, the following written reports using forms and
procedures prescribed on OHA’s website located at
http://'www.oregon.gov/iOHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

(a) A quarterly report that includes the following elements per each Young
Adult Residential Treatment Program per subject quarter:

i. Number admitted;

i, Number discharged;

ifi. Demographic information for discharges;
iv. Program strengths;

V. Program challenges; and

vi. Success story.

(b) In addition, all programs shall administer the Adult Hope Scale, located at
https://ppc.sas.upenn.edu/sites/default/files/hopescale.pdf, as an outcome
measurement tool.

%) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 95 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

128



See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.f.(1).

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 96 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT¥ 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

129



aa. Service Name: INPATIENT OR RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES
Service ID Code: MHS 28

)

)

P0-44300-0026012/lob

Service Description

Inpatient or Residential Treatment Services are delivered to Individuals with a
mental or emotional disturbance who require treatment on an inpatient or
residential basis (24 hours, 7 days a week) in a hospital, Secure Residential
Treatment Facility (STRF), Residential Treatment Facility (RTF), or Residential
Treatment Home (RTH).

The specific MHS 28 Services delivered to an Individual are determined based
upon an assessment of treatment needs that is person-centered, and the development
of a treatment service plan that is individualized to promote stabilization, skill-
building, and preparation to be living in a more integrated community.

The goal of MHS 28 Services is to divert Individuals from involuntary civil or
forensic commitment, provide Services in community-based settings outside of the
state hospital, community hospitals or other secure settings, and to support
Individuals in their progress towards stabilization and community-based outpatient
Services.

Performance Requirements

(a) Eligibility for Services

i County shall provide MHS 28 Services to Individuals, who are 18
years or older, and who:

A, Are found guilty except for insanity of a criminal offense
under ORS 161.327 or ORS 161.328;
B. Are committed as extremely dangerous persons with

qualifying mental disorders under ORS 426.701, or
recommitted under ORS 426.702;

C. Are found by a court to lack the fitness to proceed under
ORS 161.370 and are not being held in custody at the state
hospital or a correctional facility;

D. Are not currently under a guilty except for insanity or
extremely dangerous judgment, but have been:

L Found guilty except for insanity under ORS 161.327
or 161.328 more than once, civilly committed as
extremely dangerous persons under ORS 426.701
more than once, or recommitted as extremely
dangerous persons under ORS 426.702; and

IL. Require continuing Services to prevent involuntary
forensic commitments, extremely dangerous civil
commitments, hospitalization, and posing a danger to
themselves or others; or

III.  Require continuing Services to maintain stability and
learn skills needed to be placed in a more integrated
community setting;

Page 97 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

130



P0O-44300-0026012/lob

(b)

E. Had their guilty except for insanity term discharged early or
terminated by operation of law within the past 12 months;
and

F. Had their extremely dangerous civil commitment or
recommitment end within the past 12 months.

ii. County may provide MHS 28 Services to Individuals, who are 18
years or older, and who:

A. Are under a guardianship order under ORS 125.305; or

B. Have a mental or emotional disturbance and require inpatient
or residential treatment.

General Requirements

When providing Services under this Service Element to Individuals
described in Subsection a.(2)(a) of MHS 28, County shall:

i. Comply with all applicable statutes and rules, including but not
limited to ORS chapters 426 and 430 generally, ORS 430.630(3)-
(4), ORS 426.241(5), and OAR chapter 309, divisions 8, 14, 15, 19,
32, 33, 35, and 88 which may be revised from time to time;

iii. Ensure that the County, to the extent it provides direct Services, or
its Providers (including but not limited to community hospitals,
residential treatment facilities, residential homes or other providers):

A. Comply with all applicable statutes and administrative rules,
including but not limited to OAR 309-015-0000 through
309-015-0060 and OAR 309-035-0100 through 309-035-
0225, as such rules may be revised from time to time; and

B. Comply with and maintain any certifications or licenses
required to operate or provide Services under MHS 28.

ji. Assist all eligible and interested Individuals with applying for public
assistance, medical assistance, and any other state or federal benefits
that the individual may be eligible for now or upon discharge from
their current placement;

iv. Investigate and report allegations of abuse regarding served
Individuals and provide protective services to those Individuals to
prevent further abuse. The investigation, reporting, and protective
services must be completed in compliance with ORS 430.731
through 430.768 and OAR chapter 407, division 45, as such statutes
and rules may be revised from time to time;

V. Provide payment for MHS 28 Services provided to Individuals, who
are uninsured, underinsured, not eligible for Medicaid, or have
exhausted Medicaid services, including those who meet the criteria
for Citizen Alien Waived Medical Program;

vi. Coordinate with any third-party payors, including but not limited to
coordinated care organizations, for the payment of MHS 28 Services
covered for the Individual under private insurance or through public
or medical assistance programs; and

Page 98 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

131



vii.

Contract with Providers to meet the MHS 28 Services needs of
eligible Individuals in the County’s service area.

{c) Placement-Related Service Requirements
For Individuals described in Subsection a.{2)(a) of MHS 28, County shall:

iii.

iv.

v.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Develop a treatment service plan for Individual in the least
restrictive, most integrated setting appropriate to meet the
Individual’s behavioral health needs, preferences, choices and
strengths;

Identify an appropriate Provider that is able to meet the Individual’s
behavioral health needs and willing to provide that care, treatment
and Services to the Individual;

Ensure MHS 28 Services are provided in the least restrictive and
most integrated setting appropriate to meet the Individual’s
behavioral health needs;

Divert the Individual from placement at a state hospital, community
hospital or secure residential treatment facility, whenever possible;

Obtain any necessary approvals from the Provider to allow
admission, if it is a residential or state hospital placement;

Continue to send referrals to Providers until the Individual is placed
at or is receiving appropriate Services;

Monitor the Individual’s progress in their treatment service plan and
current placement, identify when the Individual may be transferred
to a lower level of care, and provide that information to any
supervisory authority {e.g., the Psychiatric Security Review Board
(PSRB) or court); and

Ensure discharge planning continues throughout the Individual’s
placement in a hospital or inpatient/residential placement with the
goal of moving the Individual to the lowest level of care that will
maintain long term their mental and physical health.

(d) Behavioral Health Service Requirements

For Individuals described in Subsection aa.(2)(a) of MHS 28 County shall
provide:

.
1.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob

Care Coordination to facilitate the Individual’s access to Services in
the least restrictive, most integrated setting appropriate to meet the
Individual’s behavioral health needs, preferences, choices and
strengths, including:

A. Facilitate communication between the Individual, family,
natural supports, community resources, Providers, DHS (if
eligible for APD or I/DD services), and PSRB or courts (if
applicable);

B. Identify Providers that can provide Behavioral Health
Treatment Services consistent with the Individual’s treatment

Page 99 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

132



service plan, whether it is provided on an inpatient,
residential or outpatient basis;

Organize, facilitate and participate in interdisciplinary team
(1DT) meetings with the Individual, Providers, and CCO
Care Coordinators (if the Individual is a CCO member);

Facilitate access to community-based rehabilitative
Behavioral Health Treatment Services that are recovery-
oriented, culturally responsive, and geographically
accessible;

Facilitate access to Peer Delivered Services;

Serve as the Single Point of Contact (SPOC) for all referrals
from OSH to Assertive Community Treatment, as described
in OAR 309-019-0225(25) (Definition of SPOC), in ACT

Admission Process, as described in QAR 309-019-0248; and

Collaborate with the DHS, APD and /DD Divisions to
support the Behavioral Health Treatment Service needs of
Individuals determined service-eligible for APD or I/'DD;

ii. Stabilization, Maintenance and Preventative Services, including:

A,

H.

P0-44300-0026012/lob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Provide crisis stabilization services, such as accessing
psychiatric, medical, or qualified professional intervention to
protect the health and safety of the Individual and others;

Provide timely, appropriate access to crisis intervention to
prevent or reduce acute emotional distress, which might
necessitate psychiatric hospitalization;

Assist the Individual with money management, when
requested by an Individual, to include accurate
documentation of all funds deposited and withdrawn when
funds are held in trust for the Individual;

Assist with or arrange for the supervision of the Individual’s
daily living activities and life skills (if appropriate), such as
training in nutritional wellness, personal hygiene, clothing
care and grooming, communication with social skills, health
care, household management, and using community
resources to support increasing independence and preparation
for living in the most integrated community environment;

Provide for or arrange for the care of the Individual,
including the assumption of responsibility for the safety and
well-being of the Individual;

[f the Individual is placed in an inpatient or residential
setting, ensure the Provider is providing a safe environment
for the Individual;

Provide for or arrange for the administration and supervision
of prescribed and non-prescribed medication(s);
Provide or arrange for routine and emergency transportation;

Page 100 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

133



Q.

Provide for or arrange for the management of aggressive or
self-destructive behavior;

Provide for or arrange for the management of any specialized
diet for the Individual, prescribed by a physician, requiring
extra effort or expense in preparation of food,

Provide for or arrange for the management of the
Individual’s physical or health problems including, but not
limited to, seizures, incontinency, diabetes, and pain
management;

Provide financial assistance for behavioral health services, as
described in OAR 410-172-0630;

Provide financial assistance for individual services and
activities, as described in OAR 309-035-0200, including but
not limited to the:

L Provision of adequate shelter;

IL Assistance with acquiring skills to live as
independently as possible; and

III.  Assistance with accessing other additional services,
as needed or as assigned by OHA;

Provide a transitional treatment plan for Individuals when
they are no longer receiving Services, and when and how to
reinitiate services if and when needed;

Provide interpretive services as needed;

Provide notice to the Individual of any admission decisions
for residential care in accordance with OAR 309-035-
0163(11Y;

Provide any clinical records and contact information to OHA
and its designees for oversight and coordination purposes
upon request;

ifi. Services to Remove Barriers to Community-Based Care when
consistent with the Individual’s treatment service plan, including,
but are not limited to:

A,
B.
C.
D

=

P(0-44300-0026012/1cb
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Room and board payments;
Rental assistance, security deposits, and application fees;
Utility payments and deposits;

Prescription or over-the-counter medications and medical
supplies not covered by Medicaid or other sources;

Transportation;

Activities to facilitate the securing of guardianship Services,
including but not limited to:

L Paying the costs of:

Page 101 of 213
DQJ Approval 12/21/2023

134



(A)  Court hearings to determine the necessity,
continuation, or termination of a
guardianship; and

(B)  Guardianship Services to make decisions
related to overseeing the care and supervision
of an Individual; and

IL If guardianship is expected to continue beyond a
transitional period of time (6 months or less), then
other payment options should be sought in order to
maintain guardianship Services; and

B. Activities to facilitate the securing of representative payee
services.

(e) Funding-Dependent Performance Requirements

For Individuals described in Subsection aa.(2){(a) of MHS 28, County may
provide the Services described in Subsection aa.(2)(c)-(d) of MHS 28,
subject to the requirements in Subsection aa.(2)(b) of MHS 28.

3) Reporting Requirements
Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms
are located at http://'www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Reguirements.aspx. County shall submit electronically, to
hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov, an annual accounting report of financial
assistance within 45 calendar days from the end of the contract year.

(4) Special Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

(a) Payment
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2). In addition, use
Part A payment language, Section 1.b.

County understands and agrees that funding under Part A or Part C may be
reduced by Contract amendment to the extent County’s billings exceed the
allocated total aggregated budget as set for in Exhibit C, “Financial
Assistance Award.” The Part C awards do not apply to PSRB Individuals,
as these Services are covered in the Service Description for MHS 30.

(b) Disbursement of Financial Assistance:

Invoices shall be submitted electronically, to
hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov, with the subject line “Invoice, contract
#(your contract number), contractor’s name” on an OHA approved invoice,
and at the level of detail prescribed by OHA no later than 60 calendar days
after the Individual’s last date of Services.

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 102 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

135



P0-44300-0026012/lob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Page 103 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

136



bb. Service Name:

Service ID Code:

MONITORING, SECURITY, AND SUPERVISION SERVICES
FOR INDIVIDUALS UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF THE
ADULT AND JUVENILE PANELS OF THE PSYCHIATRIC
SECURITY REVIEW BOARD

MHS 30

(1) Service Description

Monitoring, Security, and Supervision Services for Individuals under the
Jurisdiction of the Adult and Juvenile Panels of the Psychiatric Security Review
Board (PSRB & JPSRB) (MHS 30 Services). MHS 30 Services are delivered to
Individuals who are placed in their identified service area by Order of Evaluation or
Conditional Release Order as designated by OHA.

(a) Monitoring Services include:

.
1.

iv.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob

Assessment and evaluation for the court, and the PSRB or JPSRB of
an Individual under consideration for placement on a waiting list or
for Conditional Release from the Oregon State Hospital (OSH), a
hospital, jail, or facility designated by OHA, to determine if the
Individual can be treated in the community, including identification
of the specific requirements for the community placement of an
Individual;

Supervision consistent with the requirements of the PSRB or JPSRB
Conditional Release Order;

Coordination with OSH, a hospital, or facility designated by OHA
on transition activities related to Conditional Release of an
Individual;

Provide supported housing and intensive case management for
identified programs at approved budgeted rates; and

Administrative activities related to the Monitoring Services
described above, including but not limited to:

A. Reporting of the Individual’s compliance with the
conditional release requirements, as identified in the order
for Conditional Release, as identified in the Order for
Conditional Release, through monthly progress notes to the
PSRB or IPSRB;

B. Providing interim reports for the purpose of communicating
current status of an Individual to the PSRB or JPSRB;

C. Submitting requests for modifications of Conditional Release
Orders to the PSRB or JPSRB;

D. Implementing board-approved modifications of Conditional
Release Orders;

E. Implementing revocations of Conditional Release due to
violation(s) of Conditional Release Orders and facilitating
readmission to OSH;

Page 104 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

137



F. Responding to Law Enforcement Data System (LEDS)
notifications as a result of contact by the Individual receiving
MHS 30 Services with law enforcement agencies; and

G. An annual comprehensive review of supervision and
treatment Services to determine if significant modifications
to the Conditional Release Order should be requested from
the PSRB or JPSRB.

(b)  Security and Supervision Services includes:

Security Services include: Services identified in the PSRB or
JPSRB Conditional Release Order, which are not medically
approved Services but are required for safety of the Individual and
the public, and are covered at a rate based on a determination of the
risk and care needs, as identified in the Security Services Matrices
below: For additional information about Security and Supervision
Services, see PSRB Security Payment Scoring.doc

Security Services

Matrix Low

(Community) Risk Med Risk | High Risk
High Care Rate 1 Rate 2 Rate 3
Med Care Rate 2 Rate 3 Rate 4
Low Care Rate 3 Rate 4 Rate 5

ii.

Security Services for those residing in a Class | or Class 2 Secure
Residential Treatment Facility (SRTF): When Forensic risk factors,
and risk to the public, create a need to provide an alternative security
payment level, the Security Services Payment will be as defined in

the table below:

138

Maintenance
Minimal Medium High
Security Services | Additional | Additional | Additional
Matrix Risk Risk Risk
SRTF (Very High | SRTF SRTF SRTF
Risk) Rate 6 Rate 7 Rate 8
iii. Supervision Services include approved Services that are not covered

by another resource and will be funded at the current Medicaid Fee
Schedule rate as a basis for reimbursement purposes. Disbursement
will be made by invoice in accordance with the “Financial
Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures” section below. Approved Supervision Services may
include one or more of the following:

A. Additional staffing (utilize the Intensive Rate Request
process through Rate Review Committee);

B. Transportation;

P0O-44300-0026012/10b
Y 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Page 105 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



C. Interpreter services;

D. Medical services and medications;

E. Rental assistance, room and board, and person and incidental
funds;

F. Payee;

G. Guardianship (initial and ongoing) costs;

H. To obtain legal identification; and

L Non-medically approved services including, but not limited

to: assessment, evaluation (including evaluations ordered
beyond typical monitoring required by the PSRB), outpatient
treatment, and polygraph if such expenses are needed to
maintain compliance with the terms of a conditional release
and not covered by some other mechanism.

(2) Performance Requirements

(@)

(b)

Providers of MHS 30 Services funded through this Agreement shall comply
with OAR 309-019-0160, as such rule may be revised from time to time.

Providers of MHS 30 Services funded through this Agreement shall
maintain a Certificate of Approval in accordance with OAR 309-008-0100
through OAR 309-008-1600, as such rules may be revised from time to
time.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

“) Special Reporting Requirements

Upon request County shall submit one or more of the following to the OHA
Contract Administrator for MHS 30 Services:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(0
(8
(h)

Conditional Release Plan or Conditional Release Order;
Monthly progress notes;

Incident reports;

Evaluations and assessments;

Notifications of Revocation and Order of Revocation;
Treatment Plans

Notification of Change of Residence; or

Any other documentation deemed necessary for monitoring and
implementing MHS 30 Services.

(5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.

Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.£.(1).

P0O-44300-0026012/lob

Page 106 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

139



cc. Service Name: ENHANCED CARE AND ENHANCED CARE OUTREACH
SERVICES

Service ID Code: MHS 31

(1) Service Description

Enhanced Care and Enhanced Care Outreach Services (MHS 31) enable an
Individual to leave, or avoid placement in, the Oregon State Hospital (OSH). MHS
31 Services are outpatient community mental health and psychiatric rehabilitation
Services delivered to Individuals who are Department of Human Services (DHS),
Adults and People with Disabilities (APD) service need eligible and who have been
diagnosed with a severe mental illness with complex behaviors and require
intensive community mental health services for successful integration into the
community.

) Performance Requirements

(a) Providers of MHS 31 Services funded through this Agreement shall comply
with OAR 309-019-0155, as such rule may be revised from time to time.

(b)  Providers of MHS 31 Services funded through this Agreement shall
maintain a Certificate of Approval in accordance with OAR 309-008-0100
through 309-008-1600, as such rules may be revised from time to time.

(c) MHS 31 Services funded through this Agreement may only be delivered to
Individuals who satisfy the requirements for receipt of nursing facility or
community based care under Medicaid, as specified in OAR 411-015-0000
through 411-015-0100, as such rules may be revised from time to time, and
who receive such services in a nursing facility, residential care facility,
assisted living facility, or foster home operated by a Provider that has
entered into an agreement with and is licensed by DHS’s APD Division to
provide services to designated individuals. All Individuals shall be
evaluated by the Provider and local DHS APD licensed facility staff prior to
placement.

d) If County wishes to use MHS 31 funds made available through this
Agreement for delivery of MHS 31 Services to otherwise eligible
Individuals not residing in a DHS APD facility, County shall receive a
variance from OHA in accordance with OAR 309-008-1600, as such rules
may be revised from time to time.

(e) County shall notify the OHA ECS Coordinator prior to transition from ECS.
County shall also notify the OHA ECS Coordinator within three working
days of any change in an Individual’s medical or psychiatric condition,
which jeopardizes the placement.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(4)  Special Reporting Requirements

(a) County shall submit a Referral Outcome Form within 21 calendar days of
receiving a referral to, enhancedcare.team(@'odhsoha.oregon.gov.

P(Q-44300-0026012/lob Page 107 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

140



(b)  County prepares and electronically submits to,
enhancedcare.team(@odhsoha.oregon.gov,

i. Monthly Enhanced Care Services Census Report;
ii. CS Data Base Part I; and
iii. ECS Data Base Part 11.

() County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts(ciodhsoha.oregon.gov, the following reports using forms and
procedures as prescribed on OHA’s website, located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.:

i. Monthly Enhanced Care Services Census Report;
ii. ECS Data Base Part [; and
fii. ECS Data Base Part Il.

S5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section |.f.(2). In addition:

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 108 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21:2023

141



dd, Service Name: ADULT FOSTER CARE SERVICE
Service ID Code: MHS 34

1) Service Description

Adult Foster Care Services (MHS 34) are Services delivered to Individuals with
chronic or severe mental illness who are in need of further stabilization in a
licensed care setting for the potential of transitioning to an integrated setting. These
Individuals have been hospitalized or are at immediate risk of hospitalization, are in
need of continuing Services to avoid hospitalization, or pose a danger to the health
and safety of themselves or others, and are unable to live by themselves without
supervision. MHS 34 Services are delivered in a family home or facility with five
or fewer Individuals receiving MHS 34 Services. The purpose of MHS 34 Services
is to maintain the Individual at his or her maximum level of functioning or to
improve the Individual’s skills to the extent that he or she may live more
independently.

Integrated setting was recently explained in a publication by the Department of
Justice', dated June 22, 2011, as follows:

“In the years since the Supreme Court’s decision in Olmstead v. L.C., 527
U.S. 581 (1999), the goal of the integration mandate in title 11 of the
Americans with Disabilities Act [is] to provide individuals with disabilities
opportunities to live their lives like individuals without disabilities.”

“By contrast, segregated settings often have qualities of an
institutional nature. Segregated settings include, but are not limited
to: (1) congregate settings populated exclusively or primarily with
individuals with disabilities; (2) congregate settings characterized by
regimentation in daily activities, lack of privacy or autonomy,
policies limiting visitors, or limits on individuals’ ability to engage
freely in community activities and to manage their own activities of
daily living; or (3) settings that provide for daytime activities
primarily with other individuals with disabilities.”

The expectation for individuals living in Adult Foster Care Services is to stabilize
and transition to a non-licensed, integrated setting. Perpetual living at this level of
care is not warranted and can only continue with the ongoing approval by OHA’s
Independent Qualified Agent (IQA) in determining this specific Level of Care
(LOC).

All stays in Adult Foster Care Services shall include activities to integrate the
individual into the community based on individual goals and desires, and should
not be limited to foster home group activities.

MHS 34 Services include, but are not limited to, the following:

(a) Crisis stabilization services such as accessing psychiatric, medical, or
qualified professional intervention to protect the health and safety of the
individual and others;

! hitps://www.ada.gov/olmstead/g&a_olmstead.htm

P0-44300-0026012/1ob Page 109 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

142



(b)

(©
(d)

(e)

)

(8

(h)
(i)

@)

Timely, appropriate access to crisis intervention to prevent or reduce acute,
emotional distress, which might necessitate psychiatric hospitalization;

Management of personal money and expenses;

Supervision of daily living activities and life skills, such as training in
nutritional wellness, personal hygiene, clothing care and grooming,
communication with social skills, health care, household management, and
using community resources to support increasing independence and
preparation for living in the most integrated living environment;

Provision of care including assuming the responsibility for the safety and
well-being of the individual;

Administration and supervision of prescribed and non-prescribed
medication;

Provision of or arrangement for routine medical and emergency
transportation;

Management of aggressive or self-destructive behavior;

Management of a diet, prescribed by a physician, requiring extra effort or
expense in preparation of food; and

Management of physical or health problems including, but not limited to,
seizures, incontinency, diabetes, and pain management.

2) Performance Requirements

()

(b)

(©)

PO-44300-0026012/lob

Providers of Foster Care MHS 34 Services funded through this Agreement
shall comply with OAR 309-040-0300 through 309-040-0455, as such rules
may be revised from time to time.

Prior to commencement of Foster Care MHS 34 Services, County shall
develop and submit to OHA, for OHA’s review and approval, a personal
care plan for the Individual. After commencement of Foster Care MHS 34
Services, County shall require that the Provider of the MHS 34 Services
delivers the Services to the Individual in accordance with the Individual’s
personal care plan. County shall complete a new personal care plan at least
annually for each Individual receiving MHS 34 Services funded through
this Agreement and revise as necessary.

County shall assist OHA’s function of licensing and certifying homes
providing Foster Care MHS 34 Services funded through this Agreement by
performing the following tasks within the timelines required by OAR 309-
040-0300 through 309-040-0455, as such rules may be revised from time to
time:

i For new licenses and certifications: County shall assist with
inspection of the homes, and completion and submission to OHA of
the following, as prescribed by OHA:

A. Foster Home License or Certification Application;
B. Foster Home Inspection Form;
C. Criminal History Check;

Page 110 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

143



D. A letter of support in the form and substance attached as
Attachment #1, and

E. Any other information necessary for licensing or certifying
the residences.

iii. For renewal of existing licenses and certifications: County shall
assist OHA with the completion and submission to OHA of a letter
of support in the form and substance attached as Attachment #1, and
with inspection of the homes and completion and submission to
OHA of the Foster Home License/Certification Evaluation Forms;
and

jii. County shall assist currently licensed and potential new foster homes
providing MHS 34 Services to meet statutory requirements for
training and testing by:

A. Maintaining and distributing copies of OHA’s “Basic
Training Course and Self-Study Manual” and associated
video tapes; and

B. Making test site(s) available, administering tests provided by
OHA, and mailing completed tests promptly to OHA for
scoring.

OHA will make the final determination on issuance and renewal of
licenses and certifications, based on information submitted by
County as required above.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

4) Special Reporting Requirements
None

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.f.(1).

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 111 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

144



ATTACHMENT #1

Health Systems Division
500 Summer Street NE E-86
Salem, OR 97301

Dear HSD Licensing and Certification Unit Manager,

Pursuant to OAR 309-040-0315 (3)(e), | am submitting this letter of support on behalf of [name of CMHP],
an authorized designee of the Local Mental Health Authority in [County].

At this time, [name of CMHP] is in support of the operation of [name of AFH] AFH located at [full address
of AFH] under the following conditions:

¢ The provider maintains substantial compliance with all regulations that govern the licensure and safe
operation of AFHs.

o The provider ensures the delivery at all times adequate room and board, food, safety and sanitation
oversight, compliance with building and maintenance requirements, supervision, and care to
vulnerable adults with mental, emotional, or behavioral disorders who reside at the AFH by qualified
and approved providers, resident managers, staff, and volunteers.

e The provider timely submits incident reports to the CMHP in accordance with applicable ORS' and
OARs.

s The provider complies with any additional requirements or conditions set forth by the Health Systems
Division, Oregon Health Authority.

[name of CMHP] will immediately notify HSD when it changes its level of support for the continued
operation of or adjusted placement referral decisions associated with [name of AFH] AFH.

[name of CMHP] will immediately notify HSD in writing if CMHP staff become aware of or observe any
violations to regulations that govern the health, safety, and welfare of residents who reside at the home.

[name of CMHP] will provide a detailed written summary to HSD {and to the Office of Training,
Investigations, and Safety, formerly OAAPI) if CMHP staff become aware of or observe any medication
errors, inadequate or unsafe physical conditions of the home, unauthorized persons living or sleeping in
the home, failure by the AFH provider to timely submit incident reports, suspected abuse or neglect to
residents, crimes committed on the property, or in any other situation that jeopardizes the health, safety,
and welfare of vulnerable adults who live in and receive services in the home.

Name of the LMHA representative or designee who is signing this letter of support: [name]
Full title of the LMHA representative or designee who is signing this letter of support: [title]

Email of the LMHA representative or designee who is signing this letter of support: [email]

Signature of the CMHP Director or designee Date of signature

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob Page 112 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

145



ee. Service Name: OLDER OR DISABLED ADULT MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES

Service 1D Code: MHS 35

1) Service Description
Older or Disabled Adult Mental Health Services (MHS 35 Services) are:

[f Specialized Service requirement MHS 35A applies, specialized geriatric mental
health Services delivered to older or disabled adults with mental illness, as such
Services are further described in the Specialized Service requirement MHS 35A.

(2) Performance Requirements

Funds awarded for MHS 35 Services on lines in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance
Award,” containing “35A” in column “Part IV” may only be expended on MHS 35
Services as described in the Specialized Service requirement MHS 35A.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

“) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contractsiodhsoha.oregon.gov. written quarterly summary financial and
program narrative reports on the delivery of Older or Disabled Adult Mental Health
Services, no later than 45 calendar days following the end of each subject quarter
for which financial assistance is awarded through this Agreement, that are subject
to Specialized Service requirements 35A. Reports must be prepared using forms
and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AM H/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2). In addition:

Upon amendment to the Financial Assistance Award, OHA shall adjust monthly
allotments as necessary to reflect changes in the funds shown for Specialized
Service requirement MHS 35A Services provided under that line of the Financial
Assistance Award.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 113 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

146



ff. Service Name: PRE-ADMISSION SCREENING AND RESIDENT REVIEW
SERVICES (PASRR)

Service ID Code: MHS 36

1) Service Description

(a) Pre-admission Screening and Resident Review Services (MHS 36 Services)
are evaluation services delivered to Individuals who are entering a nursing
facility where a PASRR level | screen has indicated that they have a serious
and persistent mental illness (SPMD), regardless of insurance type or lack of
health insurance, or are residing in a nursing home. Eligible populations
served are: Medicaid, those uninsured, underinsured, or have exhausted
Medicaid Services, Citizen/Alien-Waived Emergent Medical, Medicare,
Private Insurance, or Private Pay.

i. Referred for placement in Medicaid-certified long-term care nursing
facilities if they are exhibiting symptoms of a serious persistent
mental illness; or

iil. Residing in Medicaid-certified long-term care nursing facilities and
experiencing a significant change in mental health status.

(b)  Pre-admission Screening and Resident Review Services must determine if:

i. Individuals have a serious and persistent mental illness, as defined in
OAR 309-036-0105(36); and
ii. [f those determined to have a serious and persistent mental illness

are appropriately placed in a nursing facility or need inpatient
psychiatric hospitalization.

(2)  Performance Requirements

(a) County shall comply with the Nursing Home Reform Act, under the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987 (OBRA 1987), as amended by
OBRA 1990, including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. 1396r(e)(7) and OAR
411-070-0043 through 411-070-0045, as such laws and rules may be revised
from time to time. County shall maintain a Certificate of Approval in
accordance with OAR 309-008-0100 through OAR 309-008-1600, as such
rules may be revised from time to time.

(b)  County shall require that all Individuals referred for MHS 36 Services by
licensed nursing facilities receive MHS 36 Services review and evaluation.

(c) All MHS 36 Services paid for through this Agreement must be delivered by
a Qualified Mental Health Professional (as defined in OAR 309-039-0510
(10) or a Licensed Medical Practitioner (as defined in OAR 309-019-
0105(92)).

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

(4)  Special Reporting Req uirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contracts(@odhscha.oregon.gov, written forms HSD 0438 and HSD 0440, no

P0-44300-0026012/10b Page 114 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

147



later than 21 calendar days following each review for which financial assistance is
awarded through this Agreement. Reports must be prepared using forms and
procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx.

3) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Procedures
See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2). In addition:

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 115 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

148



gg.  Service Name: START-UP
Service ID Code:  MHS 37

)

@)

&)

@

Q)

PO-44300-0026012/1ob

Service Description

The funds awarded for MHS 37 — Start-Up must be used for Start-Up activities as
described in a special condition in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” and
Exhibit K, “Start-Up Procedures.” For purposes of this special project description,
Start-Up activities are activities necessary to begin, expand, or improve mental
health services. These expenses are distinct from routine operating expenses
incurred in the course of providing ongoing services. Notwithstanding the
description of the Start-Up activities in a special condition, funds awarded for MHS
37 may not be used for real property improvements of $10,000 and above. When
OHA funds in the amount of $10,000 and above are to be used for purchase or
renovation of real property, County shall contact the Social Determinants of Health
(SDOH) Unit of OHA and follow the procedures as prescribed by that unit.

MHS 37 funds are typically disbursed prior to initiation of services and are used to
cover approved, allowable Start-Up expenditures, as described in Exhibit K, that
will be needed to provide the services planned and delivered at the specified site(s).

Performance Requirements

The funds awarded for MHS 37 must be expended only in accordance with Exhibit
K, “Start-Up Procedures,” which is incorporated herein by this reference.

Reporting Requirements
None

Special Reporting Requirements

Using the OHA prescribed “Start-Up Request & Expenditure Form,” the County shall
prepare and electronically submit, to_hsd.contractsiiodhsoha.oregon.gov, a request for
disbursement of allowable Start-Up funds as identified in a special condition in a
particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award.” The reports must be
prepared in accordance with forms prescribed by OHA and the procedures described
in Exhibit K, “Start-Up Procedures.” Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/QHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reportin g-Requirements.aspx.

Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment Start-Up, Section 1.¢., and Settlement Start-Up language, Section
L.£.(1)(b).

Page 116 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

149



hh. Service Name: SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT SERVICES
Service ID Code: MHS 38

(1) Service Description

(a) Provide Individual Placement and Support (IPS) Supported Employment
Services (MHS 38 Services) consistent with the Dartmouth IPS Supported
Employment Fidelity Model. The IPS Fidelity Manual, published by
Dartmouth Psychiatric Research Center, incorporated by reference herein,
can be found in the IPS Employment Center’s Document Library, at:
https://ipsworks.org/index.php/library/, or at the following link:
https://ipsworks.org/wp-content/uploads/201 7/08/ips-fidelity-manual-3rd-
edition_2-4-16.pdf.

(b) Definitions:

i. Competitive Integrated Employment means full-time or part time
work: at minimum wage or higher, at a rate that is not less than the
customary rate paid by the employer for the same or similar work
performed by other employees who are not individuals with
disabilities, and who are similarly situated in similar occupations by
the same employer and who have similar training, experience, and
skill; with eligibility for the level of benefits provided to other
employees; at a location where the employee interacts with other
persons who are not individuals with disabilities (not including
supervisory personnel or individuals who are providing services to
such employee) to the same extent that individuals who are not
individuals with disabilities and who are in comparable positions
interact with other persons; and as appropriate, presents
opportunities for advancement that are similar to those for other
employees who are not individuals with disabilities and who have
similar positions.

ii. Division Approved Reviewer means the Oregon Supported
Employment Center of Excellence (OSECE). OSECE is OHA’s
contracted entity responsible for conducting Supported Employment
fidelity reviews, training, and technical assistance to support new
and existing Supported Employment Programs statewide.

i, Supported Employment Services are individualized Services that
assist Individuals to obtain and maintain integrated, paid,
competitive employment. Supported Employment Services are
provided in a manner that seeks to allow Individuals to work the
maximum number of hours consistent with their preferences,
interests, and abilities and are individually planned, based on person-
centered planning principles and evidence-based practices.

2) Performance Requirements
County shall provide MHS 38 Services in a manner that is consistent with fidelity
standards established in OAR 309-019-00270 through 309-019-0295 and is
consistent with County’s Local Plan as per ORS 430.630. If County lacks qualified
Providers to deliver MHS 38 Services, County shall implement a plan, in

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 117 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

150



consultation with their respective CCO and OHA, to develop a qualified Provider
network for Individuals to access MHS 38 Services. MHS 38 Services must be
provided by Providers meeting Supported Employment fidelity scale standards.

3) Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

4) Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly summary reports on the
delivery of MHS 38 Services no later than 45 calendar days following the end of
each subject quarter for which financial assistance is awarded through this
Agreement. Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by
OHA. Forms are located at
http://www_oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-Requirements.aspx

(a) A Provider delivering MHS 38 Services with funds provided through this
Agreement may not use funds to deliver covered Services to any individual
known to be enrolled in the Oregon Health Plan at the time Services are
delivered.

(b)  Quarterly reports shall include, but are not limited to:

i. Individuals with Serious and Persistent Mental [llness (SPMI) who
receive MHS 38 Services and are employed in Competitive
Integrated Employment, as defined above;

i, Individuals with SPMI who no longer receive MHS 38 Services and
are employed in competitive integrated employment without
currently receiving supportive services from a supported
employment specialist; and

ji. Individuals with SPMI who received MHS 38 Services as part of an
Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) Program.

(5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Settiement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Settlement language, Section 1.£.(2).

P0O-44300-002601 2/lob Page 118 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

151



ii. Service Name: PROJECTS FOR ASSISTANCE IN TRANSITION FROM
HOMELESSNESS (PATH) SERVICES

Service ID Code: MHS 39

1) Service Description

The goal of the Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH)
Services program is to reduce or eliminate homelessness for [ndividuals with
Serious Mental [llness (SMI), as defined in OAR 309-036-0105(10), who
experience homelessness or are at imminent risk of becoming homeless. Individuals
may also have a co-occurring Substance Use Disorder (SUD).

PATH funds are used to provide a menu of allowable Services, prioritizing strect
outreach, case management, and Services which are not supported by mainstream
Mental Health programs. Through its Services, PATH links a vulnerable population
who experience persistent and pervasive health disparities to mainstream and other
supportive Services. Collectively these efforts help Individuals with SMI
experiencing homelessness secure safe and stable housing, improve their health,
and live a self-directed, purposeful life.+

Eligible Services, not otherwise covered by another resource, are as follows:

(a) Outreach services including prioritization of those with serious mental
iliness who are veterans and experiencing homelessness or in danger of
becoming homeless;

(b)  Screening and diagnostic treatment services;
(c) Habilitation and rehabilitation services;

(d)  Community mental health services including recovery support services (e.g.
peer specialist/recovery coaches);

(e) Alcohol and drug treatment services;

M) Staff training, including the training of individuals who work in shelters,
mental health clinics, substance abuse programs, and other sites where
Individuals who are homeless require Services;

(g Case management services, including:

i. Preparing a plan for the provision of community mental health and
other supportive services to eligible Individuals experiencing
homelessness and reviewing such plan not less than once every three
months;

il Providing assistance in obtaining and coordinating social and
maintenance services for eligible Individuals who experience
homelessness, including services relating to daily living activities,
peer support, personal financial planning, transportation services,
habilitation and rehabilitation services, prevocational and vocational
training, and housing;

jii. Providing assistance to eligible Individuals who experience
homelessness in obtaining income support services, including
housing assistance, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
(SNAP), and supplementa! securing income benefits;

PO-44300-0026012/1ab Page 119 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-G12990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

152



iv. Referring eligible Individuals who experience homelessness for such
other services as may be appropriate; and

V. Providing representative payee services in accordance with Section
1631(a)(2) of the Social Security Act if the eligible Individuals who
experience homelessness are receiving aid under title XVI of such
Act and if the applicant is designated by the Secretary of the Social
Security Administration to provide such services.

(h)  Supportive and supervisory services in residential settings including
shelters, group homes, supported apartments and other residential settings
specifically serving those living with serious mental illness or co-occurring
disorders;

(i) Referrals for primary health services, job training, educational services, and
relevant housing services; and including use of peer providers to help to
assure that these services are successfully accessed by individuals who
experience homelessness with serious mental iliness(es) and co-occurring
disorders; and

() Housing services as specified in Section 522(b)(10) of the PHS Act as
amended (U.S.C. § 290cc-22(b)), including:

i Minor renovation, expansion, and repair of housing;

il Planning of housing;

iii. Technical assistance in applying for housing assistance;
iv. Improving the coordination of housing services;

V. Security deposits;

vi. Costs associated with matching eligible Individuals who experience
homelessness with appropriate housing situations; and

vii.  One-time rental payments to prevent eviction.
No more than 20% of PATH funds allocated through MHS 39 shall be
expended for housing services.

(2)  Performance Requirements

Providers of MHS 39 Services funded through this Agreement shall comply with
OAR 309-032-0301 through 309-032-0351, as such rules may be revised from time
to time.

Services provided must be eligible services in accordance with 42 U.S.C, § 290cc-
22(b).

Providers of MHS 39 Services funded through this Agreement shall:

(a) Use third party and other revenue realized from provision of Services to the
extent possible;

(b)  Implement policies and procedures to prioritize use of other available
funding sources for PATH Services;

(c) Assist PATH-eligible Individuals in applying for benefits for which they
may be eligible for or entitled to, including but not limited to:

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 120 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

153



i Social Security Insurance (SS1)/Social Security Disability Insurance
(SSDI) or other financial assistance;

il Medicaid or Medicare;
ii. Veterans Administration Benefits; and
iv. SNAP.

(d)  Assist OHA, upon request, in the development of an annual application
requesting continued funding for MHS 39 Services, including the
development of a budget and an Intended Use Plan for PATH funds
consistent with the requirement set forth in Funding Opportunity
Announcement; and

(e) Provide, at a minimum, the following:

i Meet or exceed the current Government Performance and Results
Act (GPRA) Measures posted to the PATH Data Exchange website

hitps://pathpdx.samhsa.gov/ for the following measures:

A. Percentage of enrolled individuals who experience
homelessness in the PATH program who receive community
mental health services;

B. Number of homeless individuals who experience
homelessness contacted,;

C. Percentage of contacted individuals who experience
homelessness with serious mental illness who experience
homelessness and become enrolled in services; and

D. Number of PATH providers trained on SSI/SSDI Outreach,
Access, and Recovery (SOAR) to ensure eligible homeless
individuals are receiving benefits.

i, Active participation in the local Continuum of Care;
iii. Attendance at semi-annual PATIH Provider meetings;

iv. Attendance at PATH Technical Assistance trainings as requested by
OHA;

V. Development of an annual PATH Intended Use Plan including a
line-item budget and budget narrative using forms and templates
provided by OHA;

vi. Participation in annual PATH program site reviews conducted by
OHA; and

vii.  Participation in federal site reviews as needed or requested by OHA.

(f) All Individuals receiving MHS 39 Services provided through this
Agreement shall be enrolled and that Individual’s record maintained in the
Homeless Management Information Systems (HMIS).

(g) Service Providers who are recipients of MHS 39 funds must match, directly
or through donations from public or private entities, MHS 39 funds in an
amount that is not less than $1 of non-federal funds for each $3 of federal
PATH funds allocated through MHS 39.

PQ-44300-0026012/lob Page 121 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

154



3

C))

)

PO-44300-0026012/lob

i. Non-federal contributions required may be in cash or in-kind, fairly
evaluated, including plant, equipment, or services.

ii. Funding provided by the federal government, or services assisted or
subsidized to any significant extent by the federal government, shall
not be included in non-federal contributions.

Reporting Requirements
See Exhibit E, Section 10, “Reporting Requirements for MOTS.”

Special Reporting Requirements

County shall prepare and electronically submit, to
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov, written quarterly and annual progress and
financial reports on the delivery of PATH Services, no later than 45 calendar days
after the end of each subject quarter or year for which financial assistance is
awarded through this Agreement. Quarterly and Annual Progress Reports must be
completed and submitted at the PATH Data Exchange website. Financial Reports
must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms are
located at hitp://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-

Requirements.aspx.

Quarterly written reports documenting PATH eligible financial expenditures shall
be electronically submitted to _hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov.

Quarterly and Annual Progress Reports documenting actual utilization and
demographic data submitted through the PATH Data Exchange — Learning website
at https://pathpdx-learning.samhsa.gov/.

Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of
Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures

See Exhibit D, “Payment, Seitlement, and Confirmation Requirements.”

Use Payment and Confirmation language, Section 1.f.(2).

Page 122 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

155



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT B-2
SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

1. Not all Services described in Exhibit B-2 may be covered in whole or in part with financial
assistance pursuant to Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” of this Agreement. Only Services
in which costs are covered in whole or in part with financial assistance pursuant to Exhibit C,
“Financial Assistance Award,” as amended from time to time, are subject to this Agreement.

P0-44300-0026012/1ob Page 123 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

156



a. Service Name: PEER DELIVERED SERVICES (PDS)
Service ID Code: MHS 16

Specialized Service: VETERANS
Specialized ID Code: 16A

(1)  Service Description (exceeding Section 1, MHS 16)
County shall:

(a) Hire, train, and supervise Peer Support Specialists (PSS} or Peer Wellness
Specialists (PWS) with significant prior or current military experience;

(b)  Require that PSS or PWS acquire and maintain certification with the
Oregon Health Authority, Traditional Health Worker registry, including
those who identify as military veterans with current behavioral health needs;

(c) Provide PDS in a culturally competent manner as defined in OAR 410-180-
0300 through 410-180-0380 to Individuals who identify as military veterans
with behavioral health needs. Activities may include, but are not limited to:

i. 1:1 peer support;
ii. Systems navigation;
iii. Facilitation of support and education groups;

iv. Outreach; and
v. Community education.

(d)  Provide program participants with funds or material supports needed to
eliminate barriers to accessing health care services which will improve the
veteran’s behavioral health, support treatment plans, or support the
veteran’s recovery, or community engagement; and

(e) Engage and serve a minimum of 25 veterans annually.
(2) Performance Requirements (exceeding Section 2, MHS 16)
None
3) Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 3, MHS 16}
None

(4) Special Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 4, MHS 16)

Prepare and electronically submit to hsd.contractsi@lodhsoha.oregon.gov quarterly
reports no later than 45 calendar days following the end of each subject quarter
during the period for which financial assistance is awarded through this Agreement.
Reports must be prepared using forms and procedures prescribed by OHA. Forms
are located at https://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

(a)  The following information shall be provided for each report:

i Number of veterans served annually on a regular basis as shown by
being enrolled in peer services, and making use of peer supports on a
weekly basis;

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 124 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

157



iil. Number of veterans offered the pre and post survey supplied by
OHA;

iii. Number of veterans completing the pre and post survey;

iv. Survey responses for all completed surveys; and

v. Narrative description of program progress, successes, and barriers.

(b)  The following is an optional item to report:

Recommendations for programs in the future which may seek to build on
and scale this pilot model.

(5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of

Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures
(exceeding Section 5, MHS 16)

None

P(0-44300-0026012/10b Page 125 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

158



b. Service Name: MOBILE CRISIS INTERVENTION SERVICES
Service ID Code: MHS 25A

Specialized Service: STABILIZATION SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND THEIR

FAMILIES

Specialized ID Code: MHS 25A

(1)

P0-44300-0026012/lcb

Service Description (exceeding Section |, MHS 25)

County, through its Community Mental Health Programs (CMHPY), shall require
that stabilization services are available for eligible children (Birth through 20 years
of age) and their families for up to 56 calendar days, following the initial crisis
response, in accordance with OAR 309-072-0100 to 309-072-0160. This model of
care is based on a national crisis response model for children, and known as Mobile
Response and Stabilization Services (MRSS). Stabilization services are outlined in
MHS 25A and are required. MHS 25A will replace the former MHS 08 Crisis and
Transition Services (CATS).

When a provider responds to a child and family in crisis, they will work in
partnership with the child and their families, to de-escalate the current crisis and
connect the family to needed resources. In some cases, the provider may determine,
in partnership with the child and family, that they may benefit from immediate
access to stabilization services and supports to assist the family while waiting for
longer term ongoing services to be available.

Stabilization services are meant to be a short-term intervention that provides bridge
services that may include brief individual or family therapy, skills training, family
and youth peer support services and medication management while also helping the
family access the appropriate community-based service and supports.

Each family enrolled is offered rapid access to a Qualified Mental Health
Professional (QMHP) and Family Support Specialist who work directly with the
child and their family to create a service plan with short term goals and objectives
to meet the unique needs of the family, stabilize behavioral health needs; and
improve functioning in life domains while establishing and transitioning care to
longer term services and supports.

County shall provide stabilization services in accordance with Service Element
MHS 25 and OAR 309-072-0160.

(a) Family Support Specialist (FSS) Role and Responsibilities

i. The County will ensure a FSS is available in accordance with OAR
309-072-0160(2)(k).
iii. OHA will partner with community stakeholders to create a Family

Guide for Stabilization Services. Providers shall require that each
family enrolled in services receives a copy of the Family Guide for
Stabilization Services starting in March 2024.

(b) Subcontractors

i The County is ultimately responsible for making sure that all
required service elements and OARs are being met whether directly
provided or provided under sub-contractual arrangement.

Page 126 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

159



ii. County may subcontract with another agency to provide stabilization
services.

jii. Subcontractors are required to have a Certificate of Approval (COA)
to provide stabilization services.

iv. Subcontractors are required to meet all applicable rules under
OAR 309-072-0160.
V. County is required to submit either a copy of the contractual

agreement with the subcontractor or an MOU to
HSD.Contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov within 45 calendar days of
execution of this contract and must include at a minimum:

A. Roles and responsibilities of both the County and
subcontractor; and,

B. Plan for ongoing communication and coordination of
services between County and subcontractors.

(c) Whenever possible, providers should prioritize key leadership and direct
service staff attendance in the monthly Learning Collaborative facilitated by
the Oregon Health Authority.

2) Performance Requirements (exceeding Section 2, MHS 25)
(a) Optional Performance Requirements

i County may be eligible for an additional $10,000 in funding from
OHA if County can clearly demonstrate in writing, completion of
one of the activities listed below.

ii. County shall submit written documentation to:
hsd.contractsfiiodhsoha.oregon.gov prior to Jan. 31, 2024, to be
considered for payment.

iii. Eligible activities include the following:

A. 50% of the 2 person mobile crisis intervention teams
dispatched to the community will include a face-to-face
response, by either a QMHP or Family Support Specialist.

B. 50% of staff working with children and families attend the
Youth Save Training.

C. County is able to demonstrate, a 10% reduction in
emergency department boarding during calendar year 2023,
for children in their community.

D. 50% of staff receive an OHA approved advanced training in
working with neurodiverse and Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities (IDD) children and their families.

E. CMHP will provide no less than 5 presentations to their local
community stakeholders on Mobile Crisis [ntervention
Services and stabilization services for children and their
families, within their service area.

3) Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 3, MHS 25)

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 127 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

160



None.

4) Special Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 4, MHS 25)

(a) Forms are located at
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

(b)  County or subcontractor shall complete and submit the Authority approved

pre and post assessment tool and at the start and end of stabilization services
and submit the assessment to the Authority approved contractor.

(c) County agrees to work directly with OHA approved contractor to submit the
required pre and post assessment tools and other data points related to
stabilization services.

(d)  The OHA approved contractor is responsible for analyzing the provided
data and developing quarterly reports which includes outcome data for
stabilization services.

(e) County is responsible for reviewing and approving the quarterly reports
generated by the OHA approved contractor which include stabilization
services outcome data.

) OHA approved contractor shall submit the quarterly report to OHA via
hsd.contractsi@odhsoha.oregon.gov on behalf of the County, no later than
45 calendar days after the end of each quarter,

5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of

Performance and Reporting Requirements Procedures
(exceeding Section 5, MHS 25)

None.

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 128 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

161



c. Service Name: NON-RESIDENTIAL MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
FOR YOUTH & YOUNG ADULTS IN TRANSISTION

Service [D Code: MHS 26

Specialized Service: EARLY ASSESSMENT AND SUPPORT ALLIANCE (EASA)
Specialized 1D Code: 26A

(1) Service Description (exceeding Section 1, MHS 26)

Early Assessment and Support Alliance (EASAY} is a transitional, coordinated
specialty care program, serving young Individuals experiencing symptoms
consistent with a diagnosable psychotic disorder or at clinical high risk for such, for
approximately 2 years.

Services are described in the EASA Practice Guideline (Melton, R.P., Penkin, A,
Hayden-Lewis, K., Blea, P., Sisko, R., & Sale, T. (2013), incorporated by reference
herein.

Services shall prioritize communities that have been historically impacted by
racism, discrimination and health inequities. Services shall be trauma informed and
culturally and linguistically responsive and work to reduce the impacts of adverse
childhood and traumatic experiences.

(a) Definitions:

i Multi-Family Groups means a structured family group which can
consist of either multiple families from the community, or multiple
members of a single family network.. Multi-family groups are a
preferred method of treatment for most Individuals and their
families/support system (McFarlane, 2002). Where Multi-Family
Groups are not available, single-family groups can be offered
following the same format. Fidelity to Multi-Family Groups
standards in each of the key stages is critical: joining sessions,
family workshops, and carefully structured initial and ongoing
problem solving sessions.

ii. Participatory Decision Making means Individuals and
family/primary support system involved in service planning,
delivery, monitoring, and evaluation seem to facilitate the
development of ongoing services that are accessible and culturally
appropriate for them and may result in more responsive treatment
providers, better quality of care, and more empowered Individuals
and primary family/primary support system (McGorry et al., 2010).

iii. Psycho-education means developing a shared and increased
understanding of the illness and recovery process for both the
Individual and the family/support system. Specific attention is given
to cultural values and norms of an audience and broad accessibility
to this information is essential (EASA Fidelity Guidelines, 2013).

iv. Psychosis-Risk Syndrome means Schizophrenia-related conditions
frequently have a gradual onset. Neurocognitive, sensory,
perceptual, and affective changes, usually accompanied by a decline
in functioning, characterize the at-risk mental state. Identifying,

P(C-44300-0026012/1ob Page 129 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

162



monitoring, and providing needs-based care during a potential
psychosis-risk mental state is optimal. The evidence regarding the
effectiveness of specific interventions (therapy, medications, etc.)
remains preliminary. It is measured by the Structured Interview for
Psychosis-Risk syndrome (SIPS), performed by a skilled
diagnostician certified in the tool (McGlashan, Walsh, & Woods,
2010), incorporated by reference herein.

v. Community Education means a core element of early intervention
services is a proactive and ongoing campaign to increase early
identification and the speed and number of early referrals and reduce
attitudinal barriers about schizophrenia-related conditions. This
reduces the duration of untreated psychosis. Specific attention is
given to cultural values and norms of an audience and broad
accessibility to this information is essential (EASA Fidelity
Guidelines, 2013).

) Performance Requirements (exceeding Section 2, MHS 26)
County shall provide Services to eligible Individuals as listed below:

(a) Eligible Population: EASA Services are to be provided to Individuals ages
12 through 27 years of age whom:

i. Have not had a diagnosable psychotic disorder other than psychosis-
risk syndrome, identified by the Structured Interview for Psychosis
Risk Syndrome (SIPS) or other EASA Center for Excellence (C4E)
approved formal assessment, for a period longer than 12 months;
and

ii. Have psychotic symptoms not known to be caused by the temporary
effects of substance intoxication, major depression, or attributable to
a known medical condition.

(b) Access to EASA across all referral sources: emergency departments,
hospitals, community partners, schools, and families, regardless of ability to
pay. Upon referral, contact shall be made within two (2) business days of
the referral by EASA staff with the Individual (and family) in a location that
best suits the Individual. Individuals are enrolled in EASA once they are
determined to have met the eligibility criteria and agree they are
comfortable with the program;

(c) Services intended to be a transitional coordinated specialty care service,
designed to last an average of 2 years. An Individual’s Services can be
flexible with the timing of the transition, based on the needs of the
Individual, their family, and the Individual’s progress and goals;

(d) Services rendered based on the needs of the Individual and their family as
frequently as needed to optimize the EASA program’s support and impact.
EASA teams should provide access to crisis services for the EASA
Individual, family, and primary supports.

(e) Provide Services as described in the EASA Practice Guidelines (Melton,
R.P., Penkin, A., Hayden-Lewis, K., Blea, P., Sisko, R., & Sale, T. (2013).

P0-44300-0026012/1ob Page 130 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

163



® Provide technologically-based support to EASA participants that include,
but are not limited to, text messaging, email, and telemedicine in order to
communicate and facilitate Services.

(g) The EASA team works with people in five phases: Assessment and
stabilization, adaptation, consolidation, transition, and post-graduation.

iii.

iv.

Phase | (up to 6 months): Assessment and stabilization: Outreach,
engagement, assessment, initiation of medical treatment (including
psychosis and alcohol/drug dependency), identification of strengths,
resources, needs, and goals, start of multi-family groups,
stabilization of current situation.

Phase 2 (approximately 6 months): Adaptation: More extensive
education to the individual and family/primary support system,
address adaptation issues, refine/test the relapse plan, move forward
on living and/or vocational goals, identify accommodations as
needed at work or school, identify and develop stable long-term
economic and social support, provide opportunities for peer
involvement, physical fitness, etc.

Phase 3 (approximately 6 months): Consolidation: Continue multi-
family group, vocation support and individual treatment, work
toward personal goals, develop a relapse prevention and long-term
plan.

Phase 4 {(approximately 6 months): Transition: Maintain contact
with EASA Team, continue multi-family group, participate in
individual and group opportunities, establish ongoing treatment
relationship and recovery plan.

Phase 5: Post-graduation: Continue multi-family group (in some
situations), continue with ongoing providers, invitation to participate
in events and mentoring, EASA planning/development activities,
and periodic check-ins and problem solving as needed.

(h) Within and in addition to the phases described above, the following
elements are part of the successful delivery of the EASA model and
implementation of the EASA program:

.
L

i

ass
m.

iv.

P(0-44300-0026012/lob

Rapid access to psychiatric and counseling services;

Education about causes, treatment, and management of psychosis
and explanations about potential causes for the onset of symptoms;

Coaching on rights regarding access to employment, school,
housing, and additional resources;

Single family psycho-education and multi-family groups;

Support for vocational education and independent living goals
consistent with Individual Placement and Support (IPS) framework
that is the Supported Employment fidelity program that is integrated
into EASA services and currently overseen by the Orgon Supported
Employment Center for Excellence (OSECE);

Page 131 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

164



vi. Access to licensed medical psychiatric care, health related nursing
care, mental health treatment, case management, supported
education and employment, peer support for young adult and family,
and occupational therapy or skill development;

vii. Provision of substance use disorder treatment within the team.

viii.  Peer support (peers having lived experience with psychosis preferred
regardless of age), participatory decision-making, and meaningful
young adult engagement in program, community, and leadership
activities as an EASA program component, and;

ix. Community-education.

(i) Setting(s) for Service Delivery: Determined by the needs and goals of the
Individual and their circumstances.

G) Recommended Staff and Staff Training: EASA team members include
licensed medical providers (LMP’s), nurses, staff trained in case
management and care coordination, staff qualified to provide occupational
therapy and associated skill training, mental health therapists, mental health
screeners, peer support specialists, supported education and employment
specialists.

(k)  EASA services and supports must be provided by staff that enable the
team/provider to meet or pursue fidelity standards located at
http://www.easacommunity.org. If County lacks qualified providers to
deliver EASA services and supports, a plan to adjust the model will be
developed with the EASA Center for Excellence staff and OHA.

()] Additional Licensing or Certification Requirements:

i. The assessment for EASA Services and supports must be provided
by Providers that meet fidelity standards, located at
http://www.easacommunity.org/PDF/Practice%20Guidelines%02020
13.pdf. If County lacks qualified Providers to deliver EASA
Services and supports, County shall implement a plan, in
consultation with OHA, to develop a qualified Provider network for
Individuals to access EASA Services.

ii. EASA-specific training requirements and opportunities are listed on
the EASA Center for Excellence website:
http://www.easacommunity.org.

(m)  Staff working in the programs must have training in suicide prevention and
intervention strategies and Trauma Informed Care and be provided with
ongoing maintenance of the skills and practice associated with these
approaches.

3) Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 3, MHS 26)

None

@) Special Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 4, MHS 26)
Forms are located at https://www.oregon.goviOHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 132 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

165



Counties providing EASA Services shall submit data quarterly, directly into the
Oregon Health & Science University (OHSU) EASA RedCap Data System.
Instructions for data entry into RedCap are located at
https://www.easacommunity.org/resources-for-professionals.php and individual
provider entry is located at hitps://octri.ohsu.edu/redcap/. Quarterly data shall be
submitted no later than 45 calendar days following the end of each subject quarter
for which financial assistance is awarded through this Agreement.

Data collected through RedCap will reflect outreach, referral, intake and outcome-
based measures. The outcome measures will be determined based on fidelity
guidelines as stated above and best practices for First Episode of Psychosis
treatment.

5) Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures (exceeding Section 5, MHS 26)

None.

P0-44300-0026012/10b Page 133 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

166



d. Service Name: OLDER OR DISABLED ADULT MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES

Service 1D Code: MHS 35

Specialized Service: GERO-SPECIALIST
Specialized ID Code: 35A

1) Service Description (exceeding Section 1, MHS 35)

Older or Disabled Adult Mental Health Services (MHS 35) Specialized Service
requirement (MHS 35A) are mental health services delivered directly or indirectly
to older or disabled adults with mental illness.

2) Performance Requirements (exceeding Section 2, MHS 35)

(a)  The funds awarded for MHS 35A Services may only be expended on
community based direct and indirect care services for older or disabled
adults with mental illness who are determined eligible. Such direct services
include, but are not limited to, medication management, quarterly
interagency staffing, follow-up services after treatment in local or state
inpatient psychiatric hospitals, and screenings and referrals. Indirect care
services include, but are not limited to, consultation, assistance working
with multiple systems, case coordination, planning, supporting interagency
collaboration, and education and training to agencies and caregivers who
provide services that may affect older and disabled adults with mental
illness.

(b) If indirect care services, as described above, are delivered with MHS 35A
funds provided through this Agreement, those services must be available to
all relevant agencies and caregivers in the geographic area served by the
CMHP and must be coordinated to include, but not limited to, Aging and
People with Disabilities (APD), Department of Human Services (DHS)’s
Aging and Disabilities Resource Connection, DHS’s Adult Protective
Services, CCOs, CMHPs, Acute care hospitals, Oregon State Hospital,
caregivers, community partners, family members, and any other appropriate
participants in client care.

(c) All MHS 35A Services delivered with funds provided through this
Agreement for direct care services must either be supervised or delivered by
a Qualified Mental Health Professional, as defined in OAR 309-039-0510
(10), and in compliance with Standards for Adult Mental Health Services,
as such rules may be revised from time to time. Qualified Mental Health
Professionals and any designated Qualified Mental Health Associates, as
defined in OAR 309-039-0510 (9), delivering such services must have a
background with the older and disabled adult population or be participating
in relevant training programs to acquire such knowledge.

(d)  Providers of MHS 35 Services delivered with funds provided through this
Agreement that are subject to this Specialized Service requirement shall
provide the following:

(e) Regular access to a psychiatrist or nurse practitioner for case and
medication review for Individuals receiving direct care MHS 35 Services;

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 134 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

167



M

(®

(h)

(i)

1)

(k)

M

Regular participation in interdisciplinary team meetings with APD staff or
contractors serving Individuals receiving direct care MHS 35 Services;

Discharge assistance (from in-patient psychiatric hospitals) and provide or
arrange for short term follow-up services for Individuals receiving MHS 35
Services;

Be available to County crisis team and DHS’s Adult Protective Services for
consultation on geriatric cases;

Regular collaboration with APD, DHS’s Aging and Disabilities Resource
Connection, CMHPs, CCO’s and CCO ICC Teams, Acute care hospitals,
Oregon State Hospital, living facilities, families, and others as appropriate;

Indirect services shall include, but not be limited to, prevention, planning,
coordination, education, and assistance with urgent placement services;

Oversight, support, and inter-agency coordination and collaboration for
substance abuse treatment and prevention with older and disabled adults;
and

Have the experience, knowledge, and authority to effect change, make
recommendations, and communicate to leadership.

3) Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 3, MHS 35)

None

4) Special Reporting Requirements (exceeding Section 4, MHS 35)

None

5 Financial Assistance Calculation, Disbursement, and Agreement Settlement
Procedures (exceeding Section 5, MHS 35)

None

PO-44300-0026012/lob

Page 135 0of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

168



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT C
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD

MOD#:
CONTRACT# CONTRACTOR:
INPUT CHECKED BY: DATE CHECKED:

COLUMN HEADERS:

169

SE# FUND PROJ CODE | CPMS PROVIDER | EFEECTIVE
DATES
SLOT RATE OPERATIN | STARTUP PART ABC | PART IV
CHANGE / G DOLLARS
TYPE DOLLARS
PAAF CD BASE CLIENT SP#
CODE

Page 136 0of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

P0O-44300-0026012/10b
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)



0.1 £20Z/17/Z1 leaouddy [0Q (£2-0667LD-79vErY #1D) VVAD STOT-¥TOT AD

g1z Jo L€] a8eg qO1/Z109200-00£¥¥-0Od
a0’ ng 00°56L°1L35 9t #35 WOd TVLIOLE
-] an'os IS EHETLS 00" 0% YN/ & QEANZ LS9 = paE/LAL ¢} [ARE] ay
‘0D ROSHZIITL avasve
A 3 k] 007Us UETUGE LES 00 os YH/ L SE0L/0E/9 - a0/ /L Q uEs 99
‘00 NOS@FAa;L avEsve
1 i T L' 00*0% 0C 0Z6°LES 00"0s VN / 0 STO0T/0ES9 - LZOT/T/L -Q- 100 29
‘0D NOSYZTIIEL avwasva
N ng B I6L'tlS 7O #AS HOT TYLOL
A | k| [AIRR - CEARTAE 2 K] oo oE N/ 0 SIOs0ESY  BZUZSTISL Q e £
‘0D NOSETIIAL avasvye
STOT-kZOT VAL TYISIT
0003 Gb 0oT0‘08%R PROT- 202 ULd IYLOL
uoT0E D0*GZC'ETS 18 #4i7 HOd 'IVLOL
| Y 00T 0gF QO 8IT 1S 0o 0F YN/ 0 PLNZ/OLSY - §C02ST ST Q B&8 I8
"00 HOSARIARL TEID
0008 00 058 nZy 08 #35 404 TYIOL
L A4 00°0% nh N5 "REY a0"ns YN/ a P20 /00 /2= RIOZ/TST -0- aRes 08
‘0D NOSYIAIND TERYD
Qe-0F SL°6EDTOES a8 #A% NOd CIYIQL
T A T 2 00 0% ST ZhLs 007 0% VN / o} ¥TOZ/0E/2- bT0T/T/1 o LO8 29
‘00 NOSYIIIAL avEsva
A I L 4 0070% ST ZULS 00°0% YN/ o} VZO0Z/0E€/9 - 120T/T/T o LB 29
‘05 NOSYELARL JYISYa
F ! T w 00 as ST %81 "91S antas Y/ 0 FTOZ707T 59 - p20Z /10T —-a- n&s 99
‘0D ROSEEIIAL awasvd
| A ! L o0 as aloBe gls g0 ¥HN/ 0 FEOS /0809 - glOS/T/1 4} Ok 09
‘0D NOSBIAIAL avaswd
00" 0% VL S6C LS €0 #35 ¥od IYIOL
kA 1 W oo 0w FLG6E"LS 0008 WH /S Q FZoz/0E/0 - F2OT/T/Y -(= 154 £9
‘0D NOSEidIAr avEswe
L3t TAYHA 1YRElE
[ Hile K JEEWH an AT 09V suvYTI0dT WY1 L (AL} ] Ad A S ADNYHD SILYA EIAIAOEA SKAD IJOD JgHNAd #IS
LMIIT1S dewd  LAYd LT INLHYLS ONILYIEAO LOTS AATILO333T rogd
- +QINDIIHD FLWT T 28 @EMOHEHD 1NANI
ALHOOD NOSWAIAAC THOLOVHLNOD ZIONHZO A LIWVALNOD

ZETOY :#00OH
IA0AFY MITATE LNANT ROTIVOIIIAOH

STIOVL TVIOVNIA
J LI9IHXH



.1 £20Z/17/T1 eaoxddy [OQ (£2-066T1LO-T9FEVY #LD) VVID STOT-HTOT AD

€170 g€ 28ed qo[/2109200-00£¥H-0Od
00°0§ L6°9VE°962% 210920 EETOY 404 TYIOL
00°0% BE 2€5'0LTS $Z0Z-¥Z0Z 404 TYIOL
00'0% 00°05p’9z8 18 #3$ 404 TYIOL
L ¥ 0608 0070587923 o0 NS0 §TOZT/0E/2 - ¥ZOT/T/L -0- 888 18
‘02 HOS¥3aAZar THRYD
00°0s 007005 '£6% 08 $35 ¥Od TVIOL
AT ¥ 00°0% 007005 L5% 0004 L1 PR 5Z0Z/0E/2 - VE0T/T/L -0- 888 08
0D NOSHIJAFAL TERVD

S202-¥202 4YIA TWOSIA

#as 3002 Isve as AL D8Y S53¥170d sy¥Y110d 3L T4 AL/TINYHD S3LVa EIAIACEA SRAD FAOD aHnd #3S
LNAIN: d¥dd LY¥d Ldwd ANLAEYLS ONILYdIdL Lo1s AAILIAIAT roea
) {GANDTHD ZLWa PAR QFAO3IHO LNANI
ALNNCD NOSHIZIIL PYOLOVELNOD ZT09Z0 : FLOVMLNOD
ZETOY :#AOH

LIECATY MAIATE LOANI HOILWOIAIAOW



OREGCON HEALTH AUTHORITY
Financial Assistance Award Amendment (FAAA)

CONTRACTOR: JEFFERSON COUNTY Contract#: 026012
DATE: 12/27/2023 REF#: 001

REASON FOR FAAA (for information only):

Payments provided through this Financial Assistance Agreement (FAA) are tor
Mental Health, Addictions Treatment, Recovery and Prevention, and Problem
Gambling Services, as allocated within OHA's 2023-2025 Legislative Approved
Budget {LAB), but only for the i8-month term of this Agreement, beginning on
January 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. This FAA may require modification
by written amendment, or by administrative amendment (memo}, provided that
such administrative amendment is only used to change the fund source coding
and not the amount of funding, to reflect the actual funding amounts
remaining in the 2023-2025 LAB. It is OHA's intension to discontinue
Calendar Year agreement terms and return the Financial Assistance Agreement
(FAA) to a 2-year fiscal biennium term, beginning July 1, 2025, for the
2025-2027 Biennium.

The feollowing special condition(s) apply to funds as indicated by the
special condition number in column 9. Each special condition set forth
below may be qualified by a full description in the Financial Assistance
Award.

ACD132 1 These funds must result in the delivery of A&D 66 Services to a
minimum of 58 unduplicated individuals receiving outpatient
Services and enrolled in the MOTS system on or after January 1,
2024, Up to 20% of 58 can be provided as Prevention, Education,
and Qutreach te non—-enrolled individuals. Cases without evidence
of treatment engagement in the clinical record deo not count
toward the service delivery requirement, except as listed above
for Prevention, Education, and Outreach. Report of Prevention,
Education, and Outreach must be submitted annually on the form
located at
https://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/ Pages/ federal-reporting.aspx
Under delivery of Services subject to this financial assistance
may result in recovery of funds at the rate of $1200 per
individual.

hO132 2The financial assistance subject to this special condition will
be disbursed to County in one lump sum within 30 calendar days
after the date this Agreement becomes executed.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 139 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

172



€LT £20/17/T1 [eaorddy 10Q (£2-06671L9-T9vEVY #1D) VVAD STOT-HTOT AD

£1Z 30 o[ 28ed QOy/Z109200-00E+1~0d
A T 9 00705 00°9887€1$ M/ 0 ¥Z0g/08/9 - ¥Z0Z /141 A007149 [OE '+
LHYED 20718 HH SHID
00°0% BGTYIVS L1 #35 YOI TVLCL
T X I a 00" 0% 85" ¥12% o008 ¥H/ 0 $202/0€/9- ¥2OT/T1/1 JICANT k08 LT
SAOIAHIS TDICANI 5V
00°0S GL*B0E‘STIS €1 #3S5 HOJ TV¥IOL
c X 1 o 007 0% DIVRS:1-0 2l 1 007 0% WHJ 1] ¥TOZ/0E£/9 - ¥ZOT/T/T HHWESIN vo8 £T
INTH QISVE-TOOHOS IM a5y
K 1 ¥ 00°0s 00"BOE"ES 00°0s WH S 0 ¥2O0S/0E/9~ ¥20C/T/T HWHSIN ro8 £7
ANTH QASVE-TO0HIS IN ISVE
A I W 00°0s GLTZLE Q0TS 00708 WH /S 0 pZ0Z/08/9= F20Z/T/1 HWESIN k0B £1
INEH QE5¥a-T100HDS IN I5¥0
00°0% 99 *199‘§STF 6 #¥5 ¥O3 TYiOL
4 X I 2 00" 0s £ETZET’SS 00705 WH /S 0 F20Z/08/9-¥202/1/1 TI¥C 708 ]
HOISWAAIG TIVL 5V
4 A T ) 00" 03 05°8617221¢ 00°0s ¥H/ 0 yZoe/0e/0- ¥Z0C/T/1 TIVD ¥o08 &
HOISHIAAIQ IIVC s i
1 T L a0 0g 068672274 00"0% L o YZOZ/OE/0 - ¥Z02/T/7 TV ros &
HOISHEALA Tiv¥e asva
A T W aotas EEZETSS 00709 WH S 0 ¥20Z/0€/9 - %202/T/1 TIVD Fos [
ROISERAIQ TI¥C asvy
00" 0% LY "QEL FITS F #2S 04 TVICL
T X E o 00°0% £CTLGR'TZS 00708 YN/ Q ¥Z02/0€/9- ¥202/1/1 av¥ p0Q ¥
103roed ISISSY ¥ 4Iv asVE
z A 1 o 00708 00°22L'ES 00°0% WH S 0 FC0Z/0E/9 = %202/T/T avy po8 ¥
1oarodd ISISSY 9 4Iv Isve
R 1 v 007 0% 00°22L°ES 00709 WH / 0 FTOT/OE/2 - ¥TOSSI/T ELad o8 ¥
103ro8da LSISSY 9 QIY F5VE
s L ¥ 00708 bE"628°G8S 00°0s W/ 1] pPZOZ/0E/9 - PZ0Z/T1/T dvy o8 ¥
IHACONA LSISSY ¥4IV asva
[ FAIT AL FAA idddA leaEld
#ds aaos S a2 AT 28Y syv1Iea SUYTIO0 AR A4 AL/ FONYHD saL¥d WATIAOHA SKAD IA0D ANNd #35
INTITD I¥¥d  L¥YE  LYYd d0L4YLS ONTIWITO 10718 HATLIAIIFT roud
. - S@INOTHD TA¥a  :AS AEMOIHI LO4NI
ALNNOD NOSYEAJAL 2¥OLITILNOD ZIOSZO :ALOWWINOD
TELOW : $TOW

LE0ATE MIIATY LOARI HOIINODIZIQOH



VT £207/17/21 Tea0addy fod (£2-0662LO-T9YEPY #1O) VYD STOT-HTOT AD

£12J0 I#1 28ed 991/Z109200-00£P+-Od
[ A 1 a2 007 0% [<vha 113 00" 0% WH / o BZO0Z/0E/9- ¥COT/T/T WENSIN f08 8¢
WAQTIWE 031904405 INH A5WH
A T v 00708 [l 2% 0008 YR/ 0 ¥202/0€/9- ¥202/1/1 WANSIN §08 Bt
HAOTAME adlgoddas IN a5VE
X 1 v Q0708 00 5L8 1S 00°0s 0 ¥202/0€/9- %202/T/1T WANSIN 11%¥ BE
WAOTERG AL¥Odans IN S5¥E
00°0% CE-Z6T1°669¢ GZ #3S d0d TVIOL
X T N%Z WV 00" 0% 00721922 00°0% WVH S ] ¥ZOT/0E/9 BTOC/T/T SIVD 518 ST
YHIL RLODY ONY SISIHD aASVd
A 1 Y 00708 £ ¥557257% 00°0s WH S a ¥20Z/0€/9- B20Z/T/1 SISIy¥o 908 St
9dS SISIWD ALINOKHKOO asva
A T v 00%0% ££°290°062¢ 00°0s N/ ] §202/0€/9- #202/1/1 SISIiYd F68 S¢
g3ds SISIND ALINOFHOD dsva
z A T ¥GZ 2 0070s 00°98Z°Z% 00708 TN/ a BPZ0Z/0E/9~ B20C/T/T S1¥D B08  S¢
WY¥1 3L0DV JNY SISI™HD E5VE
ks 1 ¥6Z ¥ 00708 ££°08276TS 00°0% YN/ ] pe0Z/0E/9~ BZ0C/T/T SIVD k08 ST
Vil ZL0DV ONY SISIHD asva
k VST ¥ ootas 0008z '24 00" 0% ¥/ [ BZOZ/OE/Q— BZOZ/T/T SIN0 yoE G2
YEL F100W QHY SISTED AsvVE
A 1 Y 00°0s% LO*1ZZ2'86% LUK 0 F2O0Z/0E/2 - ¥20Z/T/1 SISIND onF  4¢
¥Is S5ISIED AL INOIGROD B3 4
A I ¥sZ ¥ 00°0% LOBYE TS 00708 WH / ¢ FZ0Z/0€/9- ¥202/1/T SIYD 90 SZ
Yil 3165V ARV SISI¥D AEWE
000§ L9°.98°282% 0F #35 4od IVICL
Z A i o] 00708 L9°6G6°01S 00" 0% WH /S 0 ¥20Z/0€/9- #202/1/1 HHI NHH pog 02
IHIEW T¥ILNAQISTY ~-HON TSR
A 1 bl oS L9°656 013 0% WH S 0 ¥20Z2/0€/9- B2OZ/T/T HHYNHH pog 02
INEW TYILNTQISHY -HON ‘ASVE
A T Y 00™0 £€£°Z90'LETS G008 L i $20Z/0€/9- BZ0Z/T/T Hild NHH F08  0¢
IREH TYILRIAISTE-RON asvd
FZ0C-E200 SMYIA TYISIA
s i Lo (] Asvd 0 AL JEY SHYTTOd SYV1T10d T 2d AL/ TONYHD SALYd HBOIAOHWA SWAD 340D JNAI #FS
LNZITD dvyd  Ldvd LYY dRLEYLS HNILYYAd0 LOTS IAILOTAIT r£oaa
) 10AMOIHD ALwd A9 GEIMOIHD LOANI
ALNNOT NOSYE4d4d0 s HOLOWALNOD ZT09Z0 ' ELOYYLNGD
ZELOR : #dOH

JH0AZY MATATE LOANI HOIIVOIJIAOW



QLT

£207/17/21 eacddy [0
£1230 Th1 95eq

(£2-066TLO-TIEVY #LD) YVAD STOT-+T0T AD

q91/2109200-00£#P-0Od

00" 0% 00°9TB EBSS 0z #35 ¥Od IVIOL
A I Y 0070% ££°616°12% 00*0$ ¥N/ 0 GZ0Z/0E/9- %202/1/L HI NHW voa  0F
JHFH TYIINAGISTE-NOR A5WE
h 1 L 00°0% L9 BZT V6¥S 00°0% ¥N/ @ §Z02/0E/9 - B202/1/L HIE NHW r08  0F
ANEH TYILNIAISTE-HON qASWA
X 1 s 00°0% 00°2LL L 0070% ¥N/ 0 S§Z0Z/0E/9 - BTOZ/T/L 2074 106 OF
IRVED NO0TE HK SHID
007 0% BT 6Z¥S LT E3S dOd TYI0L
1 I3 1 2 00708 817623 n0-0% ¥R/ 0 GZ0Z/0E/9- BTOT/T/L 2I0ANT Fog LT
SEOIAHRS FOIQANI b -
00°0s$ 05" 189°122¢ £1 445 404 TYIOL
X 1 ¥ 00°0% "9t6 78S 00708 ¥YH/ O SZ0Z/0£/9- %202/1/L HHESIN tog  £1
IHIR JEsSvdE-100HDS IR Isva
b3 [ ¥ 00°0% 06 GhLZTZS 00708 Wi/ 0 SZ0Z/0€/9- ¥20Z/T/L HWESIN POR €T
JINEA JESYE-TI00HOS IN =5
00°0% £9°199"$62¢ 6 #35 "WOod TYIOL
A I L] 00°08% 00 LEET¥ETS 00708 YHS 0 SZ0Z/0€/9- ¥202/1/L TIwE 0] G
ROISYIAIQ TIVCL 5V
I 1 L 00 0% L9 %9Z70TS 00708 ™S 0 SZ0Z/0€/9- B20T/T/L TIve y08 &
NOISEIAIQ TINLC 5w
00" 0% FELT10°2228 v #35 40d TYIOL
£ A [ o, 00°0% 99°F16°20¢ 00°0% ¥N/ 0 GZ20Z2/0€/9 = $202/T/L avy F08 4
JDIL0EA ISISSY % Alv asva
A I W 00°0% 00" F0E"LS 000§ ¥N/ D GZOZ/0E/9 - ¥TZOZ/T/L avy L] B
JO3ronaa LSISSY ¥ 4Iv asva
A 1 i 00°0% B9°BG9'TLIS 00" 0% ¥N/ O GZOZ/0E/9~ BZOZ/T/L avy boA B
JOArodd ISISSY 3 IV FIWa
S20Z-p20Z  WWEA TWISII
ontos 99°762°08% 1% ¥Z0Z-€£20Z 40d TYL0L
o0 os 00°LGE ' ETS 8¢ #9S YOI VIOl
¥ZOZ-£20T  UW3A TYOSIA
#d45S o (a (aa Fsvd AL 29V EWYITO0 SYYTIOd 1LHE FdAL/IONYHD s3aLvd HIJIAOMA SHAD Ja0d dNN3 #3S
LNIITS IyYyd JL¥¥d LYY aNLUYLS ONILVYIJC 1O1S IATLIAIAT road
SIEMO3HD ILYad A4 dTHDOFAHD LNGNI

ALNNOD HOSYIIIAL PHOLOVILNOD

180438 MAIASE LOANI HNOIIWOTAIAOW

ZT0920 : 4 LOYELNOD
ZELOW :4ACH



9.1 £202/17/T1 leacaddy foqa (£2-066ZLD-T9¥EHY #1D) VVID $TOT-HT0T AD

£1230 £¥1 28ed q01/Z109200-00¢¥1-0Od
00°0% 20 G90°¥PT VS ¢109¢0 C6LOW YOI TVIOL
00°0% 9g ZLT €99°CS GZ02-b20Z 404 TYLOL
00°0% 00°2€8'92% 8¢ #35 ¥Od TVYIOL
A 1 L 00" 05 00°ZBO’TS 00708 N/ 0] S20Z/0€/9- ¥202/1/L WANSIN %08 gt
HAOTAWA dILI044ns IN TEWE
A T b 0070% 00°0GL°GZ% 00°0% N/ 0 GZ0Z/0E/9- B20C/T/L HWINSIN ITe BE
HAOTAWA daLyoddas IR Fsve
00°0¢ LOBEL'EEE'TS §Z #45 404 TYiol
R 1 wei ¥ 00708 00°p22'¢CLs 00°0% ¥N/ 0 SZOZ/0E/9 - B2OE/T/L 51YD 518 S¢
VEIL JAL0OV ONY SISIHD asvd
b 1 ) 00°0% L9°801°506¢ 0070% N/ Q GZ0Z/0€/9-HZ02/T/L SISIYD 208 52
¥AS SISIHD ALINOKOOD A5
A T v 00°0s L9 B21°086% 007 0% N/ 0 SZ0Z/0E/9- B20C/T/L SISIHD o8 5
¥dS SIST¥D ALINOKKOD I5VH
A T Y5 ¥ 00" 0% £L9729¢71¢€$ 00°0s YN/ 0 SZ0Z/0E/9-%202/T/L SIYD BoB A
Yal ILOOY JHY SISIED ATVE
A 1 ¥eZ ¥ 00708 00°ZLS V8 00°0% YN/ Q SZ0Z/08/9- ¥202/1/L SILYD w08 S¢
Vil TLOOW OGNV SISIND asva
A T v 00708 TETEVEO6TS 00°0s YN/ 0 $Z0Z/08/9 - ¥202/1/L SISIHD o0F 5¢
¥ES SISIED ALIKOWAOD Fsvd
Et T LT § 0070% ££°668°2% 00°0s N/ a §202/0€/9- ¥Z0E/T/L S1I¥O 90F 5¢
YL AL0OY aNVY SISIHD ASVH
G202-¥eoe THYAL TYISId
¥das 2000 qSYE a2 Al J8Y sHVIT0g SYYII0d TLEd qd AL/ TONYHD SELYA WAALA0YE SWAD FQOD aNni §3s
INAITD A¥ed  L¥¥d  L¥Yd dNLEYLS INTLTHIL0 Lo1s AAILIEIIT road
SdINIIHD ALYd A OEDMDFHD JLNANI
ALNAOD NOSYIIZIL 1YOLIWVELNOD ZT0920 :4#.LOYULNOD
ZELOW QO

190439 MATARE LOANI NOILIVNDIZIJOH



OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
Financial Assistance Award Amendment {FAAA}

CONTRACTOR:  JEFFERSON COUNTY Contract#: 026012
DATE: 12/27/2023 REF#: 000

REASON FOR FAAA (for information only}:

Payments provided through this Financial Assistance Agreement (FAA) are for
Mental Health, Addictions Treatment, Recovery and Prevention, and Problem
Gambling Services, as allocated within OHA's 2023-2025 Legislative Approved
Budget (LAB), but cnly for the 18-month term of this Agreement, beginning on
January 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. This FAA may require modification
by written amendment, or by administrative amendment (memo)}, provided that
such administrative amendment is only used to change the fund source coding
and not the amount of funding, to reflect the actual funding amounts
remaining in the 2023-2025 LAB. It is OHA's intension to discontinue
Calendar Year agreement terms and return the Finrancial Assistance Agreement
(FAA} to a 2-year fiscal biennium term, beginning July 1, 2025, for the
2025-2027 Biennium.

The following special condition(s) apply to funds as indicated by the
special condition number in column 9. Each special condition set forth
below may be qualified by a full descripticon in the Financial Assistance
Award.

MO792 1A) These funds are for MHS 17, which encompasses Involce Services
found in service elements 26 ,27, 28, 30, 34 and 36 from
01/01/2024 to 6/30/2025 with Part C. B) For Services delivered to
individuals, financial assistance awarded to County shall be
disbursed to County and expended by County in accordance with and
subject to the residential rate on the date of service delivery
based upon the rate schedule found at
www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/OHP/ Pages/Fee-Schedule .aspx and
incorporated into this Agreement by reference that is effective
as of the effective date of this Agreement unless a new rate
schedule is subsequently incorporated by amendment. Any
expenditure by County in excess of the authorized rates as set
forth www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/OHP/Pages/Fee-Schedule.aspx may be
deemed unallowable and subject to recovery by OHA in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement.

MOT92 2The financial assistance subject to this special condition will
be disbursed to County in one lump sum within 30 calendar days
after the date this Agreement becomes executed.

MOTe2 3A) These funds are for MHS 04 Aid and Assist Client Services. B)
The financial assistance subject to this special condition will
be disbursed to County in one lump sum within 30 calendar days
after the date this Agreement becomes executed.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 144 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

177



OCREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
Financial Assistance Award Amendment (FAAA)

CONTRACTOR: JEFFERSON COUNTY
DATE: 12/27/2023

P(O-44300-0026012/1ob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Contract#: 026012
REF#: 000

Page 145 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

178



EXPLANATION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD

The Financial Assistance Award set forth above and any Financial Assistance Award amendment must be read
in conjunction with this explanation for purposes of understanding the rights and obligations of OHA and
County reflected in the Financial Assistance Award.

1. Format and Abbreviations in Financial Assistance Award
a. Heading. The heading of the Financial Assistance Award consists of the following information:
() MOD# is the alphanumeric Modification code, assigned by the OHA HSD Contracts

Unit staff member, for that specific Financial Assistance Award. A MOD# beginning
with an M is a mental health modification; a MOD# beginning with an A is a substance
use disorder or problem gambling modification.

(2) CONTRACTH# is the unique identification number of the Agreement containing the
Financial Assistance Award. This number is assigned by the Office of Contracts &
Procurement (OC&P).

(3) CONTRACTOR is the County or the legal entity named in and for that specific
Agreement containing the Financial Assistance Award.

4) Input Checked is for OHA’s internal use only.

5 Date Checked is for OHA’s internal use only.

b. Financial and Service Information. Each Service awarded funds is listed by Fiscal Year and

then by the Service Element number. The amount of financial assistance awarded for each
Service and certain other Service information is listed below the Fiscal Year and then by the
Service Element number on one or more lines. Financial assistance awarded for a particular
Service may not be used to cover the costs of any other Service, except as permitted under
Exhibit F, “General Terms and Conditions,” section 3.a, of this Agreement. The funds, as set
forth on a particular line, will be disbursed in accordance with and are subject to the restrictions
set forth on that particular line. The awarded funds, disbursement information and restrictions on
a particular line are displayed in a columnar format as follows:

(1)

)

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob

Column 1, SE#: The Service Element number(s) identifies the Service or Service
capacity, as applicable, to be delivered under the approved Service Element(s), as set
forth on that particular line of the Financial Assistance Award.

Column 2, Fund: This column identifies the fund number and description of the funding
source, according to HSD’s financial system, used for payments for this specific line of
the Financial Assistance Award. The types of funds are as follows:

(a) 301  Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG) — Federal Funds

(b) 313 Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) -
Federal Funds

(c) 331  Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG) American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
(ARPA)

(d) 341  Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG) Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplement Appropriations Act of 2021

(e) 401  Mental Health Marijuana Tax — Other Funds

Page 146 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

179



U]
(®
(h)
(i)
®»
(k)
U
(m)
(n)
(0)
(p)

Q)
(r)

(s)
(
(u)
\)
W)
(x)

)
(2)
(aa)

(bb)
(cc)
(dd)
(ee)
()

402
406
411
420
421
424
426
427
428
450
520

560
708

804
806
807
810
811
815

887
388
908

DDX
SBD
SBT
SDX
STD

Cares Act Coronavirus Relief Fund- Federal Funds
Tobacco Tax New Investments — Other Funds

Tobacco Master Settlement Account — Other Funds

Beer and Wine Tax (20%) — Other Funds

Beer and Wine Tax (40%) Treatment — Other Funds
Intoxicated Driver Program Fund Outpatient — Other Funds
Criminal Fines Assessment Prevention — Other Funds
Marijuana Tax (20%) — Other Funds

Ballot Measure 110 — State Funds

Marijuana Tax (40%) — Other Funds

Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT) Treatment — Federal
Funds

State Opioid Response — Federal Funds

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Programs — Federal
Funds

Mental Health — General Funds

Mental Health New Investments — General Funds
Alcohol and Drug Treatment — General Funds
Behavioral Health Planning Grants — General Funds
Aid & Assist - General Funds

Mobile Response and Stabilization Service (MRSS) New
Investment — General Fund

Veterans Behavioral Health Lottery Dollars — Lottery Funds
Gambling Treatment — Lottery Funds

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Programs — General
Fund Match

Standard Fund Splits — Uses multiple fund types by percentage
Standard Fund Splits — Uses multiple fund types by percentage
Standard Fund Splits — Uses multiple fund types by percentage
Standard Fund Splits — Uses multiple fund types by percentage
Standard Fund Splits — Uses multiple fund types by percentage

Additional fund numbers may be added during the term of this Agreement and in the
Financial Assistance Award by using an Administrative Memo to Counties via email to
the contact person listed in Exhibit G, “Standard Terms and Conditions,” section 18.,
“Notice.” to note the new code number and description.

The fund numbers with source descriptions identifying General Funds or Other Funds as
the funding source may actually be paid under a different fund number and source based

PO-44300-0026012/1ob

Page 147 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

180



&)
@
&)

(6)

(7

3

®

PO-44300-0026012/lob

upon actual funds available at the time of payment. Changes to the Financial Assistance
Award to move amounts from one fund source to another fund source but otherwise
budget neutral will be processed as an Administrative Adjustment rather than issuing an
Amendment to the Financial Assistance Award. The notice of Administrative
Adjustment will be sent to the County via email to the contact person listed in Exhibit G,
“Standard Terms and Conditions,” Section 18., “Notice.” County shall have 30 calendar
days to request OHA replace the Administrative Adjustment notice with an Amendment
to the Financial Assistance Award. If the County does not make such a request, the
Financial Assistance Award shall be deemed amended as noted in the Administrative
Adjustment and agreed to by both parties.

Column 3, Proj Code: This item is for OHA’s internal use only.
Column 4, CPMS: This item is for OHA’s internal use only.

Column 5, Provider: This is either the Provider’s name or a description for a specific
Service as set forth on that particular line of the Financial Assistance Award.

Column 6, Effective Dates: This specifies the time period during which the Service or
Service capacity, as applicable, is expected to be delivered utilizing the approved Service
funds as set forth on that particular line of the Financial Assistance Award. For purposes
of disbursement method “A” (as described in Section (11), “Column 11, Part ABC,”
below), these dates also specify the time period during which the approved Service funds
will be disbursed to County.

Column 7, Slot Change/Type: This is either the number of slots or number of days of
Service or Service capacity, as applicable, OHA anticipates County to deliver during the
period specified and utilizing the approved Service funds set forth on that particular line
of the Financial Assistance Award. The Service or Service capacity, as applicable, must
be delivered in the amounts and over the course of the time period specified on that line
of the Financial Assistance Award. This column will be blank, followed by “NA” if the
basis of payment set forth in the applicable Service Description is not tied to actual
delivery of Services or Service capacity. The Slot Change/Type is the unit of
measurement associated with the Effective Dates set forth in column 6. The Slot
Change/Type is expressed in three-character designations and have the following
meanings:

(a) CSD: One CSD (or Client Service Day) is one day of Service or Service capacity,
as applicable, delivered to one Individual or made available for delivery to one
Individual, as applicable.

(b)  N/A: N/A means Slot Change/type is not applicable to the particular line.

(c) SLT: One SLT (or Slot) is the delivery or capacity to deliver, as applicable, the
Service to an Individual during the entire period specified in the corresponding
line of the Financial Assistance Award.

Column 8, Rate: This is the cost per day, per month, or per Slot Change/Type
measurement for the Service or Service capacity, as applicable, to be delivered utilizing
the approved Service funds as set forth on that line of the Financial Assistance Award.

Column 9, Operating Dollars: This is the total amount of funds awarded under this
Agreement, as amended from time to time, for delivery of the Service and is OHA’s
maximum, not-to-exceed obligation during the time period specified on that particular

Page 148 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

181



line, in support of the Services described on that particular line, of the Financial
Assistance Award.

(10) Column 10, Startup Dollars: This is the total amount of funds awarded under this
Agreement, as amended from time to time, to be used only for one-time expenses
incurred in initiating, expanding, or upgrading the specified Service, or for other special
one-time expenses related to the Service. Start-up funds may only be spent for the
purposes specified in the Special Condition(s) as listed in Column 16, “SP#.” Start-up
funds are to be expended only in accordance with Exhibit K of this Agreement and with
Start-up procedures within the applicable Service Elements.

(11) Column 11, Part ABC: This column indicates the method by which OHA disburses the
funds awarded under the Agreement, as amended from time to time. The disbursement
method listed in this column, as indicated by the letter A, B, or C, will usually be
consistent with the disbursement method set forth in the Service Description for the
particular Service Element. The characters A, B and C indicate the following
disbursement methods:

(a) The letter ‘A’ indicates OHA will disburse the awarded funds to County in
substantially equal monthly allotments during the period set forth in Column 6,
“Effective Dates.”

(b) [Reserved] (The letter ‘B’ is no longer used.)

(c) The letter ‘C’ indicates OHA will disburse the awarded funds in the manner
specified in Column 16, “SP#.”

If the disbursement method listed in this column is different than the method set forth in
the Service Description, the disbursement method listed in this column shall control. This
column only indicates the disbursement method to be used should County be entitled to
receive funds awarded, which shall be determined in accordance with the basis of
payment as set forth in the applicable Service Element. Any disbursements made to
County in excess of the funds County is entitled to, as determined in accordance with the
applicable basis of payment and through the Agreement Settlement process, will be
recovered by OHA in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(12) Column 12, Part IV: This is the Specialized Service Requirement Code, if applicable,
and corresponds with the Specialized Service Requirement described in Exhibit B-2. If a
code appears in this column, the Service must be delivered in accordance with the
Specialized Service Requirement when the Service is delivered using approved Service
funds, as set forth on that line of the Financial Assistance Award.

(13) Column 13, PAAF CD: This column is the Plan/Amendment Approval Form (PAAF)
code, which is the lookup field to title the various sections of the PAAF based on this
PAAF code.

(i4) Column 14, Base: This is the code used to indicate how the Services being provided, as
set forth on that line of the Financial Assistance Award, are to be handled at the end of
the respective biennium, as follows:

(a)  The letter “Y” in this field indicates the Services subject to and modified by this
Agreement, hereafter referred to as MOD, as set forth on that line of the Financial
Assistance Award may continue into the next biennium. This will be contingent
on the Services still being required, at that time and at that level, and upon OHA’s

PO-44300-0026012/|ob Page 149 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

182



183

funding being continued at the present funding level or higher, through the
Legislatively Adopted Budget for that specific biennium.

(b)  The letter “N” in this field indicates the Services being modified in this MOD, as
set forth on that line of the Financial Assistance Award, are not continuing into
the next biennium.

(c) The letter “M” in this field indicates the Services being modified in this MOD, as
set forth on that line of the Financial Assistance Award, are “maybe” going to
continue into the next biennium. This will be determined at the time OHA is
preparing the next biennium’s Agreements. This code is typically used for
Services paid by Federal Grants.

(15) Column 15, Client Code: This column is used when Service funds, as set forth on that
line of the Financial Assistance Award, are for a specific client. The coded client name
indicates the approved Service funds may only be expended on the delivery of the
specified Service to the specified Individual. If this column is blank, Service funds are
not intended for any particular Individual.

(16) Column 16, SP#: This column is for Special Conditions, if any, that must be complied
with when providing the Service using approved service funds set forth on that line of the
Financial Assistance Award. For certain Services, the Special Conditions specify the rate
at which financial assistance will be calculated for delivery of that Service or delivery of
capacity for that Service. The Special Conditions are identified by a numeric code. A
table or tables listing the Special Conditions by numeric code is included in the Financial
Assistance Award.

2. Format and Abbreviations in Financial Assistance Award Amendments. The format and
abbreviations in a Financial Assistance Award amendment are the same as those used in the initial
Financial Assistance Award. If a Financial Assistance Award amendment amends the financial and
service information in the Financial Assistance Award, the financial and service information line in the
amendment will either amend an existing line in the financial and service information of the Financial
Assistance Award or constitute a new line added to the financial and service information of the Financial
Assistance Award. A financial and service information line in a Financial Assistance Award amendment
(an “Amending Line”) amends an existing line of the Financial Assistance Award (a “Corresponding
Line™) if the line in the Financial Assistance Award amendment awards funds for the same Service,
specifies the same Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) Name (if applicable), and
specifies the same SE# as an existing line (as previously amended, if at all) in the Financial Assistance
Award and specifies a date range falling within the Effective Dates specified in that existing line (as
previously amended, if at all). If an Amending Line has a positive number in the approved Operating
Dollars column, those funds are added to the approved Operating Dollars of the Corresponding Line for
the period specified in the Amending Line. If an Amending Line has a negative number in the approved
Operating Dollars column, those funds are subtracted from the approved Operating Dollars of the
Corresponding Line for period specified in the Amending Line. If an Amending Line has a positive
number in the Slot Change/Type column, those Slots are added to the Slot Change/Type in the
Corresponding Line for the period specified in the Amending Line. If an Amending Line has a negative
number in the Slot Change/Type column, those Slots are subtracted from the Slot Change/Type in the
Corresponding Line for the period specified in the Amending Line. All Special Conditions identified in
a Corresponding Line apply to funds identified on an Amending Line (unless a Special Condition or
portion thereof on an Amending Line specifies a rate). If an Amending Line contains a Special
Condition or portion of a Special Condition that specifies a rate, that Special Condition or portion
thereof replaces, for the period specified in the Amending Line, any Special Condition or portion thereof

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 150 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



in the Corresponding Line that specifies a rate. If a financial and service information line in a Financial
Assistance Award amendment is not an Amending Line, as described above, it is a new line added to the
Financial Assistance Award.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 151 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

184



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT D
PAYMENT, SETTLEMENT, AND CONFIRMATION REQUIREMENTS

1. OHA provides funding for Services through Part A or C awards. The award type is identified in Exhibit
C, “Financial Assistance Award,” on lines in which column “Part ABC,” contains an “A” for Part A
award and a “C” for Part C award:

a. Funds awarded to County or Service Providers are subject to the following:

(1) OHA shall not authorize in aggregate, under this “Financial Assistance Calculation and
Disbursement” section, financial assistance requested for Services in excess of the
contractual Not-to-Exceed amount. “Total aggregate funding” means the total of all
funding authorized in Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award.” The monthly rate will be
prorated for any month in which the Individual does not receive Services for a portion of
the month. Funding received by the County or Service Provider from an Individual, the
Individual’s health insurance provider, another person’s health insurance provider under
which Individual is also covered, or any other Third-Party Resource (TPR) in support of
Individual’s care and Services, in addition to payments received under this financial
assistance agreement for the same Service, during the same time period or date of Service
for the same Individual, must be returned to OHA unless TPR funding is used to provide
additional Service — increasing capacity — under the same Service Element for which
payment from OHA and TPR was provided.

County must make reasonable efforts to obtain payment first from other resources
consistent with OAR 410-120-1280. County is obligated to report to OHA, by email at
hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov, any TPR payments received, no later than 30
calendar days following expiration of this Agreement. The following information shall be
provided:

(a) OHA Contract name and number;

(b) Client name and date of birth;

(c) Service for which payment was received;

(d)  Date of service covered by payment;

(e) Date of TPR payment received by County or Service Provider; and
) Amount of payment.

(2) County is not entitled to funding in combination with Medicaid funds for the same
Service, during the same time period or date of Services for the same Individual;

Q) At no time will OHA pay above the Medicaid rate. Additionally, OHA will not pay above
the Medicaid rate in accordance with the OHA Mental Health and Developmental
Disability Services Medicaid Payment for Rehabilitative Mental Health Services Rule,
posted on the HSD PASRR website located at:
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/HSD/AMH/Pages/PASRR .aspx, as it may be revised from
time to time.

(4) OHA is not obligated to provide funding for any Services that are not properly reported
in accordance with the “Reporting Requirements” and “Special Reporting Requirements”
sections of this Contract or as required in an applicable Specialized Service Requirement
by the date 60 calendar days after the earlier of expiration or termination of this

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 152 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTH 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

185



186

Agreement, termination of OHA’s obligation to provide funding for Services, or
termination of County’s obligation to include the Program Area in which Services fall.

b. Part A awards:

OHA provides financial assistance for Services through Part A awards for non-Medicaid-eligible
Services. County and Service Providers shall maintain compliance with OAR 410-172-0600
through 0860 Medicaid Payment for Behavioral Health, and OAR 943-120-0310 through 0320
Provider Enrollment Services, for Service Elements MHS 01, 09, 10, 12, 13, 15, 16, 20, 24, 25,
25A, 26,27, 28, 31, 34, 36, and A&D 61, 63, 66, and 67.

1) Calculation of Financial Assistance: OHA will provide financial assistance for Services
provided under a particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” containing
an “A” in column “Part ABC,” from funds identified in that line in an amount equal to
that line of the Financial Assistance Award during the period specified in that line. The
total of OHA funds for all Services delivered under a particular line of Exhibit C,
“Financial Assistance Award” containing an “A” in column “Part ABC,” shall not exceed
the total of awards for Services as specified in that line of the Financial Assistance Award
and are subject to the limitations described herein.

2) Disbursement of Financial Assistance: Unless a different disbursement method is
specified in that line of Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award,” OHA will disburse the
Part A allotments for Services provided under a particular line of the Financial Assistance
Award containing an “A” in column “Part ABC,” to County in substantially equal
monthly allotments during the period specified in that line of the Financial Assistance
Award subject to the following:

(a) OHA may, upon written request of County, adjust monthly allotments;

(b)  Upon amendment to the Financial Assistance Award, OHA shall adjust monthly
allotments as necessary, to reflect changes in the funds shown for Services
provided under that line of the Financial Assistance Award; and

(c) OHA may, after 30 calendar days (unless parties agree otherwise) written notice
to County, reduce the monthly allotments based on under-used funding identified
through MOTS and other reports in accordance with the “Reporting
Requirements”™ and “Special Reporting Requirements” sections or applicable
special conditions.

¢ Part B awards: [Reserved — Not currently in use]
d. Part C awards:

(1) Part C awards are calculated and applied as follows:

Unless a different disbursement method is specified in that line of Exhibit C, “Financial
Assistance Award,” OHA will disburse the Part C funds for Services provided under a
particular line of the Financial Assistance Award containing a “C” in column “Part ABC”
to County per receipt and approval of a written invoice with required attachments, as
specified below, in the monthly allotment during the period specified in that line of the
Financial Assistance Award. Invoice and required attachments are due no later than 45
calendar days following the end of the subject month or quarter, and must be submitted to
hsd.contracts(@lodhsoha.oregon.gov, with the subject line “Invoice, contract # (your
contract number), contractor name.” Financial assistance provided by OHA shall be
subject to the limitations described in this Agreement.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 153 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



(a) For Services to Medicaid-eligible Individuals for whom the Services provided are
not covered under Medicaid but are medically appropriate, County shall attach a
copy of the Plan of Care (POC) and Coordinated Care Organization (CCO)
refusal of payments for the item or Service. OHA will provide funding at the
Medicaid Fee Schedule rate. At no time will OHA provide funding above the
Medicaid Fee Schedule rate for Services.

(b)  For Services to non-Medicaid-eligible Individuals, County shall attach a copy of
the bill or receipt, for the item or Service, to a combined monthly invoice,
itemized by Individual. Part C funding for Psychiatric Security Review Board
(PSRB) non-medically approved Services are only for the time period shown and
do not carry forward into following years’ allotments.

e. Start-Up awards:

(1) Calculation of Financial Assistance: OHA will provide financial assistance for A&D 60
and MHS 37 Services from funds identified in a particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial
Assistance Award,” in an amount equal to the amount requested on the Start-Up form
submitted by County, subject to the requirements of Exhibit K, “Start-Up Procedures.”
The total OHA financial assistance for all A&D 60 and MHS 37 activities described
herein under a particular line of the Financial Assistance Award shall not exceed the total
funds awarded for A&D 60 and MHS 37 as specified in that line of the Financial
Assistance Award.

Q) Disbursement of Financial Assistance:

(a) Unless a different disbursement method is specified in that line of Exhibit C,
“Financial Assistance Award,” OHA will disburse the Start-Up funds awarded for
A&D 60 and MHS 37 in a particular line of the Financial Assistance Award after
OHA'’s receipt, review, and approval of County’s properly completed *Start-Up
Request & Expenditure Report,” as described in and in accordance with Exhibit
K, “Start-Up Procedures.”

(b) After execution of the Agreement or any amendment(s) for Start-Up
disbursements, County may request an advance of funds it anticipates using in the
subsequent 120 calendar days.

f. Settlement and Confirmation of Performance Requirements:

OHA uses either Settlement or Confirmation of Performance requirements at the end of each
contracting period. The specific requirement will be listed in each individual Service
Description.

(N Agreement Settlement:

(a) Agreement Settlement will be used to reconcile any discrepancies that may have
occurred during the term of this Agreement between actual OHA disbursements
of funds awarded for Services under a particular line of Exhibit C, “Financial
Assistance Award,” containing an “A” in column “Part ABC,” and amounts due
for such Services based on the rate set forth in the special condition identified in
that line of the Financial Assistance Award. For purposes of this section, amounts
due to County are determined by the actual amount of Services delivered under
that line of the Financial Assistance Award, as properly reported in accordance
with the “Reporting Requirements” and “Special Reporting Requirements”

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 154 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

187



2

PO-44300-0026012/10b

(b)

sections of the Agreement or as required in an applicable Specialized Service
Requirement, and subject to the terms and limitations in this Agreement.

The settlement process will not apply to funds awarded for an approved reserved
service capacity payment.

Agreement Settlement for Start-Up Services:

Agreement Settlement will be used to reconcile any discrepancies that may have
occurred during the term of this Agreement between actual OHA disbursements
of funds awarded for Start-Up and amounts due for Services based on actual
allowable expenditures incurred in accordance with the Service Description and
Exhibit K, “Start-Up Procedures.”

County shall submit all Start-Up Request and Expenditure Reports at the level of
detail prescribed by OHA. Any reports not submitted by 45 calendar days after
the expiration or termination date of this Agreement, whichever is earlier, shall
not be accepted nor any funds owed by OHA.

Confirmation of Performance and Reporting Reguirements:

County shall be required to demonstrate through the data properly reported in accordance
with the “Reporting Requirements” and “Special Reporting Requirements” sections, the
qualifying Services to which these Services can be attributed, how funds awarded were

utilized consistent with the terms and limitations herein to meet the performance
requirements of the Service Description, and that County shall be subject to the
monitoring and review of performance requirements and quality measures by the OHA

Contract Administrator for the Program under which these Services fall and subject to the
terms and limitations in this Agreement.

Page 155 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

188



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBITE
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. County Expenditures on Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services. In accordance
with ORS 430.345 to 430.380 (the “Mental Health Alcoholism and Drug Services Account”), County
shall maintain its 2023-2024 financial contribution to alcohol and other drug treatment and prevention
services at an amount not less than that for fiscal year 2023. Furthermore, and in accordance with the
Mental Health Alcoholism and Drug Services Account, County shall maintain its 2025 financial
contribution to alcohol and other drug treatment and prevention services at an amount not less than that
for calendar year 2024. OHA may waive all or part of the financial contribution requirement in
consideration of severe financial hardship or any other grounds permitted by law.

2. Limitations on use of Financial Assistance Awarded for Addiction Treatment, Recovery, &
Prevention Services. Financial assistance awarded under this Agreement for Addiction Treatment,
Recovery, & Prevention Services (as reflected in the Financial Assistance Award), may not be used to:

a. Provide inpatient hospital services;
Make cash payments to intended recipients of health services;

c. Purchase or improve land, or purchase, construct or permanently improve (other than minor
remodeling) any building or other facility or to purchase major medical equipment;

d. Satisfy any requirement for expenditure of non-federal funds as a condition for receipt of federal
funds (whether the federal funds are Federal Funds under this Agreement or otherwise); or

e Carry out any program prohibited by section 256(b) of the Health Omnibus Programs Extension
Act of 1988 (codified at 42 U.S.C. 300ee-5), which specifically prohibits funds provided under
this Agreement from being used to provide Individuals with hypodermic needles or syringes so
that such Individuals may use illegal drugs, unless the Surgeon General of the Public Health
Service determines that a demonstration needle exchange program would be effective in
reducing drug abuse.

3. County shall maintain separate fund balances for the Community Mental Health Services, Addiction
Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services, and Problem Gambling Services.

4. County Investigating and Reporting Allegations of Abuse for Mental Health Services. County shall
investigate and report all allegations of abuse regarding served Individuals and provide protective
services to those Individuals to prevent further abuse. The investigation, reporting and protective
services must be completed in compliance with ORS 430.735 through 430.765 and OAR 407-045-0120
through 407-045-0955, as such statutes and rules may be revised from time to time.

5. Trauma Informed Services also referred to as Trauma Informed Care (TIC). CMHP shall comply
with OAR 309-019-0105(118) as it relates to TIC. Providing any OHA Services, CMHP will have a TIC
plan and TIC will appear as a core principle in CMHP policies, mission statement, and written program
and service information, in accordance with OHA Trauma Informed Care (TIC) Policy located at
hitps://www.oregon.gov/oha/amh/trauma-policy/Trauma%20Policy.pdf. CMHP will initiate and
complete an agency self-assessment and have a quality assurance structure/process to further develop
and sustain TIC.

P0Q-44300-0026012/1ob Page 156 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

189



190

6. Promotion, Prevention, Early Identification, and Intervention. Within available funds, CMHP will
focus on promotion, prevention and early identification and intervention of conditions that lead to
behavioral and mental health conditions in the array of interventions supported by CMHP services. This
focus will lead to improved outcomes and enhanced healthcare experiences for Individuals as well as
reduce overall expenditures.

7. Clinical Interventions and Support Services provided to any Individual enrolled in the Oregon Health
Plan (OHP) who is covered for these Services and for which the CCO or Medical Assistance Programs
(MAP) pays for these Services are not eligible for Services. The OHP benefit package includes many of
the Services provided under this Agreement. The intent is not to duplicate OHP but rather augment the
package of Services.

8. Performance Standards and Quality Measures. County shall comply with the following:

a. A Provider delivering Services with funds provided through this Agreement may not use funds to
deliver covered Services to any Individual known to be enrolled in the Oregon Health Plan.

b. The quality of Services supported with funds provided through this Agreement will be measured
in accordance with the criteria set forth below. The criteria are applied on a countywide basis
each calendar quarter (or portion thereof) during the period for which the funds are awarded.
County shall develop and implement quality assurance and quality improvement processes to
progressively improve, as measured by the criteria set forth below, the quality of Services
provided under this Agreement. OHA may provide performance incentive funds to some or all of
these standards and measures. OHA may recommend additional actions to improve quality.

1) Access: Access is measured by OHA as the percentage of county residents, as estimated
by an OHA approved survey to determine treatment need, who are enrolled in Services
with the exception of prevention and promotion. This measure applies to all program
areas; Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, and Prevention, and
Problem Gambling Services.

(2)  Treatment Service Initiation: Treatment service initiation is measured as the percentage
of Individuals served within 14 calendar days of the original assessment, also known as
the index date. The index date is a start date with no Services in the prior 60 calendar
days. This measure applies to all program areas; Community Mental Health, Addiction
Treatment, Recovery, and Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services.

3) Treatment Service Retention: Treatment service retention is measured as the
percentage of Individuals engaged in and receiving Services (excluding prevention and
promotion) with funds provided through this Agreement who are actively engaged in
Services for 90 calendar days or more. This measure applies to all program areas;
Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem
Gambling Services.

(4)  Reduced Use: Reduced use is measured as the percentage of Individuals engaged in and
receiving Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services with funds provided
through this Agreement who reduce their use of alcohol or other drugs during
treatment/Services, as reported in MOTS.

%) Facility-Based Care Follow-Up: Facility-based care follow-up is measured by the
percentage of Individuals with a follow-up visit within 7 calendar days after
hospitalization for mental illness or any facility-based Service defined as residential. This
measure applies to all program areas; Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment,
Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services.

P0-44300-002601210b Page 157 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



(6)  Hospital and Facility-Based Readmission Rates: Hospital and facility-based
readmission rates are measured as a percentage of the number of Individuals returning to
the same or higher levels of care within 30 and 180 calendar days divided by the total
number of discharges. This measure applies to all program areas; Community Mental
Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services.

) Parent-Child Reunification: Parent-child reunification is measured as a percentage by
dividing the number of parents reunited with a child (or multiple children) by the total
number of parents served who had children in an out-of-home placement or foster care
due to child welfare involvement. This measure applies to Addiction Treatment,
Recovery, & Prevention Services only.

it} Functional Outcomes — Housing Status; Employment Status; School Performance;
and Criminal Justice Involvement: Four functional outcome measures will be
monitored by OHA and reported to the County as follows:

(a) Housing Status: This measure will be monitored and reported when improved
housing status is established as a goal of treatment and Services; or when a person
is homeless or in a licensed care facility. The measure is expressed as the number
of Individuals who improve housing status, as indicated by a change from
homelessness or licensed facility-based care to private housing, divided by the
total number of Individuals with a goal to improve housing. This measure applies
to all program areas; Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery,
& Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services.

(b)  Supported Housing: This measure is to count integrated housing for Individuals
with Serious and Persistent Mental lllness (SPMI). The measure will be calculated
based on the Individuals receiving rental assistance through the Rental Assistance
Program and through the identification of Supported Housing in the community.

(c) Employment Status: This measure will be monitored and reported when
employment is a goal of treatment and Services. This measure is expressed as the
number of Individuals who become employed, as indicated by a change in
employment status, divided by the total number of Individuals with a goal of
becoming employed. This measure applies to all program areas; Community
Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem
Gambling Services.

{(d)  School Performance: This measure will be monitored and reported when
improved school attendance is a goal of treatment and Services. The measure is
expressed as the number of Individuals who improve attendance in school while
in active treatment, divided by the total number of Individuals with a goal of
improved attendance. This measure applies to all program areas; Community
Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem
Gambling Services.

(e) Criminal Justice Involvement: This measure will be monitored by OHA for
Individuals referred by the justice system. The measure is expressed as the
number of Individuals who were not arrested after an episode of active treatment
or two consecutive quarters (whichever comes first), divided by the total number
of Individuals referred by the justice system. This measure applies to all program
areas; Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention,
and Problem Gambling Services.

P0O-44300-0026012/1cb Page 158 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

191



10.

H Oregon State Hospital (OSH) Ready to Transition List (RTT): All Contraciors
need to work together to make sure when an Individual is deemed Ready to
Transition, they are discharged timely and with the appropriate Services and
supports. This measure will be calculated by identifying the length of time from
RTT to discharge for Individuals at OSH under civil commitment. This measure
applies only to Community Mental Health services.

Upon OHA’s identification of any deficiencies in the County’s performance under this Agreement,
including without limitation failure to submit reports as required, failure to expend available funding, or
failure to meet performance requirements, County shall prepare and submit to OHA within 30 calendar
days a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) to be reviewed and approved by OHA. The CAP shall include, but
is not limited to, the following information:

a. Reason or reasons for the CAP;
The date the CAP will become effective, with timelines for implementation;

c. Planned action already taken to correct the deficiencies, as well as proposed resolutions to
address remaining deficits identified, with oversight and monitoring by OHA; and

d. Proposed remedies, short of termination, should County not come into compliance within the
timeframe set forth in the CAP.

Reporting Requirement for MOTS

All Individuals receiving Services under Service Element(s) A&D 61, 62, 63, 64, 66, 67, and/or MHS
01,04, 05, 09, 13, 15, 20, 25, 25A, 26, 27, 28, 30, 34, 35, 36, 38, 39 with funds provided through this
Agreement must be enrolled and that Individual’s record maintained in the Measures and Qutcomes
Tracking System (MOTS) as specified in OHA’s MOTS Reference Manual located, at:
https://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH-MOTS/pages/resource. aspx, and the Who Reports in MOTS
Policy, as follows:

The data collection system for the Health Systems Division (HSD) is the Measures and Outcomes
Tracking System or MOTS. In general, behavioral health providers who are either licensed or have a
letter of approval from the HSD (or the former Addictions & Mental Health Division [AMH], and
receive public funds to provide treatment services are required to report to MOTS. In addition to the
general rule above, there are four basic ways to classify who is required to submit data to MOTS:

a. Providers with HSD contracts that deliver treatment services (this includes Community Mental
Health Programs [CMHP], Local Mental Health Authorities [LMHA] and other types of
community behavioral health providers); these programs shall all have a license or letter of
approval from the HSD or AMH;

b. Providers that are subcontractors (can be a subcontractor or a CMHP or other entity that holds a
contract with HSD or OHA, such as a Mental Health Organization [MHO)], or a Coordinated
Care Organization [CCOY]);

c. Providers that HSD does not contract with but are required to submit data to MOTS by
State/Federal statute or rule; these include DUII services providers and methadone maintenance
providers; and

d. Providers that contract with other governmental agencies (e.g., Oregon Youth Authority [OYA]
or the Department of Corrections [DOC] to deliver mental health and/or substance abuse
services).

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 159 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

192



Note: Primary care physicians that provide a single service on behalf of the CMHP are not required to

report the MOTS status or service level data.

If there are any questions, contact MOTS Support at MOTS.Supporticiodhsoha.oregon.gov.

11.  Funding Resource Availability

a.

Services described herein are subject to the availability of funds and resources in the community.

The County acknowledges that OHA does not provide direct Services to Individuals described in
MHS 4, 24 and 28; and that OHA provides financial assistance under this Agreement to assist
the County in providing these Services to Individuals.

If the County determines that it cannot reasonably meet the requirements in subsection
m.(2)(f)(iii)(B) in MHS 4 related to the identification and placement of an Individual with a
Provider outside of the state hospital within 60 calendar days from when the state hospital
notifies the County that the Individual no longer requires state hospital level of care, then the
County shall follow the resolution process described in subsections [1(f) and (g} of this Exhibit.

If the County determines that it cannot reasonably meet the requirements in subsection w.(2)(h)
in MHS 24 related to the identification and placement of an Individual with a Provider outside of
a state or community hospital within 60 calendar days from when the state or community
hospital notifies the County that the Individual no longer requires hospital level of care, then the
County shall follow the resolution process described in subsections 11(f) and (g) of this Exhibit.

If the County determines that it cannot reasonably meet the requirements in subsection aa.{2)(c)
in MHS 28 related to the identification and placement of an Individual with a Provider outside of
the state hospital within 60 calendar days from when the state hospital notifies the County that
the Individual no longer requires state hospital level of care, then the County shall follow the
resolution process described in subsections 11(f) and (g) of this Exhibit.

If the County determines that it cannot reasonably provide the Services described in subsections
11(c) through (e) of this Exhibit, the County shall:

(1) Develop a Plan of Resolution that provides the following information to OHA:

(a) Identify the barrier(s) to providing the Service to the Individual including, but not
limited to: insufficient funds, lack of Providers, Individual-specific barrier(s), or
coordination issues with Providers, governmental bodies or contractors, or any
other interested parties;

i. If the barrier is insufficient funding, provide OHA with specific
information about the amount of funds that the County has left under this
Agreement to provide Services under MHS 4, 24, or 28 for the remaining
term of the Agreement;

ii. If the barrier is lack of Providers, identify the specific gaps in Provider
capacity (e.g., level of care and geographic area);

iii. If the barrier is an Individual-specific barrier(s), provide information
whether this is an exceptional case or likely to reoccur with other
Individuals; or

iv. If the barrier is in coordination, identify the issue and the entities or
persons involved.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 160 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

193



(b)  Provide information on how the County has already attempted to address the
identified barrier(s), such as:

i. Requested proposals for contracts from new Providers;
ii. Used existing funds to develop and fund new Providers;

idi. Contacted OHA to discuss complex case management and the use of funds
or need for additional funds for new Providers or Individual-specific
Services; or

iv. Coordinated with other entities or persons involved in providing or
funding the Services to the Individual under MHS 4, 24, or 28.

(c) Provide a plan on how to resolve the identified barrier(s); and
(d) Identify how OHA can assist the County in resolving the barrier(s).

2) Timely submit the Plan of Resolution to OHA , but no later than 10 business days from
the date that the County determines it cannot provide the Services to the Individual due to
insufficient funds, lack of Providers, Individual-specific barrier(s), or coordination issues;

3) Meet with OHA within 10 business days of submitting the Plan of Resolution in order to
discuss it, unless the timeframe is extended by the mutual written agreement of the
County and OHA;

4) If, after the meeting, OHA does not approve the Plan of Resolution, submit a first
Revised Plan of Resolution to OHA within 10 business days of receiving OHA’s notice
of non-approval unless a longer period is specified in the notice; OHA will provide a
rationale for why the plan was not approved in writing within 3 business days of the
meeting if the plan is not approved.

(5) Implement the OHA-approved Plan of Resolution or OHA-approved Revised Plan of
Resolution within the reasonable deadline set by OHA in its approval notice or by the
mutually agreed upon deadline set by the County and OHA, whichever is longer.

g [f the County’s Plan of Resolution and first Revised Plan of Resolution are not approved by
OHA, the County shall elevate the issue to senior management or appropriate designee.

(1)  The County’s senior management or their designee shall meet with OHA’s senior
management or designee to discuss the first Revised Plan of Resolution and the ways
OHA can support the County in resolving the issue within 10 business days from the date
of OHA’s notice of non-approval of the first Revised Plan of Resolution.

(2)  The County shall continue to submit Revised Plans of Resolution to OHA for review
until it is approved by OHA. If the County and OHA agree that further revisions will not
resolve the barriers or allow the County to provide the Services to the Individual, no
further revisions of the Plan of Resolution will be required.

3) If a revised Plan of Resolution is approved by OHA, the County shall implement it within
the reasonable deadline set by OHA in its approval notice or by the mutually agreed upon
deadline set by the County and OHA, whichever is longer.

h. OHA agrees to provide the following support to the County for Services provided to Individuals
under MHS 4, 24, and 28:

(1) Provide complex case management support to assist the County in locating placements or
Services for Individuals with placement barriers (e.g., sex offender history, special
medical needs, and dual diagnosis).

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 161 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

194



2) Assist the County in resolving coordination issues with Coordinated Care Organizations,
CHOICE contractors, the Department of Human Services, and any other entities involved
in providing or funding the Individual’s Services.

3) Act as a good faith partner with the County to address shortages in staffing, capacity, or
other needs required by the County to provide the Services to Individuals under MHS 4,
24, and 28.

“@) If the County submits a Plan of Resolution or Revised Plan of Resolution under
subsections 11(f) and (g) of this Exhibit, OHA shall:

(a) Review the Plan of Resolution or Revised Plan of Resolution and set a meeting
with the County;

(b)  Meet with the County within 10 business days of receiving the Plan of Resolution
or Revised Plan of Resolution in order to discuss it, unless the timeframe is
extended by the mutual written agreement of the County and OHA,;

(c) Provide approval or request a revised Plan of Resolution within 10 business days
from the date of the meeting described in subsection 11(h)(4)(b) of this Exhibit;

(d)  Not unreasonably withhold approval of the County’s Plan of Resolution or
Revised Plan of Resolution; and

(e) Set a reasonable timeframe to implement the OHA-approved Plan of Resolution
or Revised Plan of Resolution based on the type of actions to be implemented by
the County to resolve the issue.

i If OHA does not approve the County’s Plan of Resolution and first Revised Plan of Resolution,
OHA shall elevate the issue to senior management or appropriate designee.

(1) OHA'’s senior management or designee shall meet with the County’s senior management
or designee to discuss the first Revised Plan of Resolution and the ways OHA can
support the County in resolving the issue within 10 business days from the date of OHA’s
notice of non-approval of the first Revised Plan of Resolution.

2) OHA shall provide approval or specific advice on revising the County’s revised Plan of
Resolution within 10 business days from the date of the meeting under subsection
[ 1(h)(4)(b) above, unless the timeframe is extended by the mutual written agreement of
the County and OHA.,

3) OHA shall continue to work with the County and review any subsequently submitted
Revised Plans of Resolution, and shall respond to the County with approval or non-
approval of that Plan within 10 business days of receiving it. If the County and OHA
agree that further revisions will not resolve the barriers or allow the County to provide
the Services to the Individual, no further revisions will be required.

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 162 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTH 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

195



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT F
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. Disbursement and Recovery of Financial Assistance.
a. Disbursement Generally. Subject to the conditions precedent set forth below, OHA shall

disburse the financial assistance described in the Financial Assistance Award to County in
accordance with the procedures set forth below and, as applicable, in the Service Descriptions
and the Financial Assistance Award. Disbursement procedures may vary by Service.

) Disbursement of Financial Assistance Awarded for Services in Financial Assistance
Award. As set forth in the Service Description for a particular Service, OHA will
generally disburse financial assistance that is described in the Financial Assistance
Award to County in monthly allotments in advance of actual delivery of the Service.

(2) Disbursements Remain Subject to Recovery. All disbursements of financial assistance
under this Agreement, including disbursements made directly to Providers, remain
subject to recovery from County, in accordance with Recovery of Financial Assistance
section below.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. OHA’s obligation to disburse financial assistance to
County under this Agreement is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of
each of the following conditions precedent:

(1) No County default, as described in Section 6 of Exhibit G, “Standard Terms and
Conditions,” has occurred.

2) County’s representations and warranties, as set forth in Section 4 of Exhibit G, “Standard
Terms and Conditions,” are true and correct on the date of disbursement with the same
effect as though made on the date of disbursement.

c. Recovery of Financial Assistance.

(1)  Notice of Underexpenditure, Overexpenditure. If OHA believes there has been an
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure (as defined in Exhibit A “Definitions”) of moneys
disbursed under this Agreement, OHA shall provide County with written notice thereof,
with a detailed spreadsheet providing supporting data of an under or over expenditure,
and OHA and County shall engage in the process described in the Recovery of
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure section below. If OHA believes there has been a
Misexpenditure (as defined in Exhibit A “Definitions™) of moneys disbursed to County
under this Agreement, OHA shall provide County with written notice thereof and OHA
and County shall engage in the process described in Recovery of Misexpenditures section
below.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 163 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

196



(2) Recovery of Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure.

(a) County’s Response. County shall have 90 calendar days from the effective date
of the notice of Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure or from the date of receipt
of the notice, whichever is later, to pay OHA in full or notify OHA that it wishes
to engage in the appeals process set forth in the Appeals Process section below. If
County fails to respond within that 90 calendar-day time period, County shall
promptly pay the noticed Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure.

(b)  Appeals Process. Upon receipt of the final notice, if County notifies OHA that it
wishes to engage in the Appeals Process, County and OHA shall engage in non-
binding discussions to give the County an opportunity to present reasons why it
believes that there was no Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure, or that the
amount of the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure was different than the
amount identified by OHA, and to give OHA the opportunity to reconsider its
notice. County and OHA may negotiate an appropriate apportionment of
responsibility for the repayment of an Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure. At
County request, OHA will meet and negotiate with County in good faith
concerning appropriate apportionment of responsibility for repayment of an
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure. In determining an appropriate
apportionment of responsibility, County and OHA may consider any relevant
factors. An example of a relevant factor is the extent to which either party
contributed to an interpretation of a statute, regulation or rule prior to the
expenditure that was officially reinterpreted after the expenditure. If OHA and
County reach agreement on the amount owed to OHA, County shall promptly
repay that amount to OHA by issuing payment to OHA or by directing OHA to
withhold future payments pursuant to the Recovery from Future Payment section
below. If OHA and County are unable to agree to whether there has been an
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure or as to the amount owed, the parties may
agree to consider further appropriate dispute resolution processes, including,
subject to State of Oregon Department of Justice and County Counsel approval,
arbitration. If both parties are unable to agree to further dispute resolution, the
parties shall proceed according to the procedures described in the Recovery from
Future Payments section below,

{c) Recovery from Future Payments. To the extent that OHA is entitled to recover
an Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure pursuant to this Recovery of
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure section, OHA may recover the
Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure by offsetting the amount thereof against
future amounts owed to County by OHA, including, but not limited to, any
amount owed to County by OHA under any other agreement between County and
OHA, present or future. OHA shall provide County written notice of its intent to
recover the amount of the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure from amounts
owed County by OHA as set forth in this Section and shall identify the amounts,
which QOHA intends to offset, (including the agreements, if any, under which the
amounts owed arose and from those from which OHA wishes to deduct
payments). County shall then have 14 calendar days from the date of OHA's
notice in which to request the deduction be made from other amounts owed to
County by OHA and identified by County. OHA shall comply with County’s
request for alternate offset. In the event that OHA and County are unable to agree
on which specific amounts, owed to County by OHA, OHA may offset in order to

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 164 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOQIJ Approval 12/21/2023

197



recover the amount of the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure, OHA may select
the particular agreements, between OHA and County, and amounts from which it
will recover the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure, after providing notice to
the County and subject to the following limitations: OHA shall first look to
amounts owed to County (but unpaid) under this Agreement. If that amount is
insufficient, then OHA may look to any other amounts currently owing or owed in
the future to County by OHA. In no case, without the prior consent of County,
shall OHA deduct from any one payment due to County under the agreement
from which OHA is offsetting funds an amount in excess of twenty-five percent
(25%) of that payment. OHA may look to as many future payments as necessary
in order to fully recover the amount of the Underexpenditure or Overexpenditure.

(3) Recovery of Misexpenditure.

(a) If OHA believes there has been a Misexpenditure (as defined in Exhibit A
“Definitions”) of money disbursed to County under this Agreement, OHA shall
provide to County a written notice of recovery, with a detailed spreadsheet
providing supporting data of the Misexpenditure attached, and OHA and County
shall engage in the process described in the Appeal Process section below.

(b)  County’s Response. From the effective date of the Misexpenditure notice or from
the date of receipt of notice, whichever is later, County shall have the lesser of 60
calendar days; or if a Misexpenditure relates to a federal government request for
reimbursement, 30 calendar days fewer than the number of days (if any) OHA has
to appeal a final written decision from the federal government, to either:

i Make a payment to OHA in the full amount of the Misexpenditure as
identified by OHA in the notice; or

ii. Notify OHA that County wishes to repay the amount of the
Misexpenditure, as identified by OHA in the notice, from future payments
pursuant to the Recovery from Future Payments section below; or

iii. Notify OHA that it wishes to engage in the applicable appeal process, as
set forth in the Appeal Process section below.

If County fails to respond within the time required by this Section, OHA may
recover the amount of the Misexpenditure identified in the notice from future
payments as set forth in Recovery from Future Payment section below.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 165 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

198



PO-44300-0026012/10b

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

(c)

Appeal Process. If County notifies OHA that it wishes to engage in an appeal
process with respect to a notice of Misexpenditure from OHA, the parties shall
comply with the following procedures, as applicable:

.
L

ae
1L

Appeal from OHA-Identified Misexpenditure. [f OHA’s notice of
Misexpenditure is based on a Misexpenditure solely of the type described
in Section 20(b) or (c) of Exhibit A, “Definitions,” County and OHA shall
engage in the process described in this Appeal Process section to resolve a
dispute regarding the notice of Misexpenditure. First, County and OHA
shall engage in non-binding discussions, to give the County an opportunity
to present reasons why it believes that there is, in fact, no Misexpenditure
or that the amount of the Misexpenditure is different than the amount
identified by OHA in the notice, and to give OHA the opportunity to
reconsider its notice. County and OHA may negotiate an appropriate
apportionment of responsibility for the repayment of the Misexpenditure.
At County’s request, OHA will meet and negotiate with County in good
faith concerning appropriate apportionment of responsibility for
repayment of the Misexpenditure. In determining an appropriate
apportionment of responsibility, County and OHA may consider any
relevant factors. An example of a relevant factor is the extent to which
either party contributed to an interpretation of a statute, regulation or rule
prior to the expenditure that was officially reinterpreted after the
expenditure. If OHA and County reach agreement on the amount owed to
OHA, County shall promptly repay that amount to OHA by issuing
payment to OHA or by directing OHA to withhold future payments
pursuant to the Recovery from Future Payments section below. [f OHA
and County continue to disagree as to whether there has been a
Misexpenditure or as to the amount owed, the parties may agree to
consider further appropriate dispute resolution processes, including,
subject to State of Oregon Department of Justice and County Counsel
approval, arbitration.

Appeal from Federal-Identified Misexpenditure.

A. If OHA’s notice of Misexpenditure is based on a Misexpenditure
of the type described in Section 20(a) of Exhibit A, “Definitions,”
and the relevant federal agency provides a process either by statute
or administrative rule to appeal the determination of improper use
of federal funds, the notice of disallowance or other federal
identification of improper use of funds, and if the disallowance is
not based on a federal or state court judgment founded in
allegations of Medicaid fraud or abuse, then County may, 30
calendar days prior to the applicable federal appeals deadline,
request that OHA appeal the determination of improper use, notice
of disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of
funds in accordance with the process established or adopted by the
federal agency. If County so requests that OHA appeal the
determination of improper use of federal funds, federal notice of
disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of
funds, the amount in controversy shall, at the option of County, be
retained by the County or returned to OHA pending the final

Page 166 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

199



federal decision resulting from the initial appeal. If the County
requests, prior to the deadline set forth above, that OHA appeal,
OHA shall appeal the determination of improper use, notice of
disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of
funds in accordance with the established process and shall pursue
the appeal until a decision is issued by the Departmental Grant
Appeals Board of the Department of Health and Human Services
(the “Grant Appeals Board”) pursuant to the process for appeal set
forth in 45 C.F.R. Subtitle A, Part 16, or an equivalent decision is
issued under the appeal process established or adopted by the
federal agency. County and OHA shall cooperate with each other
in pursuing the appeal. If the Grant Appeals Board or its equivalent
denies the appeal then either County, OHA, or both may, at their
discretion, pursue further appeals. Regardless of any further
appeals, within 90 calendar days of the date the federal decision
resulting from the initial appeal is final, County shall repay to
OHA the amount of the Misexpenditure (reduced, if at all, as a
result of the appeal) by issuing payment to OHA or by directing
OHA to withhold future payments pursuant to Recovery from
Future Payments section below. To the extent that County retained
any of the amount in controversy while the appeal was pending,
the County shall also pay to OHA the interest, if any, charged by
the federal government on such amount.

B. If the relevant federal agency does not provide a process either by
statute or administrative rule to appeal the determination of
improper use of federal funds, the notice of disallowance or other
federal identification of improper use of funds or County does not
request that OHA pursue an appeal 30 calendar days prior to the
applicable federal appeals deadline, and if OHA does not appeal,
within 90 calendar days of the date the federal determination of
improper use of federal funds, the federal notice of disallowance or
other federal identification of improper use of funds is final,
County shall repay to OHA the amount of the Misexpenditure by
issuing a payment to OHA or by directing OHA to withhold future
payments pursuant to the Recovery from Future Payments section
below.

PQ-44300-0026012/lob Page 167 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

200



201

C. If County does not request that OHA pursue an appeal of the
determination of improper use of federal funds, the notice of
disallowance or other federal identification of improper use of
funds 30 calendar days prior to the applicable federal appeals
deadline but OHA nevertheless appeals, County shall repay to
OHA the amount of the Misexpenditure (reduced, if at all, as a
result of the appeal), within 90 calendar days of the date the federal
decision resulting from the appeal is final, by issuing payment to
OHA or by directing OHA to withhold future payments pursuant to
the Recovery from Future Payments section below.

D. Notwithstanding County’s Response section above, if the
Misexpenditure was expressly authorized by OHA rule or an OHA
writing that applied when the expenditure was made but was
prohibited by federal statutes or regulations that applied when the
expenditure was made, County will not be responsible for repaying
the amount of the Misexpenditure to OHA, provided that:

I. Where post-expenditure official reinterpretation of federal
statutes or regulations results in a Misexpenditure, County
and OHA will meet and negotiate in good faith an
appropriate apportionment of responsibility between them
for repayment of the Misexpenditure.

IL For purposes of this Section, an OHA writing must
interpret this Agreement or OHA rule and be signed by the
Director of OHA, the Director of Health Systems Division
or the Section Director.

OHA shall designate an alternate officer in the event the
Health Systems Division is abolished. Upon County’s
request, OHA shall notify County of the names of the
individual officers listed above. OHA shall send OHA
writings described in this paragraph to County by mail and
email and to CMHP directors by email.

HI.  The OHA writing must be in response to a request from
County for expenditure authorization or a statement
intended to provide official guidance to County or counties
generally for making expenditures under this Agreement.
The writing must not be contrary to this Agreement or
contrary to law or other applicable authority that is clearly
established at the time of the OHA writing.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 168 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



202

1V,  Ifthe OHA writing is in response to a request from County
for expenditure authorization, the County’s request must be
in writing and signed by the director of a County
department with the authority to make such a request or by
the County Counsel. It must identify the supporting data,
provisions of this Agreement and provisions of applicable
law relevant to determining if the expenditure should be
authorized.

V. An OHA writing expires on the date stated in the writing,
or if no expiration date is stated, six years from the date of
the writing. An expired OHA writing continues to apply to
County expenditures that were made in compliance with
the writing and during the term of the writing.

VI.  OHA may revoke or revise an OHA writing at any time if it
determines in its sole discretion that the writing allowed
expenditure in violation of this Agreement, law, or any
other applicable authority. However, County is not
responsible for a misexpenditure that was based on an
OHA writing that was effective at the time of the
misexpenditure.

VII. OHA rule does not authorize an expenditure that this
Agreement prohibits.

(d)  Recovery from Future Payments. To the extent that OHA is entitled to recover
a Misexpenditure pursuant to the Appeal Process section above, OHA may
recover the Misexpenditure by offsetting the amount thereof against future
amounts owed to County by OHA, including, but not limited to, any amount owed
to County by OHA under this Agreement or any amount owed to County by OHA
under any other agreement between County and OHA, present or future, OHA
shall provide County written notice of its intent to recover the amount of the
Misexpenditure from amounts owed County by OHA as set forth in this Section,
and shall identify the amounts owed by OHA which OHA intends to offset
(including the agreements, if any, under which the amounts owed arose and from
those from which OHA wishes to deduct payments). County shall then have 14
calendar days from the date of OHA's notice to request the deduction be made
from other amounts owed to County by OHA and identified by County. OHA
shall comply with County’s request for alternate offset. In the event that OHA and
County are unable to agree on which specific amounts, owed to County by OHA,
OHA may offset in order to recover the amount of the Misexpenditure, then OHA
may select the particular agreements between OHA and County and amounts
from which it will recover the amount of the Misexpenditure, after providing
notice to the County, and subject to the following limitations: OHA shall first
look to amounts owed to County (but unpaid) under this Agreement. If that
amount is insufficient, then OHA may look to any other amounts currently owing
or owed in the future to County by OHA. In no case, without the prior consent of
County, shall OHA deduct from any one payment due County under the
agreement from which OHA is offsetting funds an amount in excess of twenty-
five percent (25%) of that payment. OHA may look to as many future payments
as necessary in order to fully recover the amount of the Misexpenditure.

P(O-44300-002601 2/lob Page 169 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



(4)  Additional Provisions related to parties’ rights and obligations with respect to
Underexpenditures, Overexpenditures and Misexpenditures.

(a) County shall cooperate with OHA in the Agreement Settlement process.

(b)  OHA's right to recover Underexpenditures, Overexpenditures and
Misexpenditures from County under this Agreement is not subject to or
conditioned upon County’s recovery of any money from any other entity.

(¢) If the exercise of OHA's right to offset under this provision requires the County to
complete a re-budgeting process, nothing in this provision shall be construed to
prevent the County from fully complying with its budgeting procedures and
obligations, or from implementing decisions resulting from those procedures and
obligations.

(d)  Nothing in this provision shall be construed as a requirement or agreement by the
County to negotiate and execute any future contract with OHA.

(e)  Nothing in this Section shall be construed as a waiver by either party of any
process or remedy that might otherwise be available.

2. Use of Financial Assistance. County shall use the financial assistance disbursed to County under this
Agreement solely to cover actual Allowable Costs reasonably and necessarily incurred to deliver
Services during the term of this Agreement.

X Award Adjustments

a. County may use funds awarded in a Program Area to cover actual Allowable Costs reasonably
and necessarily incurred to deliver Services in that Program Area, from the Effective Date of this
Agreement through the termination or expiration of this Agreement,.

(1) In addition to the financial assistance provided to County under this Agreement expressly
for those Services, County may reallocate up to 10 percent (10%) of the aggregate
financial assistance awarded to County at the time the use occurs (as such award is
reflected in the Financial Assistance Award without giving effect to any prior
adjustments under this Award Adjustments section and other than from Federal Funds)
for other Services in that Program Area. The only Service Elements subject to this Award
Adjustments section (1) and eligible for this 10% reallocation are: MHS 16, MHS 16A,
MHS 17, MHS 20, MHS 30, MHS 31, MHS 34, MHS 35, MHS 35A, MHS 36, MHS 38,
MHS 39, and A&D 63, A&D 64, A&D 66, and A&D 67.

2) In addition, to the financial assistance provided to County under this Agreement
expressly for those Services, the County may reallocate up to 25 percent (25%) of the
aggregate financial assistance awarded to County at the time the use occurs (as such
award is reflected in the Financial Assistance Award without giving effect to any prior
adjustments under this Award Adjustments section and other than Federal Funds) for
other Services in that Program Area. The only Service Element subject to this Award
Adjustments section (2) and eligible for the 25% reallocation are: MHS 01, MHS 04,
MHS 24, and MHS 28.

3) If County uses financial assistance described in the Financial Assistance Award in
reliance on this Award Adjustments section (1) or (2) above, County shall promptly
notify OHA in writing of such use.

P(O-44300-0026012/1cb Page 170 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GTi# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

203



b. Financial assistance disbursed to County under this Agreement that County would be entitled to
retain if used prior to the termination or expiration of this Agreement (as calculated in
accordance with the methodologies set forth in the applicable Service Descriptions), may be
retained by County even if not used prior to the termination or expiration of this Agreement
provided that other provisions of this Agreement do not require the financial assistance to be
used by County prior to the termination or expiration of this Agreement and provided further that
County uses the financial assistance solely to deliver future Services for the purpose it was
originally awarded.

4. Amendments Proposed by OHA.

a. Amendments of Financial Assistance Award. County shall review all proposed amendments to
the Financial Assistance Award prepared and presented to County by OHA in accordance with
this Section. Amendments to the Financial Assistance Award will be presented to County in
electronic form. OHA may withdraw a proposed amendment by and effective upon written
notice to County. If not sooner accepted or rejected by County, or withdrawn by OHA, a
proposed amendment shall be deemed rejected by County 60 calendar days after County’s
receipt thereof and OHA’s offer to amend the Financial Assistance Award shall be automatically
revoked. If County chooses to accept a proposed amendment presented in electronic form,
County shall return the proposed amendment to OHA signed by the County Financial Assistance
Administrator. Upon OHA’s actual physical receipt and signature of a proposed amendment
signed by the County Financial Assistance Administrator but otherwise unaltered, the proposed
amendment shall be considered accepted by the parties and the Financial Assistance Award, as
amended by the proposed amendment, shall become the Financial Assistance Award under this
Agreement. If County returns a proposed amendment altered in any way (other than by signature
of the County Financial Assistance Administrator), OHA may, in its discretion, accept the
proposed amendment as altered by County but only if the County Financial Assistance
Administrator has initialed each alteration. A proposed amendment altered by County and
returned to OHA shall be considered accepted by OHA on the date OHA initials each alteration
and on that date the Financial Assistance Award, as amended by the proposed amendment (as
altered), shall become the Financial Assistance Award.

b. Other Amendments. County shall review all proposed amendments to this Agreement prepared
and presented to County by OHA, other than those described in the previous subsection a.,
promptly after County’s receipt thereof. If County does not accept a proposed amendment within
60 calendar days of County’s receipt thereof, County shall be deemed to have rejected the
proposed amendment and the offer to amend the Agreement, as set forth in the proposed
amendment, shall be automatically revoked. If County chooses to accept the proposed
amendment, County shall return the proposed amendment to OHA signed by a duly authorized
County official. Upon OHA's actual physical receipt and signature of a proposed amendment
signed by a duly authorized County official but otherwise unaltered, the proposed amendment
shall be considered accepted by the parties and this Agreement shall be considered amended as
set forth in the accepted amendment. If County returns a proposed amendment altered in any way
(other than by signature of a duly authorized County official), OHA may, in its discretion, accept
the proposed amendment as altered by County but only if a duly authorized County official has
initialed each alternation. A proposed amendment altered by County and returned to OHA shall
be considered accepted by OHA on the date OHA initials each alteration and on that date this
Agreement shall be considered amended as set forth in the accepted amendment.

5. Provider Contracts. Except when the Service expressly requires the Service or a portion thereof to be
delivered by County directly and subject to the Provider Monitoring section below, County may use
financial assistance provided under this Agreement for a particular Service to purchase that Service, or a

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 171 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT29950-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

204



205

portion thereof, from a third person or entity (a “Provider”) through a contract (a “Provider Contract”).
Subject to the Provider Monitoring section below, County may permit a Provider to purchase the
Service, or a portion thereof, from another person or entity under a subcontract and such subcontractors
shall also be considered Providers for purposes of this Agreement and those subcontracts shall be
considered Provider Contracts under this Agreement. County shall not permit any person or entity to be
a Provider unless the person or entity holds all licenses, certificates, authorizations, and other approvals
required by applicable law to deliver the Service. If County purchases a Service, or portion thereof, from
a Provider, the Provider Contract must be in writing, identify for sub-recipients the amount of federal
funds included in the Provider Contract, provide the CFDA number, and contain each of the provisions
set forth in Exhibit I, “Required Provider Contract Provisions,” in substantially the form set forth
therein, in addition to any other provisions that must be included to comply with applicable law, that
must be included in a Provider Contract under the terms of this Agreement or that are necessary to
implement Service delivery in accordance with the applicable Service Descriptions, Specialized Service
Requirements and Special Conditions. County shall maintain an originally executed copy of each
Provider Contract at its office and shall furnish a copy of any Provider Contract to OHA upon request.

Provider Monitoring. County shall monitor each Provider’s delivery of Services and promptly report to
OHA when County identifies a deficiency in a Provider’s delivery of a Service or in a Provider’s
compliance with the Provider Contract between the Provider and County. County shall promptly take all
necessary action to remedy any identified deficiency on the part of the Provider. County shall also
monitor the fiscal performance of each Provider and shall take all lawful management and legal action
necessary to pursue this responsibility. In the event of a deficiency in a Provider’s delivery of a Service
or in a Provider’s compliance with the Provider Contract between the Provider and County, nothing in
this Agreement shall limit or qualify any right or authority OHA has under state or federal law to take
action directly against the Provider.

Alternative Formats and Translation of Written Materials, Interpreter Services.

In connection with the delivery of Service Element services, County shall make available to Client,
without charge, upon the Client’s reasonable request:

a. All written materials related to the services provided to the Client in alternate formats, including
accessible electronic formats, brailed documents, and large print upon request. If County does
not have access to such alternate formats, then County can request them from OHA.

b. All written materials related to the services provided to the Client in the Client’s language. If
County does not have access to such languages, then County can request written materials in the
Client’s language from OHA.

c. Oral interpretation services related to the services provided to the Client in the Client’s language.

d. Sign language interpretation services and telephone communications access services related to
the services provided to the Client. County shall work with OHA if it does not have staff that
fluently speak the language of an eligible Client, including qualified Sign Language Interpreters
for Client’s who are deaf or hard of hearing and whose preferred mode of communication is sign
language.

For purposes of the foregoing, “written materials” means materials created by County, in connection
with the Service being provided to the requestor. The County may develop its own forms and materials
and with such forms and materials the County shall be responsible for making them available to a Client,
without charge to the Client in the prevalent non-English language(s) within the County service area.
OHA shall be responsible for making its forms and materials available, without charge to the Client or
County, in the prevalent non-English language(s) within the County service area.

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob Page 172 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Reporting Requirements. If County delivers a Service directly, County shall prepare and furnish the
following information to OHA when that Service is delivered:

a. Client, Service, and financial information as specified in the Service Description.
b. All additional information and reports that OHA reasonably requests.

Operation of CMHP. County shall operate or contract for the operation of a CMHP during the term of
this Agreement. If County uses funds provided under this Agreement for a particular Service, County
shall include that Service in its CMHP from the date it begins using the funds for that Service until the
earlier of: (a) termination or expiration of this Agreement; (b) termination by OHA of OHA’s obligation
to provide financial assistance for that Service in accordance with Exhibit G, Termination section; or (c)
termination by the County, in accordance with Exhibit G, Termination section, of County’s obligation to
include in its CMHP a Program Area that includes that Service.

OHA Reports.

a. To the extent resources are available to OHA to prepare and deliver the information, OHA shall,
during the term of this Agreement, provide County with the following reports:

(1) Summary reports to County and County’s Providers from MOTS data as reported to
OHA under this Agreement; and

) Monthly reports to County that detail disbursement of financial assistance under the
Financial Assistance Award in Exhibit C for the delivery of Services.

b. OHA shall prepare and send to each Provider to whom OHA makes direct payments on behalf of
County under this Agreement during a calendar year, an IRS Form 1099 for that year specifying
the total payments made by OHA to that Provider.

Technical Assistance. During the term of this Agreement, OHA shall provide technical assistance to
County in the delivery of Services to the extent resources are available to OHA for this purpose. If the
provision of technical assistance to the County concerns a Provider, OHA may require, as a condition to
providing the assistance, that County take all action with respect to the Provider reasonably necessary to
facilitate the technical assistance.

Payment of Certain Expenses. If OHA requests that an employee of County or a Provider or a citizen
of County attend OHA training or an OHA conference or business meeting and County has obligated
itself to reimburse the individual for travel expenses incurred by the individual in attending the training
or conference, OHA may pay those travel expenses on behalf of County but only at the rates and in
accordance with the reimbursement procedures set forth in the Oregon Accounting Manual
(https://www.oregon.gov/das/Financial/Acctng/Pages/oam.aspx) under 40.10.00 as of the date the
expense was incurred and only to the extent that OHA determines funds are available for such
reimbursement.

Effect of Amendments Reducing Financial Assistance. If County and OHA amend this Agreement to
reduce the amount of financial assistance awarded for a particular Service, County is not required by this
Agreement to utilize other County funds to replace the funds no longer received under this Agreement as
a result of the amendment and County may, from and after the date of the amendment, reduce the
quantity of that Service included in its CMHP commensurate with the amount of the reduction in
financial assistance awarded for that Service. Nothing in the preceding sentence shall affect County’s
obligations under this Agreement with respect to financial assistance actually disbursed by OHA under
this Agreement or with respect to Services actually delivered.

Resolution of Disputes over Additional Financial Assistance Owed County After Termination or
Expiration. If, after termination or expiration of this Agreement, County believes that OHA

P(Q-44300-0026012/lob Page 173 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

206



disbursements of financial assistance under this Agreement for a particular Service are less than the
amount of financial assistance that OHA is obligated to provide to County under this Agreement for that
Service, as determined in accordance with the applicable financial assistance calculation methodology,
County shall provide OHA with written notice thercof. OHA shall have 90 calendar days from the
effective date of County's notice to pay County in full or notify County that it wishes to engage in a
dispute resolution process. [f OHA notifies County that it wishes to engage in a dispute resolution
process, County and OHA's Chief Health Systems Officer for the Health Systems Division shall engage
in non-binding discussion to give OHA an opportunity to present reasons why it believes that it does not
owe County any additional financial assistance or that the amount owed is different than the amount
identified by County in its notices, and to give County the opportunity to reconsider its notice. [f OHA
and County reach agreement on the additional amount owed to County, OHA shall promptly pay that
amount to County. If OHA and County continue to disagree as to the amount owed, the parties may
agree to consider further appropriate dispute resolution processes, including, subject to Department of
Justice and County Counsel approval, binding arbitration. Nothing in this Section shall preclude the
County from raising underpayment concerns at any time prior to termination or expiration of this
Agreement under Alternative Dispute Resolution below.

15.  Alternative Dispute Resolution. The parties should attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising
out of this agreement. This may be done at any management level, including at a level higher than
persons directly responsible for administration of the agreement. In addition, the parties may agree to
utilize a jointly selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short
of litigation.

16.  Purchase and Disposition of Equipment.

a. For purposes of this Section, “Equipment” means tangible, non-expendable personal property
having a useful life of more than one year and a net acquisition cost of more than $5,000 per
unit. However, for purposes of information technology equipment, the monetary threshold does
not apply (except as provided below for Software and storage devices). [nformation technology
equipment shall be tracked for the mandatory line categories listed below:

1) Network;

2) Personal Computer;

3) Printer/Plotter;

4) Server;

5) Storage device that will contain client information;

6) Storage device that will not contain client information, when the acquisition cost is $100
or more; and

(N Software, when the acquisition cost is $100 or more.

b. For any Equipment authorized by OHA for purchase with funds from this Agreement, ownership
shall be in the name of the County and County is required to accurately maintain the following
Equipment inventory records:

(1) Description of the Equipment;
2) Serial number;
3) Where Equipment was purchased;

4) Acquisition cost and date; and

P0O-44300-0026012710b Page 174 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

207



208

Q) Location, use, and condition of the Equipment.

County shall provide the Equipment inventory list electronically to the Agreement Administrator
at hsd.contracts(@odhsoha.oregon.gov no later than 45 calendar days following the end of this
Agreement. County shall be responsible to safeguard any Equipment and maintain the
Equipment in good repair and condition while in the possession of County or any Providers.
County shall depreciate all Equipment, with a value of more than $5,000, using the straight-line
method.

c. Upon termination of this Agreement, or any Service thereof, for any reason whatsoever, County
shall, upon request by OHA, immediately, or at such later date specified by OHA, tender to OHA
any and all Equipment purchased with funds under this Agreement as OHA may require to be
returned to the State. At OHA’s direction, County may be required to deliver said Equipment to a
subsequent contractor for that contractor’s use in the delivery of Services formerly provided by
County. Upon mutual agreement, in lieu of requiring County to tender the Equipment to OHA or
to a subsequent contractor, OHA may require County to pay to OHA the current value of the
Equipment. Equipment value will be determined as of the date of Agreement or Service
termination.

d. If funds from this Agreement are authorized by OHA to be used as a portion of the purchase
price of Equipment, requirements relating to title, maintenance, Equipment inventory reporting
and residual value shall be negotiated, and the agreement reflected in a Special Condition
authorizing the purchase.

e. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, County shall comply with 45 CFR 75.320,
which generally describes the required maintenance, documentation, and allowed disposition of
equipment purchased with federal grant funds.

17.  Nothing in this Agreement shall cause or require County or OHA to act in violation of state or federal
constitutions, statutes, regulations, or rules. The parties intend this limitation to apply in addition to any
other limitation in this Agreement, including limitations in Disbursement and Recovery of Financial
Assistance above.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 175 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT G
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any
claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, “Claim™) between the parties that arises from or relates to
this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within a circuit court for the State
of Oregon of proper jurisdiction. THE PARTIES, BY EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT,
HEREBY CONSENT TO THE IN PERSONAM JURISDICTION OF SAID COURTS. Except as
provided in this section, neither party waives any form of defense or immunity, whether sovereign
immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of
the United States or otherwise, from any Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. The parties
acknowledge that this is a binding and enforceable agreement and, to the extent permitted by law,
expressly waive any defense alleging that either party does not have the right to seek judicial
enforcement of this Agreement.

2, Compliance with Law. Both parties shall comply with laws, regulations, and executive orders to which
they are subject and which are applicable to the Agreement or to the delivery of Services. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, both parties expressly agree to comply with the following laws,
rules, regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the Agreement: (a) OAR 943-
005-0000 through 943-005-0070, prohibiting discrimination against Individuals with disabilities, as may
be revised, and all applicable requirements of state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and
regulations; (b) all state laws governing operation of Community Mental Health Programs, including
without limitation, all administrative rules adopted by OHA related to Community Mental Health
Programs or related to client rights; (c) all state laws requiring reporting of Client abuse; and (d) ORS
659A.400 to 659A.409, ORS 659A.145, (e) 45 CFR 164 Subpart C, and all regulations and
administrative rules established pursuant to those laws in the construction, remodeling, maintenance and
operation of any structures and facilities, and in the conduct of all programs, services and training
associated with the delivery of Services. These laws, regulations and executive orders are incorporated
by reference herein to the extent that they are applicable to the Agreement and required by law to be so
incorporated. All employers, including County and OHA that employ subject workers who provide
Services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers’
Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126.

3. Independent Contractors. The parties agree and acknowledge that their relationship is that of
independent contracting parties and that County is not an officer, employee, or agent of the State of
Oregon as those terms are used in ORS 30.265 or otherwise.

4. Representations and Warranties.
a. County represents and warrants as follows:

(1)  Organization and Authority. County is a political subdivision of the State of Oregon
duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Oregon. County has full
power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its
obligations hereunder.

) Due Authorization. The making and performance by County of this Agreement: (a) have
been duly authorized by all necessary action by County; (b) do not and will not violate

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 176 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

209



3)

C))

Q)

(6)

(M

any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any court, regulatory
commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision of County’s charter
or other organizational document; and (c) do not and will not result in the breach of, or
constitute a default or require any consent under any other agreement or instrument to
which County is a party or by which County may be bound or affected. No authorization,
consent, license, approval of, filing or registration with or notification to any
governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the execution,
delivery, or performance by County of this Agreement.

Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by County
and constitutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation of County, enforceable in
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.

County has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of its industry,
trade or profession and County will apply that skill and knowledge with care and
diligence to perform the Services in a professional manner and in accordance with
standards prevalent in County’s industry, trade, or profession;

County shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, be qualified, professionally
competent, and duly licensed to perform the Services; and

County prepared its proposal related to this Agreement, if any, independently from all
other proposers, and without collusion, fraud, or other dishonesty.

Services. To the extent Services are performed by County, the delivery of each Service
will comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and meet the standards for
such Service as set forth herein, including but not limited to, any terms, conditions,
standards, and requirements set forth in the Financial Assistance Award, applicable
Service Description, and applicable Specialized Service Requirement.

b. OHA represents and warrants as follows:

)

@)

3)

Organization and Authority. OHA has full power, authority, and legal right to make
this Agreement and to incur and perform its obligations hereunder.

Due Authorization. The making and performance by OHA of this Agreement: (a) have
been duly authorized by all necessary action by OHA; (b} do not and will not violate any
provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any court, regulatory
commission, board, or other administrative agency; and (c) do not and will not result in
the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other agreement or
instrument to which OHA is a party or by which OHA may be bound or affected. No
authorization, consent, license, approval of, filing or registration with or notification to
any governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the
execution, delivery, or performance by OHA of this Agreement, other than approval by
the Department of Justice if required by law.

Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by OHA and
constitutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation of OHA, enforceable in accordance with
its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally.

c. Warranties Cumulative. The warranties set forth in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu
of, any other warranties provided.

S. Ownership of Intellectual Property.

PO-44300-0026012/lob

Page 177 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DQJ Approval 12/21/2023

210



C.

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, or as otherwise required by state or federal law,
OHA will not own the right, title and interest in any intellectual property created or delivered by
County or a Provider in connection with the Services. With respect to that portion of the
intellectual property that the County owns, County grants to OHA a perpetual, worldwide, non-
exclusive, royalty-free and irrevocable license, subject to any provisions in the Agreement that
restrict or prohibit dissemination or disclosure of information, to: (1) use, reproduce, prepare
derivative works based upon, distribute copies of, perform and display the intellectual property;
(2) authorize third parties to exercise the rights set forth in Section 5.a.(1) on OHA’s behalf; and
(3) sublicense to third parties the rights set forth in Section 5.a.(1).

If state or federal law requires that OHA or County grant to the United States a license to any
intellectual property, or if state or federal law requires that OHA or the United States own the
inteliectual property, then County shall execute such further documents and instruments as OHA
may reasonably request in order to make any such grant or to assign ownership in the intellectual
property to the United States or OHA. To the extent that OHA becomes the owner of any
intellectual property created or delivered by County in connection with the Services, OHA will
grant a perpetual, worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free, and irrevocable license, subject to any
provisions in the Agreement that restrict or prohibit dissemination or disclosure of information,
to County to use, copy, distribute, display, build upon and improve the intellectual property.

County shall include in its Provider Contracts terms and conditions necessary to require that
Providers execute such further documents and instruments as OHA may reasonably request in
order to make any grant of license or assignment of ownership that may be required by federal or
state law.

6. County Default. County shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the
following events:

a, County fails to perform, observe, or discharge any of its covenants, agreements or obligations set
forth herein;

b. Any representation, warranty or statement made by County herein or in any documents or reports
made in connection herewith or relied upon by OHA to measure the delivery of Services, the
expenditure of financial assistance or the performance by County is untrue in any material
respect when made;

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 178 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

211



€.

County: (1) applies for or consents to the appointment of, or taking of possession by, a receiver,
custodian, trustee, or liquidator of itself or all of its property; (2) admits in writing its inability, or
is generally unable, to pay its debts as they become due; (3} makes a general assignment for the
benefit of its creditors; (4) is adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent; (5) commences a voluntary
case under the Federal Bankruptcy Code (as now or hereafter in effect); (6) files a petition
seeking to take advantage of any other law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
winding-up, or composition or adjustment of debts; (7) fails to controvert in a timely and
appropriate manner, or acquiesces in writing to, any petition filed against it in an involuntary
case under the Bankruptcy Code; or (8) takes any action for the purpose of effecting any of the
foregoing;

A proceeding or case is commenced, without the application or consent of County, in any court
of competent jurisdiction, seeking: (1) the liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, or the
composition or readjustment of debts, of County; (2) the appointment of a trustee, receiver,
custodian, liquidator, or the like of County or of all or any substantial part of its assets; or (3)
similar relief in respect to County under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, winding-up, or composition or adjustment of debts, and such proceeding or case
continues undismissed, or an order, judgment, or decree approving or ordering any of the
foregoing is entered and continues unstayed and in effect for a period of sixty consecutive days,
or an order for relief against County is entered in an involuntary case under the Federal
Bankruptcy Code (as now or hereafter in effect); or

The delivery of any Service fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement or
fails to meet the standards for Service as set forth herein, including but not limited to, any terms,
condition, standards, and requirements set forth in the Financial Assistance Award and
applicable Service Description.

7. OHA Default. OHA shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the
following events:
a, OHA fails to perform, observe, or discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or obligations set
forth herein; or
b. Any representation, warranty or statement made by OHA herein or in any documents or reports
made in connection herewith or relied upon by County to measure performance by OHA is
untrue in any material respect when made.
8. Termination.
a. County Termination. County may terminate this Agreement in its entirety or may terminate its
obligation to include a particular Program Area in its CMHP:
(1) For its convenience, upon at least three calendar months advance written notice to OHA,
with the termination effective as of the first day of the month following the notice period;
(2) Upon 45 calendar days advance written notice to OHA, if County does not obtain
funding, appropriations, and other expenditure authorizations from County’s governing
body, federal, state, or other sources sufficient to permit County to satisfy its performance
obligations under this Agreement, as determined by County in the reasonable exercise of
its administrative discretion;
3 Upon 30 calendar days advance written notice to OHA, if OHA is in default under this
Agreement and such default remains uncured at the end of said 30 calendar day period ot
such longer period, if any, as County may specify in the notice; or
PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 179 0of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

212



213

4) Immediately upon written notice to OHA, if Oregon statutes or federal laws, regulations
or guidelines are modified, changed, or interpreted by the Oregon Legislative Assembly,
the federal government, or a court in such a way that County no longer has the authority
to meet its obligations under this Agreement.

b. OHA Termination. OHA may terminate this Agreement in its entirety or may terminate its

obligation to provide financial assistance under this Agreement for one or more particular
Services described in the Financial Assistance Award:

1)

@)

3

@

&)

6)

For its convenience, upon at least three calendar months advance written notice to
County, with the termination effective as of the first day of the month following the
notice period;

Upon 45 calendar days advance written notice to County, if OHA does not obtain
funding, appropriations, and other expenditure authorizations from federal, state, or other
sources sufficient to meet the payment obligations of OHA under this Agreement, as
determined by OHA in the reasonable exercise of its administrative discretion.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, OHA may terminate this Agreement in its
entirety or may terminate its obligation to provide financial assistance under this
Agreement for one or more particular Services, immediately upon written notice to
County or at such other time as it may determine if action by the Oregon Legislative
Assembly or Emergency Board reduces OHA’s legislative authorization for expenditure
of funds to such a degree that OHA will no longer have sufficient expenditure authority
to meet its payment obligations under this Agreement, as determined by OHA in the
reasonable exercise of its administrative discretion, and the effective date for such
reduction in expenditure authorization is less than 45 calendar days from the date the
action is taken;

Immediately upon written notice to County if Oregon statutes or federal laws, regulations
or guidelines are modified, changed, or interpreted by the Oregon Legislative Assembly,
the federal government, or a court in such a way that OHA no longer has the authority to
meet its obligations under this Agreement or no longer has the authority to provide the
financial assistance from the funding source it had planned to use;

Upon 30 calendar days advance written notice to County, if County is in default under
this Agreement and such default remains uncured at the end of said 30 calendar day
period or such longer period, if any, as OHA may specify in the notice;

Immediately upon written notice to County, if any license or certificate required by law
or regulation to be held by County or a Provider to deliver a Service described in the
Financial Assistance Award is for any reason denied, revoked, suspended, not renewed,
or changed in such a way that County or a Provider no longer meets requirements to
deliver the Service. This termination right may only be exercised with respect to the
particular Service or Services impacted by loss of necessary licensure or certification; or

Immediately upon written notice to County, if OHA reasonably determines that County
or any of its Providers have endangered or are endangering the health or safety of a Client
or others in performing the Services covered in this Agreement.

c. OHA and County agree that this Agreement extends to September 1, 2025, but only for the
purpose of amendments to adjust the allocated budget (Exhibit C, “Financial Assistance Award™)
for Services performed, or not performed, by County during the 2024calendar year and first
quarter of the 2025-2027 biennium, prior to July 1, 2025. If there is more than one amendment
modifying the Financial Assistance Award, the amendment shall be applied to the Financial

P(O-44300-0026012/lob

Page 180 of 213

Y 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



Assistance Award in the order in which the amendments are executed by County and OHA. In
no event is the County authorized to provide any Services under this Agreement, and County is
not required to provide any Services under this Agreement, after June 30, 2025.

9. Effect of Termination.
a. Entire Agreement.
(1)  Upon termination of this Agreement in its entirety, OHA shall have no further obligation

@)

to pay or disburse financial assistance to County under this Agreement, whether or not
OHA has paid or disbursed to County all financial assistance described in the Financial
Assistance Award except: (a) with respect to funds described in the Financial Assistance
Award, to the extent OHA’s disbursement of financial assistance for a particular Service,
the financial assistance for which is calculated on a rate per unit of service or service
capacity basis, is less than the applicable rate multiplied by the number of applicable
units of Service or Service capacity of that type performed or made available from the
effective date of this Agreement through the termination date; and (b) with respect to
funds described in the Financial Assistance Award, to the extent OHA’s disbursement of
financial assistance for a particular Service, the financial assistance for which is
calculated on a cost reimbursement basis, is less than the cumulative actual Allowable
Costs reasonably and necessarily incurred with respect to delivery of that Service, from
the effective date of this Agreement through the termination date.

Upon termination of this Agreement in its entirety, County shall have no further
obligation under this Agreement to operate a CMHP.

b. Individual Program Area or Service.

(1)

)

&)

PO-44300-0026012/lob

Upon termination of OHA'’s obligation to provide financial assistance under this
Agreement for a particular Service, OHA shall have no further obligation to pay or
disburse any financial assistance to County under this Agreement for that Service,
whether or not OHA has paid or disbursed to County all financial assistance described in
the Financial Assistance Award for that Service except: (a) with respect to funds
described in the Financial Assistance Award and if the financial assistance for that
Service is calculated on a rate per unit of service or service capacity basis, to the extent
that OHA’s prior disbursement of financial assistance for that Service is less than the
applicable rate multiplied by the number of applicable units of Service or Service
capacity of that type performed or made available during the period from the first day of
the period for which the funds were awarded through the earlier of the termination of
OHA'’s obligation to provide financial assistance for that Service or the last day of the
period for which the funds were awarded; and (b) with respect to funds described in the
Financial Assistance Award and if the financial assistance for that Service is calculated
on a cost reimbursement basis, to the extent that OHA’s prior disbursement of financial
assistance for that Service is less than the cumulative actual Allowable Costs reasonably
and necessarily incurred by County with respect to delivery of that Service, during the
period from the effective date of this Agreement through the termination of OHA’s
obligation to provide financial assistance for that Service.

Upon termination of OHA’s obligation to provide financial assistance under this
Agreement for a particular Service, County shatl have no further obligation under this
Agreement to include that Service in its CMHP.

Upon termination of County’s obligation to include a Program Area in its CMHP, OHA
shall have (a) no further obligation to pay or disburse financial assistance to

Page 181 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

214



215

4) County under this Agreement for System Management and Coordination — Community
Mental Health Services (MHS 01) and System Management and Coordination -
Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services (A&D
03) in that Program Area whether or not OHA has paid or disbursed to County all
financial assistance described in the Financial Assistance Award for local administration
of Services in that Program Area; and (b) no further obligation to pay or disburse any
financial assistance to County under this Agreement for Services in that Program Area,
whether or not OHA has paid or disbursed to County all financial assistance described in
the Financial Assistance Award for those Services except: (1) with respect to funds
described in the Financial Assistance Award, to the extent OHA’s disbursement of
financial assistance for a particular Service falling within that Program Area, the financial
assistance for which is calculated on a rate per unit of service or service capacity basis, is
less than the applicable rate multiplied by the number of applicable units of Service or
Service capacity of that type performed or made available during the period from the
Effective Date of this Agreement through the termination of County’s obligation to
include the Program Area, in which that Service falls, in County’s CMHP;, and (2) with
respect to funds described in the Financial Assistance Award, to the extent OHA’s
disbursement of financial assistance for a particular Service falling within that Program
Area, the financial assistance for which is calculated on a cost reimbursement basis, is
less than the cumulative actual Allowable Costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by
County with respect to delivery of that Service, during the period from the Effective Date
of this Agreement through the termination of County’s obligation to include the Program
Area, in which that Service falls, in County’s CMHP.

(5) Upon termination of County’s obligation to include a Program Area in its CMHP, County
shall have no further obligation under this Agreement to include that Program Area in its
CMHP.

c. Disbursement Limitations. Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b) above:

(1) Under no circumstances will OHA be obligated to provide financial assistance to County
for a particular Service in excess of the amount awarded under this Agreement for that
Service as set forth in the Financial Assistance Award; and

2) Under no circumstances will OHA be obligated to provide financial assistance to County
from funds described in the Financial Assistance Award in an amount greater than the
amount due County under the Financial Assistance Award for Services, as determined in
accordance with the financial assistance calculation methodologies in the applicable
Services Descriptions.

d. Survival. Exercise of a termination right set forth in the Termination section of this Exhibit or
expiration of this Agreement in accordance with its terms, shall not affect County’s right to
receive financial assistance to which it is entitled hereunder, as described in subsections a. and b.
above and as determined through the Agreement Settlement process, or County's right to invoke
the dispute resolution processes under Sections 14 and 15 of Exhibit F. Notwithstanding
subsections a. and b. above, exercise of the termination rights in Section 8 of this Exhibit or
expiration of this Agreement in accordance with its terms, shall not affect County’s obligations
under this Agreement or OHA’s right to enforce this Agreement against County in accordance
with its terms, with respect to financial assistance actually disbursed by OHA under this
Agreement, or with respect to Services actually delivered. Specifically, but without limiting the
generality of the preceding sentence, exercise of a termination right set forth in Section 8 of this
Exhibit or expiration of this Agreement in accordance with its terms shall not affect County’s

P0O-44300-0026012/1cb Page 182 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



representations and warranties, reporting obligations, record-keeping and access obligations,
confidentiality obligations, obligation to comply with applicable federal requirements, the
restrictions and limitations on County’s use of financial assistance actually disbursed by OHA
hereunder, County’s obligation to cooperate with OHA in the Agreement Settlement process, or
OHA’s right to recover from County, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, any
financial assistance disbursed by OHA under this Agreement that is identified as an
Underexpenditure, Overexpenditure or Misexpenditure. If a termination right set forth in Section
8 of this Exhibit is exercised, both parties shall make reasonable, good faith efforts to minimize
unnecessary disruption or other problems associated with the termination.

10.  Insurance. County shall require Providers to maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit J, “Provider
Insurance Requirements,” which is attached hereto.

11.  Records Maintenance; Access and Confidentiality.

a,

<.

€.

Access to Records and Facilities. OHA, the Secretary of State’s Office of the State of Oregon,
the Federal Government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books,
documents, papers and records of the County that are directly related to this Agreement, the
financial assistance provided hereunder, or any Service for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts, copies and transcriptions. In addition, County shall permit authorized
representatives of OHA to perform site reviews of all Services delivered by County.

Retention of Records. County shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers,
and records that are directly related to this Agreement, the financial assistance provided
hereunder or any Service, for a minimum of six years, or such longer period as may be required
by other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the termination or expiration
of this Agreement. If there are unresolved audit or Agreement Settlement questions at the end of
the applicable retention period, County shall retain the records until the questions are resolved.

Expenditure Records. County shall document the use and expenditure of all financial assistance
paid by OHA under this Agreement. Unless applicable federal law requires County to utilize a
different accounting system, County shall create and maintain all use and expenditure records in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in sufficient detail to permit OHA
to verify how the financial assistance paid by OHA under this Agreement was used or expended.

Client Records. If County delivers a Service directly, County shall create and maintain a Client
record for each Client who receives that Service, unless the Service Description precludes
delivery of the Service on an individual Client basis and reporting of Service commencement and
termination information is not required by the Service Description. The Client record shall
contain:

1) Client identification;

) Problem assessment;

3) Treatment, training, or care plan;

“@ Medical information when appropriate; and

5) Progress notes including Service termination summary and current assessment or
evaluation instrument as designated by OHA in administrative rules.

County shall retain Client records in accordance with OAR 166-150-0005 through 166-150-0215
(State Archivist). Unless OAR 166-150-0005 through 166-150-0215 requires a longer retention
period, Client records must be retained for a minimum of six years from termination or
expiration of this Agreement.

Safeguarding of Client Information. County shall maintain the confidentiality of Client records
as required by applicable state and federal law, including without limitation, ORS 179.495 to

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 183 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

216



12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

217

179.509 45 CFR Part 205, 42 CFR Part 2, any administrative rule adopted by OHA
implementing the foregoing laws, and any written policies made available to County by OHA.
County shall create and maintain written policies and procedures related to the disclosure of
Client information, and shall make such policies and procedures available to OHA for review
and inspection as reasonably requested by OHA.

Information Privacy/Security/Access. If the Services performed under this Agreement requires County
or its Provider(s) to access or otherwise use any OHA Information Asset or Network and Information
System to which security and privacy requirements apply, and OHA grants County, its Provider(s), or
both access to such OHA Information Assets or Network and Information Systems, County shall comply
and require its Provider(s) to which such access has been granted to comply with the terms and
conditions applicable to such access or use, including OAR 943-014-0300 through OAR 943-014-0320,
as such rules may be revised from time to time. For purposes of this section, “Information Asset” and
“Network and Information System” have the meaning set forth in OAR 943-014-0305, as such rule may
be revised from time to time.

Force Majeure. Neither OHA nor County shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire,
civil unrest, labor unrest, natural causes, or war which is beyond the reasonable control of OHA or
County, respectively. Each party shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such
cause of delay or default and shall, upon the cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its
obligations under this Agreement. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the
other party after reasonably determining that the delay or default will likely prevent successful
performance of this Agreement.

Assignment of Agreement, Successors in Interest.

a. County shall not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement without prior written approval of
OHA. Any such assignment or transfer, if approved, is subject to such conditions and provisions
as OHA may deem necessary. No approval by OHA of any assignment or transfer of interest
shall be deemed to create any obligation of OHA in addition to those set forth in this Agreement.

b. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the
parties to this Agreement, and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. OHA and County are the only parties to this Agreement and are the only
parties entitled to enforce its terms. The parties agree that County’s performance under this Agreement
is solely for the benefit of OHA to assist and enable OHA to accomplish its statutory mission. Nothing
in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right,
whether directly, indirectly, or otherwise, to third persons any greater than the rights and benefits
enjoyed by the general public unless such third persons are individually identified by name herein and
expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement.

Amendment. No amendment, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind either party
unless in writing and signhed by both parties and when required by the Department of Justice. Such
amendment, modification, or change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the
specific purpose given.

Severability. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and
provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and
enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.

Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any communications between the
parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile,
or mailing the same, postage prepaid to County or OHA at the address or number set forth below, or to

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 184 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

such other addresses or numbers as either party may indicate pursuant to this section. Any
communication or notice so addressed and mailed shall be effective five calendar days after mailing.
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be effective on the day the transmitting
machine generates a receipt of the successful transmission, if transmission was during normal business
hours of the recipient, or on the next business day, if transmission was outside normal business hours of
the recipient. To be effective against the other party, any notice transmitted by facsimile must be
confirmed by telephone notice to the other party at number listed below. Any communication or notice
given by personal delivery shall be effective when actually delivered to the addressee.

OHA: Office of Contracts & Procurement
500 Summer Street NE, 5* floor
Salem, OR 97301
Telephone: 503-945-5818  Facsimile: 503-378-4324

E-mail address:

COUNTY: Contact Name:
Title: »
Street Address:
City, State Zip:
Telephone: Facsimile:

E-mail address:

Headings. The headings and captions to sections of this Agreement have been inserted for
identification and reference purposes only and shall not be used to construe the meaning or to
interpret this Agreement.

Counterparts. This Agreement and any subsequent amendments may be executed in several
counterparts, all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties,
notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Agreement
and any amendments so executed shall constitute an original.

Integration and Waiver. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the entire Agreement
between the parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or
representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement. The failure of either party
to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that party of that or any other
provision. No waiver or consent shall be effective unless in writing and signed by the party against
whom it is asserted.

Construction. This Agreement is the product of extensive negotiations between OHA and
representatives of county governments. The provisions of this Agreement are to be interpreted and their
legal effects determined as a whole. An arbitrator or court interpreting this Agreement shall give a
reasonable, lawful, and effective meaning to the Agreement to the extent possible, consistent with the
public interest.

Contribution. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort
as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against a party (the "Notified Party")
with respect to which the other party ("Other Party") may have liability, the Notified Party must
promptly notify the Other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to the Other Party a copy
of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Either party is
entitled to participate in the defense of a Third-Party Claim, and to defend a Third-Party Claim with
counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by the Other Party of the notice and copies required in this
paragraph and meaningful opportunity for the Other Party to participate in the investigation, defense,

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 185 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

218



24,

and settlement of the Third-Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to the
Other Party’s liability with respect to the Third-Party Claim.

With respect to a Third-Party Claim for which the State is jointly liable with the County (or would be if
joined in the Third-Party Claim), the State shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and
paid or payable by the County in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the State
on the one hand and of the County on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable
considerations. The relative fault of the State on the one hand and of the County on the other hand shall
be determined by reference to, among other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses,
judgments, fines, or settlement amounts. The State’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to
the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the State had sole liability in the
proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the County is jointly liable with the State (or would be if
joined in the Third Party Claim), the County shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and
paid or payable by the State in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the County
on the one hand and of the State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.
The relative fault of the County on the one hand and of the State on the other hand shall be determined
by reference to, among other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines, or
settlement amounts. The County’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it
would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the proceeding.

Indemnification by Providers. County shall take all reasonable steps to cause its Provider(s) that are
not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnitee”) from and against
any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including attorneys’ fees) arising
from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in
part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of County’s Provider or any of the officers, agents,
employees or subcontractors of the contractor( “Claims™). It is the specific intention of the parties that
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts
or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by the contractor from and against any and all Claims.

PO-44300-0026012/1ob Page 186 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

219



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,

RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT H
REQUIRED FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

In addition to the requirements of section 2 of Exhibit G, County shall comply, and as indicated, require all
Providers to comply with the following federal requirements when federal funding is being used. For purposes
of this Agreement, all references to federal and state laws are references to federal and state laws as they may be
amended from time to time.

1.

Miscellaneous Federal Provisions. County shall comply and require all Providers to comply with all
federal laws, regulations, and executive orders applicable to the Agreement or to the delivery of
Services. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, County expressly agrees to comply and
require alf Providers to comply with the following laws, regulations and executive orders to the extent
they are applicable to the Agreement: (a) Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended,
(b) Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, (¢} the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (d) Executive Order 11246, as amended, (¢) the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, (f) the Age Discrimination in Employment Act
of 1967, as amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (g) the Vietnam Era
Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, (h) all regulations and administrative rules
established pursuant to the foregoing laws, (i) all other applicable requirements of federal civil rights
and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations, and (j) alt federal law governing operation of
Community Mental Health Programs, inciuding without limitation, all federal laws requiring reporting
of Client abuse. These laws, regulations and executive orders are incorporated by reference herein to the
extent that they are applicable to the Agreement and required by law to be so incorporated. No federal
funds may be used to provide Services in violation of 42 U.S.C. 14402.

Equal Employment Opportunity. If this Agreement, including amendments, is for more than $10,000,
then County shall comply and require all Providers to comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled
“Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented in U.S.
Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Part 60).

Clean Air, Clean Water, EPA Regulations. If this Agreement, including amendments, exceeds
$100,000 then County shall comply and require all Providers to comply with atl applicable standards,
orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7606), the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act as amended (commonly known as the Clean Water Act) (33 U.S.C. 1251 to
1387), specifically including, but not limited to Section 508 (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738,
and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (2 CFR Part 1532), which prohibit the use under
non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating
Facilities. Violations shall be reported to OHA, United States Department of Health and Human
Services and the appropriate Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency. County shall
include and require all Providers to include in all contracts with subcontractors receiving more than

220

$100,000, language requiring the subcontractor to comply with the federal laws identified in this section.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 187 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



4. Energy Efficiency . County shall comply and require all Providers to comply with applicable
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained in the Oregon energy
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 42 U.S.C. 6201 et.
seq. (Pub. L. 94-163).

5. Truth in Lobbying. By signing this Agreement, the County certifies, to the best of the County’s
knowledge and belief that:

a.

€.

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of County, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the
making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or
cooperative agreement.

[f any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, the County shall
complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance
with its instructions.

The County shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients and subcontractors shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
Agreement was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for
making or entering into this Agreement imposed by section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code. Any
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

No part of any federal funds paid to County under this Agreement shall be used, other than for
normal and recognized executive legislative relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes,
for the preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic
communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to support or defeat the
enactment of legislation before the United States Congress or any State or local legislature itself,
or designed to support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or
order issued by the executive branch of any State or local government.

No part of any federal funds paid to County under this Agreement shall be used to pay the salary
or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any
activity designed to influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation,
administrative action, or Executive order proposed or pending before the United States Congress
or any State government, State legislature or local legislature or legislative body, other than for
normal and recognized executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer
of a State, local or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the
executive branch of that government.

The prohibitions in subsections (¢} and (f) of this section shall include any activity to advocate or
promote any proposed, pending, or future Federal, State, or local tax increase, or any proposed,

P0-44300-0026012/1ob Page 188 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

221



pending, or future requirement or restriction on any legal consumer product, including its sale or
marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or promotion of gun control.

h. No part of any federal funds paid to County under this Agreement may be used for any activity
that promotes the legalization of any drug or other substance included in schedule [ of the
schedules of controlled substances established under section 202 of the Controlled Substances
Act except for normal and recognized executive congressional communications. This limitation
shall not apply when there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage to the use
of such drug or other substance or that federally sponsored clinical trials are being conducted to
determine therapeutic advantage.

6. Resource Conservation and Recovery. County shall comply and require all Providers to comply with
ali mandatory standards and policies that relate to resource conservation and recovery pursuant to the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (codified at 42 U.S.C. 6901 et. seq.). Section 6002 of that Act
(codified at 42 U.S.C. 6962) requires that preference be given in procurement programs to the purchase
of specific products containing recycled materials identified in guidelines developed by the
Environmental Protection Agency. Current guidelines are set forth in 40 CFR Part 247.

7. Audits. Sub recipients, as defined in 45 CFR 75.2, which includes, but is not limited to County, shall
comply, and County shall require all Providers to comply, with applicable Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) governing expenditure of federal funds including, but not limited to, if a sub-recipient expends
$500,000 or more in Federal funds (from all sources) in its fiscal year beginning prior to December 26,
2014, a sub-recipient shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in accordance with the
Single Audit Act. If a sub-recipient expends $750,000 or more in federal funds (from all sources) ina
fiscal year beginning on or after December 26, 2014, it shall have a single organization-wide audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 45 CFR part 75, subpart F. Copies of all audits must be
submitted to OHA within 30 calendar days of completion. If a sub recipient expends less than $500,000
in Federal funds in a fiscal year beginning prior to December 26, 2014, or less than $750,000 in a fiscal
year beginning on or after that date, it is exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year. Records
must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials.

8. Debarment and Suspension. County shall not permit any person or entity to be a Provider if the person
or entity is listed on the non-procurement portion of the General Service Administration’s “List of
Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs” in accordance with
Executive Orders No. 12549 and No. 12689, “Debarment and Suspension”. (See 2 CFR Part 180). This
list contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, and
contractors declared ineligible under statutory authority other than Executive Order No. 12549,
Providers with awards that exceed the simplified acquisition threshold shall provide the required
certification regarding their exclusion status and that of their principals prior to award.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 189 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

222



10.

11.

Drug-Free Workplace. County shall comply and require all Providers to comply with the following
provisions to maintain a drug-free workplace: (i) County certifies that it will provide a drug-free
workplace by publishing a statement notifying its employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance, except as may be present in lawfully
prescribed or over-the-counter medications, is prohibited in County's workplace or while providing
Services to OHA clients. County's notice shall specify the actions that will be taken by County against
its employees for violation of such prohibitions; (ii) Establish a drug-free awareness program to inform
its employees about: The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, County's policy of maintaining a drug-
free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and
the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations; (iii) Provide each
employee to be engaged in the performance of Services under this Agreement a copy of the statement
mentioned in paragraph (i) above; (iv) Notify each employee in the statement required by paragraph (i)
above that, as a condition of employment to provide services under this Agreement, the employee will:
abide by the terms of the statement, and notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a
violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) calendar days after such conviction; (v) Notify
OHA within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (iv) above from an
employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction; (vi} Impose a sanction on, or require
the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who
is so convicted as required by Section 5154 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988; (vii) Make a
good-faith effort to continue a drug-free workplace through implementation of subparagraphs (i) through
(vi) above; (viii) Require any Provider to comply with subparagraphs (i} through (vii) above; (ix)
Neither County, or any of County's employees, officers, agents or Providers may provide any Service
required under this Agreement while under the influence of drugs. For purposes of this provision, "under
the influence" means observed abnormal behavior or impairments in mental or physical performance
leading a reasonable person to believe the County or County's employee, officer, agent, or Provider has
used a controlled substance, prescription or non-prescription medication that impairs the County or
County's employee, officer, agent, or Provider's performance of essential job function or creates a direct
threat to OHA clients or others. Examples of abnormal behavior include, but are not limited to
hallucinations, paranoia, or violent outbursts. Examples of impairments in physical or mental
performance include, but are not limited to slurred speech, difficulty walking or performing job
activities; and (x) Violation of any provision of this subsection may result in termination of this
Agreement.

Pro-Children Act. County shall comply and require all Providers to comply with the Pro-Children Act
of 1994 {codified at 20 U.S.C. Section 6081 et. seq.).

Medicaid Services. To the extent County provides any Service in which costs are paid in whole or in
part by Medicaid, County shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulation
pertaining to the provision of Medicaid Services under the Medicaid Act, Title X1X, 42 U.S.C. Section
1396 et. seq., including without limitation:

a. Keep such records as are necessary to fully disclose the extent of the services provided to
Individuals receiving Medicaid assistance and shall furnish such information to any state or
federal agency responsible for administering the Medicaid program regarding any payments
claimed by such person or institution for providing Medicaid Services as the state or federal
agency may from time to time request. 42 U.S.C. Section 1396a (a) (27); 42 CFR Part
431.107(b)(1) & (2).

b. Comply with all disclosure requirements of 42 CFR Part 1002.3(a) and 42 CFR 455 Subpart (B).

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 190 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

223



c. Maintain written notices and procedures respecting advance directives in compliance with 42
U.S.C. Section 1396 (a) (57) and (w), 42 CFR Part 431.107 (b) (4), and 42 CFR Part 489 subpart
L.

d. Certify when submitting any claim for the provision of Medicaid Services that the information
submitted is true, accurate and complete. County shall acknowledge County’s understanding that
payment of the claim will be from federal and state funds and that any falsification or
concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted under federal and state laws.

e. Entities receiving $5 million or more annually (under this Agreement and any other Medicaid
agreement) for furnishing Medicaid health care items or services shall, as a condition of
receiving such payments, adopt written fraud, waste and abuse policies and procedures and
inform employees, Providers and agents about the policies and procedures in compliance with
Section 6032 of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, 42 U.S.C. § 1396a (a) (68).

12.  ADA. County shal! comply with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (codified at 42
U.S.C. 12131 et. seq.) in the construction, remodeling, maintenance and operation of any structures and
facilities, and in the conduct of all programs, services and training associated with the delivery of
Services.

13.  Agency-Based Voter Registration. [f applicable, County shall comply with the Agency-based Voter
Registration sections of the National Voter Registration Act of 1993 that require voter registration
opportunities be offered where an Individual may apply for or receive an application for public
assistance.

14. Disclosure.

a. 42 CFR 455.104 requires the State Medicaid agency to obtain the following information from
any provider of Medicaid or CHIP services, including fiscal agents of providers and managed
care entities: (1) the name and address (including the primary business address, every business
location and P.O. Box address) of any person (Individual or corporation) with an ownership or
control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity; (2) in the case of an
Individual, the date of birth and Social Security Number, or, in the case of a corporation, the tax
identification number of the entity, with an ownership interest in the provider, fiscal agent or
managed care entity or of any subcontractor in which the provider, fiscal agent or managed care
entity has a 5% or more interest; (3) whether the person (Individual or corporation) with an
ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity is related to
another person with ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care
entity as a spouse, parent, child or sibling, or whether the person (Individual or corporation) with
an ownership or control interest in any subcontractor in which the provider, fiscal agent or
managed care entity has a 5% or more interest is related to another person with ownership or
control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity as a spouse, parent, child or
sibling; (4) the name of any other provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity in which an
owner of the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity has an ownership or control interest;
and, (5) the name, address, date of birth and Social Security Number of any managing employee
of the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 191 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOIJ Approval 12/21/2023

224



<.

42 CFR 455.434 requires as a condition of enrollment as a Medicaid or CHIP provider, to
consent to criminal background checks, including fingerprinting when required to do so under
state law, or by the category of the provider based on risk of fraud, waste, and abuse under
federal law. As such, a provider must disclose any person with a 5% or greater direct or indirect
ownership interest in the provider who has been convicted of a criminal offense related to that
person's involvement with the Medicare, Medicaid, or title XX1 program in the last 10 years.

OHA reserves the right to take such action required by law, or where OHA has discretion, it
deems appropriate, based on the information received (or the failure to receive) from the
provider, fiscal agent, or managed care entity.

15. Special Federal Requirements Applicable to Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention
Services for Counties receiving Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (SAPT) Block Grant
funds.

a. Order for Admissions:

(1) Pregnant women who inject drugs;

2) Pregnant substance abusers;

&) Other Individuals who inject drugs; and

4) All others.

b. Women’s or Parent’s Services. [f County provides A&D 61 and A&D 62 Services, County
must:

(n Treat the family as a unit and admit both women or parent and their children if
appropriate.

(2) Provide or arrange for the following services to pregnant women and women with
dependent children:

(a) Primary medical care, including referral for prenatal care;

(b) Pediatric care, including immunizations, for their children;

(c) Gender-specific treatment and other therapeutic interventions, e.g., sexual and
physical abuse counseling, parenting training, and childcare;

(d)  Therapeutic interventions for children in custody of women or parent in treatment,
which address, but are not limited to, the children’s developmental needs and
issues of abuse and neglect; and

(e Appropriate case management services and transportation to ensure that women
or parents and their children have access to the services in (a) through (d) above.

c. Pregnant Women. If County provides any Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention

Services other than A&D 84, Problem Gambling, Client Finding Outreach Services, County

must:

(1) Within the priority categories, if any, set forth in a particular Service Description, give
preference in admission to pregnant women in need of treatment, who seek or are
referred for and would benefit from such Services, within 48 hours;

P0O-44300-0026012/1ob Page 192 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

225



226

2) If County has insufficient capacity to provide treatment Services to a pregnant wormnan,
County must refer the women to another Provider with capacity or if no available
treatment capacity can be located, the outpatient Provider that the Individual is enrotled
with will ensure that Interim Services are being offered. Counseling on the effects of
alcohol and drug use on the fetus must be given within 48 hours, including a referral for
prenatal care; and

3) Perform outreach to inform pregnant women of the availability of treatment Services
targeted to them and the fact that pregnant women receive preference in admission to
these programs.

d. Intravenous Drug Abusers. If County provides any Addiction Treatment, Recovery, &
Prevention Services, other than A&D 84 Problem Gambling, Client Finding Outreach Services,
County must:

1) Within the priority categories, if any, set forth in a particular Service Description and
subject to the preference for pregnant women described above, give preference in
admission to intravenous drug abusers;

2) Programs that receive funding under the grant and that treat Individuals for intravenous
substance abuse, upon reaching 90 percent of its capacity to admit Individuals to the
program, must provide notification of that fact to the State within 7 calendar days;

3) If County receives a request for admission to treatment from an intravenous drug abuser,
County must, unless it succeeds in referring the Individual to another Provider with
treatment capacity, admit the Individual to treatment not later than:

(a) 14 calendar days after the request for admission to County is made;

(b) 120 calendar days after the date of such request if no Provider has the capacity to
admit the Individual on the date of such request and, if Interim Services are made
available not less than 48 hours after such request; or

(c) If County has insufficient capacity to provide treatment Services to an intravenous
drug abuser, refer the intravenous drug abuser to another Provider with capacity
or if no available treatment capacity can be located, the outpatient provider that
the Individual is enrolled with will ensure that interim services are being offered.
If the Individual is not enrolled in outpatient treatment and is on a waitlist for
residential treatment, the provider from the county of the Individual’s residence
that is referring the Individual to residential services will make available
counseling and education about human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and
tuberculosis(TB), risk of sharing needles, risks of transmission to sexual partners
and infant, steps to ensure HIV and TB transmission does not occur, referral for
HIV or TB treatment services, if necessary, within 48 hours.

e. Infectious Diseases. If County provides any Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention
Services, other than A&D 84 Problem Gambling, Client Finding Outreach Services, County
must:

(1)  Complete a risk assessment for infectious disease including Human Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV) and tuberculosis, as well as sexually transmitted diseases, based on protocols
established by OHA, for every Individual seeking Services from County; and

(2) Routinely make tuberculosis services available to each Individual receiving Services for
alcohol/drug abuse either directly or through other arrangements with public or non-profit

PO-44300-0026012/l1cb Page 193 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



i.

entities and, if County denies an Individual admission on the basis of lack of capacity,
refer the Individual to another provider of tuberculosis Services.

3) For purposes of (2) above, “tuberculosis services” means:
(a) Counseling the Individual with respect to tuberculosis;

(b)  Testing to determine whether the Individual has contracted such disease and
testing to determine the form of treatment for the disease that is appropriate for
the Individual; and

(c) Appropriate treatment services.

OHA Referrals. If County provides any Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services,
other than A&D 84 Problem Gambling, Client Finding Outreach Services, County must, within
the priority categories, if any, set forth in a particular Service Description and subject to the
preference for pregnant women and intravenous drug users described above, give preference in
Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention and Problem Gambling Service delivery to
persons referred by OHA.

Barriers to Treatment. Where there is a barrier to delivery of any Addiction Treatment,
Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling Service due to culture, gender, language,
illiteracy, or disability, County shall develop support services available to address or overcome
the barrier, including:

(1) Providing, if needed, hearing impaired or foreign language interpreters.

(2) Providing translation of written materials to appropriate language or method of
communication (except as provided in Exhibit F, “General Terms and Conditions,”
Section 7., “Alternative Formats and Translation of Written Materials, Interpreter
Services™).

(3)  Providing devices that assist in minimizing the impact of the barrier.

) Not charging clients for the costs of measures, such as interpreters, that are required to
provide nondiscriminatory treatment.

Misrepresentation. County shall not knowingly or willfully make or cause to be made any false
statement or representation of a material fact in connection with the furnishing of items or
Services for which payments may be made by OHA.

Oregon Residency. Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling
Services funded through this Agreement may only be provided to residents of Oregon. Residents
of Oregon are Individuals who live in Oregon. There is no minimum amount of time an
Individual must live in Oregon to qualify as a resident so long as the Individual intends to remain
in Oregon. A child’s residence is not dependent on the residence of his or her parents. A child
living in Oregon may meet the residency requirement if the caretaker relative with whom the
child is living is an Oregon resident.

Tobacco Use. If County has Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Services treatment
capacity that has been designated for children, adolescents, pregnant women, and women with
dependent children, County must implement a policy to eliminate smoking and other use of
tobacco at the facilities where the Services are delivered and on the grounds of such facilities.

Client Authorization. County must comply with 42 CFR Part 2 when delivering an Addiction
Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention Service that includes disclosure of Client information for
purposes of eligibility determination. County must obtain Client authorization for disclosure of
billing information, to the extent and in the manner required by 42 CFR Part 2, before a

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 194 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

227



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

228

Disbursement Claim is submitted with respect to delivery of an Addiction Treatment, Recovery,
& Prevention Service to that Individual.

Special Federal Requirements Applicable To Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention
Services for Counties Receiving Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Grant Funds.

Funding requirements. TANF may only be used for families receiving TANF, and for families at risk
of receiving TANF, and for the purpose of providing housing services (room and board) for Individuals
who are dependent children ages 18 years old or younger whose parent is in adult addiction residential
treatment, so that the children may reside with their parent in the same treatment facility. Families at-
risk of receiving TANF must:

a, Include a dependent child age 18 years of age or under, who is living with a parent or caretaker
relative. “Caretaker relative” means a blood relative of the child; stepmother, stepfather,
stepbrother, or stepsister; or an individual who has legally adopted the child.

b. Be an Oregon resident.
c. Have income at or below 250% of the Federal Poverty Level.

Use of TANF block grant funds and state expenditures counted towards TANF MOE must meet the
requirements of 45 CFR Part 263. Only non-medical Services may be provided with TANF Block Grant
funds.

Community Mental Health Block Grant. All funds, if any, awarded under this Agreement for
Community Mental Health Services are subject to the federal use restrictions and requirements set forth
in Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number 93.958 and to the federal statutory and regulatory
restrictions imposed by or pursuant to the Community Mental Health Block Grant portion of the Public
Health Services Act, 42 U.S.C. 300x-1 et. seq., and County shall comply with those restrictions.

Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment. To the extent County provides any Service in which
costs are paid in whole or in part by the Substance Abuse, Prevention, and Treatment Block Grant,
County shall comply with federal rules and statutes pertaining to the Substance Abuse, Prevention, and
Treatment Block Grant, including the reporting provisions of the Public Health Services Act (42 U.S.C.
300x through 300x-66) and 45 CFR 96.130 regarding the sale of tobacco products. Regardless of
funding source, to the extent County provides any substance abuse prevention or treatment services,
County shall comply with the confidentiality requirements of 42 CFR Part 2. CMHP may not use the
funds received under this Agreement for inherently religious activities, as described in 45 CFR Part 87.

Information Required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200. All required data
elements in accordance with 45 CFR 75.352 are available at:
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/hsd/amh/Pages/federal-reporting.aspx.

Super Circular Requirements. 2 CFR Part 200, or the equivalent applicable provision adopted by the
awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitie B, including but not limited to the following:

a. Property Standards. 2 CFR 200.313, or the equivalent applicable provision adopted by the
awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, which generally describes the required
maintenance, documentation, and allowed disposition of equipment purchased with federal
funds.

b. Procurement Standards. When procuring goods or services (including professional consulting
services), applicable state procurement regulations found in the Oregon Public Contracting Code,
ORS chapters 279A, 279B and 279C or 2 CFR §§ 200.318 through 200.326, or the equivalent
applicable provision adopted by the awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, as applicable.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 195 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



c. Contract Provisions. The contract provisions listed in 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix I1, or the
equivalent applicable provision adopted by the awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, that
are hereby incorporated into this Exhibit, are, to the extent applicable, obligations of Recipient,
and Recipient shall also include these contract provisions in its contracts with non-Federal
entities.

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 196 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

229



230

2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT I
REQUIRED PROVIDER CONTRACT PROVISIONS
1. Expenditure of Funds. Provider may expend the funds paid to Provider under this Contract solely on
the delivery of , subject to the following limitations (in addition to any other

restrictions or limitations imposed by this Contract}):

a. Provider may not expend on the delivery of any funds paid to Provider under
this Contract in excess of the amount reasonable and necessary to provide quality delivery of

b. If this Contract requires Provider to deliver more than one service, Provider may not expend
funds paid to Provider under this Contract for a particular service on the delivery of any other
service.

C. If this Contract requires Provider to deliver Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and

Problem Gambling Services, Provider may not use the funds paid to Provider under this Contract
for such services to:

(1) Provide inpatient hospital services;
) Make cash payments to intended recipients of health services;

(3) Purchase or improve land, to purchase, construct or permanently improve (other than
minor remodeling) any building or other facility or to purchase major medicat equipment;

) Satisfy any requirement for expenditure of non-federal funds as a condition for receipt of
federal funds (whether the federal funds are received under this Contract or otherwise); or

5) Carry out any program prohibited by section 245(b) of the Health Omnibus Programs
Extension Act of 1988 (codified at 42 U.S.C. 300ee-5), which generally prohibits funds
provided under this Agreement from being used to provide Individuals with hypodermic
needles or syringes so that such Individuals may use illegal drugs, unless the Surgeon
General of the Public Health Service determines that a demonstration needle exchange
program would be effective in reducing drug abuse.

d. Provider may expend funds paid to Provider under this Contract only in accordance with OMB
Circulars or 45 CFR Part 75, as applicable on Allowable Costs. If Provider receives $500,000 or
more in Federal funds (from all sources) in its fiscal year beginning prior to December 26, 2014,
it shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in accordance with the Single Audit Act.
If Provider expends $750,000 or more in federal funds (from all sources) in a fiscal year
beginning on or after December 26, 2014, it shall have a single organization-wide audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 45 CFR part 75, subpart F. If Provider expends
less than $500,000 in Federal funds in a fiscal year beginning prior to December 26, 2014, or less
than $750,000 in a fiscal year beginning on or after that date, it is exempt from Federal audit
requirements for that year. Records must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials.
Provider, if subject to this requirement, shall at Provider’s own expense submit to OHA a copy
of, or electronic link to, its annual audit subject to this requirement covering the funds expended
under this Agreement and shall submit or cause to be submitted to OHA the annual audit of any
subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Provider responsible for the financial

P0-44300-0026012/ob Page 197 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOI Approval 12/21/2023



231

management of funds received under this Agreement. Copies of all audits must be submitted to
OHA within 30 calendar days of completion. Audit costs for audits not required in accordance

with the Single Audit Act are unatlowable. Provider may not use the funds received under this

Agreement for inherently religious activities, as described in 45 CFR Part 87.

2. Records Maintenance, Access, and Confidentiality.

a.

Access to Records and Facilities. County, the Oregon Health Authority, the Secretary of State’s
Office of the State of Oregon, the Federal Government, and their duly authorized representatives
shall have access to the books, documents, papers, and records of Provider that are directly
related to this Contract, the funds paid to Provider hereunder, or any services delivered hereunder
for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, copies, and transcriptions. In addition,
Provider shall permit authorized representatives of County and the Oregon Health Authority to
perform site reviews of all services delivered by Provider hereunder.

Retention of Records. Provider shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers,
and records, that are directly related to this Contract, the funds paid to Provider hereunder or to
any services delivered hereunder, for a minimum of 6 years, or such longer period as may be
required by other provisions of this Contract or applicable law, following the termination or
expiration of this Contract. If there are unresolved audit or other questions at the end of the six-
year period, Provider shall retain the records until the questions are resolved.

Expenditure Records. Provider shall document the expenditure of all funds paid to Provider
under this Contract. Unless applicable federal law requires Provider to utilize a different
accounting system, Provider shall create and maintain all expenditure records in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and in sufficient detail to permit County and the
Oregon Health Authority to verify how the funds paid to Provider under this Contract were
expended.

Client Records. Unless otherwise specified in this Contract, Provider shall create and maintain a
client record for each client who receives services under this Contract. The client record must
contain:

a) Client identification;

2) Problem assessment;

3) Treatment, training and/or care plan;

(4) Medical information when appropriate; and

(5) Progress notes including service termination summary and current assessment or

evaluation instrument as designated by the Oregon Health Authority in administrative
rules.

Provider shall retain client records in accordance with OAR 166-150-0005 through 166-150-
0215 (State Archivist). Unless OAR 166-150-0005 through 166-150-0215 requires a longer
retention period, client records must be retained for a minimum of six years from termination or
expiration of this contract.

Safeguarding of Client Information. Provider shall maintain the confidentiality of client
records as required by applicable state and federal law, including without limitation, ORS
179.495 to 179.507, 45 CFR Part 205, 42 CFR Part 2, any administrative rule adopted by the
Oregon Health Authority, implementing the foregoing laws, and any written policies made
available to Provider by County or by the Oregon Health Authority. Provider shall create and
maintain written policies and procedures related to the disclosure of client information, and shall

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 198 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT#H 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



make such policies and procedures available to County and the Oregon Health Authority for
review and inspection as reasonably requested by County or the Oregon Health Authority.

f. Data Reporting.

All Individuals receiving Services with funds provided under this Contract must be enrolled and
that Individual’s record maintained in the Measures and Qutcome Tracking System (MOTS) as
specified in OHA's MOTS Reference Manual located at: http://www.oregon.gov/oha/hsd/amh-
mots/Pages/index.aspx, and the “Who Reports in MOTS Policy” as follows:

Which Behavioral Health Providers are Required to Report in MOTS?

The data collection system for the Health Systems Division (HSD) is the Measures and
Outcomes Tracking System or MOTS. In general, behavioral health providers who are either
licensed or have a letter of approval from the HSD (or the former Addictions & Mental Health
Division [AMHY]), and receive public funds to provide treatment services are required to report to
MOTS. In addition to the general rule above, there are four basic ways to classify who is
required to submit data to MOTS:

1 Providers with HSD contracts that deliver treatment services (this includes Community
Mental Health Programs [CMHP], Local Mental Health Authorities [LMHA] and other
types of community behavioral health providers); these programs should all have a
license or letter of approval from the HSD or AMH;

(2)  Providers that are subcontractors (can be a subcontractor of a CMHP or other entity that
holds a contract with HSD or OHA, such as a Mental Health Organization [MHO], or a
Coordinated Care Organization [CCOY);

3) Providers that HSD does not contract with but are required to submit data to MOTS by
State/Federal statute or rule; these include DUII providers and methadone maintenance
providers; and

@) Providers that contract with other governmental agencies (e.g., Oregon Youth Authority
[OYA] or the Department of Corrections [DOC] to deliver mental health and/or
substance abuse services).

Note: Primary care physicians that provide a single service on behalf of the CMHP are not
required to report the MOTS status or service level data.

If there are any questions, contact MOTS Support at MOTS.Support(@iodhsoha.oregon.gov.

3. Alternative Formats of Written Materials, Interpreter Services.

In connection with the delivery of Service Element Services, Provider shall make available to Client,
without charge, upon the Client’s reasonable request:

a. All written materials related to the services provided to the Client in alternate formats, including
accessible electronic formats, brailed documents, and large print upon request. If Provider does
not have access to such alternate formats, then Provider can request written materials in the
Client’s preferred format from OHA.

b. All written materials related to the services provided to the Client in the Client’s language. If
Provider does not have access to such languages, then Provider can request written materials in
the Client’s language from OHA.

c. Oral interpretation services related to the services provided to the Client in the Client’s language.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 199 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

232



d. Sign language interpretation services and telephone communications access services related to
the services provided to the Client. Provider shall work with OHA if it does not have staft that
fluently speak the language of an eligible Client, including qualified Sign Language Interpreters
for Client’s who are deaf or hard of hearing and whose preferred mode of communication is sign
language.

For purposes of the foregoing, “written materials” means materials created by Provider, in connection
with the Service being provided to the requestor. The Provider may develop its own forms and materials
and with such forms and materials the Provider shall be responsible for making them available to a
Client, without charge to the Client in the prevalent non-English language(s) within the County service
area. OHA shall be responsible for making its forms and materials available, without charge to the
Client or Provider, in the prevalent non-English language(s) within the Providers service area.

4. Reporting Requirements. Provider shall prepare and furnish the following information to County and
the Oregon Health Authority when a service is delivered under this Contract:

a. Client, service, and financial information as specified in the applicable Service Description
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

b. All additional information and reports that County or the Oregon Health Authority reasonably
requests, including, but not limited to, the information or disclosure described in Exhibit H,
Required Federal Terms and Conditions, Section 14. “Disclosure.”

5. Compliance with Law. Provider shall comply with all state and local laws, regulations, executive
orders, and ordinances applicable to the Contract or to the delivery of services hereunder. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Provider expressly agrees to comply with the following laws,
regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the Contract: (a) all applicable
requirements of state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations; (b) all state laws
govemning operation of community mental health programs, including without limitation, all
administrative rules adopted by the Oregon Health Authority related to community mental health
programs or related to client rights, OAR 943-005-0000 through 943-005-0070, prohibiting
discrimination against Individuals with disabilities; (c) all state laws requiring reporting of client abuse;
and (d) ORS 659A.400 to 659A.409, ORS 659A.145 and all regulations and administrative rules
established pursuant to those laws in the construction, remodeling, maintenance and operation of any
structures and facilities, and in the conduct of all programs, services and training associated with the
delivery of services under this Contract. These laws, regulations and executive orders are incorporated
by reference herein to the extent that they are applicable to the Contract and required by law to be so
incorporated. All employers, including Provider, that employ subject workers who provide services in
the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers’ Compensation
coverage, unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. In addition, Provider shall comply, as
if it were County thereunder, with the federal requirements set forth in Exhibit H “Required Federal
Terms and Conditions,” to the certain 2024-2025 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of
Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling
Services between County and the Oregon Health Authority dated as of 1/1/2024, which Exhibit is
incorporated herein by this reference. For purposes of this Contract, all references in this Contract to
federal and state laws are references to federal and state laws as they may be amended from time to time.

6. Unless Provider is a State of Oregon governmental agency, Provider agrees that it is an independent
contractor and not an agent of the State of Oregon, the Oregon Health Authority or County.

7. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Provider shall defend (in the case of the state of Oregon and
the Oregon Health Authority, subject to ORS Chapter 180), save and hold harmless the State of Oregon,
the Oregon Health Authority, County, and their officers, employees, and agents from and against all
claims, suits, actions, losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses of any nature whatsoever resulting

P0O-44300-0026012/lob Page 200 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

233



10.

11,

12.

234

from, arising out of or relating to the operations of the Provider, including but not limited to the
activities of Provider or its officers, employees, subcontractors or agents under this Contract.

Provider understands that Provider may be prosecuted under applicable federal and state criminal and
civil laws for submitting false claims, concealing material facts, misrepresentation, falsifying data
system input, other acts of misrepresentation, or conspiracy to engage therein,

Provider shall only conduct transactions that are authorized by the County for transactions with the
Oregon Health Authority that involve County funds directly related to this Contract.

First tier Provider(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 shall obtain, at
Provider’s expense, and maintain in effect with respect to all occurrences taking place during the term of
the contract, insurance requirements as specified in Exhibit J “Provider Insurance Requirements,” of the
certain 2024-2025 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Financing of Community Mental Health,
Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling Services between County and the
Oregon Health Authority dated as of 1/1/2024, which Exhibit is incorporated herein by this reference.

Provider(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, shall indemnify, defend,
save and hold harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnitee”™) from
and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including attorneys’
fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in
whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Provider or any of the officers, agents,
employees or subcontractors of the contractor (“Claims™). It is the specific intention of the parties that
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts
or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by the Provider from and against any and all Claims.

Provider shall include sections | through 11, in substantially the form set forth above, in all permitted
Provider Contracts under this Agreement.

P0O-44300-0026012/tob Page 201 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT J
PROVIDER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

County shall require its first tier Providers(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003,
if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under
ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and
CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before the Providers perform under contracts between County and the
Providers (the "Provider Contracts"); and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the duration of the
Provider Contracts. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities that are authorized to
transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are acceptable to OHA.
County shall not authorize Providers to begin work under the Provider Contracts until the insurance is in full
force. Thereafter, County shall monitor continued compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or
more frequent basis. County shall incorporate appropriate provisions in the Provider Contracts permitting it to
enforce Provider compliance with the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such
compliance. Examples of "reasonable steps” include issuing stop work orders (or the equivalent) until the
insurance is in full force or terminating the Provider Contracts as permitted by the Provider Contracts, or
pursuing legal action to enforce the insurance requirements. In no event shall County permit a Provider to work
under a Provider Contract when the County is aware that the Provider is not in compliance with the insurance
requirements. As used in this section, a “first tier” Provider is a Provider with whom the County directly enters
into a Provider Contract. It does not include a subcontractor with whom the Provider enters into a contract.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

1. Workers Compensation: Must be in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all employers that
employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide workers’ compensation coverage for
those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).

P(O-44300-0026012/1ob Page 202 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

235



2. Professional Liability: D Required by OHA [ ] Not required by OHA.

Professional Liability Insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or any negligent
acts related to the services to be provided under the Provider Contract, with limits not less than the
following, as determined by OHA, or such lesser amount as OHA approves in writing:

D4 Per occurrence for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence:

Provider Contract containing the following Required Insurance Amount:
Services:
A&D 60, A&D 62, A&D 63, A&D 64, A&D | §1,000,000
66, A&D 80, A&D 81, A&D 83, A&D 84,
MHS 01, MHS 04, MHS 05, MHS 09, MHS
10, MHS 12, MHS 13, MHS 15, MHS 16,
MHS 16A, MHS 20, MHS 24, MHS 25, MHS
25A, MHS 26, MHS 26A, MHS 30, MHS 34,
MHS 35, MHS 35A, MHS 36, MHS 37, MHS
38, MHS 39

A&D 61, A&D 67, MHS 27, MHS 28, MHS $2,000,000
31

P(O-44300-0026012/lob Page 203 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT¥# 443462-GT2990-23) DQJ Approval 12/21/2023

236



3. Commercial General Liability: [X] Required by OHA [ ] Not required by OHA.

Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury, death, and property damage in a form and
with coverages that are satisfactory to OHA. This insurance shall include personal injury liability, products
and completed operations. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the
following amounts as determined by OHA, or such lesser amount as OHA approves in writing:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

X Per occurrence for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence:

Provider Contract containing the following Required Insurance Amount:
services:
A&D 60, A&D 61, A&D 62, A&D 63, A&D | $1,000,000
64, A&D 66, A&D 80, A&D 81, A&D 83,
A&D 84, MHS 01, MHS 04, MHS 05, MHS
09, MHS 10, MHS 12, MHS 13, MHS 15,
MHS 16, MHS 16A, MHS 20, MHS 24, MHS
25, MHS 25A, MHS 26, MHS 26A, MHS 27,
MHS 28, MHS 30, MHS 31, MHS 34, MHS
35, MHS 35A, MHS 36, MHS 37, MHS 38,
MHS 39

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 204 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

237



238

4. Automobile Liability: [X] Required by OHA [ ] Not required by OHA.

Automobile Liability [nsurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage
may be written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits
for “Commercial General Liability” and “Automobile Liability™). Automobile Liability Insurance
must be in not less than the following amounts as determined by OHA, or such lesser amount as
OHA approves in writing:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

|E Per occurrence for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence:

Provider Contract not-to-exceed under this Required Insurance Amount:
Agreement:
A&D 61, A&D 62, A&D 63, A&D 66, A&D | $1,000,000
81, A&D 83, A&D 84, MHS 04, MHS 09,
MHS 12, MHS [3, MHS 15, MHS 16, MHS
16A, MHS 20, MHS 24, MHS 25, MHS 25A,
MHS 26, MHS 26A, MHS 30, MHS 34, MHS
36, MHS 37, MHS 39,

MHS 27, MHS 28 $2,000,000

5. Additional Insured. The Commercial General Liability insurance and Automobile Liability insurance
must include the State of Oregon, its officers, employees, and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the Provider's activities to be performed under the Provider Contract. Coverage must be
primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

6. Notice of Cancellation or Change. The Provider or its insurer must provide written notice to County at
least 30 calendar days before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits
of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

7. “Tail” Coverage. If any of the required insurance policies is on a “claims made” basis, such as
professional liability insurance, the Provider shall maintain either “tail” coverage or continuous *claims
made” liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous “claims made” coverage is on or
before the effective date of the Provider Contract, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of :
(i) the Provider’s completion and County ’s acceptance of all Services required under the Provider Contract;
or (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Provider Contract. Notwithstanding the
foregoing 24-month requirement, if the Provider elects to maintain “tail” coverage and if the maximum time
period “tail”” coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month period described
above, then the Provider may request and OHA may grant approval of the maximum “tail” coverage period
reasonably available in the marketplace. If OHA approval is granted, the Provider shall maintain “tail”
coverage for the maximum time period that “tail” coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.

8. Certificate(s) of Insurance. County shall obtain from the Provider a certificate(s) of insurance for all
required insurance before the Provider performs under the Provider Contract. The certificate(s) or an
attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the poticy as
Additional Insured; and ii) for insurance on a “claims made” basis, the extended reporting period
applicable to “tail” or continuous “claims made” coverage.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 205 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT K
START-UP PROCEDURES
Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling (Service Element A&D 60)
Community Mental Health (Service Element MHS 37)

INTRODUCTION

Start-Up funds are awarded for expenses necessary to begin, expand, or improve services. These expenses are
distinct from routine operating expenses incurred in the course of providing ongoing services.

Start-Up funds are typically disbursed prior to initiation of services. Funds are used to cover costs such as
employee salaries and training, furnishings and supplies, renovation of facilities under $10,000, and purchase of
vehicles and other capital items that will be needed to provide the services planned and delivered at the
specified sites.

Requirements for Start-Up Pavyment

Payment of Start-Up funds is subject to the following requirements and any Special Conditions which are
specified in Exhibit C.

1. Basis and Method of Payment

a. Funds are paid for actual allowable expenses up to the limit specified for Start-Up. Allowable
expenses for each service element are limited to those listed under Allowable Start-Up
Expenditures in this Exhibit. OHA must approve payment for all Start-Up funds.

b. Afier execution of this Agreement or any amendment(s) awarding Program Start-Up funds,
County may request an advance of funds it anticipates using in the subsequent 120 calendar days.

c. A request for payment of Start-Up funds may only be made using forms and procedures
prescribed by OHA. Special instructions are applicable as follows:

1) When OHA Start-Up funds in the amount of $1,000 and above are to be used for
purchase of a vehicle, as security for the County’s performance of its obligations under
this Agreement, the County grants to OHA a security interest in, all of the County’s right,
title, and interest in and to the goods, i.e., the vehicle. The County agrees that from time
to time, at its expense, the County will promptly execute and deliver all further
instruments and documents, and take all further action, that may be necessary or
desirable, or that OHA may reasonably request, in order to perfect and protect the
security interest granted under this Agreement or to enable OHA to exercise and enforce
its rights and remedies under this Agreement with respect to the vehicle. County must
forward a copy of the title registration application showing Health Systems Division as
the Security Interest Holder to OHA within 5 calendar days of the acquisition from the
seller. File Security Interest Holder information as follows:

Oregon Health Authority
Health Systems Division
500 Summer Street NE, E86
Salem, OR 97301

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 206 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

239



2) When County requests payment of Start-Up funds, the request must be made on forms
prescribed by OHA.

2. Special Written Approval Authorizations

When using Start-Up funds the following circumstances require special written authorization from OHA
prior to acquisition. These circumstances should be communicated to OHA within 14 calendar days of
the anticipated acquisition date.

a. WHEN LEASING:
(1)  Acquisition of real property, vehicles, or capital items pursuant to a Lease;

(2)  Acquisition of real property, vehicles, or capital items where another party, in addition to
OHA, will also become a secured party (lienholder) at the time of acquisition; and

(3)  Renovations or alterations of real property where County is not the owner of the property
and OHA has no security interest in the property.

b. OTHER:

A change in the intended use of Start-Up funds or a change in the amount or date of anticipated
acquisition indicated on County’s request for payment of Start-Up funds, for those acquisitions
requiring OHA’s interest to be secured.

3. Release of Payments

Following review and approval of County’s request for payment of Start-Up funds and any ancillary
documentation, OHA will issue an advance of funds to County as applicable. These funds will generally
be issued as a separate check on a weekly basis; however, requests processed in time for the monthly
allotment process will be included in the allotment. The request for funds should be communicated to
OHA within 14 calendar days of the anticipated acquisition date. Approval of special requests will be
made on a limited basis only.

County will keep a copy of all Requests for Payment of Start-Up funds and report actual expenditures to
OHA on the same form using procedures prescribed by OHA.

4, Start-Up Expenditure Documentation Maintained by County

County shall maintain an Expenditure Report for Start-Up payments. County also is responsible for
requiring its Providers to comply with expenditure reporting requirements and furnishing evidence of
filing OHA’s security interest on applicable items. OHA may inspect these reports. The reports must
include the following by service element:

a. The amount advanced;

The amount expended on each allowable category, and the amount expended on each item listed
as required in Special Written Approval Authorizations above and pre-approved by OHA; and

c. Copies of all Provider Contracts awarding Start-Up funds. Such Provider Contracts must require
Providers to have executed dedicated use agreements and the other security documentation
described in this Exhibit.

County must maintain supporting documentation for all expenditures (i.e., receipts).

P0-44300-0026012/lob Page 207 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

240



Expenditure Reports to OHA

County must submit Start-Up expenditure reports separately for each OHA Start-Up request.
Expenditure reports are due within 45 calendar days following the termination or expiration of the
Agreement. County shall report actual expenditure of Start-Up funds, using forms and procedures
prescribed by OHA, and forward expenditure reports to OHA.

Recovery of Start-Up Funds

In the event County fails to submit an expenditure report when due for itself or its Provider(s), fails to
submit security interests, vehicle titles, or other instrument as required by OHA to secure the State's
interest, or reports unauthorized expenditures, or reports under expenditures without accompanying
repayment, OHA may act, at its option, to recover Start-Up funds as follows:

a. Bill County for subject funds;

b. Following 30 calendar days nonresponse to the billing, initiate an allotment reduction schedule
against any current payments or advances being made to County; or

c. Take other action needed to obtain payment.

Dedicated Use Requirement

Vehicles costing $1,000 or more must be used to provide the service for which OHA approved the Start-
Up funds. Dedicated use must continue for the useful life of the vehicle or five years whichever is less.

Removal of Liens
The following steps describe the process for removal of liens:

To release a vehicle title on which OHA is listed security interest holder, County or any of its’
Providers, must make a request in writing to OHA. The request must specify why the vehicle is being
disposed of and the intended use of any funds realized from the transaction.

If approved, the original title is signed off by OHA and forwarded to County.

PO-44300-0026012/10b Page 208 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

241



ALLOWABLE START-UP EXPENDITURES

Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery, & Prevention, and Problem Gambling

1. Policies: Start-Up funds:

a. Must be expended consistent with County’s request for payment of Start-Up funds, and/or any
required itemized budget, as approved by OHA.

b. Must be expended only for items and services listed below.

c. Must not be used for personnel costs, facility costs (as defined below) or equipment lease costs
(including vehicle leases) in any month in which the provider receives OHA-funded service
payments, or room and board payments for clients.

d. Are subject to dedicated use requirements and other procedures for securing the State's interest,
as described within this Exhibit.

Exceptions to the policies stated above and/or the itemized list below must be approved in writing by

HSD.

2. Allowable Costs

a. Personnel Costs: Costs for personnel hired to work at program/facility incurred prior to the date
clients are enrolled.

(1) Salaries and wages up to 2 months for Program Administrator and up to 2 weeks for

program staff, or as otherwise approved by OHA;

(2) OPE costs; and

3) Professional contract services (e.g., Psychiatrist, Specialized Treatment Providers, etc.).
b. Facility Costs: Up to 2 months prior to opening, or as otherwise approved by OHA.

(1) Lease/mortgage payments and deposits;

(2) Property taxes and maintenance fees not included in lease or mortgage payments;

3 Utility costs, including hook-up fees;

@) Equipment rental costs; and

%) Initial insurance premiums {(general liability and professional liability insurance).

c. Program Staff Training: Up to 2 weeks for program staff, or as otherwise approved by OHA:

(1)  Training materials;
(2)  Training fees;
3) Trainer fees; and
(4) Travel costs (excluding out of state).
d. Services and Supplies:
(1) Program and office supplies; and
2) Initial supplies of food, maintenance, and housekeeping items.
P0-44300-0026012/1ob Page 209 of 213

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

242



e. Capital Qutlay:

(1) Furnishings and equipment appropriate for the type of service being provided, e.g.,
household furnishings and appliances for residential programs;

(2)  Technical or adaptive equipment needed by clients but not available through the Adult
and Family Services (client medical card), Vocational Rehabilitation, or other appropriate
service agency;

3) Office furnishings and equipment proportionate to size of residential program/staff being
implemented;

) Vehicle purchases or down payments; lease payments and deposits; as well as costs for
purchase and/or installation of necessary adaptive equipment such as lifts or ramps; and

5 Renovation of real property costing less than $10,000.

PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 210 0f 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023

243



2024-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR THE FINANCING OF COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, ADDICTION TREATMENT,
RECOVERY, & PREVENTION, AND PROBLEM GAMBLING SERVICES

EXHIBIT L

CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBER LISTING

244

Jefferson County
Service All
Description Service Description Name s::_r::;r ;:-:nt Funding CFDA #
# P Sources
MHS 01 System Management and Coordination N/A
A&D 60 Start-Up - Addictions Services N/A
Adult Substance Use Disorder
L6 Residential Treatment Services AL
Supported Capacity For Dependent

Children Whose Parents Are In Adult

L Dar Substance Use Disorder Residential Al
Treatment

A&D 63 Peer Delivered Services N/A
A&D 64 Housing Assistance N/A

Community Behavioral And Substance .
A&D 66 Use Disorder Services Subrecipient SAPT 93.959

Substance Use Disorder Residential &
A&D 67 Day Treatment Capacity AL
A&D 80 Problem Gambling Prevention Services N/A
A&D 81 Probiem Gambling Treatment Services N/A
A&D 82 Problem Gambling Residential Services N/A

Problem Gambling Respite Treatment
A&D 83 Services N/A

Problem Gambling Client Finding
Sl Referral Pathways Qutreach Services A1
PO-44300-0026012/lob Page 211 of 213
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23) DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



245

MHS 04 Aid and Assist Client Services N/A
Assertive Community Treatment
MHS 05 Services (ACT) N/A
MHS 09 Jail Diversion Services N/A
MHS 10 Mental Health Promqtion and Prevention N/A
Services
MHS 12 Rental Assistance Program Services N/A
MHS 13 School-Based Mental Health Services N/A
MHS 15 Young Adult Hub Programs (YAHP) N/A
MHS 17 Non-OHP Commgnity and Residential N/A
Assistance
Non-Residential Community Mental
MHS 20 Health Services For Child , Youth and Subrecipient MHBG 93.958
Adults
Acute and Intermediate Psychiatric
MHS 24 Inpatient Services N/A
Community MH Crisis Services for
wlasies Adults and Children A
Mobile Response and Stabilization
MHS 25A Services (MRSS) for Children, Young N/A
Adults and their Families
Non-Residential Mental Health Services
slalSiods for Youth & Young Adults In Transition A
Non-Residential Mental Health Services
For Youth & Young Adults in Transition -
MHS 26A Early Assessment and Support Alliance L
(EASA)
MHS 28 Residential Treatment Services N/A
MHS 28A Secure Residential Treatment Facility N/A
Monitoring, Security and Supervision
Services for Individuals under the
MHS 30 Jurisdiction of the Adult and Juvenile N/A
Panels of the Psychiatric Security
Review Board
MHS 35 Older or Disabled Adult Mental Health N/A
Services
Older or Disabled Adult Mental Health
LA Services - GERO-Specialist Al

PO-44300-0026012/lob
CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Page 212 of 213

DOJ Approval 12/2§/2023



246

Older or Disabled Adult Mental Health
S Services - APD Residential Il
MHS 37 Start-Up - Community Mental Health N/A
MHS 38 Supported Employment Services N/A
Projects For Assistance In Transition
MHS 39 From Homelessness Services (PATH) N/A

PO-44300-0026012/1ob

CY 2024-2025 CFAA (GT# 443462-GT2990-23)

Page 213 of 213
DOJ Approval 12/21/2023



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS
FOR THE COUNTY OF JEFFERSON

IN THE MATTER OF SETTING THE}
COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES} SALARY ORDER NO.

pEPARTMENT: SNeriff empLovEe: L€€ Jones

reason: Promoted to Corrections Sergeant

THE JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIO ERSTREBY ORDERS THE

REQUESTED SALARY CHANGE EFFECTIVE: & &-/’ / {;zt"}

SALARY CHANGE
DESCRIPTION CURRENT REQUEST
Hourly Rate 42.79 47.53
Monthly Wage 7,445.46 8,270.22
Grade CDA1 27
Step 8 15
Salary Matrix/PERS class Matrix B Matrix B
Benefit Group LEA Non-Rep

Applicable Benefits/Other Terms: Change to Non-Rep benefits/Employment Agreement

Approved this day of , 20
ATTEST BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
County yyzaﬁve Officer Commission, Chair
irt;'n.went Director/Elected Official Commissioner
Finance Director Commissioner

#3 Once completed please submit to hri@co jefferson.or us

247



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into between Jefferson County, a political subdivision of the State of
Oregon, by and through the Chair of the Board of County Commissioners, hereinafter "County",
and Lee Jones, hereinafter referred to as "Employee."

Section 1 Employment

For and in consideration of the salary and other benefits provided to Employee as hereafter more
particularly described, Employee agrees to appointment by the Jefferson County Sheriff as a
Corrections Sergeant for the Jefferson County Sheriff’s Office, and to carry out all duties imposed
by the County as set forth and contained in the job description for said position, attached hereto
and by this reference incorporated herein, subject to modification by the Sheriff or the County in
its discretion, and to such other duties as the County may hereafter assign.

Section 2 Term of Agreement, Termination, Severance Pay

A. The term of this agreement shall commence on February 21, 2024 and shall continue in full
force and effect thereafter until terminated by either party. The anniversary date for performance
evaluations and computation of any salary step increases, if eligible, shall be February 21 of each
calendar year. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right
of the County to terminate the services of Employee at any time and for any reason the County
deems appropriate and sufficient. Notwithstanding any other County policy or provision to the
contrary, Employee shall at all times be terminable at will in the complete discretion of the County.
Employee shall serve a twelve month probationary period.

B. Notice of Resignation. Employee is required to provide the County with 30 days advance
written notice of intent to resign. Failure to provide such notice will result in forfeiture of accrued,
but unused, vacation leave for which Employee will not receive payment upon termination of
employment.

C. Severance Pay. If Employee is terminated by the County for any reason other than those set
forth below, Employee shall be entitled to the equivalent of 1 month salary as severance pay in
complete settlement of all claims against the County, but subject to other obligations set forth
herein or as otherwise required by law for payment of unused vacation time or other accrued
benefits. County shall have no obligation for severance pay in the event Employee is terminated
for malfeasance in office or willful or wanton neglect of the duties and responsibilities assigned
by the County; conviction of any crime that in the sole discretion of the County would reflect
negatively upon Jefferson County; or violation of any ethical standard or policy imposed by the
State of Oregon or Jefferson County.

Section 3 Compensation

A. Salary. For the position of Emergency Management Coordinator (Sergeant), County shall pay
to Employee, and Employee hereby accepts as full payment for services rendered herein,

Jone, L. Employment Agreement- Page 1 of 3

248



compensation at the rate of Salary Grade 27, Step 15. The Employee will pay the “employee
share”, currently 6% of salary to PERS, per Oregon statute.

B. Exempt Status. The salary shall be payable on a monthly basis at the same time and under the
same conditions as other employees of Jefferson County are paid. This position is classified as
"exempt" under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and is exempt from all collective bargaining
agreements.

Section 4 Benefits Generally

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, during the term of this contract, the fringe benefit
provisions of the Jefferson County Personnel Policies and Procedures shall apply to Employee,
including those pertaining to vacation, sick leave, retirement, medical and dental insurance,
holidays and other fringe benefits as they now exist, or may be hereafter be amended in the manner
as they would apply to other non-represented employees of Jefferson County; however, Employee
shall not be entitled to Vacation Sell Back under Jefferson County Policy 310 and any policy
governing vacation payout at termination that is inconsistent with this Agreement shall not apply.

B. Administrative Leave. The parties recognize that Employee must devote time outside of
normal working hours to official business and the duties of the Corrections Sergeant position. For
this reason, Employee shall receive 2 hours of administrative leave, to accrue on a monthly basis.
Such administrative leave must be used within one year of its accrual or it is forfeited and in no
circumstance shall the total accrued administrative leave exceed 24 hours. The County shall not
be obligated to pay Employee for any unused administrative leave upon separation from
employment with County. As Employee’s position is classified exempt under the FLSA,
Employee shall not be entitled to any other claim for compensation for any hours worked in excess
of forty hours per week, except as provided in this Section.

Section 5 Review

The County may review the performance of Employee at any interval in their discretion, preferably
at least annually. Employee recognizes and agrees that notwithstanding any other provisions of
this agreement, Employee is employed at the pleasure of the County which has the right to
terminate Employee at any time and for any reason in their sole discretion.

Section 6 Waiver or Modification

No waiver or modification of this Agreement or any part thereof shall be valid unless in writing
and duly executed by the parties hereunder. No evidence of any waiver or modification shall be
offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or litigation between the parties
arising out of or affecting this Agreement or the rights or obligations of the parties hereto, unless
such waiver or modification is in writing and duly executed by the parties.

Jone, L. Employment Agreement- Page 2 of 3

249



Section 7 Severability

If any provision or portion thereof contained in this Agreement is held unconstitutional, invalid or
unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement or portion thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall
not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 8 Arbitration

Any dispute or claim that arises out of or that relates to this Agreement, or that relates to the breach
of this Agreement, or that arises out of or that is based upon the employment relationship
(including any wage claim, any claim for wrongful termination, or any claim based upon any
statute, regulation, or law, including those dealing with employment discrimination, sexual
harassment, civil rights, age, or disabilities), including tort claims (except a tort that is a
"compensable injury” under Workers' Compensation Law), shall be resolved by arbitration in
accordance with the then effective arbitration rules of (and by filing a claim with) Arbitration
Service of Portland, Inc., and judgment upon the award rendered pursuant to such arbitration may
be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. In the event arbitration is prohibited or
unenforceable, Employee agrees to waive a jury trial for claims brought in court.

Section 9 Governing Law

This contract shall be construed and interpreted for all purposes as executed in the State of Oregon,
and subject to the laws of the State of Oregon.

Employee Commission Chair
Date: Date;

County Sheriff

Date:

Jone, L. Employment Agreement- Page 3 of 3

250



Jefferson County Position Description
Position: Corrections Sergeant FLSA: Exempt
Department: Salary Grade:

Sheriff’s Office Grade 25 Basic
Grade 26 Intermediate
Grade 27 Advanced
Non-Bargaining Unit: Status:
Sheriff’s Office Full Time
Summary

The Corrections Sergeant is responsible for all areas of the jail operations, training, evaluation and discipline of
corrections division employees, and determines compliance with policy and procedure.

Distinguishing Characteristics

This position works under the general direction of the Sheriff and under the direct supervision of the Jail
Commander. The Corrections Sergeant will be held to strict accountability for the good order of his/her assigned
duties and will keep such hours of duty as may be prescribed by his/her supervisors.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities

=  Prepares work schedules, and monitors work performed.

= Ensures compliance with office policies, procedures, rules, and regulations.

* Reviews and approves reports and other work records as required.

* Inspects equipment and uniforms for proper maintenance.

*  Works with subordinates, supervisors, and other county employees.

s Establish effective working relationships and confer with the community members and general public and
assist them in understanding and interpretation of corrections issues. Respond to and be a liaison for resolving
questions, concerns, and complaints regarding the office’s activities.

* Attend meetings and seminars as requested or directed. Coordinate projects with various organizations and
governmental agencies. Make recommendations that might improve the operations and efficiency within the
Jail operations.

* Supervise all employees engaged in corrections work. Carry out supervisory responsibilities in accordance
with County & Office policies, procedures, labor union agreements and applicable laws.

* Responsibilities include interviewing, hiring, and training, mentoring employees; planning, assigning, and
directing work; evaluating performance; rewarding and disciplining employees, addressing
complaint/grievances and resolving problems.

= (Coordinate all personnel functions with the Jail Commander.

®  Assists in the development and administration of the office budget.

* Maintain order, discipline, safety and security of inmates and the facility.

®  Performs duties of a correction deputy when required.

= Regular attendance is an essential function of the position.

* Performs other duties as assigned that support the overall objective of the position.

Qualifications

=  Knowledge and Skills
Considerable knowledge of modern law enforcement and correction laws, and contemporary court decisions
pertaining to inmate rights, detention, arrest and use of force.

C-\Lsersypolock\AppDatat\Local\MicrosoR\Windows\[NetCache\Content. Qutlook\POZ133RGUCSO_Corrections Sergeant_HRA docx Page |

251



= Abilities

The ability to evaluate and analyze facts and draw correct conclusions promptly. The ability to understand and
carry out instructions, to speak and write effectively and to record information clearly and concisely is essential.

®  Physical Abilities

The ability to sit at a computer screen using rapid finger, hand, and arm movement. The ability to walk, stand,
bend, stoop or kneel occasionally. The ability to lift, push or pull up to 30 Ibs when required. Subject to pre-
employment physical capacity testing to this job description and any other SO requirements.

=  Education and Experience

Any combination of education and experience equivalent to a High School Diploma or GED which would
demonstrate considerable reasoning skill and the ability to meet and deal with the public in an effective and
courteous manner. Must possess DPSST Basic Certification. Supervisory experience and supervisory certification
is preferred.

s Licenses and Certificates

A valid Oregon Driver’s License with an acceptable driving record. Must have and maintain a Corrections
Department of Public Safety Standards and Training Basic Certification.

* Working Conditions

Work is performed indoors and outdoors where some safety considerations exist from physical labor and handling
of light-to-medium weight, yet awkward materials. Shift is five days a week Monday through Friday 12P-8P but
may change based on office needs.

®  Probationary Requirement

This position is based on the successful completion of a twelve-month probationary period.

Modified on: 10/25/2021

S/ﬁ‘ roz ¥

Dﬁte Si{ned
[203Y

upervisor Signature DateSignéd

/Empl yee Si

C\Users'jpollockiAppDatatLocal'Microsoft: Windows\NetCache\Content Outlook' POZI33RGWCSO_Corrections Sergeant HRA docx Page 2

252



STATE OF OREGON LEASE

THIS STATE OF OREGON LEASE (this “Lease”) is made and entered into as of the day of
, 2024 (the “Lease Effective Date™), by and between Landlord and Tenant (each a
“Party” and together the “Parties™), as set forth below.

Pursuant to that certain Lease dated April 9, 2014, as amended on April 29, 2016, March 20, 2017,
April 25,2018 and April 24, 2019 (as so amended, the “Existing Lease"), Tenant has been leasing
from Landlord the Premises (as defined below). The Existing Lease expires April 30, 2024,

The Parties acknowledge and agree that they are entering into this new Lease in order to simplify
and update the documentation of their agreements concerning the Premises going forward. As of
the Commencement Date (as defined below}), this Lease supersedes and cancels the Existing Lease
in its entirety.

SECTION 1: BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Landlord

Tenant

Premises
Street:

City, State, ZIP:
County:
(Section 2.1(a})

Property Tax Lot
Map & Tax Lot No.:
Tax Account No.:
(Section 2.1(b})

Premises Square Footage
Building Square Footage

Total Buildings Square Footage
(Section 2.1(c})

TFenant’s Building Proportionate Share
Tenant’s Property Proportionate Share
(Section 2.2(a))

Commencement Date
Expiration Date
(Section 3)

Initial Term

State of Oregon Lease — Page 1 of 32

Jefferson County, a political subdivision of
the State of Oregon

The State of Oregon, acting by and through
its Department of Transportation, Driver
and Motor Vehicle Services Division

249 SW 3rd Street
Madras, Oregon 97741
Jefferson

111311-AD-00300
9550

1,144 rsf
9,218 rsf
9,218 rsf

12.41%
12.41%

May 1, 2024
April 30, 2028

four (4) years

DAS Lease Control Number 1485

253



(Section 4)

1.9  Monthly TI Payment
(Section 5.1(d)}

1.10 Amortization Information
(Section 5.1(d))

1.11  Monthly Rent Table

Intentionally Omitted

Intentionally Omitted

The Monthly Base Rent commences at

(Section 3.5) approximately $1.51/per rentable square
foot, and escalates two percent (2%) every
Lease Year.
Lease Year Months Monthly Base Rent
1. 05/01/2024 - 04/30/2025 01 -12 $1,733.14
2. 05/01/2025 - 04/30/2026 13 -24 $1,767.80
3. 05/01/2026 - 04/30/2027 25-36 $1,803.16
4. 05/01/2027 - 04/30/2028 37-48 $1,839.22
1.12  Improvement Allowance Intentionally Omitted
Tenant’s Share of Improvement Intentionally Omitted
Costs
(Section 5.6)
1.13  Moving Allowance Intentionally Omitted
(Section 5.7)
1.14 Expansion Space Intentionally Omitted
(Section 6.1)
1.15 Extension Option two (2) Extension Options for consecutive
(Section 7.1) terms of two (2) years each, with 120 days’
notice
1.16 Use the general purposes of government office
(Section 11) use and client services
1.17  Parking Rights ten (10) unreserved parking spaces
(Section 12)
1.18 Utilities and Services

{Section 13.1)

Utility/Service

Included in Monthly

Paid directly

Base Rent by Tenant

Water

Sewer

Electricity

(Gas

Trash removal

Recycling

E Bl Bl B

State of Oregon Lease — Page 2 of 32

DAS Lease Control Number 1485

254



Janitorial services and supplies X
Window washing X
Snow and ice removal X
Security X
Pest control X

1.19  Minimum Carpet/Floor Covering every ten (10) years
Replacement Interval

Minimum Repainting Interval touch-up painting every five (5) years;
(Sections 14.1(b) and (c)) full repainting every ten (10) years
1.20  Property Manager Intentionally Omitted
{Section 35.3)
1.21 Brokers Intentionally Omitted

(Section 36.12)

SECTION 2: PREMISES

2.1 Generally.

{a) Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, the premises
(the “Premises™) shown on Exhibit A, located in the building or project (the “Building”) shown
on Exhibit B and on the real property (the “Property”) shown on Exhibit C. Any reference in
this Lease to the “Property” shall mean the Premises, the Building and the Property, as the
context so requires.

The Premises address is:

Street: 249 SW 3rd Street
City, State, ZIP: Madras, Oregon 97741
County: Jefferson

(b) As shown on Exhibit C, the Property is comprised of the following “Property Tax Lot™:
Map & Tax Lot No. 111311-AD-00300; Tax Account No. 9550.

(c) The Premises are 1,144 rentable square feet (the “Premises Square Footage”). The
Building is 9,218 rentable square feet (the “Building Square Footage™). All of the buildings on
the Property, including the Building, constitute 9,218 rentable square feet (the “Total Buildings
Square Footage”). All square footage amounts set forth in this Section 2.1(c) are based on
Landlord’s knowledge and information as of the Lease Effective Date.

2.2 Tenant’s Proportionate Shares.

(a) Calculation of Tenant's Proportionate Shares. Tenant’s Proportionate Shares are
calculated as follows:

State of Oregon Lease — Page 3 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

255



“Tenant’s Building Proportionate Share,” which represents that portion of the whole
that the Premises Square Footage bears to the Building Square Footage, is 12.41%.
“Tenant’s Property Proportionate Share,” which represents that portion of the whole
that the Premises Square Footage bears to the Total Buildings Square Footage, is 12.41%.

{(b)  Actual Square Footage. Intentionally Omitted

23 Proportionate Share Amendment. [ntentionally Omitted

24  Common Areas. Tenant’s lease of the Premises includes the appurtenant, nonexclusive
right to use, in common with other authorized users, all areas and facilities outside the Premises,
in the Building, on the Property or otherwise under Landlord’s control, that are provided by
Landlord for the appurtenant, nonexclusive use of Landlord, Tenant and other tenants of the
Property and their respective agents, employees and invitees (the “Common Areas”), including
any such areas shown on Exhibits A, B and C. Landlord shall not alter any portion of the
Common Areas in any manner that materially reduces Tenant’s access to or use of the Premises,
the Building or any parking spaces or areas related to the Parking Rights without Tenant’s prior
consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

SECTION 3: COMMENCEMENT AND EXPIRATION DATES

The Initial Term of this Lease (as defined in Section 4 below) shall begin on May 1, 2024 (the
“Commencement Date”) and expire on April 30, 2028 (the “Expiration Date”).

SECTION 4: TERM

The “Initial Term” of this Lease is four (4) years, beginning on the Commencement Date and
expiring on the Expiration Date, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. The word “Term”
is used in this Lease to describe the Initial Term, as it may be extended in connection with a
short-term extension pursuant to Section 27.2 below, and any Extension Term (as defined in
Section 7.1 below).

SECTION 5: RENT AND ALLOWANCES

5.1 Monthly Base Rent. “Monthly Base Rent” means the amounts set forth in the “Monthly
Rent Table” in Section 1.11 above or the Monthly Base Extension Rent (as defined in Section
7.2(a) below), for the periods of this Lease (the “Lease Years”).

5.2 Monthly Rent. “Monthly Rent” means the Monthly Base Rent (from the applicable
Lease Year).

53 Additional Rent. “Additional Rent” means all costs, fees, charges, expenses,
reimbursements and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever payable by Tenant under
this Lease, except for Monthly Base Rent.

5.4  Payment of Monthly Rent. From and after the Commencement Date, and throughout the

State of Oregon Lease — Page 4 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

256



Term of this Lease, Tenant shall pay Monthly Rent to Landlord, in advance, on or before the fifth
(5" day of each month, without notice or demand and without offset or deduction except as
specifically provided in this Lease, and at Landlord’s Address (as defined in Section 35.1 below).
Monthly Rent for any partial calendar month shall be prorated on a per diem basis, based on a
365-day calendar year.

5.5  Monthly Rent Table. The Monthly Base Rent commences at approximately $1.51/per
rentable square foot, and escalates two percent (2%) every Lease Year, as set forth in Section
1.11 above.

5.6 Improvement Allowance; Tenant’s Share of Improvement Costs. [ntentionally Omitted

5.7  Moving Allowance. Intentionally Omitted

SECTION 6: OPTION TO EXPAND PREMISES [ntentionally Omitted
SECTION 7: OPTION TO EXTEND TERM

7.1 Generally. So long as there is not then any material Tenant Default under this Lease,
Tenant has two (2) options to extend this Lease for consecutive terms of two (2) years each (each
an “Extension Option”). With the exception of the amount of Monthly Base Rent and any terms
or conditions that the Parties modify in writing, all terms and conditions of this Lease shall apply
during any such extension term (an “Extension Term”). To exercise an Extension Option,
Tenant shall deliver notice to Landlord of such exercise (an “Extension Exercise Notice”) at
least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the Expiration Date or the expiration of the then-
current Extension Term, as the case may be (the “Applicable Expiration Date”). The date of
Tenant’s delivery of an Extension Exercise Notice is the “Extension Exercise Date.” An
Extension Term shall commence on the day following the Applicable Expiration Date.

7.2 Monthly Base Extension Rent.

(a) Monthly Base Rent for an Extension Term (the “Monthly Base Extension Rent”) shali
be either: an amount agreed upon by the Parties pursuant to Section 7.2(b) below; or equal to the
Fair Market Value Rent for the Premises, as determined by the Parties pursuant to Section 7.2(c)
below. “Fair Market Value Rent” means the monthly base rent that a tenant of comparable
creditworthiness would pay in an arms-length transaction for a term the same length as the
Extension Term and, except for the Monthly Base Rent, on the same terms and conditions as set
forth herein, for a comparable space and use in the metropolitan area in which the Property is
located, taking into account, without limitation: the Building’s location, condition, age, identity,
services, amenities and Common Areas; the Premises’ improvements, floor and view; and other
pertinent considerations.

(b) The Parties shall attempt in good faith to agree on the Monthly Base Extension Rent at
least ninety (90) days before the Applicable Expiration Date.

(c) [f the Parties do not timely agree on the Monthly Base Extension Rent pursuant to

State of Oregon Lease — Page S of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

257



Section 7.2(b) above, the Monthly Base Extension Rent shall be based on the Fair Market Value
Rent, to be determined as follows:

(i) At least seventy-five (75) days before the Applicable Expiration Date, each Party
shall submit to the other its final proposal for the Monthly Base Extension Rent (an
“Extension Proposal”). If one Party fails to timely provide the other Party with its
Extension Proposal, then the other Party’s Extension Proposal shall be deemed to be the
Monthly Base Extension Rent. If the difference between the Parties’ Extension Proposals
is five percent (5%) or less, the Monthly Base Extension Rent shall be the average of the
two Extension Proposals.

(i)  Ifthe difference between the Parties’ Extension Proposals is greater than five
percent (5%), then the Parties shall select an appraiser (the “Appraiser”) to determine the
Monthly Base Extension Rent. The Appraiser shall be chosen as follows: at least sixty
(60) days before the Applicable Expiration Date, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a list of
at least three (3) independent Oregon State Certified General Appraisers who have at
least ten (10) years of experience in commercial real estate in the metropolitan area in
which the Property is located, and at least forty-five (45) days before the Applicable
Expiration Date, Tenant shall notify Landlord of its choice of the Appraiser from said list.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Landlord fails to timely deliver the list to Tenant, then
Tenant’s choice of an appraiser meeting the foregoing criteria shall be deemed the
Appraiser; and if Landlord does timely deliver the list to Tenant, and Tenant fails to
timely respond, then Landlord’s choice of an appraiser from the list shall be deemed the
Appraiser.

(iii) At least thirty (30) days before the Applicable Expiration Date, both Parties shall
submit their Extension Proposals to the Appraiser, and on or before the Applicable
Expiration Date, the Appraiser shall choose one of the Parties’ Extension Proposals as the
Monthly Base Extension Rent. If the Appraiser does not timely determine the Monthly
Base Extension Rent, then the Monthly Base Extension Rent shall temporarily be
determined pursuant to Section 7.2(d) below. The Party whose Extension Proposal is not
selected by the Appraiser shall pay the Appraiser’s costs and fees.

(d) If, as of the commencement of the Extension Term, the Monthly Base Extension Rent has
not yet been determined pursuant to Section 7.2(b) or (c) above, then until the Monthly Base
Extension Rent is so determined, Tenant shall continue to pay the same Monthly Base Rent as in
the immediately preceding month. If the Monthly Base Extension Rent is determined to be more
than such Monthly Base Rent, then Tenant shall, in its discretion, either pay to Landlord the full
amount of the resulting underpayment within thirty (30) days after the determination of the
Monthly Base Extension Rent, or increase the next twelve (12) Monthly Rent payments by an
amount equal to 1/12 of the underpayment. If the Monthly Base Extension Rent is determined to
be less than such Monthly Base Rent, then Landlord shall, in its discretion, either refund to
Tenant the full amount of the resulting overpayment within thirty (30) days after the
determination of the Monthly Base Extension Rent, or credit the full amount of the overpayment
to Tenant against the next Monthly Rent due until paid in full.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 6 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

258



7.3 Extension Amendment.

(a)  Amendment. If Tenant exercises an Extension Option pursuant to Section 7.1 above, then
within sixty (60) days after the Monthly Base Extension Rent is determined pursuant to Section
7.2 above, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord an “Extension Amendment” that sets forth:

{1) the commencement date and the expiration date of the Extension Term (which
expiration date shall thereafter be the Expiration Date);

(ii) the Monthly Base Extension Rent as determined pursuant to Section 7.2 above;

(iii)  any Minimum Carpet/Floor Covering Replacement Interval and Minimum
Repainting Interval (as defined in Sections 14.1(b) and (c) below respectively) that are
applicable to the Extension Term; and

(iv)  any related matters as may be necessary and proper.

(b) Delivery and Execution. Within fifteen (15) business days after delivery of the Extension
Amendment, Landlord shall either execute the Extension Amendment to indicate Landlord’s
acceptance, or give notice to Tenant that Landlord disputes it. Landlord’s failure to timely
execute or dispute the Extension Amendment shall be deemed acceptance thereof. If Landlord
gives notice to Tenant that it disputes the Extension Amendment, the Parties shall attempt in
good faith to resolve the dispute within ten (10) business days after such notice. The Parties may
resolve any remaining dispute in a court, subject to Section 36.9 below.

(c) Effectiveness. An Extension Option, if exercised by Tenant in accordance with the
requirements of this Lease, is effective on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 7 as
of the Extension Exercise Date, regardless of when or whether the Parties execute the Extension
Amendment.

SECTION 8: MONTHLY OPERATING EXPENSES Intentionally Omitted

SECTION 9: ADJUSTMENTS TO MONTHLY OPERATING EXPENSES nientionally
Omitted

SECTION 10: EXEMPTION FROM REAL PROPERTY TAXES

10.1  Generally. “Taxes” means: (a) all property taxes and assessments of any public authority
against the Building and the portion of the Property upon which the Building is located, and the
ownership, management or operation thereof; (b) any rent tax, local improvement district tax,
gross receipts tax and tax on Landlord’s interest under this Lease; and (c) any tax in lieu of or in
addition to the foregoing, whether such tax is now in effect.

10.2 Exemption from Real Property Taxes. The Property is exempt from Taxes pursuant to
ORS 307.090. The Monthly Rent payable by Tenant under this Lease reflects the savings
resulting from such exemption of the Property from Taxes.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 7 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

259



SECTION 11: USE

Tenant may use the Premises for all purposes related to the conduct of its business as an agency
of the State of Oregon and related ancillary purposes, and for the general purposes of
government office use and client services.

SECTION 12: PARKING

12.1  Parking Rights. Landlord shall, at no additional cost to Tenant, provide Tenant with ten
(10) unreserved parking spaces in the Common Areas, as shown on Exhibit B (Tenant’s rights to
such parking spaces or areas being the “Parking Rights™). Tenant, its agents, employees and
invitees shall have the right to use any parking spaces or areas related to the Parking Rights at all
times on a first-come, first-served basis with other tenants of the Building and other persons who
have the right to use such parking spaces or areas.

12.2 Tenant’s Use and Access. Landlord shall take all reasonable measures to ensure that the
use of and access to the parking spaces or areas related to the Parking Rights by Tenant, its
agents, employees and invitees are not in any way disrupted.

SECTION 13: UTILITIES AND SERVICES

13.1  Availability. Landlord shall ensure that the utilities and services listed in the “Utilities
and Services Table” in Section 1.18 above are provided to the Premises, and, in the event of any
disruption due to any acts or omissions by Landlord or any matter within Landlord’s control,
shall restore such utilities or services as promptly as possible, and if any such disruption
continues for more than twenty-four {24) hours, then Monthly Rent shall be abated in proportion
to the interference due to such disruption. [f any such disruption continues for more than
seventy-two {72) consecutive hours, regardless of fault, then Monthly Rent shall be abated in
proportion to the interference with Tenant’s use of the Premises due to such disruption.

13.2  Costs and Payment. Landlord shall timely pay the providers for all utilities and services
listed in the Utilities and Services Table as “Included in Monthly Base Rent.” Tenant shall
timely pay the providers for all utilities and services listed in the Utilities and Services Table as
“Paid directly by Tenant.”

13.3  Janitorial Services and Supplies.

(a) Landlord shall provide or contract for janitorial services and supplies that comply with
the requirements of the “Janitorial Services Agreement” attached as Exhibit F; provided,
however, that whenever reasonably possible, Landlord shall contract for such janitorial services
and supplies to be provided by a qualified nonprofit agency for individuals with disabilities, as
defined in ORS 279.835, in order to support the policy of the State of Oregon of encouraging
independence in individuals with disabilities, as set forth in ORS 279.840. At Tenant’s request,
Landlord shall provide additional janitorial services and supplies for the Premises, at a market
rate charge no greater than Landlord’s cost.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 8 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

260



(b)  Tenant may, in its sole discretion, elect to be directly responsible for the provision of
janitorial services and supplies for the Premises, upon thirty (30) days’ prior notice to Landlord
(in which event the Monthly Base Rent shall be adjusted accordingly).

13.4  Other Utilities and Services. Tenant may, at its sole cost and expense, obtain any utilities
and services for the Premises necessary or desirable to Tenant that are not listed in the Utilities
and Services Table in Section 1.18 above, and Landlord shall reasonably cooperate therewith,
including by granting access to the roof of the Building, as necessary or appropriate for the
installation or provision of such utilities and services.

SECTION 14: MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT

14.1  Landlord’s Responsibilities.

(a) Generally. Landlord shall, at its sole cost and expense, perform all maintenance, repair
and replacement that are necessary or appropriate to operate and keep the Property in a first-class
manner and condition, including, without limitation, the following:
(i) maintenance, repair and replacement of the Building’s structural elements,
foundation, roof, floors, carpets and other floor coverings (including those in the
Premises, as set forth in Section 14.1(b) below});

(i) interior and exterior walls (including painting the interior walls of the Premises,
as set forth in Section 14.1(c) below), doors, windows, window treatments and elevators;

(iii)  Common Areas and parking areas, including any parking spaces or areas related
to the Parking Rights;

(iv)  outdoor areas, landscaping, irrigation systems and backflow testing;

(v) interior and exterior lighting and lighting systems (including bulbs, ballasts, LED
fixtures, sensors and diodes);

(vi)  electrical, plumbing and sewer systems;

(vii)  heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems (collectively the “"HVAC
System”), as set forth more completely in Section 14.1(d) below;

(viii) fire alarms, fire suppression systems, sprinkler systems and fire extinguishers; and

(ix)  Landlord-provided appliances and replacement parts and systems therefor (such
as filters), including automated external defibrillators as required by ORS 431A.455.

Landlord’s obligations under this Section 14.1 do not include any maintenance, repair or
replacement that Tenant is obligated to perform pursuant to Section 14.2 below.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 9 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

261



Landlord shall perform all such maintenance, repair and replacement work promptly: ensure that
such work is performed in a first-class and workmanlike manner and in accordance with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, codes, regulations and rules (*“Laws and
Ordinances”); and obtain all required permits and inspections for such work. Upon Tenant’s
request, Landlord shall provide Tenant with reasonable supporting documentation relating to
such maintenance, repair and replacement work.

(b) Carpets and Floor Coverings in Premises. Landlord shall maintain, repair and replace
the carpets and other floor coverings in the Premises so as to keep them in a first-class condition,
subject to normal wear and tear for the number of years estimated by the manufacturer for heavy
office use, and shall lift, move, disassemble and reassemble any and all furniture or units in the
Premises (with the exception of computers and other electronic equipment as Tenant may
designate) in connection with such maintenance, repair and replacement. (Landlord and Tenant
shall each bear fifty percent (50%) of the cost of such lifting, moving, disassembling and
reassembling furniture in connection with Landlord’s maintenance, repair, and replacement
obligation.}) Landlord’s obligations under this Section 14.1({b) include replacing the carpets or
other floor coverings no less than every ten (10) years since the carpets or other floor covering
were last installed or replaced (the “Minimum Carpet/Floor Covering Replacement
Interval”), such that the carpets or floor coverings are not a hazard and not unduly worn. Such
replacement carpet or floor covering shall be Tenant’s choice from:

(1) Tenant’s standard facility carpet and floor covering options; or

(ii) if no such Tenant standard options exist, then from Landlord’s standard options
for the Building that are of equal or better quality than the carpet or floor covering being
replaced; or

(iii)  if no such standard options exist, then other replacement carpet or floor covering
acceptable to Tenant, of equal or better quality than the carpet or floor covering being
replaced.

(c) Painting Walls in Premises. Landlord shall provide touch-up painting of the interior
walls in the Premises no less than every five (5) years, and full repainting every ten (10) years,
since the interior walls were last painted (the “Minimum Repainting Interval”). Such paint
shall be Tenant’s choice from:

(i) Tenant’s standard facility paint options; or

(i) if no such Tenant standard options exist, then from Landlord’s standard options
for the Building that are of equal or better quality than the paint being replaced; or

(iii)  if no such standard options exist, then other paint acceptable to Tenant, of equal or
better quality than the paint being replaced.

(d) HVAC System.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 10 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

262



(i} Landlord shall ensure that the HVAC System provides comfortable conditions

with respect to cooling, heating and fresh air in the Premises and the Building, as follows:

Normal Business Hours (Monday through Friday, excluding federal or State of
Oregon holidays, 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., PST): temperature ranges in the
Premises shall be between 68°F and 74°F, except on days of extreme outside
temperature swings.

Outside of Normal Business Hours: temperature ranges in the Premises shall be
between 55°F and 85°F.

Server Room: the server room(s) on the Premises (any such server rooms
together the “Server Room”) contains temperature-sensitive electronic
equipment. Notwithstanding Landlord’s other obligations regarding the HVAC
System as set forth in this Section 14.1(d)(i), the temperature in the Server Room
shall at all times (whether during or outside of normal business hours) be
maintained at a temperature between 60°F and 75°F.

(ii)  Landlord shall maintain a regularly scheduled maintenance and service contract
for the HVAC System with an HVAC maintenance company that regularly provides such
contracts to similar properties, and shail otherwise maintain and repair the HVAC System
as frequently as necessary or appropriate to keep the HVAC System in first-class
operating condition and providing the level of service described above.

(e) Building Defects. The Premises, and any part of the Common Areas through which
Tenant accesses the Premises (the “Access Common Areas™), shall be free at all times during
the Term of this Lease from inadequate ventilation, poor indoor air quality, chemical
contaminants (from indoor or outdoor sources) that can potentially harm the health of humans,
and biological contaminants (such as mold, mildew and bacteria) (any such defect a “Building
Defect”). If any part of the Premises or the Access Common Areas is determined in a written
report by a qualified independent third-party environmental consultant hired by Tenant
(“Tenant’s Consultant™} to have a Building Defect (an “Alleged Building Defect”), then:

(i) Tenant s Notice. Tenant shall give notice of the Alleged Building Defect to
Landlord (“Tenant’s Building Defect Notice™), along with a complete copy of the report
by Tenant’s Consultant.

(i)  Landlord’s Response. After delivery of Tenant’s Building Defect Notice,
Landlord shall hire its own qualified independent third-party environmental consultant
(“Landlord’s Consultant”) to evaluate the Alleged Building Defect and the report by
Tenant’s Consultant, to determine whether Landlord agrees or disputes that the Alleged
Building Defect is a Building Defect. Within thirty (30) days after delivery of Tenant’s
Building Defect Notice, Landlord shall give notice to Tenant specifying whether
Landlord agrees or disputes that the Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect
(“Landlord’s Building Defect Response™), along with a complete copy of the written

State of Oregon Lease — Page 11 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

263



report prepared by Landlord’s Consultant. The date Landlord delivers Landlord’s
Building Defect Response to Tenant is “Landlord’s Building Defect Response Date.”

(iiiy  Agreement regarding Alleged Building Defect. 1f Landlord’s Building Defect
Response agrees that the Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect, Landlord shall
remediate the Building Defect pursuant to Section 14.1(e){viii) below, and abate Tenant’s
Monthly Rent and pay its costs and expenses pursuant to Section 14.1(e)(x) below.

(iv)  Dispute regarding Alleged Building Defect. 1f Landlord’s Building Defect
Response disputes that the Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect, the Parties shall
attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute within fifteen (15) business days after
Landlord’s Building Defect Response Date. If the Parties do not timely resolve the
dispute, then Tenant’s Consultant and Landlord’s Consultant (together the “Parties’
Consultants™) shall together select a qualified independent third-party environmental
consultant (the “Joint Consultant”) to determine whether the Alleged Building Defect is
a Building Defect.

(v) Environmental Consultant.

() The Joint Consultant shall be chosen as follows: within thirty (30) days
after Landlord’s Building Defect Response Date, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant
a list, prepared by Landlord’s Consultant, of three (3} qualified independent
environmental consultants; and Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a list, prepared by
Tenant’s Consultant, of three (3) qualified independent environmental consultants.
Within forty-five (45) days after Landlord’s Building Defect Response Date, each
Party may strike one candidate from such list delivered by the other Party.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Landlord fails to timely deliver its list of
qualified independent environmental consultants, then Tenant’s Consultant’s
choice of an environmental consultant from Tenant’s list shall be deemed the Joint
Consultant; and if Tenant fails to timely deliver its list of qualified environmental
consultants, then Landlord’s Consultant’s choice of an independent qualified
environmental consultant from Landlord’s list shall be deemed the Joint
Consultant.

(2) The Parties’ Consultants shall meet within sixty (60) days after Landlord’s
Building Defect Response Date and choose the Joint Consultant from the
remaining names of qualified independent environmental consultants on such
lists; provided that if the Parties’ Consultants do not agree on the choice of the
Joint Consultant, then at the meeting of the Parties’ Consultants, the remaining
names of qualified independent environmental consultant shall be placed in an
opaque vessel by Landlord’s Consultant, and Tenant’s Consultant shall select one
name, at random, by blind drawing from the vessel, to be the Joint Consultant.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if either Landlord’s Consultant or Tenant’s
Consultant refuses or fails to meet to select the Joint Consultant, then the choice
made by the other Party’s Consultant from the remaining names shall be the Joint
Consultant.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 12 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

264



(vi)  Determination by Environmental Consultant. The Joint Consultant shall
determine whether the Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect. by reviewing the
reports prepared by the Parties’ Consultants; interviewing the Parties’ Consultants’ and
conducting its own tests, samples and reviews. The Parties shall reasonably cooperate
with the Joint Consultant, including by allowing reasonable access to the Premises, the
Building and the Property, as applicable. The Joint Consultant shall deliver its
determination to the Parties in a written report. The Joint Consultant’s determination of
whether the Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect shall be binding on the Parties.

(vii)  Environmental Consultant's Costs and Expenses. All of the costs and expenses of
the Joint Consultant shall be paid by Landlord, if the Joint Consultant determines that the
Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect; and all of the costs and expenses of the
Joint Consultant shall be paid by Tenant if the Joint Consultant determines that a Building
Defect does not exist.

(viil} Remediation. If Landlord agrees, or the Joint Consultant determines, that the
Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect pursuant to Section 14.1(e)(iii} or (vi)
above, respectively, then Landlord shall immediately, at Landlord’s sole cost and
expense, commence and diligently pursue to completion any and all actions necessary to
completely remedy the Building Defect, including, without limitation, complying with
any and all regulations and requirements of OSHA (Occupational Safety and Health
Administration).

{ix) Termination.

(1) If the Building Defect interferes with Tenant’s use of the Premises by
affecting at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the Premises, either Party may
terminate this Lease with at least thirty (30) days’ notice to the other Party.

(2) If either Party determines in good faith that the Building Defect cannot be
remedied within sixty (60) days after Landlord’s Building Defect Response Date

or the date of the Joint Consultant’s determination of its existence, as applicable,

either Party shall promptly notify the other Party, and either Party may terminate

this Lease with at least thirty (30) day’s prior notice to the other Party.

(x)  Abatement of Monthly Rent; Tenants Costs and Expenses. If Landlord agrees, or
the Joint Consultant determines, that the Alleged Building Defect is a Building Defect
pursuant to Section 14.1(e)(iii} or (vi) above, respectively, then:

(1) Monthly Rent shall be abated, in proportion to the area of the Premises
and the Access Common Areas not usable by Tenant due to such Building Defect,
until it is remedied pursuant to Section 14.1(e)(viii) above;

(2) Landlord shall immediately reimburse Tenant for any and all of Tenant’s
costs and expenses for Tenant’s Consultant; and

State of Oregon Lease — Page 13 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

265



3) Landlord shall pay any and all costs arising from the disruption of
Tenant’s use of the Premises or Access Common Areas due to the Building
Defect, including moving and storage costs for Tenant to relocate to a different
location while the Building Defect is being remedied or if this Lease is terminated
pursuant to Section 14.1(e)(ix) above,

(f) Operating Expenses. Intentionally Omitted

(g) Landlord’s Entry. In order to perform necessary or appropriate maintenance, repair or
replacement pursuant to this Section 14.1, Landlord, its agents and employees may enter the
Premises with at least two (2) business days’ prior notice or, in the event of an emergency, at any
time with no prior notice. Landlord shall use its reasonable best efforts to coordinate the
scheduling of any non-emergency maintenance, repair or replacement with Tenant in order to
minimize interference with Tenant’s use of the Premises.

14.2  Tenant’s Responsibilities. Except for any maintenance, repair or replacement that
Landlord is obligated to perform pursuant to Section 14.1 above, Tenant shall, at its sole cost and
expense, perform all maintenance, repair and replacement necessary to keep the interior of the
Premises in a presentable and safe condition. Tenant shall perform all such maintenance, repair
and replacement work promptly; ensure that such work is performed in a first-class and
workmanlike manner and in accordance with all applicable Laws and Ordinances; minimize the
work’s interference with any other tenants’ use and enjoyment of the Building; and obtain all
required permits and inspections for such work. Upon Landlord’s request, Tenant shall provide
Landlord with reasonable supporting documentation relating to such maintenance, repair or
replacement work.

SECTION 15: IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS

15.1 Improvements and Alterations to Premises.

(a) Nonstructural. From and after the Commencement Date, Tenant may, at its sole cost and
expense:

(i) without Landlord’s consent (but after notice thereof is given to Landlord), make
nonstructural improvements and alterations to the Premises; and

(ii)  without notice to Landlord or Landlord’s consent, place partitions, personal
property, trade fixtures and the like in and on the Premises. Tenant shall retain ownership
of all such partitions, personal property, trade fixtures and the like.

(b)  Structural. Tenant shall not make any improvements or alterations to the Premises that
modify or affect the Building structure or the proper operation of a mechanical system, without
Landlord’s prior consent, which Landlord may withhold in its sole discretion. Tenant shall make
any such permitted improvements or alterations at its sole cost and expense and using a
contractor of its own choosing, and in a manner so as to minimize interference with any other

State of Oregon Lease — Page 14 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

266



tenants’ use and enjoyment of the Building. Any such improvements or alterations shall become
part of the Premises, and shall be surrendered with the Premises upon the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease.

15.2  Structural Improvements and Alterations to Building. Landlord shall not make any
structural improvements or alterations to the Building that interfere with Tenant’s use or

enjoyment of the Premises.

15.3  Performance of Work. Any improvements or alterations that a Party makes to the
Premises or the Building shall be made in a first-class and workmanlike manner and in
accordance with all applicable Laws and Ordinances and with all required permits and
inspections for such work. Upon one Party’s request, the other Party shall provide it with
reasonable documentation relating to such work.

SECTION 16: RULES AND REGULATIONS

Tenant shall materially comply with any rules and regulations for the Building, provided that: (1)
such rules and regulations have been properly adopted or promulgated by Landlord; (2) Landlord
has provided Tenant and all other tenants and occupants of the Building with a written copy of
such rules and regulations, at least thirty (30) days in advance of their effectiveness and in
accordance with the notice provisions of this Lease and of any other leases or agreements
governing any other tenants or occupants of the Building; (3) the rules and regulations are
reasonable and do not conflict with any of the express provisions of this Lease; and (4) the rules
and regulations are consistently applied to all tenants and occupants of the Building.

SECTION 17: SIGNAGE

17.1 Landlord’s Signage Obligations and Rights.

(a) Directories and Suite Signage. At any time and from time to time during the Term of this
Lease, Landlord shall, at its sole cost and expense, add Tenant’s name to any and all new
Building and Property directories, monument signs and other directories, and install Building-
standard suite signage on the Premises.

(b)  Lease and Sale Signage. Landlord may post the following signage on the Premises, at its
sole cost and expense:

(i) at any time and from time to time during the Term of this Lease, signs advertising
that the Building is for sale; and

(ii)  during the last one hundred twenty (120) days of the Term of this Lease, if Tenant
has not exercised an Extension Option pursuant to Section 7.1 above, signs advertising
that the Premises are for lease.

17.2  Tenant’s Signage Obligations and Rights. All of Tenant’s signage on the Premises as of
the Lease Effective Date is deemed to be consistent with Landlord’s signage rules or policies, if

State of Oregon Lease — Page 15 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

267



any. Notwithstanding any signage that Landlord is required to install on the Premises pursuant to
Section 17.1 above, Tenant may, at its sole cost and expense, install signage on the Premises
consistent with all applicable Law and Ordinances and Landlord’s signage rules or policies, if
any. Subject to the foregoing, for up to one hundred eighty (180) days after the expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant may post a sign on the exterior of the Premises in order
to notify interested persons of Tenant’s new location.

SECTION 18: INSURANCE

18.1 Landlord’s Insurance Coverage. Landlord is self-insured for its property and liability
exposures, pursuant and subject to the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act
(“Landlord’s Insurance Coverage”). Landlord shall provide a current “Certificate of
Insurance” for Landlord’s Insurance Coverage upon request.

18.2 Tenant’s Insurance. Tenant is self-insured for its property and liability exposures,
pursuant and subject to the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act (“Tenant’s
Insurance Coverage”). A current Certificate of [nsurance for Tenant’s Insurance Coverage is
available at http://www.oregon.gov/das/Risk/Pages/CertCovRequest.aspx.

SECTION 19: CONTRIBUTION

19.1  Other Party Notification. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or
proceeding relating to this Lease, the Premises, the Building or the Property and alleging a tort as
now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (a “Third-Party Claim™} against a Party (the “Notified
Party”) with respect to which the other Party (the “Other Party”) may have liability, the
Notified Party shall promptly notify the Other Party of the Third-Party Claim and deliver to the
Other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third-Party
Claim. Either Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third-Party Claim, and to defend
a Third-Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by the Other Party of the notice
and copies required in this Section 19.1 and meaningful opportunity for the Other Party to
participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third-Party Claim with counsel of
its own choosing are conditions precedent to the Other Party’s liability with respect to the Third-
Party Claim.

19.2  Tenant Jointly Liable with Landlord. With respect to a Third-Party Claim for which
Tenant is jointly liable with Landlord (or would be if joined in the Third-Party Claim), Tenant
shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Landlord in
such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Tenant on the one hand and of
Landlord on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses,
judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.
The relative fault of Tenant on the one hand and of Landlord on the other hand shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses,
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Tenant’s contribution amount in any instance is capped
to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if Tenant had sole liability in the

State of Oregon Lease — Page 16 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

268



proceeding.

19.3  Landlord Jointly Liable with Tenant. With respect to a Third-Party Claim for which
Landlord is jointly liable with Tenant (or would be if joined in the Third-Party Claim), Landlord
shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Tenant in
such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Landlord on the one hand and of
Tenant on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses,
judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.
The relative fault of Landlord on the one hand and of Tenant on the other hand shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses,
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Landlord’s contribution amount in any instance is
capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in
the proceeding.

SECTION 19A: CONTRACTOR INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

19A.1 Generally. If a Party (the “Contracting Party”) enters into a contract relating to this
Lease, the Premises, the Building or the Property (a “Contract”), with a party that is not a unit
of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 (the “Contractor”), the Contracting Party and
the Contract shall adhere to the provisions of this Section 19A.

19A.2 Indemnification by Contractors. The Contracting Party shall take all reasonable steps to
cause the Contractor to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the other Party, and its
officers, employees and agents (each, an “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims,
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including attorneys’ fees) arising from a tort (as
now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by
the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Contractor, or the Contractor’s officers, agents,
employees or subcontractors (“Claims”). The Parties specifically intend that an Indemnitee
shall, in all instances (except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or
omissions of the Indemnitee), be indemnified by the Contractor from and against any and all
Claims.

19A.3 Contractor’s Insurance Requirements.

(a) The Contract shall require the Contractor to comply with the requirements of the
“Contractor’s Insurance Requirements (Landlord’s Contractors)” attached as Exhibit I-1, or
“Contractor’s Insurance Requirements (Tenant’s Contractors)” attached as Exhibit I-2, as
applicable, before the Contractor performs any work under the Contract. The Contracting Party
shall not authorize the Contractor to begin work under a Contract until the Contractor’s
Insurance Requirements are met. Thereafter, the Contracting Party shall monitor the
Contractor’s continued compliance with the Contractor’s Insurance Requirements on an annual
or more frequent basis.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 17 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

269



(b) The Contract shall contain appropriate provisions that permit the Contracting Party to
enforce the Contractor’s compliance with the Contractor’s Insurance Requirements, and the
Contracting Party shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. Examples of such
reasonable steps include issuing stop work orders (or the equivalent) until the Contractor’s
Insurance Requirements are met; terminating the Contract as permitted by the Contract; and
pursuing legal action to enforce the Contractor’s compliance with the Contractor’s Insurance
Requirements. In no event shall the Contracting Party permit its Contractor to perform work
under a Contract when the Contracting Party is aware that the Contractor is not in compliance
with the Contractor’s Insurance Requirements.

SECTION 20: CASUALTY DAMAGE AND EMINENT DOMAIN

20.1 Casualty Damage.
(a) Definitions.

(i) “Casualty” means floods, hurricanes, tornados, storms, fires, explosions,
lightning, earthquakes or other perils.

(iiy  “Major Damage” means damage by Casualty to the Premises or the Building
that:

(1)  causes any substantial portion of the Premises or the Building to be
unusable; and

(2) will likely cost at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the pre-damage value
of the Premises, or will likely take at least one hundred eighty (180) days,
beginning on the date of the Casualty, for complete restoration of the Premises or
the Building.

(iii)  “Minor Damage” means damage by Casualty to the Premises or the Building
that:

)] causes any substantial portion of the Premises or the Building to be
unusable; and

2) is not Major Damage.

(b) Termination, Restoration and Abatement. In the event of Major Damage, either Party
may terminate this Lease by notice to the other Party with at least thirty (30) days’ notice, given
within thirty (30) days after the date of the Casualty, and Monthly Rent shall be abated, in
proportion to the area of the Premises, Common Areas and any parking spaces or areas related to
the Parking Rights not usable by Tenant, from the date of the Casualty until the date of
termination. If this Lease is not so terminated as a result of Major Damage, or in the event of
Minor Damage, Landlord shall promptly and diligently restore the Premises or the Building to
the condition existing just prior to the Casualty, regardless of whether Landlord has received any

State of Oregon Lease — Page 18 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

270



insurance proceeds for the Casualty; and Monthly Rent shall be abated, in proportion to the area
of the Premises, Common Areas and any parking spaces or areas related to the Parking Rights
not usable by Tenant, from the date of the Casualty until the date Landlord’s restoration work is
substantially complete. Notwithstanding the foregoing: (i) if the Major Damage or Minor
Damage occurs any time in the last two (2) years of the Term, then either Party may terminate
this Lease, effective as of the date of the Casualty; and (ii) if, in the event of Minor Damage,
actual restoration such that Tenant can fully resume its use of the Premises or the Building takes
longer than three hundred sixty five (365) days, beginning on the date of the Casualty, then
Tenant may terminate this Lease at any time after such 365-day period.

20.2 Eminent Domain. Ifa condemning authority takes title by eminent domain or by
agreement in licu thereof to the Premises or the Building, or any portion thereof, including the
Common Areas and any parking spaces or areas related to the Parking Rights, sufficient to render
the Premises unsuitable for Tenant’s use, then either Party may terminate this Lease effective on
the date that possession is taken by the condemning authority. If this Lease is not so terminated,
then Monthly Rent shall be abated, in an amount proportionate to the reduction caused by the
condemnation in area of the Premises, Common Areas and any parking spaces or areas related to
the Parking Rights, for the remainder of the Term. All condemnation proceeds shall belong to
Landlord; provided, however, that Tenant may make a separate claim for its lost trade fixtures,
moving expenses and damages for interruption of business.

20.3  Abatement Disputes. 1f one Party gives notice to the other Party of a dispute regarding
the abatement of Monthly Rent pursuant to Section 20.1 or 20.2 above, the Parties shall attempt
in good faith to resolve such dispute within fifteen (15) business days after such notice. If the
Parties do not timely resolve the dispute, it shall be resolved in the same manner as a Buildout
Dispute pursuant to Section 21 below.

SECTION 21: RESOLUTION OF BUILDOUT DISPUTES

21.1 Dispute Statements: Architect. Any Buildout Dispute under this Lease shall be resolved
as follows: within ten (10) business days after the Partics have failed to timely resolve the
Buildout Dispute through their good faith attempts as required herein, either Party shall deliver
to the other Party and the Architect a notice of the Buildout Dispute. Within fifteen (15) business
days after notice of the Buildout Dispute, each Party shall submit to the Architect a detailed
statement setting forth its position on the Buildout Dispute (a “Dispute Statement”). If one
Party fails to timely submit a Dispute Statement to the Architect, then the other Party’s Dispute
Statement shall govern the Buildout Dispute. For the purposes of a Buildout Dispute arising
under Section 20 above, the Architect shall be the architect responsible for any restoration work
arising from a Casualty.

21.2  Decision by Architect. Within thirty (30) days after delivery of the Parties” Dispute
Statements, the Architect shall select one of the Parties’ Dispute Statements to govern the
dispute, and the Architect’s decision shall be binding on the Parties. The Architect shall resolve
the Buildout Dispute using its reasonable professional judgment and by reference to the Parties’
Dispute Statements and the provisions of this Lease. The Party whose Dispute Statement is not
selected by the Architect to govern the Buildout Dispute shall pay the Architect’s costs and fees.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 19 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

271



21.3 Buildout Dispute Resolution Amendment.

(a)  Amendment. Within sixty (60) days after the Architect’s decision regarding the resolution
of the Buildout Dispute pursuant to Section 21.2 above, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a
“Buildout Dispute Resolution Amendment” that sets forth:

(i) the Architect’s decision; and
(ii)  any related matters as may be necessary and proper.

(b) Delivery and Execution. Within fifteen (15) business days after delivery of the Buildout
Dispute Resolution Amendment, Landlord shall either execute it to indicate its acceptance, or
give notice to Tenant that Landlord disputes it. Landlord’s failure to timely execute or dispute
the Buildout Dispute Resolution Amendment shall be deemed acceptance thereof. If Landlord
gives notice to Tenant that it disputes the Buildout Dispute Resolution Amendment, the Parties
shall attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute within ten (10) business days after such

notice. The Parties may resolve any remaining dispute in a court, subject to Section 36.9 below.

(c) Effectiveness. The Architect’s decision regarding the resolution of the Buildout Dispute
is effective as of the date of the Architect’s selection of one of the Parties’ Dispute Statement to
govern the dispute pursuant to Section 21.2 above, regardless of when or whether the Parties
execute the Buildout Dispute Resolution Amendment.

SECTION 22: ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

22.1 By Tenant.

(a) To Another State of Oregon Agency. Pursuant to ORS 276.428 and QAR 125-120-
0080(2), Tenant may, at any time and from time to time during the Term of this Lease and in the
sole discretion of either Tenant or the Oregon Department of Administrative Services (DAS),
determine that it does not need all or any portion of the Premises for its use, and, without
Landlord’s consent, assign this Lease or sublet all or any part of the Premises to, or share the use
or occupancy of all or any part of the Premises with, another agency or division of the State of
Oregon.

(b) To Other Parties. Subject to Section 22.1(a) above, Tenant shall not voluntarily or by
operation of law assign this Lease or sublet any portion of the Premises without Landlord’s prior
consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Any assignment or
sublet in contravention of this Section 22.1(b) shall be deemed null and void. Tenant’s
Termination Option (as defined in Section 25.1 below) shall not survive any assignment of this
Lease in accordance with this Section 22.1(b), except for an assignment to a public corporation
performing State of Oregon governmental functions.

22.2 By Landlord.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 20 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

272



(a) Notice. If a party becomes Landlord’s successor-in-interest under this Lease (a
“Successor Landlord”), Landlord shall promptly provide advance notice to Tenant of such
Successor Landlord (a “Notice of Successor Landlord”). The Notice of Successor Landlord
shall contain the Successor Landlord’s name, address and other contact information and a copy
of the document vesting ownership of the Property in the Successor Landlord. The Notice of
Successor Landlord shall be executed by both Landlord and Successor Landlord in any voluntary
situation. If a lender or other third party acting through such lender becomes successor-in-
interest to Landlord, such notice shall be promptly made by such third party.

(b}  Ongoing Liability. The existence of a Successor Landlord shall not release or discharge
Landtord from the performance of any or all of its obligations under this Lease.

SECTION 23: SUBORDINATION, NONDISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT;
ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE

23.1  Subordination. Nondisturbance and Attornment.

(a) Subordination. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 23.1(c) below, and unless
otherwise requested by Landlord, this Lease shall be subordinate to the lien of any mortgage or
deed of trust or the lien resulting from any other method of financing or refinancing now or
hereafter in force against the Building or the Property, and to any and all advances made upon
such mortgages or deeds of trust.

(b)  Attornment. Subject to the conditions set forth in Section 23.1(c) below, Tenant shall
attorn and be bound to any Successor Landlord.

() Conditions. Tenant’s subordination and attornment obligations set forth in Sections
23.1(a) and (b) above are conditioned on the following:

(i) this Lease shall continue in full force and effect;

(ii) any Successor Landlord shall assume and perform all of Landlord’s
responsibilities and obligations under this Lease, and, provided that there is not then any
material Tenant Default hereunder, shall not disturb Tenant’s use or enjoyment of the
Premises, Common Areas or any parking spaces or areas related to the Parking Rights;
and

(iii)  Tenant shall not save, hold harmless or indemnify a lender or any other third party
from or for any matter arising from this Lease; grant to any Successor Landlord any
rights beyond what Landlord has under this Lease; or agree to hold any Successor
Landlord harmless for any acts or omission of Landlord.

(d) Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement. Tenant shall, within fifteen
(15) business days after delivery by Landlord of a reasonable subordination, nondisturbance and
attornment agreement that comports with the provisions of this Section 23.1, execute and deliver
such agreement to Landlord.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 21 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

273



23.2  Estoppel Certificate. Tenant shall, within fifteen (15) business days after delivery by
Landlord of a reasonable form of estoppel certificate that certifies, to the extent of Tenant’s
actual knowledge, without inquiry, any factual matters that may reasonably be requested by
Landlord or by any prospective lender or purchaser, execute and deliver to Landlord such
estoppel certificate.

SECTION 24: LIENS

Tenant shall pay when due all claims for work performed on the Premises by or through Tenant
or for services rendered or materials furnished to the Premises for Tenant, and shall keep the
Premises free from any liens arising by or through Tenant. If any such lien shall at any time be
filed against the Premises, or any portion thereof, Tenant shall cause the same to be discharged of
record or bonded off, as permitted by statute, within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s receipt of
written notice of same.

SECTION 25: TENANT’S TERMINATION OPTION

25.1 Termination Option. Tenant has the option to terminate this Lease (the “Termination
Option™) for any reason, in Tenant’s sole discretion, on the terms and conditions set forth in this
Section 25.

252  Exercise of Termination Option.

(a) To exercise the Termination Option, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a notice of such
election (the “Termination Option Notice”) that specifies the date of termination (the
“Termination Date”). The Termination Date shall be at least one hundred eighty (180) days
after the delivery of the Termination Option Notice.

(b) If Tenant properly exercises the Termination Option as provided in Section 25.2(a)
above, all obligations under this Lease shall continue through the Termination Date, at which
time all unaccrued rights and obligations of the Parties under this Lease shall cease and
terminate, except to the extent such obligations specificaily survive termination of this Lease. If
Tenant does not properly exercise the Termination Option as provided in Section 25.2(a) above,
this Lease shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.

25.3 Termination Fee.

(a) Calculation. 1f Tenant exercises the Termination Option pursuant to Section 25.2 above,
then on or before the Termination Date, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a termination fee (the
“Termination Fee”) in the sum of the following applicable amounts:

(1) Initial Term: Improvement Allowance: Intentionally Omitted

(i1) Expansion Space: Expansion Improvement Allowance: Intentionally Omitted

State of Oregon Lease — Page 22 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

274



(ii))  Extension Term: Improvement Allowance: if the Termination Date is during any
Extension Term:

the portion of any improvement allowance specifically for any Extension Term,
that the length of Tenant’s lease of the Premises, from the Termination Date
through the expiration date of the Extension Term, bears to the length of the
Extension Term.

(b) Survival of Obligation to Pay. Once Tenant has delivered the Termination Notice, its
obligation to pay the Termination Fee shall survive any termination of this Lease earlier than the
Termination Date,

SECTION 26: CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS INFORMATION

Landlord understands and acknowledges that Tenant’s use of the Premises may include the
creation, management and retention of business information of a personal or confidential nature
(“Confidential Information™), and that the unauthorized acquisition or disclosure of
Confidential Information may be grounds for civil and criminal liability. Landlord shall
reasonably cooperate with Tenant in protecting the confidentiality of all information that Tenant
notifies Landlord is Confidential Information, and shall ensure that its agents and employees do
not, through any acts or omissions, jeopardize the confidentiality of such Confidential
Information or disclose it to any unauthorized parties.

SECTION 27: SURRENDER, SHORT-TERM EXTENSION AND HOLDOVER

27.1  Surrender. Tenant shall, upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease,
surrender the Premises to Landlord broom clean, in first-class condition and repair, except for
ordinary wear and tear and damage from any Casualty, Building Defect or Force Majeure Event.

27.2  Short-Term Extension. With thirty (30) days’ prior notice to Landlord and without
Landlord’s consent, Tenant may extend the Term for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days, with
Monthly Base Rent to be the same amount as the immediately preceding month. Such short-term
extension shall not be construed as an exercise of any Extension Option.

27.3  Holdover. If Tenant fails to vacate the Premises after the expiration or earlier termination
of the Term, and Landlord does not, within ten (10) business days after such expiration or
termination, deliver to Tenant a notice of eviction, such holding over by Tenant shall create a
tenancy from month to month, with Monthly Base Rent to be one hundred ten percent (110%) of
the Monthly Base Rent for the immediately preceding month. Such holdover shall not be
construed as an exercise of any Extension Option.

SECTION 28: QUIET ENJOYMENT
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease, Tenant shall peaceably and quietly have, hold

and enjoy the Premises during the Term, without any interruption or disturbance from Landlord
or any party claiming by, through or under Landlord.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 23 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

275



SECTION 29: INTEREST RATE

Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Lease, any payment due hereunder by one Party
to the other Party shall accrue interest at the maximum rate permitted under ORS 293.462, as it
may be amended or replaced from time to time, from the date the payment is past due until the
past-due payment and all interest thereon are paid in full.

SECTION 30: LANDLORD’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND
COVENANTS

30.1  Authority. Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant that Landlord is an Oregon public
body, duly organized and validly existing; that Landlord has the power and authority to enter into
and perform this Lease; and that the person signing this Lease on behalf of Landlord is
authorized by Landlord to bind Landlord to this Lease. Landlord covenants that, upon Tenant’s
request, Landlord shall provide Tenant with evidence reasonably satisfactory to Tenant
confirming the foregoing.

30.2 Ownership and Condition of Premises. Landlord represents, warrants and covenants, as
applicable, that:

(a) Landlord is the fee simple owner of the Property;

(b) Landlord shall deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant free and clear of other tenants
and of any claims that conflict with Tenant’s rights under this Lease;

(c) the Premises are safe and inhabitable;

(d) as of the Commencement Date, there are no Hazardous Materials on the Premises, the
Building or the Property, except for amounts normal and appropriate for the standard use and
operation of a commercial property, stored, used and disposed of in strict compliance with all
applicable Laws and Ordinances; and any Hazardous Materials removed by Landlord from the
Premises, the Building or the Property prior to the Commencement Date were removed in strict
compliance with all applicable Laws and Ordinances. “Hazardous Materials” includes, without
limitation, any and all substances, pollutants, contaminants, materials or products defined or
designated as hazardous, toxic, radioactive, dangerous or regulated wastes or materials, or any
other similar term in or under any applicable Law or Ordinance. Hazardous Materials also
includes, without limitation, fuels, petroleum and petroleum-derived products;

(e) as of the Commencement Date, there is no asbestos or asbestos-containing material on
the Premises, the Building or the Property; and any asbestos or asbestos-containing material
removed by Landlord from the Premises, the Building or the Property prior to the
Commencement Date was removed in accordance with all applicable Laws and Ordinances;

(f) the Premises are in compliance with any and all applicable Laws and Ordinances,
including the acknowledged comprehensive plans and land use regulations of the city or county

State of Oregon Lease — Page 24 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

276



in which the Premises are {ocated; and

(g) the Premises, the Building and the Property are or shall be as of the Commencement Date
in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

30.3 Parking Rights. Landlord represents, warrants and covenants that the Parking Rights it
has granted hereunder do not and shall not, in combination with any other rights to the parking
spaces or areas related to the Parking Rights that Landlord has granted to any other persons, at
any time exceed the total potential usage of the parking spaces or areas related to the Parking
Rights.

304 Tax Laws. Intentionally Omitted.

SECTION 31: TENANT’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND
COVENANTS

31.1  Authority. Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that Tenant is a State of Oregon
agency, duly organized and validly existing; that Tenant has the power and authority to enter into
and perform under this Lease; and that the person signing this Lease on behalf of Tenant is
authorized by Tenant to bind Tenant to this Lease. Tenant covenants that, upon Landlord’s
request, Tenant shall provide Landlord with evidence reasonably satisfactory to Landlord
confirming the foregoing.

31.2 Condition of Premises. Tenant covenants that:

(a) Tenant shall not use, place or allow any Hazardous Materials on the Premises, except for
amounts normal and appropriate for Tenant’s use of the Premises, stored, used and disposed of in
strict compliance with all applicable Laws and Ordinances;

(b)  Tenant shall use the Premises in compliance with any and all applicable Laws and
Ordinances; and

(c) Tenant shall keep the interior of the Premises in compliance with all applicable
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

SECTION 32: SUSTAINABILITY PRACTICES
In all of their activities in, on or related to the Premises, the Building or the Property, the Parties
shall: (1) use their reasonable best efforts to maximize energy efficiency and use environmentally

sustainable products and materials; and (2) use their reasonable best efforts to reduce
nonessential water consumption.

SECTION 33: TENANT DEFAULT
33.1 Default. The following shall be events of default by Tenant (“Tenant Default”):

(a) Nonpayment of Base or Additional Rent. Tenant’s failure to pay Landlord any Monthly

State of Oregon Lease — Page 25 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

277



Base Rent or Additional Rent within fifteen (15) business days after notice from Landlord
specifying the nonpayment.

(b) Other Nonperformance. Other than a nonpayment described in Section 33.1(a) above,
Tenant’s failure to comply with or fulfill any term, condition or obligation of this Lease within
thirty (30) days after notice from Landlord specifying the nature of the failure with reasonable
particularity; or, if Tenant cannot reasonably cure such failure within such thirty (30) -day period,
then within such time as Tenant can cure the failure with reasonable good faith and diligence;
provided, however, that such cure period shall not exceed one hundred eighty (180) days.

33.2 Remedies. Upon any Tenant Default, Landlord may exercise any one or more of the
following remedies:

(a) Cure. At Tenant’s cost and expense, L.andlord may perform Tenant’s unperformed
obligations that gave rise to the Tenant Default, and charge all such costs and expenses to Tenant
pursuant to this Lease, which Tenant shall pay within thirty (30) days after Landlord delivers an
invoice therefor, together with reasonable supporting documentation of such costs and expenses.

b Termination. Landlord may terminate this Lease, re-enter and take possession of the
Premises and remove any persons or property by legal action or by self-help with the use of
reasonable force and without liability for damages to Tenant, its property, any other persons or
their property.

(c) Reletting. Landlord may relet the Premises, and in connection therewith may make any
suitable alterations or refurbish the Premises, or both, or change the character or use of the
Premises. Landlord shall not be required to relet the Premises for any use or purpose that
Landlord may reasonably consider injurious to the Premises, or to any tenant that Landlord may
reasonably consider objectionable. Landlord may relet all or part of the Premises, alone or in
conjunction with other properties, for a term longer or shorter than the Term of this Lease, and
upon any reasonable terms and conditions, including the granting of rent-free occupancy or other
rent concessions.

(d)  Right to Sue. Landlord may sue periodically to recover damages as they accrue without
barring a later action for further damages.

(e) Damages. Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenant any and all damages arising
from a Tenant Default, including the following:

() all costs and expenses of curing the Tenant Default;

(ii)  the reasonable costs of reentry and reletting, including, without limitation, the
costs of any clean up, refurbishing, removal of Tenant’s property and fixtures and any
other expense arising from Tenant’s failure to surrender the Premises in the condition
required by Section 27.1 above; remodeling costs; and broker fees and commissions and
advertising costs; and

State of Oregon Lease — Page 26 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

278



(iii}  the loss of Monthly Base Rent and Additional Rent for the Premises from the date
of the Tenant Default until a new tenant for the Premises has been, or with the exercise of
reasonable efforts could have been, secured.

(f) Other. The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to and shall not exclude any other
remedy available to Landlord in law or equity.

SECTION 34: LANDLORD DEFAULT
34.1 Default. The following shall be events of default by Landlord (“Landlord Default™):

(a) Nonpayment of Money Due. Landlord’s failure to pay Tenant any money due under this
Lease within fifteen (15) business days after notice from Tenant specifying the nonpayment.

(b)  Other Nonperformance. Other than a nonpayment described in Section 34.1{(a) above:

(1) Landlord’s failure to comply with or fulfill any term, condition or obligation of
this Lease within thirty (30} days after notice from Tenant specifying the nature of the
failure with reasonable particularity; provided, however, that if Landlord cannot
reasonably cure such failure within such thirty (30) -day period, then within such time as
Landlord can cure the failure with reasonable good faith and diligence, provided that such
cure period shall not exceed one hundred eighty (180) days; or

(ii) if Tenant notifies Landlord of an emergency condition in the Premises or the
Building (such emergency condition being one that presents an immediate risk of
substantial harm to the Premises or any contents therein, or to any of Tenant’s agents,
employees or invitees), Landlord’s failure to immediately commence and diligently
pursue to completion a cure of such emergency condition.

342 Remedies. Upon any Landlord Default, Tenant may exercise any one or more of the
following remedies:

(a) Cure. At Landlord’s cost and expense, Tenant may perform Landlord’s unperformed
obligations that gave rise to the Landlord Default, and charge all such costs and expenses to
Landlord pursuant to this Lease, which Landlord shall pay within thirty (30) days after Tenant
delivers an invoice therefor, together with reasonable supporting documentation of such costs
and expenses.

(b) Offset. Tenant may deduct from any future Monthly Rent due any and all of its costs and
expenses relating to curing the Landlord Default pursuant to Section 34.2(a) above. Such offset
right shall begin immediately upon Tenant’s performance of Landlord’s unperformed obligations
pursuant to Section 34.2(a) above.

(c) Other. Tenant may exercise any other remedy available in law or equity and is entitled to

recover from Landlord any and all damages arising from a Landlord Default, including any and
all costs and expenses of performing Landlord’s unperformed obligations that gave rise to the

State of Oregon Lease — Page 27 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

279



Landlord Default.

SECTION 35: NOTICES

35.1  Addresses; General Notice Requirements.

{(a) Landlord s Address. “Landlord’s Address™ means the address set forth beneath
Landlord’s signature on this Lease. Landlord may notify Tenant of a different address for
payments of any Monthly Base Rent, Additional Rent or other amounts due to Landlord under
this Lease.

(b} Tenants Address. “Tenant’s Address” means the address set forth beneath Tenant’s
signature on this Lease.

(c) General Notice Requirements. Any notices, demands, deliveries or other
communications required under this Lease shall be made in writing and delivered by one of the
methods set forth in Section 35.2 below to Landlord’s Address or Tenant’s Address, as the case
may be, unless one Party modifies its Address by notice to the other Party, given in accordance
with Section 35.2 below.

35.2  Delivery.

Method of delivery When notice deemed delivered

In person the day delivered, as evidenced by signed
(including by messenger service) receipt

Email or Fax the day sent (unless sent after 5:00 p.m., P.T,, in

which case the email or fax shall be deemed
sent the following business day)

US Mail the day received, as evidenced by signed return
(postage prepaid, registered or certified, receipt

return receipt requested)

Courier delivery the day received, as evidenced by signed receipt

{by reputable commercial courier)

If the deadline under this Lease for delivery of a notice is a Saturday, Sunday or federal or State
of Oregon holiday, such deadline shall be deemed extended to the next business day.

35.3 Property Manager. Intentionally Omitted
SECTION 36: MISCELLANEOUS

36.1 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in relation to the Parties” performance of
any and all of their obligations under this Lease.

36.2 Calculation of Days. Any reference in this Lease to “days” shall mean calendar days,
unless specified as “business days.” A business day is any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or a

State of Oregon Lease — Page 28 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

280



federal or State of Oregon holiday.

36.3 Consent. Unless otherwise specifically stated herein, any consent by a Party shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

36.4 Integration. This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties on the
subject matter hereof. The Parties have no understandings, agreements or representations, oral or
written, regarding this Lease that are not specified herein.

36.5 Amendments. This Lease may be amended or modified only by a written instrument
signed by both Parties.

36.6 No Waiver of Performance. No waiver by a Party of performance of any provision of this
Lease by the other Party shall be deemed a waiver of nor prejudice the other Party’s right to
otherwise require performance of the same provision, or any other provision.

36.7 Severability. If any term or provision of this Lease is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any Law or Ordinance, the validity of the remaining
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be
construed and enforced as if this Lease did not contain the particular term or provision held to be
invalid.

36.8 Counterparts. This Lease and any amendments hereto may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which is an original, and all of which together are deemed one and the
same document, notwithstanding that both Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.

36.9 Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction. This Lease is governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of law.
Any Claim between Tenant (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and
Landlord that arises from or relates to this Lease shall be brought and conducted solely and
exclusively within the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon;
provided, however, if a Claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and
conducted solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the District of
Oregon. Each Party, by execution of this Lease, hereby consents to the in personam jurisdiction
of the foregoing courts, waives any objection to venue and waives any claim that such forums
are an inconvenient forum. In no event shall this Section 36.9 or any other provision of this
Lease be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense or immunity,
whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the eleventh
amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, or consent by the State of
Oregon to the jurisdiction of any court. The Parties acknowledge that this Lease is a binding and
enforceable agreement and, to the extent permitted by law, expressly waive any defense alleging
that either party does not have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this Lease.

36.10 No Presumption against Drafter. No inference, presumption or conclusion shall be drawn
against either Party by virtue of that Party having drafted this Lease or any portion thereof.

State of Oregon Lease — Page 29 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

281



36.11 Force Majeure. A Party shall not be liable for any delay in performance under this Lease,
other than payment of any money to the other Party, if such delay is caused by Casualties,
strikes, lockouts, riots, wars, acts of public enemies, insurrections, acts of God, shortages of
labor or materials or any other such causes not within the control of the first Party (any such
event being a “Force Majeure Event”).

36.12 Brokers. Intentionally Omitted

36.13 Exhibits. The Exhibits listed below are incorporated as part of this Lease:

Exhibit A:
Exhibit B:
Exhibit C:
Exhibit D:
Exhibit E:
Exhibit F:
Exhibit G:
Exhibit H:
Exhibit I-1:

Exhibit [-2:

Premises

Building

Property

Intentionally Omitted

Intentionally Omitted

Janitorial Services Agreement
Intentionally Omitted

Intentionally Omitted

Contractor’s Insurance Requirements
(Landlord’s Contractors)
Contractor’s Insurance Requirements
(Tenant’s Contractors)

[remainder of this page intentionally lefi blank]

State of Oregon Lease — Page 30 of 32

DAS Lease Control Number 1485

282



Each person signing this Lease below on behalf of a Party represents and warrants that he or she
is duly authorized by such Party and has legal capacity to do so.

LANDLORD:

Jefferson County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon

Signature , 2024
Name  Jeff Rasmussen Date
Title County Administrative Officer

Landlord’s Address
Address: 66 SE D Street
City, State, ZIP: Madras, OR 97741
ATTN: Jeff Rasmussen, or successor
Phone Number: 541-475-2449
Email Address: jrasmussen(@jeffco.net

State of Oregon Lease — Page 31 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

283



TENANT:

The State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, Driver and Motor
Vehicle Services Division

Signature _ ) o , 2024
Name Date
Title

APPROVED BY OREGON DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Signature , 2024
Name  Brady Ricks Date
Title Manager, Real Estate Services

Tenant’s Address

Address: 885 Airport Rd SE, Building X
City, State, ZIP:  Salem, Oregon 97301
ATTN: John Goeke, or successor

Phone Number:  503-991-7233

Email Address:  john.c.goeke@odot.oregon.gov
Fax Number: 503-986-5780

ce: res.info(@das.oregon.gov

Template: FS/MT/Existing location/NWLoffice&clientsves
#9291142v1

HDRev. 12.11.2023
14835DMVMadras249 SW 3rd StreetHDLeaseLB/LLB_02/13/24

State of Oregon Lease — Page 32 of 32 DAS Lease Control Number 1485

284



LIT 2 TTTU FJOVE TINpTTTT T WTTTT LD Y WL

G827 v Hquuxy 19908 PAE MS 6¥T

= (l / .
oK
L -

%
%

i v v A 7 r

A\

SOSTUISI]

N\ nnm

/////////

VAV AV AY Ay

%

W o (&

(I [ (] 4 [T [

LIt 75 17T | hy NS
sasiudld

v 1quuxy



249 SW 3rd Street
DAS Lease Control No. 1485

Exhibit B
Building

-}
-

Exhibit B
Page 1 of 1

286



ACCT

9549
9550
9551
9552
9553

9557

Exhibit C
Property

287

MAP_ID
1113114000100
1113114000200
1113113000300
1113114000400
1LI3114000500
1113114000600
1113114000700
111311400200
1113114000900
1113114001000
11314001100
1115114001200
1113114001300
1113114001400
111311AD01500
111311AD01600
1113114001700
1113114001800
1115114001500
1113114002000
1113114002100
1113114002200
1113114002300
1115114002400
1131AD02 0
1115114002500
1113114003000
111311003100
113014003101
111H1AD0I00
111511AD03300
IHIADOIN0
1113114003500
1113114003500
1113114003700
1113114003800
1113114003500
1113114004000
1113114004100
1113114004200
1113114004201
1113114004300
1LIH11ADOH00
FEEETS 5

THIS MAS WAS PREPARE G FOR
ASSESSWENT PURPOSE OrLY

S.E.i/4 N.E.1/4 SEC.11 T.115. R13E. WM.
JEFFERSON COUNTY

o Rt 1= Yo

'IPM-‘

2.
? 7 banceL s

o

®
®oarcer 2

Tax Lot #30 J—
< Account #9550 —4

~rnpred

118

- o'|: E
w 00 @ s00

W .

STREET-

o)

-
T are)

A
E cyanan '

TTRRMMOLL

6 VAOE PYOLIC ACCESD & UTILITY fadfe
ADAERWEHT 2019347 -

-SECOND

LS LUADN. OF
TTOT T

o PARCEL 2

FOURTH

1113114004500
1115114004700
1113114004800
1113114004801

1113114004802
1113114004500
111311AD04901

1113114004500
1113114005001

1113114005100
111311A005200
111311AD05300
1113114005400
1113114005500
L11511A005600
11IADOST00
1113114005701

St MAF 11 13 11AC

PAAL At

3
3

-

o

<
%

%,

EMRAT
miaT

H
AS
9
L]
s

CLlAT.

*
BT T - T

Y

LW AL O LTLITE N P e a0 T

H PARCEL 3

]
s

BT

L ismEn

T
arlesandd
.

SW.

it NN e S R 0 A A e

t e s an np ihh—pmmnm o anms

I

SEE MAP 1113 120

|

1113 11AD

CAHCELED
o1

i
1%

§5EER

11 13 11AD

249 SW 3rd Street

DAS Lease Control No. 1485

Exhibit C

Page 1 of |



Exhibit F
Janitorial Services Agreement

These Janitorial Specifications are attached to and part of the State of Oregon Lease (the
“Lease”) of the same Lease Effective Date. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this
Exhibit shall have the same definition as set forth in the Lease.

Landlord shall contract with a janitorial services provider (“Janitor”) to provide or contract
for janitorial services and supplies (“Services”) that comply with the minimum requirements
listed below and keep the Building (as defined in the Lease) in a clean, neat condition.

1. Definition of Terms: During the performance of Services, the following definitions
and minimum requirements apply.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

“Clean” means the surface is visibly free from dust, dirt, fingerprints, grease,
grime, rust, spots, stains, or smudges. The surface must be free from all
foreign substances. In restrooms particularly, “clean™ means all surfaces must
be free of organic material, feces, and urine, or other soil. Bowls must be free
of stains and mineral build-up inside and out,

“Centralized Location” means the location(s) of wastebaskets and
recyclable receptacles, central to as many Building staff as possible.

“Commeon Areas” means restrooms, break rooms, conference rooms,
lobbies, and similar multi-user areas.

“Disinfect” means the method and product used is sufficient to kill bacteria,
viruses and fungi and prevent or slow their return. Products used to disinfect
must provide appropriate disinfection protection approved by the Center for
Disease Control {(CDC) for disinfection of the Influenza A virus and COVID-
19. A list of disinfectants approved for use against COVID-19 can be found
here: https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-
coronavirus-covid-19.

“Dusting” means removing the dust from all vertical and horizontal surfaces.
All furnishings, fixtures, and structural surfaces including ledges must be free
of dust. Documents must not be moved to accomplish dusting.

“Extraction Carpet Cleaning” means a hot water extraction method with
professional truck mounted equipment of at least 40hp and capable of at least
230-degree temperature and 300 PSI at cleaning nozzle, operated by an
Institute of Inspection, Cleaning Restoration Certification (“IICRC")
Commercial Carpet Maintenance Technician (“CMT?") standards performed
by an IICRC certified technician. Does not include use of spin bonnet.

“Interior Window Coverings” means blinds, draperies or any other material
furnished as interior window coverings. It does not include items/materials
placed on or at windows by individuals as decoration.

“Sanitize” means the method and product used is sufficient to significantly
reduce the amount of bacteria, viruses and fungi on the cleaned surface.

“Spot Cleaning” means removal of stains, spots, and soil in less than an
entire carpet and non-carpeted area through use of a cleaning agent that will
not damage the carpet or non-carpeted area.

249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit F
DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page | of 5

288



1.10.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14.

Exhibit F
Janitorial Services Agrecment

“Spray Buff”” means the restorative maintenance of a previously finished
floor with a suitable polishing machine immediately following the mist-
spraying of an appropriate State approved product onto the surface whereby
the wet application is buffed to dryness creating a “wet look™ or shiny floor.

“Traffic Areas” means lobbies, hallways, and all other areas where people
normally walk, and in conference rooms.

“Vacuuming” means the process of using vacuuming equipment on all floor
surfaces, including ones hidden under furniture, until free of dirt, dust, and
debris.

“Wet Scrub” means the process that takes off only the top one (1) or two (2)
layers of finish to eliminate imbedded dirt and scratches, includes a re-
coating with one (1) or two (2) layers of finish as needed to complete the
process.

“Wet Strip” means the elimination of all finish and sealer, getting down to
the bare floor.

2. Janitor shall perform Services in the Premises.

3. Janitor shall perform Services described in Section 5 below five (5) days per week,
Monday through Friday, between 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. excluding legal holidays
specified in ORS 187.010 and closure days observed by Tenant.

4, Janitor shall perform periodic Services, at the intervals described in Sections 6
through 10 below, between 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. excluding legal holidays
specified in ORS 187.010 and closure days observed by the State.

5. Daily Janitorial Services: Janitor shall:

a, Clean all hard surface floors;
b. Vacuum all carpets;
c. Spot clean carpets where necessary to remove spots and stains;
d. Clean and Sanitize tables, counter tops and sinks in the following areas:
() Kitchen;
2) Break rooms;
3 Conference rooms;
4) Lactation rooms;
(5) Wellness rooms;
(6) Interview or visitation rooms, if any; and
) Common Areas.
€. Common Areas:
H Remove all fingerprints from interior glass; and
(2) Clean and Sanitize drinking fountains, door handles, doorknobs, sink
faucet handles, push and pull bars, light switches, and related fixtures
and surfaces.
249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit F

DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 2 of 5

289



Exhibit F
Janitorial Services Agreement

f. Restrooms:

(1) Clean and Sanitize all restroom floors;

(2)  Clean and Sanitize towel and soap dispenser;

(3) Clean all restroom mirrors;

(4) Clean and Disinfect baby diaper changing tables, if any;

(5) Clean and Disinfect child clean-up rooms and showers, if any;

(6) Clean and Sanitize restroom sinks including faucet handles, counter
tops, toilets (internally and externally), toilet seats, and urinals;

(D Clean and Sanitize door handles, stall handles and locks, and all hand
rails installed on restroom walls; and

(8) Empty restroom waste baskets and feminine hygiene waste
receptacles; and

(9) Replenish restroom supplies, i.e. toilet paper, paper towels, seat liners,

liquid soap, feminine hygiene sanitary products.

g Trash Collection:

(1) Empty Common Area wastebaskets and recyclable receptacles and
Centralized Location garbage cans and replace liners as necessary;

2) Wipe the inside and outside of Centralized Locations and Common
Area wastebaskets as needed and install plastic liners;

3) Take trash and recycle material from Centralized Locations and
Common Area cans to the dumpster or other designated area. Keep
dumpster area clean;

(4) Determine with the Building Contact the placement of trash and
recycle receptacles in Centralized Locations and Common Areas;

(5) Provide and replenish backup supplies for each size trash liner as
necessary for Building staff use, next to the trash receptacles located
in all Centralized Locations and Common Areas; and

(6) Janitor shall not empty individual workstation, desk side or private
office trash receptacles. Building staff will be responsible for
emptying their own trash and recyclables.

h. When moving furniture during the cleaning process, return to original
configuration;

i Change interior burned-out light bulbs and fluorescent tubes. Remove and
recycle or discard in accordance with current laws, ordinances and
regulations; and

J- Clean and polish all entrance door glass inside and outside. NOTE: this
includes the exterior and interior entrances and all interior door relights.

6. Tuesdays & Thursdays ONLY: Janitor shall vacuum high traffic carpeted areas

including Common Areas and elevator car(s), if any.

249 SW 3rd Street

Exhibit F

DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 3 of 5

290



Exhibit F
Janitorial Services Agreement

7. Weekly Janitorial Services: Janitor shall:

Vacuum all carpeted areas including the edges on Fridays;

b. Clean all mirrors; chrome plumbing connections and restroom hardware
throughout the Building. Do not wash or clean Plexiglas partition walls;

c. Clean exposed surfaces of all kitchen, break room and restroom cupboards,
kitchen appliances and vending machines;

d. Dust surfaces of furniture, i.e. file cabinet tops, fixtures, windowsills and
ledges (high and low) NOTE: Dust cubicle top edges and the cove base edge
on the exterior of the cubicle;

€. Spot clean doors and door frames, removing fingerprints, smudges, dirt and
scuff marks. For interior doors with relights, clean the glass; and

f. Remove debris (cigarette butts, trash) from all building entrances and
sidewalks that serve the Building.

R. Monthly Janitorial Services: lanitor shall:

Wash and Disinfect all restrooms walls, stalls, partitions and wainscoting;

b. Clean the bathroom vent covers;

c. Vacuum all upholstered furniture (not including Building staff chairs) in the
Common Areas, and spot clean as needed to ensure spots are removed; and

d. Remove debris (cigarette butts, trash) from outdoor break area and outdoor
play area, if any.

9. Quarterly Janitorial Services: Janitor shall:

a. Clean, scrub and polish all hard surface floors (per manufacturer’s
instructions), including the edges and cove base;

b. Clean all louvers and vent covers for heating-cooling system;

c. Clean, dust and remove cobwebs from interior ceiling, doorways, skylights,

and exterior windowsills and entrances.

d. Extraction Carpet Cleaning: Carpets shall be cleaned on the following
schedule and in the identified manner:

(D January and July: Professionally clean and shampoo all carpeted
floors.

(2) April and October: Professionally clean and shampoo carpeted floors
in high traffic areas.

3) Janitor shall be responsible for maneuvering Janitor’s equipment
around items that cannot be easily or safely moved such as: systems
furniture, file cabinets, copier machines, couches and desks.

@ All carpet cleanings must be coordinated with Tenant a minimum of
two (2) weeks in advance.

(5)  Janitor shall use a rotary jet extractor in all accessible areas, and a
wand shall be used under desks and around edges or places not
accessible with the rotary jet extractor.

249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit F
DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 4 of 5

291



Exhibit F
Janitorial Services Agreement

(6)  Janitor shall do preconditioning where necessary prior to cleaning to
ensure spots, stains and heavily soiled areas will come clean.

(7) In all cases, carpets must be dry within six (6) hours of cleaning.
Carpets must be clean and free from stains including areas along wall
edges, transition areas and under tables and surfaces. Janitor shall be
responsible for replacing any furniture moved to its original location.
Janitor shall follow all manufacturers’ instructions.

(8) Janitor shall use only environmentally friendly cleaning products and
shall follow all manufacturers’ instructions.

10. Annual Janitorial Services: Janitor shall:

a. Wet strip floors - clean, strip old wax, apply new wax, and buft all hard
surface floors in accordance with floor manufacturer’s recommendations;
b. Clean and sweep all storage areas;
c. Vacuum and clean mini blinds or other window coverings;
d. Clean interior windowsills and window tracks;
e. Wash all light fixture covers and reflectors; and
f. Clean and dust all exposed duct work and sound baffles in ceiling area of
staff area.
249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit F

DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 5 of 5

292



Exhibit I-1
Contractor's Insurance Requirements (Landlord's Contractors)

Contractor’s Insurance Requirements

(a) Generally. The Contractor shall obtain and keep in effect throughout the duration of the
Contract the types of insurance coverage set forth below (the “Contractor’s Insurance
Coverage”). The Contractor’s Insurance Coverage shall be issued by an insurance company
authorized to do business in the State of Oregon. A combination of primary and excess/umbrella
insurance may be used to meet the required limits of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage.

(b) Types of Coverage. The Contractor shall obtain and keep in effect throughout the
duration of the Contract the following Contractor’s Insurance Coverage:

(i) General Liability: a commercial general liability policy, covering bodily injury
and property damage and providing contractual liability coverage for the Contractor’s
indemnity obligations under the Contract. The policy shall include coverage for personal
and advertising injury liability, products and completed operations and have no limitation
of coverage to designated premises, project or operation. Coverage shall be written on an
occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence, with an
annual aggregate of not less than $4,000,000.00.

(i)  Workers’ Compensation: if the Contractor employs any “subject worker” as
defined in ORS 656.027), workers’ compensation insurance for those workers, with
statutory limits, and employer’s liability insurance, with limits not less than $500,000.00
per each accident or disease.

(c) Additional Insured. All of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage, except for workers’
compensation, shall include an “Additional Insured” endorsement specifying Landlord, its
officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds, including Additional Insured status with
respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and completed operations, but only with
respect to the Contractor’s activities to be performed under the Contract. Coverage shall be
primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance. The Additional
Insured endorsement with respect to liability arising out of the Contractor’s ongoing operations
shall be on ISO Form CG 20 10 07 04 or equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement
with respect to completed operations shall be on ISO form CG 20 37 07 04 or equivalent.

(d) Tail Coverage. If any of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage is on a claims made basis
and does not include an extended reporting period of at least twenty-four (24) months, the
Contractor shall maintain either tail coverage or continuous claims-made liability coverage,
provided the effective date of the continuous claims-made coverage is on or before the effective
date of the Contract, for a minimum of twenty-four (24) months following the later of:

(i) Landlord’s or the Contractor’s termination of the Contract; or

(iiy  the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Contract.

249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit I-1
DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 1 of 2

293



Exhibit I-1
Contractor's Insurance Requirements (Landlord's Contractors)

(e) Certificate and Proof of Insurance. The Contractor shall provide to Landlord a
“Certificate of Insurance” for all of Contractor’s Insurance Coverage, before performing any of
Contractor’s obligations under the Contract. The Certificate of Insurance shall list Landlord, its
officers, employees and agents as a Certificate holder and as an endorsed Additional Insured.
The Certificate of Insurance shall also include all required endorsements or copies of applicable
policy language effecting coverage required under the Contract. If excess/umbrella insurance is
used to meet the minimum insurance requirement, the Certificate of Insurance shall include a list
of all policies that fall under the excess/umbrella insurance. As proof of insurance, Landlord
may request, and the Contractor shall deliver to Landlord, copies of insurance policies and
endorsements relating to the Contractor’s Insurance Requirements.

® Change or Cancellation. The Contractor shall provide at least thirty (30) days’ prior
notice to Landlord before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate
limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s). Should the terms and conditions
of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage change during the term of the Contract, Landlord may
require the Contractor to replace any coverage omitted or deleted by such change.

(g) Insurance Requirement Review. The Contractor agrees to Landlord’s periodic review of
the requirements for the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage under this Exhibit, and to provide an
updated Certificate of Insurance as reasonably requested by Landlord.

(h)y  Landlord Acceptance. All insurance providers are subject to Landlord acceptance. If
requested by Landlord, the Contractor shall provide complete copies of insurance policies,
endorsements, self-insurance documents and related insurance documents to Landlord’s
representatives responsible for verification of Contractor’s Insurance Coverage.

249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit I-1
DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 2 of 2

294



Exhibit I-2
Contractor's Insurance Requirements (Tenant's Contractors)

Contractor’s Insurance Requirements

(a) Generally. The Contractor shall obtain and keep in effect throughout the duration of the
Contract the types of insurance coverage set forth below (the “Contractor’s Insurance
Coverage”). The Contractor’s Insurance Coverage shall be issued by an insurance company
authorized to do business in the State of Oregon. A combination of primary and excess/umbrella
insurance may be used to meet the required limits of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage.

(b) Types of Coverage. The Contractor shall obtain and keep in effect throughout the
duration of the Contract the following Contractor’s Insurance Coverage:

(1) General Liability: a commercial general liability policy, covering bodily injury
and property damage and providing contractual liability coverage for the Contractor’s
indemnity obligations under the Contract. The policy shall include coverage for personal
and advertising injury liability, products and completed operations and have no limitation
of coverage to designated premises, project or operation. Coverage shall be written on an
occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence, with an
annual aggregate of not less than $4,000,000.00.

(i)  Workers’ Compensation: if the Contractor employs any “subject worker” as
defined in ORS 656.027), workers’ compensation insurance for those workers, with
statutory limits, and employer’s liability insurance, with limits not less than $500,000.00
per each accident or disease.

(c) Additional Insured. All of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage, except for workers’
compensation, shall include an “Additional Insured” endorsement specifying Tenant, its
officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds, including Additional Insured status with
respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and completed operations, but only with
respect to the Contractor’s activities to be performed under the Contract. Coverage shall be
primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance. The Additional
Insured endorsement with respect to liability arising out of the Contractor’s ongoing operations
shall be on ISO Form CG 20 10 07 04 or equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement
with respect to completed operations shall be on [SO form CG 20 37 07 04 or equivalent.

(d) Tail Coverage. If any of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage is on a claims made basis
and does not include an extended reporting period of at least twenty-four (24) months, the
Contractor shall maintain either tail coverage or continuous claims-made liability coverage,
provided the effective date of the continuous claims-made coverage is on or before the effective
date of the Contract, for a minimum of twenty-four (24) months following the later of:

(i) Tenant’s or the Contractor’s termination of the Contract; or

(i) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Contract.

249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit I-2
DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 1 of 2

295



Exhibit [-2
Contractor's Insurance Requirements (Tenant's Contractors)

(e) Certificate and Proof of Insurance. The Contractor shall provide to Tenant a
“Certificate of Insurance” for all of Contractor’s Insurance Coverage, before performing any of
Contractor’s obligations under the Contract. The Certificate of Insurance shall list Tenant, its
officers, employees and agents as a Certificate holder and as an endorsed Additional Insured.

The Certificate of Insurance shall also include all required endorsements or copies of applicable
policy language effecting coverage required under the Contract. If excess/umbrella insurance is
used to meet the minimum insurance requirement, the Certificate of Insurance shall include a list
of all policies that fall under the excess/umbrella insurance. As proof of insurance, Tenant may
request, and the Contractor shall deliver to Tenant, copies of insurance policies and endorsements
relating to the Contractor’s Insurance Requirements.

() Change or Cancellation. The Contractor shall provide at least thirty (30) days’ prior
notice to Tenant before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate
limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s). Should the terms and conditions
of the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage change during the term of the Contract, Tenant may
require the Contractor to replace any coverage omitted or deleted by such change.

() Insurance Requirement Review. The Contractor agrees to Tenant’s periodic review of the
requirements for the Contractor’s Insurance Coverage under this Exhibit, and to provide an
updated Certificate of Insurance as reasonably requested by Tenant.

(h) Tenant Acceptance. All insurance providers are subject to Tenant acceptance. If
requested by Tenant, the Contractor shall provide complete copies of insurance policies,
endorsements, self-insurance documents and related insurance documents to Tenant’s
representatives responsible for verification of Contractor’s Insurance Coverage.

#10054433v1
DOJ Rev. 5.16.22; HD_Rev. 8 3.2022

249 SW 3rd Street Exhibit I-2
DAS Lease Control No. 1485 Page 2 of 2

296



2024 AMENDMENT
to the
PARTICIPATING PROVIDER AGREEMENT

Effective April 1, 2024 the Participating Provider Agreement (the “Agreement”) between PacificSource
Community Solutions (“Health Plan™) and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
{*CMHPs”) is amended to include the following:

1. New Attachments G and H.

Except for the changes described herein, the Participating Provider Agreement, and all other Exhibits,
remain unchanged.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 1 of 20 2024 9938-31227

297



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the date first
set forth above.

PACIFICSOURCE COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS DESCHUTES COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES

By: By:

298

PETER MCGARRY PATTI ADAIR, CHAIR

ANTHONY DEBONE, VICE CHAIR

PHIL CHANG, COMMISSIONER

Title: VP PROVIDER NETWORK Title: BOARD OF DESCHUTES COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS
Date: Date:
Address: PO Box 7469 Address: 2577 NE Courtney Drive
Bend, OR 97701 Bend, OR 97701

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 2 of 20 2024 9938-31227



299

JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIONERS

By:

Name: WAYNE FORDING

Title:_ COMMISSIONER

Date:

JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

By:

Name: MARK WUNSCH

Title:_ COMMISSIONER

Date:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

By:

Name: KELLY SIMMELINK

Title:_ COMMISSIONER

Date:

PACIFICSOURCE COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS

By:

Name: PETER MCGARRY

Title: VP PROVIDER NETWORK

Date:

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

Page 3 of 20

2024

9938-31227



CROOK COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIONERS

By:

Name: SETH CRAWFORD

Title:  COUNTY JUDGE

Date:

CROOK COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIONERS

By:

Name: BRIAN BARNEY

Title:_ COUNTY COMMISSIONER

Date:

CROOK COUNTY HEALTH SERVICES
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISIONERS

By:

Name: SUSAN HERMRECK

Title:_COUNTY COMMISSIONER

Date:

PACIFICSOURCE COMMUNITY SOLUTIONS

By:

Name:_ PETER MCGARRY

Title: VP PROVIDER NETWORK

Date:

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

Page 4 of 20 2024

9938-31227

300



ATTACHMENT G

RISK MODEL

1.0 RISK MODEL

The 2024 Risk model agreed upon by Health Plan, various primary care providers of St.
Charles Medical Group, Mosaic Medical Group, Praxis Medical Group, and COIPA and
also Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs (“CMHP(s)”) shall contain the
following:

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

(F)

A construct involving two (2) main Coordinated Care Organization (CCO)
territories (Central Oregon CCO and Columbia Gorge CCO} and settlements within
each CCO for OHP Members, as well as the potential for settlement impacts for
CMHPs should CMHPs provide services to OHP Members from the Lane,
Marion/Polk or Portland area CCOs. In the Central Oregon CCO, the separate
Health Care Budget (HCB) settlements shall be for those OHP Members who are
assigned to primary care providers of (i) St. Charles Medical Group (SCMG)
combined with the primary care providers of Mosaic Medical Group (Mosaic), (ii)
COIPA, and (iii) Praxis Medical Group. In the Central Oregon CCO, there are
some OHP Members who are assigned to primary care providers other than SCMG,
Mosaic Medical Group, COIPA and Praxis, for whom there may be no HCB, and/or
no settiement involving CMHPs.

A Hospital Capitation Payment to St. Charles Health System (SCHS) for certain
hospital services in the Central Oregon CCO as a component of the separate HCBs,
and for which there is a Hospital Capitation Withhold (HCW) which shall be settled
for SCMG/Mosaic and SCHS.

Capitated payment for primary care providers of SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA and
Praxis Medical Group for certain primary care services provided to any assigned
OHP Members from any CCO, for which there will be no withhold and no
independent settlement.

Fee-for-service payment for all other professional services provided by SCMG,
Mosaic, COIPA and Praxis Medical Group for any CCO members not designated
as capitated primary care services per (C) above.

Capitated and fee-for-service payment to the CMHPs for services provided as
detailed in Attachment H. Fee-for-service payments shall have a Claims Risk
Withhold.

Patient-Centered Primary Care Home (PCPCH) and Behavioral Health Integration
(BHI) per member per month payments for which primary care providers can

qualify.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

Page 5 of 20

2024 9938-31227

301



2.0

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

(@)

(H)

(0

()

Payment allocations for (B), (C), (D), (E), and (F) above, and separate HCB
settlements for health care expenses to determine Claims Risk Withhold and
Surplus returns for SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA, Praxis Medical Group, other
providers, Community Mental Health Programs (CMHPs) and Health Plan.

Separate risk models which features Revenue and Expenses for physical health,
behavioral health/Chemical Dependency (CD), Alcohol/Drug — Residential, and
Behavioral Health — Residential services under OHP, paid by the state of Oregon
to Health Plan as a global capitation payment, and not otherwise designated as
revenue contingent on innovation grants, and the exclusion of Revenue and
Expenses in the following OHP categories:

- “Dental Care” premium allocation and expenses.

--- “Non-Emergent Medical Transportation” premium allocation and expenses.

--- Payments to Central Oregon Health Council (COHC), taxes, adjustments
and premium transfers.

If there are significant fluctuations (+/-10%) in the revenue allocations/adjustments
for Dental, NEMT, or taxes/adjustments/premium transfers, Health Plan will
discuss such fluctuations with CMHPs as soon as possible to gain a mutual
understanding of the fluctuation, and whether it was due to membership fluctuation
by benefit category, or some other cause.

Contract terms that are consistent with the Joint Management Agreement (JMA)
and JMA budget signed between Health Plan and the COHC which specifies the
rules, duties, obligation, limitations on Health Plan margin, “Health Services”
allocations, and other obligations and expenses for Health Plan as a CCO for
Central Oregon.

Utilization and Process Metrics which specify the return of any HCW, and metrics
which specify the return of part of the Surplus and Claims Risk Withhold which
may result from health care costs measured against any HCB.

CAPITATION

2.1

Page 6 of 20

Hospital Capitation Rate (HCR) paid to SCHS: The HCR shall be $negotiated
as a variable per member, per month (PMPM) for OHP members with physical
health benefits, which has been calculated for the membership in the month of
November 2020, and will fluctuate with membership fluctuations in each Rate
Category, consistent with the revenue components listed in Section 1,H above. The
HCR and the resulting Hospital Capitation Payment to SCHS may vary as
Estimated Earned Net Premium Revenue payments from the state of Oregon to
Health Plan increase or decrease, and is a weighted average of the following Central
Oregon CCO membership in various benefit categories (which will change each
month with membership) and PMPM Capitation Rates specific to each Rate
Category as indicated below:

2024 9938-31227

302



PMPM

=g Nov. 2020
Rate Category . Ca?\‘l;:;lon Membership
Aid to Blind/Disabled & OAA with Medicare $20.12 3,474
Aid to Blind/Disabled & OAA w/o Medicare $389.97 2,132
CAF/FOSTER Children $27.66 820
ACA Ages 19-44 $94.35 15,411
ACA Ages 45-54 $186.29 4,089
ACA Ages 55-64 $209.14 4,183
PLM, TANF and CHIP Children age < 1 $425.93 1,217
PLM, TANF and CHIP Children age 1-5 $26.36 6,333
PLM, TANF and CHIP Children age 6-18 $27.11 14,990
PLM Adults/PWO (includes pregnancy) $654.94 420
TANF/PCR (Aduits only) $170.58 5,042
BCCP $433.42 18
Weighted Average Negotiated
Total Average Membership, Central Oregon CCO 58,128

2.2 Hospital Capitation Withhold (HCW): The Hospital Capitation Payment will
have a eight percent (8%) Hospital Capitation Withhold.

2.3  Hospital Capitation Services: The following hospital services provided to Central
Oregon CCO OHP members will be reimbursed via the Hospital Capitation
Payment paid to SCHS for services provided at St. Charles Medical Center — Bend,
St. Charles Medical Center — Redmond, St. Charles Medical Center — Prineville,
and St. Charles Medical Center — Madras:

¢ Hospital Inpatient Services, including swing beds and rehabilitation.
¢ Hospital Outpatient Services, including therapies.

o Home Health/Hospice Services billed by St. Charles Medical Center or its
owned entities.

In the event of a significant shift in central Oregon community patterns-of-care that
increase or decrease by more than five percent (5%) inpatient care, outpatient
surgery, outpatient care, or the proportion of hospital care provided by out-of-area
providers for any twelve-month period compared to a prior twelve-month period,
the HCR may, upon mutual agreement by SCMG, Mosaic, SCHS, COIPA, CMHPs
and Health Plan, be adjusted by Health Plan to account for such shifts in community
patterns-of-care.

303

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 7 of 20 2024 9938-31227



Both parties acknowledge the Hospital Capitation Payment is not intended to
include reimbursement for behavioral health services funded via behavioral
health/CD Residential or other OHP revenue. In the event of a duplicate payment
to SCHS for such services paid under the Hospital Capitation Payment, Health Plan
will present such information to all risk model entities adjust for such duplicate
payment.

2.4  Other Hospital Services: The following hospital services provided to Central
Oregon CCO OHP members will be reimbursed via methods other than the Hospital
Capitation Payment:

. Professional Services billed by SCHS professional and hospital-based
providers and billed on a CMS 1500 form or UB-04 or other form, which,
unless covered under a separate agreement, will be reimbursed at one
hundred percent (100%) of current OHP Allowable Amounts and eight
percent (8%) claims risk withhold.

. Services provided by and billed under St. Charles Medical Group and St.

Charles Family Care.
. Services provided by and billed under Sageview Behavioral Health.
. Inpatient and outpatient Behavioral Health/CD, Alcohol/Drug -

Residential, or Behavioral Health — Residential services funded via OHP’s
Behavioral Health/CD, Alcohol/Drug - Residential or Behavioral Health —
Residential revenue.

. Inpatient and outpatient Dental Services funded as the Oregon Health Plan
and OHA’s Dental revenue via dental care providers and Dental Care
Organizations (DCOs).

2.5 Primary Care Capitation Rate. For services provided by SCMG, Mosaic
Medical, COIPA and Praxis Medical Group who is providing certain primary care
services for SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA, and Praxis Medical Group-assigned OHP
Members, reimbursement will be made on or around the 15" of every month, and
shall be:

Primary Care Capitation Rate negotiated as a variable per member per month

This Primary Care Capitation rate will be made as a per member per month amount
for any Federally Qualified Health Centers or Rural Health Centers, upon
identification as such by Health Plan.

This Primary Care Capitation Rate will be applied to the following PCP Adjustment
Factors attributed to the individual rate categories, which are:

Agreement between PacificSource Community Seclutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 8 of 20 2024 9938-31227

304



2.6

Rate Category PCP Adjustment Factor
Aid to Blind/Disabled & OAA with Medicare 0.3475
Aid to Blind/Disabled & OAA without Medicare 2.2243
CAF/FOSTER Children 1.0280
ACA Ages 19-44 0.9551
ACA Ages 45-54 1.4266
ACA Ages 55-64 1.4900
PLM, TANF and CHIP Children age < 1 1.5641
PLM, TANF and CHIP Children age 1-5 0.9435
PLM, TANF and CHIP Children age 6-18 0.6882
PLM Aduits/PWO (includes pregnancy) 0.9551
TANF/PCR (Adults only) 0.9551
BCCP 0.9551

Primary care providers shall submit a claim to Health Plan for every service
provided, including capitated primary care services.

Covered Services Paid By Primary Care Capitation Rate

This Primary Care Capitation Rate, multiplied by the PCP Adjustment Factors, will
be considered payment in full for the following CPT code services which are
provided by primary care providers for their assigned OHP Members:

Services CPT Codes
Office Visits 99201-99205, 99211-99215, 99241-99245
Home Services 90341-99345, 99347-99350
Other Office Services 92551, 92552, 93000, 930056, 93010, 93790,

95115-95134, 99000-99002, 99050, 99051,
99053, 99056, 99058, 99070, 99080, 99366-
99368, 99429, 99441-99443

Minor Surgical Services

10060, 10061, 10080, 10120, 10140, 10160,
11720, 11721, 11740, 16000, 16020, 17110,
17111, 20550, 20600, 20605, 20610, 30300,
36415, 45300, 45303, 46600, 46604, 51701,
54050, 54055, 54056, 56501, 65205, 65220,

69200, 69210

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
2024 9938-31227

Page 9 of 20

305



3.0 COMPENSATION - ALL OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

For non-capitated primary care services and all specialty/ancillary services provided to
OHP Members irrespective of primary care provider assignment, SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA
and Praxis Medical Group shall be compensated based on Resource Based Relative Value
Scale (“RBRVS”) conversion factors or a percentage of the current OHP fee schedule.
Payment will be less an established Claims Risk Withhold. On an annual basis, this Claims
Risk Withhold will be returned in whole, in part, or not returned, based upon (a) the
comparison of paid and incurred claims expenses and other costs, to separate HCBs in
Sections 7 of this Exhibit B as well as the performance of quality metrics in Section 7.6, or
(b) per the contract of the OHP Member’s primary care provider, if other than SCMG,
Mosaic, COIPA or Praxis Medical Group.

31 Medical Fee For Service

CLAIMS
SERVICE/PROCEDURE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE | RISK
| WITHHOLD

Services listed in the CMS '
Physicians Fee Schedule:
OHA GPCI Adjusted RVUs for conversion fact0r1'2' 3 8%
services listed in the July 2019 ’
Medicare Physician Fee Schedule
e o s 022
Laboratory:
Services classified by CMS using % of OHP Allowable' 3 8%
OHP Medical-Dental Fee Schedule .
Anesthesia:
Services classified in the American per unit ASA Conversion
Society of Anesthesiologists Relative Factor? 8%
Value Guide

Durable Medical Equipment,
Prosthetics, Orthotics and
Supplies: % of OHP Allowable'* 2 8%
Services listed in the OHP Medical-
Dental Fee Schedule

Injectables, Vaccines, Immuni-
zations: 1.3
Services listed in the OHP Medical- % of OHP Allowable 8%
Dental Fee Schedule

Services and procedures without . o
an OHP Allowable % of Billed Charges 8%

Note; Payment will be based upon the lesser of the billed amount or Health Plan negotiated rates in effect
at the time the service or supplies are rendered or provided as specified above.

1. Updates to the schedules noted above shall be updated in accordance to OHP,

2. Facility and non-facility RVUs shall be used and determined by the setling in which the service occurs.
3. Health Plan will reimburse based on the rates published as of the date of adjudication

4, ASA Basic Unit Value and annual updates as defined by the American Society of Anesthesiologists
Relative Value Guide. Time units shall be based on fifteen (15} minute increments.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 10 of 20 2024 9938-31227

306



3.2

Patient Centered Primary Care Home (PCPCH) Program and Behavioral
Health Integration

Primary care providers shall be able to opt into Health Plan’s Base or Program
Participation PCPCH Program.

4.0 ALTERNATIVE PAYMENT MODELS

4.1

4.2

4.3

Pediatric Hospitalist Program.

SCHS shall be paid one dollar and twenty-five cents ($1.25) per OHP Member, per
month, for OHP Members assigned to SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA and Praxis Medical
Group’s primary care providers in Central Oregon, to support a Pediatric
Hospitalist Program (the “Program™). This amount will be an expense against
separate HCBs to support the costs of the Program. Program revenue and costs,
including FTE costs, will be reported showing any deficit/surplus. SCHS will
provide, no less than quarterly, the accounting for the Program revenue and costs
as described above to Health Plan.

Provider Incentives for Enhanced Access, Quality Improvement and PCPCH
Certification

SCMG, Mosaic and COIPA shall be paid around three dollars and thirty cents
($3.30) per OHP Member, per month, for OHP Members assigned to SCMG,
Mosaic, COIPA and Praxis Medical Group. This amount will be an expense against
their respective HCBs.

Deschutes Stabilization Center

Deschutes County shall be paid ninety-one cents ($0.91) per OHP Member, per
month, for OHP Members assigned to SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA and Praxis Medical
Group primary care providers in Central Oregon, to support a Deschutes
Stabilization Center. This amount will be an expense toward their respective
HCBs.

5.0 PREMIUM ALLOCATION.

Health Plan and CMHPs have established the following allocation of premium in order to
implement the compensation and risk incentive structure:

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

Page 11 of 20

2024 9938-31227

307



5.1

5.2

Definitions. Estimated Earned Net Premium Revenue. Estimated Earned Net
Premium Revenue shall consist of those global capitation payments (including
adjustments and reconciliations with the state of Oregon) received by Health Plan
from the State of Oregon for OHP Members assigned to SCMG’s/Mosaic’s,
COIPA’s and Praxis Medical Group’s primary care providers in the Central Oregon
CCO for health services under OHP, less premium allocations and/or payments for
services in Section 1,H, which include: Dental Care premium allocation and claims
paid to DCOs, Non-Emergent Medical Transportation premium allocation and
claims paid to NEMT vendors, payments to COHC per the agreement with the
COHC, taxes, adjustments, premium transfers, innovation grant revenue, OHA-
required Hepatitis C reconciliations with OHA as necessary, and any portion of
QIM bonus or QIM withhold retained per agreement with the COHC.

Allocation of Estimated Earned Net Premium Revenue.

After the application of any QDP/GME/MCO/Provider taxes, ACA taxes, OHA-
required qualified directed pass-through payments, Health Plan Income Taxes for
Medicaid, a payment to fund the COHC in the amount of one percent (1%) of gross
premium (not counting pass-through funds), premium transfers for Dual Eligible
Medicare premium and excluding: Dental Care premium allocation and claims paid
to DCOs, Non-Emergent Medical Transportation premium allocation and claims
paitd to NEMT vendors, innovation grant revenue, OHA-required Hepatitis C
reconciliation adjustments with the OHA/state of Oregon as necessary, and QIM
withhold retained per agreement with the COHC, the remaining Estimated Earned
Net Premium Revenue will be allocated as follows:

5.2.1 Administration. Eight and sixty hundredths percent (8.60%) of the
remaining Estimated Earned Net Premium Revenue shall be allocated to
Health Plan for administration.

5.2.2 Amounts Allocated to the primary care provider provider HCB. Ninety-one
and forty hundredths percent (91.40%) of the remaining Estimated Earned
Net Premium Revenue shall be allocated to the separate HCBs of
SCMG/Mosaic, and COIPA.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

Page 12 of 20

2024 9938-31227

308



6.0 ALLOCATIONS AND DISBURSEMENT

6.1

6.2

Computation of Budget Expenses.

For OHP Members assigned separately to primary care providers of
SCMG/Mosaic, COIPA and Praxis Medical Group, all claims expenses (including
Claims Risk Withhold), PMPM fees (including credentialing and any CPC+
expenses), reinsurance/stop loss premium expenses (less recoveries), Pharmacy
Expenses (less rebates), Hospital Capitation Payments (including HCW), PCP
Capitation Expense, subrogation adjustments, premium/MCO taxes, coinsurance
expenses, out-of-area expenses, ancillary expenses, behavioral health/Chemical
Dependency {CD) expenses paid to CMHPs, SCHS and other panel providers,
Alcohol/Drug Residential expenses, Behavioral Health — Residential expenses,
Health Services and other expenses iterated in the Joint Management Agreement
(JMA) and JMA budget between Health Plan and the COHC shall be charged to
the separate HCBs based on the day services were actually rendered with the
exception of Late Claims, as defined in Section 6.2 below, which shall be charged
to the next year’s applicable budget.

Disposition of Late Claims.

Late Claims are those claims received, processed, and paid later than four months
(120 days) after the close of the contract period. Late Claims will be attributed to
the next year's applicable budget.

7.0 SETTLEMENT PARAMETERS.

7.1

7.2

Settlement Parameters for OHP Members

The following settlement parameters for this Section 7 are intended to approximate
financial terms for OHP Members assigned to SCMG/Mosaic, COIPA’s and Praxis
Medical Group primary care providers. CMHP’s role in settlements shall be
consistent with the settlement terms of SCMG/Mosaic, COIPA and Praxis Medical
Group, should such settlement terms differ from the terms and percentages
otherwise indicated in this Section 7. CMHPs understand and agree to be subject
to the settlement terms other primary care provider agreements when CMHPs
provide services for OHP Members assigned to non-SCMG/Mosaic, non-COIPA
and non-Praxis Medical Group entities.

Time Period.

Annual Claims Risk Withhold and HCW settlement reports will occur for the 2024
calendar year four months (120 days) after the close of the contract period ending
December 31st. Any charges/credits to the applicable budgets that have occurred
since the settlement of the previous contract period are accounted for in the
settlement of the current period.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Heaith Programs

Page 13 of 20

2024 9938-31227

309



7.3

74

7.5

Claims Risk Withhold Settlement Summary.

Health Plan shall be responsible for computing, documenting, and reporting annual
Claims Risk Withhold settlement summary. This report shall be submitted
approximately five months (151 days) after year-end. In the event of a dispute
regarding the accuracy and completeness of the data reported by Health Plan,
Health Plan agrees to an audit of the data by an independent third party mutually
agreed upon between Health Plan and providers, which shall be at the sole cost and
expense of providers.

Settlement Sequence — HCW

The HCW will be settled consistent with the terms of the agreements between
Health Plan and SCHS, SCMG and Mosaic, which are the only entities sharing in
the HCW.

Settlement Sequence — HCBs

After completion of the HCW settlements, HCBs shall be settled per the agreement
between Health Plan and SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA and Praxis Medical Group, of
which the CMHPs may be a part.

8.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS.

8.1

8.2

Defined Terms.

Any terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the
Participating Provider Agreement.

Precedence.

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Exhibit and the
Participating Provider Service Agreement, such conflict or inconsistency shall be
resolved by giving precedence first to this Exhibit then the Participating Provider
Agreement.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

Page 14 of 20

2024 9938-31227

310



8.3  Health Services Understanding

Health Plan and SCMG and COIPA signed a separate Letter of Understanding in
July of 2015 which detailed the appropriate allocation of certain health care
expenses as being part of any HCB. Consistent with that understanding Health Plan
(a) has entered into a contract with OHA whereby Health Plan has agreed to manage
programs to optimize cost, quality and experience of care for OHP Members, (b) is
mandated to operate such programs with auditable reporting requirements, (c) has
signed an agreement with OHA (consistent with OHA rules and regulations) which
stipulates such program expenses are accounted for outside Health Plan
administrative/general expenses and are part of health care expenses which are part
of any HCB in this Agreement, and (d) calculates a PMPM expense as a percentage
of the CCO global budget, to pay for such Health Services programs.

84 Requirements

CMHPs will participate in and attest to performing any applicable (a) data
submission activities pertinent to CCO EHR-based incentive metrics, (b) data
submission requirements including sending accurate data in time and formats
determined by CCO to comply with OHA measure specifications, (c) submitting
data to Health Plan on a monthly basis by the 20" of the month and acknowledging
reports for the first four months of the calendar year will be provided as early as
possible based on the delivery from CMHPs’ software vendor, (d) requests for
surveys or other information, (e) requests to complete successful CCO data
collection/submission activities, and (f) reporting expectations for diabetes,
hypertension, depression, tobacco prevalence and BMI. CMHPs acknowledge that
submission of these requirements is essential as failure to do so for each EHR-based
incentive will lead to failure for each eCQM measure, failure to meet the population
threshold required and will cause the entire Central Oregon CCO to fail the
measure.

CMHPs will perform patient satisfaction surveys in alignment with PCPCH
standard requirements and will share such survey results with Health Plan upon
reasonable request.

CMHPs will cooperate with Health Plan on Health Plan’s CAHPS Improvement
Plans.

CMHPs allows Health Plan to share individual provider performance information
such as quality performance metrics with CCO-contracted providers and Health
Councils.

8.5  Oregon Health Plan/OHA Capitation Administration Regulations
In the event of (a) requirements rules, regulations or guidance related to applicable
provider capitation payments made by Health Plan to CMHPs, and per Health Plan
Exhibit L filing and Medical Loss Ratio filings submitted to OHA, and/or (b)
Health Plan’s and/or OHA’s interpretation of applicability of such requirements,
rules, regulations, or guidance and applicability of Health Plan’s capitation
payment methodology with CMHPs, Health Plan may enact the following:

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 15 of 20 2024 9938-31227

311



8.6

8.7

e A charge commensurate with any OHA recoupment, demand for repayment,
charge, tax or fee, to be charged against any HCB, and/or

¢ A renegotiation with CMHPs to revert all payment methodologies entailing
CMHP’s capitation, to a fee-for-service payment methodology.

CMHPs shall cooperate with Health Plan to produce reports for Health Plan and/or
OHA that satisfy to Health Plan and OHA discretion, the requirements, rules,
regulations or guidance from OHA related to capitation payments.

Oregon Health Plan/OHA Possible Premium Revision / MLR-based
repayment to OHA

In the event of a revision of premium levels for OHP Members by the state of
Oregon/OHA by a net amount deemed by Health Plan to be inconsistent with the
2024 (a) CMHP capitation rate, (b) conversion factors, or (c) hospital capitation
rates agreed to in this 2024 amendment to the Agreement, Health Plan will notify
CMHPs of such inconsistency in writing, and both parties will enter into a
renegotiation of 2024 reimbursement rates in order to achieve consistency with any
new Oregon Health Plan/OHA premium levels.

In the event OHA determines Health Plan must pay OHA any sum because the
Central Oregon CCO Medical Loss Ratio (MLR), as determined by OHA, does not
meet a minimum threshold for the entire population or any benefit-category specific
sub populations, Health Plan reserves the right to (a) deduct a pro-rata portion of
such repayment from any HCB in Section 7, or (b) make direct investments to
increase the MLR and offset such expenses with the settlement, upon
communication with CMHPs and the COHC.

Health Related Services (Flexible Services and Community Based Health-
Related Services.

Consistent with the Health-Related Services Rule adopted by the OHA (which
includes member-level disbursements often called “flexible services”, and
community-based Health-Related Services, often called “Community Benefit
Initiatives™) and the Health-Related Services Brief released by the OHA, along with
Health Plan policies approved by OHA, Health Plan will make certain
disbursements from any HCB from time to time and at Health Plan’s discretion.
These disbursements are distinct from Health Plan-provided Health Services.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs

Page 16 of 20

2024 9938-31227

312



8.8 Community Health Improvement Plan, Transformation Plan and Health
Council Activities.

CMHPs will collaborate with Health Plan, the COHC, and other stakeholders in
completing a Community Health Assessment (CHA) and a Community Health
Improvement Plan (CHIP), and in carrying out activities to implement the CHIP
including any recommendation tied to community access studies. CMHPs will
collaborate with Health Plan, the COHC, and other stakeholders to carry out the
Transformation And Quality Strategies. For purposes of the CHA, CHIP, or
Transformation And Quality Strategies, for reporting to the COHC or any of its
subcommittees, or for reporting to OHA, Health Plan may share CMHP’s
utilization, membership numbers, and additional performance data. CMHPs will
collaborate with Health Plan and the COHC to meet Transformation And Quality
Strategies requirements and participate in Transformation And Quality Strategy
projects.

8.9  Corrective Action Plans
Health Plan, at its sole discretion and consistent with the expectations of Health
Plan by OHA, may determine that CMHP’s performance of obligations, duties and
responsibilities under the terms of this Agreement is deficient. In reaching that
conclusion, Health Plan may, but is not required to consider third-party audit or
other formal review results, peer review results, quality measures, written or oral
feedback from members or patients, and any other issues which may be identified
by Health Plan. If Health Plan determines CMHP’s performance is deficient for
any reason, but that such deficiency does not constitute a Material Breach of the
terms of this Agreement, Health Plan may institute a corrective action plan (“CAP”")
subject to internal review. Health Plan will notify CMHPs of the terms of the CAP
and will provide a CAP reporting template. Health Plan will supply supporting
information/data to CMHPs at that time, CMHPs shall have thirty (30) days to
resolve the CAP to Health Plan’s satisfaction. Failure to resolve the CAP shall
constitute a Material Breach by CMHPs, and Health Plan may terminate this
Agreement immediately.

8.10 Cooperation and Engagement in Quality Improvement Process.
The COHC voted to support QIM-related positions within Health Plan and area
providers. CMHPs agrees to cooperate with the QIM Practice Facilitator, QIM
Improvement Coordinator, QIM Program Manager, and the ED Improvement
Coordinator to support success on regional quality measures including the QIMS,
as well as to engage and cooperate with the Provider Engagement Panel to support
quality improvement in the region.

8.11 Member Assignment
Health Plan may, at its discretion, assign OHP Members to primary care providers.
Revisions to assignment procedures may be made in response to objective data
related to quality performance, patient access, patient experience, or in response to
other information available to Health Plan.

313

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 17 of 20 2024 9938-31227



Attachment H

CCO Fee-for-service and Capitation for Behavioral Health Services
Community Mental Health Program for Central Oregon CCO

Effective 04/01/2024

1. CMHP Fee-for service and Monthly Capitation Payment

For services provided to OHP Members in the counties where the CMHPs are the designated
Community Mental Health Program, Health Plan will reimburse CMHPs for Therapy Services and
Assessment Services on a fee-for-service basis and on a capitation PMPM basis for Non-
Encounterable Health Care Costs and Program Allocation costs according to the below rate
schedule. These expenses will be charged and allocated to the separate Health Care Budgets
(HCBs) in Attachment G.

Services provided to OHP Members from other CCOs and other counties for which the CMHP is
not the designated Community Mental Health Program, CMHPs shall be reimbursed per a separate
agreement for such services.

Intensive In-Home Behavioral Health Treatment (IIBHT) Deschutes County Health

Services:

CMHP shall provide access to Intensive In-Home Behavioral Health Treatment (1IBHT)
services for all eligible OHP Members aged twenty (20) and younger in accordance with
OARs 309-019- 0167, 410-172-0650, and 410-172-0695. For Deschutes County, [IBHT
services shall be submitted using HCPCS code of H0023 and shall be reimbursed through
the below capitation table. The services under H0023 are separate from services billed for
Behavioral Health outreach and engagement, for which a CPT code will be designated by
Health Plan. Until such a time as an alternative code is identified, CMHP will submit non-
billable Behavioral Health Outreach and Engagement (H0023) claims valued at the agreed
rate of $169.90 and attributed to Non-Encounterable Healthcare Services Costs in the
capitation portion of this contract.

Intensive In-Home Behavioral Health Treatment (IIBHT) Jefferson County Health
Services and Crook County Health Services:

CMHP shall provide access to Intensive In-Home Behavioral Health Treatment (IIBHT)
services for all eligible OHP Members aged twenty (20) and younger in accordance with
OARs 309-019- 0167, 410-172-0650, and 410-172-0695. For Jefferson County and Crook
County CMHPS, 1IBHT services shall be submitted using HPCPS code H0023 and shall
be reimbursed at one hundred percent (100%) of the current OHA allowable, with an eight
percent (8%) Claims Risk Withhold to be settled per Attachment G.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 18 of 20 2024 9938-31227

314



Deschutes Stabilization Center

Deschutes County’s CMHP shall be paid ninety-one cents ($0.91) per OHP Member, per
month, for OHP Members assigned to SCMG, Mosaic, COIPA, and other primary care
providers in Central Oregon, to support a Deschutes Stabilization Center. This amount will
be an expense allocated to the separate HCBs.

Therapy Services for all CMHPs: Therapy Services FFS CPT Codes: 90832, 90834,
00837, 90846, 90847, HO004, H0O005, HO016, HO038 shall be reimbursed at one hundred
and thirty-two percent (132%) of the current OHP fee schedule, for services provided to
OHP Members domiciled in the county for which the provider of care is the designated
Community Mental Health Program. Allowable amounts will have an eight percent (8%)
Claims Risk Withhold to be settled per Attachment G.

Assessment Services for all CMHPs: Assessment Services FFS CPT Codes: 90791,
90792, HO0O01, H0031, H2000 shall be reimbursed at one hundred seventy percent (170%)
percent of the current OHP fee schedule for services provided to OHP Members domiciled
in the county for which the provider of care is the designated Community Mental Health
Program. Allowable amounts will have an eight percent (8%) Claims Risk Withhold to
be settled per Attachment G.

Sublocade Injection Services for all CMHPs: Injection Services FFS CPT Codes:
Q9991 and Q9992 shall be reimbursed at one hundred percent (100%) percent of the
current OHP fee schedule for services provided to OHP Members domiciled in the county
for which the provider of care is the designated Community Mental Health Program.
Allowable amounts will have an eight percent (8%) Claims Risk Withhold to be settled per
Attachment G.

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 19 of 20 2024 0938-31227

315



Non-Encounterable services/other billed services, Program Allocation and Mobile
Crisis Payment and Definition:

CMHPs shall provide and report non-encounterable services and system supports. Non-
encounterable services and system supports include, but are not limited to: travel,
prevention, education and outreach, internal case consultation, co-provided services,
outreach and engagement, socialization, and psycho-educational services that are not
otherwise encounterable. Payments shall be an expense against the HCBs detailed in
Attachment G. Payments for such services and programs shall be as follows:

Non-E.n ITIC L Program Mobile Crisis
o tlii:wcclf;}:;(-ibzi‘lllle d Allocation Allocation
services PMPM L Ll
Deschutes County Health
Services, OHP Members
domiciled in $18.67 $6.63 $0.01
Deschutes/Klamath
County
BestCare OHP Members
domiciled in Jefferson $16.09 $10.39 $0.01
County
BestCare OHP Members
domiciled in Crook $16.09 $10.39 $0.01
County

Agreement between PacificSource Community Solutions and Central Oregon Community Mental Health Programs
Page 20 of 20 2024 9938-31227

316



	Board of Commissioner's Meeting Agenda
	Item 6.1 - 6.1.pdf
	Item 6.2 - 6.2.pdf
	Item 6.3 - 6.3.pdf
	Item 6.4 - 6.4.pdf
	Item 6.5 - 6.5.pdf
	Item 7.1 - 7.1.pdf
	Item 8.1 - 8.1.pdf
	Item 8.2 - 8.2.pdf
	Item 8.3 - 8.3.pdf
	Item 8.4 - 8.4.pdf
	Item 8.5 - 8.5.pdf

